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We care for the well-being of all our stakeholders and we are ethical & responsible in our approach towards 
business...

Mr. (Dr.) Deep A. Lalvani
Non - Executive Director  

(DIN: 01771000)

•  A Commerce Graduate with distinction in Marketing & Advertising and Masters 
in commerce with specialization in Accounting; pursued MBA from Manchester 
Business School, UK and did courses at London School of Economics, UK.

•  Formerly associated with Langham Capital, London, DHL, Europe and various 
NGOs.

•  Awarded an honorary Doctorate in 2019.
•  19 years hands on experience across reputed National and International firms.
•  Involved across various functions within Ador Group including strategising at Ador 

Welding Academy, New business ideas and e-commerce initiatives at the group. 
Currently Chairman of the Group’s holding company, JB Advani & Co Pvt. Ltd. as 
well as leading the Group’s skincare businesses and start-up, Sublime Life.

•  Appointed as the Non-Executive Director of M/s. Ador Welding Limited w.e.f.                   
01st April, 2022.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

• MBA, with specialization in Finance from Imperial College, UK.

• B.Sc. in Business & Economics from Lehigh University, PA, USA.

• Formerly associated with Alliance Capital Asset Management in New York.

•  Over 25 years of experience in Financial Management of Ador Welding Limited 
and Ador Group of Companies.

•  Former Chairman of Ador Fontech Ltd. and J. B. Advani & Co. Private Limited 
(parent company of Ador Group).

• Currently, Executive Chairman of Ador Welding Ltd. w.e.f. 19th November, 2019.

• Member of Young Presidents’ Organisation (YPO) & Entrepreneurs Organisation (EO).

Mrs. Ninotchka Malkani Nagpal 
Executive Chairman 

(DIN: 00031985)

•  Pursued B.A. (Economics) from Oberlin College (Ohio, USA) and MBA from Indian 
School of Business (ISB, Hyderabad).

•  Prior experience in Marketing & Finance functions of MNCs in FMCG industry.

•  Involved across varied functions ranging from corporate marketing & exports to 
strategic planning & new business initiatives across Ador Group of Companies.

Mr. Aditya T. Malkani
Managing Director 

(DIN: 01585637)
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Mr. Piyush K. Gupta
Non-Executive &

Independent Director
(DIN: 00963094)

Ms. Tanya H. Advani
Non-Executive Director

(DIN: 08586636)

•  Ravin MIRCHANDANI is a business leader with significant international experience 
having directly lived and worked in 6 countries across Europe and Asia. His 
experience spans the cryogenic, defence, energy storage, and traffic infrastructure 
industries. 

•  Ravin has an MBA in Business Administration from Queensland University of 
Technology (International Business), Brisbane, Australia, and a Bachelor of 
Commerce (Accounting) degree from the University of Pune, India. 

•  Presently, Ravin’s primary focus is “road”, i.e. equipment to charge electric vehicles 
and road safety technology such as speed enforcement and calming systems. 
During his spare time he enjoys golf and kayaking. He also has a private pilot’s 
license. Ravin speaks English, Hindi, Marathi and when it counts - some French and 
Indonesian.

•  Has worked both as an attorney in private practice and as an in-house counsel 
with MNCs, while working with O’Melveny & Myers LLP, UTStarcom Inc. and UnitedLex 
Corporation. 

•  Most recently was the CEO of Yumchek, a F&B data analytics company. Currently, 
he is a Director at MaxMax Chambers of Conciliation, Mediation & Arbitration. 

•  Has significant experience in managing affairs of Companies in various capacities, 
from structuring and negotiating various types of transactions (trading, licensing, 
outsourcing, RFPs), to conducting due diligence and executing M&As and to 
effectively managing outside counsel for dispute resolution; in addition to other 
routine corporate governance, data protection, regulatory and compliance work. 

•  Over the course of his career, he has lived and worked in the US and Asia and 
has advised clients across geographies from the US, UK, Latin America, EMEA, 
SEA, South Asia, China, Korea to Japan, including Credit Suisse, Lockheed Martin, 
Hilton Hotels, Mantas, SRI, AkzoNobel, Marriott International, Ogilvy & Mather, Apollo 
Global Management, Insight Partners, AtoS, British Telecom, Anglo-American, CSC, 
and Bristol-Myers-Squibb. 

•  Holds degrees in mathematics and law from Delhi University and Harvard Law 
School, USA. 

•  Graduated with a B.Sc. in Human Psychology from Aston University, Birmingham, 
UK.

•  Completed her MBA with concentration in Marketing from London Business 
School.

•  Has further qualifications in Business Analysis from the British Computing Society, 
Business Strategy from INSEAD, Marketing from Kellogg School of Management 
and Business Intelligence reporting from IBM.

•  Started her career as a Business Consultant at IBM in London, where she 
specialized in Big Data and Analytics. She then joined Ador Group in Mumbai as 
part of their founding team for 3D Future Technologies, where she specialized in 
IT & Marketing.

•  Post-MBA, Ms. Tanya returned to London as a Senior Technology Strategy 
Consultant at Accenture where she led innovation projects for both Accenture 
internally as well as for it’s external clients.

•   Appointed as a Director onto the Board of M/s. Ador Welding Limited w.e.f. 19th 
November, 2019.

Mr. Ravin A. Mirchandani
Non-Executive Director

(DIN: 00175501)
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Mrs. Nita Dempo Mirchandani 
Non-Executive &

Independent Director 
(DIN: 01103973)

•  Rakesh has over 35 years of work experience.  
•  He commenced his career with HSBC where he worked for 10 years in Corporate & 

Investment Banking, executing Debt, Equity and Structured Transactions with Large 
Indian and MNC companies.

•  He then moved to the General Electric Group and worked with GE Capital and 
thereafter following an internal group transfer, as CEO for IGE India, where he was 
responsible for the initial launch of the NBC & CNBC Network in India. 

•  Subsequently, he spent another 3 years in the television broadcast industry before 
joining the The Oberoi Group (EIH), as CEO of Mercury Travels.  

•  He then moved and worked in Hong Kong and India as Director in a leading 
Executive Search firm, before establishing Executive Mantra, with two other partners 
in the year 2014. 

•  He is a B. Com. (Hons) graduate from St. Xavier’s College, Kolkata and has a BBA & 
MBA degree from SIU, London.

•  Co-Founder of Kae Capital, an early stage Venture Capital Fund, where she is 
Director of Finance & Legal.

•  Previously President of Indo Pacific Polyfibers Limited (IIPL), a Dempo Group 
company where she was part of the Promoter Group. 

•  Earlier she has worked with HDFC Securities and JM Morgan Stanley primarily in the 
area of Equity Research. She has also served as the Commercial Executive of the 
Dempo Group.

•  An Active Angel Investor in fast growing start-ups like InMobi, Innovcare, Squadrun 
and Navya.

•  She has completed her M.Sc. (Econ) with specialization in Analysis Design 
Management of an Information System & B.Sc. (Econ) Accounting & Finance from 
the London School of Economics and B.A. (Econ) from St. Xavier’s College of Arts, 
Mumbai. 

•  Responsible for leading global content marketing for GSK.
•  He is into setting up and running global teams across geographies and capabilities 

including; strategy, creative, media data and technology.
•  Partnered Unilever, P&G, J&J, Kimberly Clark and Government accounts including 

Central Provident Fund (CPF), the Housing and Development Board (HDB), and 
Singapore Tourism Board, amongst others.

•  Has won multiple awards ranging from Cannes, Effiesand has been listed as 40 
under 40 in Campaign Asia’s 2017 list. Gaurav also sits on the board of two public 
listed companies in India.

Mr. Rakesh N. Sapru
Non-Executive &

Independent Director 
(DIN: 02332414)

Mr. Gaurav M. Lalwani
Non-Executive &

Independent Director 
(DIN: 06928792)
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•  BA (Hons.) Economics from St Stephen’s College, Delhi University; Post Graduate Diploma 
(Business Management) from XLRI, Jamshedpur.

•  Over 40 years of operating and/or advisory experience in FMCG, Television Networks, 
Newspapers, Sports Marketing, and Technology Companies.

•  Has held operating responsibilities for India and International markets (UK & Europe, USA, 
Africa, GCC, Asia, Australasia).

•  Has lived in and worked from postings in India, Nigeria, UK, and Singapore. Currently lives in 
and operates from Singapore.

•  Worked with Unilever India sales & marketing; Afcott Nigeria; and Kanmoor Foods India, 
before transitioning to media & entertainment.

•  Worked in the media industry as Executive President of Zee TV (1992-95), CEO of Zee 
TV International (1996-97), Group CEO Indian Express Newspapers (1998-2000), CEO 
Internet Company of India (2000- 01), CEO Nimbus Sport (2002-07) and CEO Nimbus 
Communications (2008-09).

•  Project assignments with Enfold Inc. USA, T2 Diamond Singapore over 2013-2019.
•  Director at Nimbus Sport (2009-12); Advisory Board at Euromax (2007-14); Non-Executive 

Independent Director at Mercury Travels Ltd (2014-2018).
•  Member of Board of Governors of Spirit of Enterprise, Singapore 2017-2019.
•  Served as an Independent Non-Executive Director on the Board of Thomas Cook India Ltd. 

(1999- 2006) and Ador Welding Ltd. (2009- till date).

Mr. K. Digvijay Singh
Non-Executive &

Independent Director 
(DIN: 00004607)

Mr. Navroze S. Marshall
Non-Executive &

Independent Director 
(DIN: 00085754)

•  Mr. Navroze Shiamak Marshall is a British national of Indian origin and has been 
Managing Director of Simmonds-Marshall Ltd. since January 2003. 

• Mr. Marshall has got an experience of over 20 years to his credit. 
• He has vast experience with multinationals in the United States of America. 
•  Mr. Marshall was educated at Cathedral & John Connon School, Mumbai, United 

World College (South East Asia), Singapore and holds a Bachelors of Science 
degree in Chemical Engineering & Economics from Carnegie Mellon University in 
Pittsburgh, USA. 

• Mr. Marshall also has a MBA in Management from IMD, Switzerland.
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Earning Per Share (EPS) (Rs.)

 

Book Value Per share (BVPS) (Rs.)
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(Rupees in lakhs)
PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22 FY 2020-21 FY 2019-20 FY 2018-19
Sales & Other Income (net of excise duty)  78,343  66,696  45,459  53,464  51,402 
Manufacturing & Other Expenses  68,955  60,311  42,739  48,528  47,750 
Operating Profit / EBITDA  9,388  6,385  2,720  4,936  3,652 
Depreciation  1,161  1,090  1,110  1,068  960 
EBIT  8,227  5,295  1,610  3,868  2,692 
Interest 236 372 641 861 905
Profit before exceptional items and tax (PBT)  7,991  4,923  969  3,007  1,787 
Exceptional Items (Net)  (80)  898  (2,537)  -    -   
Profit / (loss) before tax (PBT)  7,911  5,821  (1,568)  3,007  1,787 
Taxation  1,982  1,319  (369)  445  505 
Profit / (loss) after Tax (PAT)  5,929  4,502  (1,199)  2,562  1,282 
Comprehensive Income / (loss)  (68)  (61)  52  (147)  4 
Total Comprehensive income / (loss)  5,861  4,441  (1,147)  2,415  1,286 
Dividend (incl. DDT)  -    1,700  -    1066  1066 

BALANCE SHEET - AS AT 31-03-2023 31-03-2022 31-03-2021 31-03-2020 31-03-2019
Net Fixed Assets (incl. CWIP and Investment in properties)  12,506  12,457  11,969  12,486  11,575 
Investments  2,028  1,988  1,178  635  694 
Current Assets  26,612  21,009  20,209  26,739  25,941 
Current Liabilities  12,023  10,396  13,265  18,032  16,616 
Net Current Assets  14,589  10,613  6,944  8,707  9,325 
Other Non-Current Assets  4,022  3,811  4,152  4,024  4,098 
Capital Employed  33,145  28,869  24,243  25,852  25,692 
Equity Share Capital  1,360  1,360  1,360  1,360  1,360 
Reserves & Surplus  30,991  26,832  22,383  23,530  23,247 
Net Worth  32,351  28,192  23,743  24,890  24,607 
Long term loan Funds  73  60  -    -    -   
Deferred Tax Liabilities  -    -    -   423 883
Long-term provisions 615 469 359 387 172
Other long term liabilities 106 148 141 152 30
Capital Employed  33,145  28,869  24,243  25,852  25,692 

RATIOS FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22 FY 2020-21 FY 2019-20 FY 2018-19
EBITDA Margin (%) 12.09% 9.65% 6.08% 9.39% 7.25%
Net Margin (%) 7.63% 6.81% -2.68% 4.87% 2.55%
Interest Cover (EBITDA / Gross Interest) 40 17 4 6 4
ROCE (EBIT / Capital Employed) (%) 24.82% 18.34% 6.64% 14.96% 10.48%
Current Ratio (times) 2.21 2.02 1.52 1.48 1.56
Debt Equity Ratio (times) 0.05 0.00 0.12 0.33 0.26
Dividend Per Share (DPS) (Rs.) 0.00 12.50 0.00 6.50 6.50
Earning Per Share (EPS) (Rs.) 43.60 33.10  (8.82) 18.84 9.43
Book Value per share (Rs.) 237.88 207.29 174.58 183.01 180.93

F I V E  Y E A R

FINANCIAL STATISTICS
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Ador Welding Training Division started 7 decades ago with the objective of providing trained and skilled welders 
to the nation. Today, even though, welding is a crucial aspect of many manufacturing processes, the skill for 
good welding is not easy to acquire. As a result, shop managers either outsource welded production or are 
grappling with the issues of reliable welder availability. While there are multiple vocational training institutes, they 
are also handicapped by inadequate infrastructure and below-average candidates.

Ador Welding Training division has been bridging this gap, by progressively extending its knowledge and expertise 
by offering training that adheres to the most stringent and sophisticated demands of the industry.

A D O R   W E L D I N G

TRAINING DIVISION
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There are two broad service lines, that we address:

a. The PRE-SERVICE line - addresses the need for fresh welders in the most cost-effective way.

b.  The IN-SERVICE line - addresses the need to upgrade the skills of welders, to match the continuously evolving 
industry benchmarks, simultaneously creating a career-growth plan for the welders.

Over the years, we have trained thousands of engineers, technicians, and welders including over a hundred 
women welders. Our ISO 9001:2015 certified Training division is equipped to provide the most advanced training 
and can train candidates on all welding processes like GMAW, FCAW, SMAW, SAW, GTAW, TIP-TIG, Spot Welding, 
etc. Our testing laboratory is NABL-approved, making us one of the few welding companies to have such a 
recognition. 
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O U R

NEW PRODUCTS

Champ 400 X RHINO D 2 X300

Champ Multi 500
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DIreCtorS’ report

to,

the Members,

the Directors take immense pleasure in presenting the Seventieth (70th) annual report of the Company and the 
audited Statements of accounts for the financial year ended 31st March, 2023.

2. FINaNCIaL perForMaNCe & tHe State oF CoMpaNy’S aFFaIrS

(rs. in Lakhs)

Sr. 
No.

Key Financial Indicators For the  
year ended  

31st March, 2023

For the  
year ended  

31st March, 2022

2.1 Sales & other Income (Net of GSt, Discount & Incentives) 78,343 66,696

2.2 profit before exceptional items Interest, Depreciation, tax 
& other Comprehensive Income

9,388 6,385

2.3 exceptional items (80) 898

2.4 profit before tax (pBt) 7,911 5,821

2.5 provision for tax (Including Deferred tax) 1,982 1,319

2.6 (Loss) / profit after tax (pat) 5,929 4,502

2.7 total Comprehensive Income / (Loss) 5,861 4,441

3. DIVIDeND & reSerVe

 the Board of Directors is pleased to recommend 
a Dividend of 175% (i.e. @ rs. 17.50 per equity 
Share) for the Financial Year (FY) 2022-23, subject 
to the approval of the Members.

 the total amount of Dividend, to be disbursed 
for FY 2022-23, is rs. 2379.73 Lakhs, subject to 
applicable tDS. Further, the Dividend amount will 
be paid out of the profits of the Company.

 the Dividend for FY 2022-23 shall be paid to those 
Shareholders and Beneficial owners, whose names 
appear in the register of Members (roM) as on the 
cut-off date for dividend payment.

 the Board recommends transfer of 10 % of the Net 
profits to General reserve.

1. Corporate oVerVIeW

 Your Company, ador Welding Limited (aDor) was 
incorporated in the year 1951 and has come a 
long way to become one of India’s leading players 
in the welding industry. Your Company’s Vision is 
“Creating the Best Welding experience”.

 aDor has a huge spectrum of products offering 
and aims to provide “Complete Welding 
Solutions” to the “World of Manufacturing” for 
enhancing their operational efficiency.

 our presence is there across seventy (70) odd 
countries and our corporate headquarter is based 
in Mumbai.

 the dividend recommendation is in 
accordance with the Dividend Distribution policy 
(“policy”) of the Company. the said policy is 
available on the website of your Company at  
https:/ /www.adorwelding.com/wp-content/
uploads/2021/07/Dividend-Distribution-policy.pdf

4. SHare CapItaL

 the paid-up equity Share Capital as at 31st March, 
2023 stood at rs. 1,359.85 Lakhs. During the 
financial year under review, the Company has 
neither issued shares nor convertible securities nor 
shares with differential voting rights nor granted 
any stock options or sweat equity or warrants. as 
at 31st March, 2023, none of the Directors of the 
Company hold instruments convertible into equity 
Shares of the Company.

https://www.adorwelding.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/07/Dividend-Distribution-Policy.pdf
https://www.adorwelding.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/07/Dividend-Distribution-Policy.pdf
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5. FINaNCe & aCCouNtS

 During the financial year under review, there was 
no revision in the Credit rating of the Company. 
the rating agency Care maintained “a+” (Single 
a plus; outlook: Stable) rating for the Company’s 
long term borrowings and “a1+” (a one plus) 
rating for the Company’s short term borrowings. 
the Company also obtained ratings from CrISIL 
ratings and was assigned CrISIL a+/Stable for 
Long term rating & CrISIL a1 for Short term rating.

 as mandated by the Ministry of Corporate affairs 
(MCa), the financial statements for the financial 
year ended 31st March, 2023 have been prepared 
in accordance with the Indian accounting 
Standards (Ind aS), notified under Section 133 of 
the Companies act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to 
as “the act”), read with the Companies (accounts) 
rules, 2014, as amended from time to time. the 
estimates and judgements relating to the Financial 
Statements are made on a prudent basis, so 
as to reflect a true & fair form and substance 
of transactions and reasonably present the 
Company’s state of affairs, profits & cash flows for 
the financial year ended 31st March, 2023.

 the Notes to the Financial Statements adequately 
cover the audited Statements and form an integral 
part of this report.

6. operatIoNS

 In FY 2022-23, the total Sales & other Income 
increased by 17 % as compared to last FY 2021-
22. the year ended with Sales & other Income of 
rs. 78,343 Lakhs. (rs. 66,696 Lakhs)*.

 the Company’s Net Sales and other Income 
during FY 2022-23 comprised the following:

6.1 Welding Consumables at rs. 61,449 Lakhs  
(rs. 53,540 Lakhs)*

6.2 equipment and Welding automation at  
rs. 11,504 Lakhs (rs. 9,854 Lakhs)*

6.3 Flares & process equipment Business at  
rs. 4,723 Lakhs (rs. 2,754 Lakhs)*

6.4 other Income of rs. 667 Lakhs mainly 
comprised of forex gain, interest, rent & export 
incentives etc. (rs. 548 Lakhs)*

 (*Figures in brackets indicate previous year)

7. CapeX

 the Company incurred CapeX of rs. 1,983 Lakhs 
during FY 2022-23. the Capital work-in-progress 
as at 31st March, 2023 was rs. 192 Lakhs. CapeX 
planned for FY 2023-24 is rs. 4430 Lakhs, mainly for 
the following:–

a. automation / modernization at Consumables 
and equipment plants.

b. plant & Machinery for capacity expansion of 
certain products, and also for improvement of 
“productivity & in-process quality”.

c. replacement of old Machineries.

d. Upgradation of r&D Infrastructure.

e. Information technology (It) upgradation, 
digitalization & Compliances.

f. replacement of Vehicles.

8. perForMaNCe oF tHe SuBSIDIary CoMpaNy

 the Company does not have any material 
subsidiary. the Board of Directors of the Company 
has approved a policy for determining material 
subsidiaries, which is in line with the provisions of 
SeBI (LoDr) regulations 2015, as amended from 
time to time. the said policy has been uploaded 
on the Company’s website at the following weblink: 
https:/ /www.adorwelding.com/wp-content/
uploads/2021/07/policy-for-determining-Material-
Subsidiary.pdf

 ador Welding academy private Limited (aWapL)

 the Board of Directors of aWapL, at its meeting 
held on 28th May, 2021, had considered and 
approved the scheme of amalgamation (merger 
by absorption), pursuant to Sections 230 to 232 
read with Section 234 and other relevant provisions 
of the Companies act, 2013, of its wholly owned 
subsidiary, aWapL (‘transferor Company’) with ador 
Welding Limited (‘transferee Company’).

 Further during the financial year 2021-22, 
your Company had filed an application on  
01st September, 2021 involving Composite 
Scheme of arrangement of aWapL with aWL before 
the Hon’ble National Company Law tribunal 
(‘NCLt’), Mumbai Bench, which was subject to 
necessary statutory and regulatory approvals, 
under the applicable laws, including approval of 
the Hon’ble NCLt. Your Company thereafter took all 

https://www.adorwelding.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/07/Policy-for-determining-Material-Subsidiary.pdf
https://www.adorwelding.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/07/Policy-for-determining-Material-Subsidiary.pdf
https://www.adorwelding.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/07/Policy-for-determining-Material-Subsidiary.pdf
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the necessary statutory and regulatory approvals 
under applicable laws. the Scheme was finally 
approved by the Hon’ble NCLt, on 03rd February, 
2023, while the Certified Copy of the order 
approving the Scheme was issued on 22nd February, 
2023. the Scheme contemplates the effective 
Date as the date on which the Certified Copy of 
the order is filed with the registrar of Companies. 
Consequent to the receipt of the Certified Copy of 
the order from Hon’ble NCLt, during the year under 
review, your Company has given effect to the 
Scheme of amalgamation (Merger by absorption) 
of ador Welding academy private Limited 
(“aWapL”) with ador Welding Limited (“aWL”) on  
16th March, 2023, being effective Date, thereby 
recording the amalgamation of aWapL into aWL, 
from the appointed Date as 01st april, 2021. In 
view of this, aWapL ceases to be the wholly-owned 
Subsidiary of the Company. 

9. CoNSoLIDateD FINaNCIaL StateMeNt

 the Consolidated financial statements till 
previous FY 2021-22 related to M/s. ador Welding 
Ltd. (aWL) and its wholly owned subsidiary,  
M/s. ador Welding academy pvt. Ltd. (aWapL). 
Since the Company had given effect to the 
Scheme of amalgamation (Merger by absorption) 
of ador Welding academy private Limited 
(“aWapL”) with ador Welding Limited (“aWL”) from 
16th March, 2023, the consolidated financial 
statement of the Company and its subsidiary for  
FY 2022-23 is not applicable.

10. CoMpoSIte SCHeMe oF arraNGeMeNt

 Scheme of amalgamation (Merger by 
absorption) of ador Fontech Limited with ador 
Welding Limited

 the Board of Directors of the Company, at its 
meeting held on 31st May, 2022, considered and 
approved the Scheme of amalgamation (Merger 
by absorption) of ador Fontech Limited (aDFL) with 
ador Welding Limited (aWL) and their respective 
shareholders under Sections 230 to 232 and other 
applicable provisions of the Companies act, 2013 
(“the Scheme”).

 the Scheme is subject to receipt of the approval 
of the requisite majority of the public shareholders 
and creditors (if applicable) of the Companies, the 

Stock exchanges where the Shares of the Company 
are listed, the Securities and exchange Board of 
India (SeBI), the Hon’ble National Company Law 
tribunal, Mumbai bench and other statutory & 
regulatory authorities, as may be applicable.

 on the Scheme becoming effective, the 
shareholders of aDFL, as on the record date, will 
receive an aggregate of 05 (five) equity shares of 
aWL for every 46 (forty-six) equity shares held by 
them in aDFL.

 the proposed Scheme would be in the best 
interest of both the Companies and their 
respective shareholders, employees, creditors and 
other stakeholders, as the proposed restructuring, 
pursuant to this Scheme of amalgamation is 
expected, inter alia, to result in the following 
benefits:

a. the consolidation of the businesses of aDFL 
with aWL will create one of the largest welding 
& cutting products manufacturers and 
refurbishment player in the industry.

b. Creation of a combined entity, by hosting all 
the products under the brand “aDor”, will result 
in diversified portfolio of products, economies 
of scale, operational rationalization, efficiency 
of management, broader & deeper market 
presence and will ultimately maximize value 
for the shareholders.

c. Greater synergies between businesses and 
optimum use of manufacturing facilities, 
marketing strength, r & D facilities, optimized 
production, streamlining of supply chains, 
enhancing customer delight, brand 
strengthening and certifications will result in 
productivity gains, thereby maximizing value 
for the shareholders.

d. It will enable greater access to different 
market segments in conduct of its business 
and addition of new products in the portfolio, 
would improve the competitive position of the 
combined entity.

e. optimum use of infrastructure will happen 
and organizational efficiency will increase 
by pooling of financial, managerial, and 
technical resources, personnel, capabilities, 
skills, expertise and technologies of aDFL with 
aWL, thereby significantly contributing to the 
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future growth and maximizing shareholder 
value.

f. Better financial leverage, will result in greater 
efficiency in cash & debt management and 
unfettered access to cash flow, generated 
by the combined business, can be deployed 
more efficiently, to realize higher margins for 
the combined entity.

g. Improved organizational capability and 
leadership, arising from the pooling of human 
capital, who have the diverse skills, talent and 
vast experience, will help compete successfully 
in an increasingly competitive industry.

h. Cost savings will happen because of 
standardization and simplification of business 
processes, elimination of duplication and 
rationalization of administrative expenses.

i. reduction in regulatory & legal compliances 
and avoidance of multiple records keeping.

j. Strengthening ability will help us face increasing 
competitive, regulatory, environmental and 
global risks; thereby resulting in sustainable and 
profitable long-term growth for the combined 
entity.

11. rISK MaNaGeMeNt

 Given the diversified scale of operations, your 
Company has formulated an enterprise risk 
Management (erM) framework to manage various 
financial & non-financial risks, operational & non-
operational risks, amongst other risks. the Board 
takes responsibility of the overall process of risk 
management throughout the organization.

 the erM policy of the Company helps to 
continuously assess & monitor the risks assumed 
by the Company. the processes are in place 
for identifying, evaluating and managing the 
risks. Based on the erM policy, the Board hereby 
states that there are no elements of risks, which 
threaten the existence / going concern status of 
the Company.

 Further, since your Company falls under “top 1000 
Companies”, based on market capitalization, 
since 31st March, 2021, a risk Management 
Committee was constituted in last FY 2021-22 to 
oversee implementation of the risk Management 

policy, to monitor & evaluate risks, basis appropriate 
methodology, processes & systems and to keep 
the Board of Directors informed and recommend 
the actions, to be taken.

12. reLateD party traNSaCtIoNS (rpts)

 the policy on related party transactions (rpts) is 
reviewed by the audit Committee & approved 
by the Board of Directors in a timely manner and 
as & when necessary. the said policy is uploaded 
on the Company’s website at the following web 
link: https://www.adorwelding.com/wp-content/
uploads/2022/05/rpt-Materiality-policy-2022-23.
pdf

 During FY 2022-23, the Company entered into 
certain related party transactions, in the ordinary 
course of business and on arms’ length basis, with 
prior approval of the audit Committee. omnibus 
approvals are obtained on a quarterly basis for 
all the transactions, which are foreseeable & 
repetitive in nature and the details of all related 
party transactions are placed before the audit 
Committee and the Board for review & approval 
on a quarterly basis.

 there were no material related party transactions 
(rpts), undertaken by the Company, during 
the financial year under review, that required 
shareholders’ approval under regulation 23(4) of 
SeBI (LoDr) regulations, 2015 or Section 188 of the 
Companies act, 2013.

 all transactions entered with the related parties for 
the financial year 2022-23 under review were on 
arms length basis and were not material. Hence, 
disclosure pursuant to Section 134(3)(h) of the act 
read with rule 8(2) of the Companies (accounts) 
rules, 2014 in Form aoC-2 is not required. Further, 
there are no materially significant related party 
transactions executed between the Company & 
its promoters, Directors, Key Managerial personnel 
or other designated persons, that may have  
a potential conflict, with the interest of the 
Company, at large.

 None of the Directors have any pecuniary 
relationships or transactions vis-à-vis the Company, 
except remuneration, commission, sitting fees 
and reimbursement of expenses, to the extent 
applicable. all related party transactions are 

https://www.adorwelding.com/wp-content/uploads/2022/05/RPT-Materiality-Policy-2022-23.pdf
https://www.adorwelding.com/wp-content/uploads/2022/05/RPT-Materiality-Policy-2022-23.pdf
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given / mentioned in the notes to accounts. the 
Company has developed a framework through 
Standard operating procedures (Sops), for the 
purpose of identification and monitoring of such 
related party transactions.

13. aNNuaL returNS

 pursuant to Sections 92 & 134(3) of the Companies 
act, 2013, read with rule 12 of the Companies 
(Management and administration) rules, 2014, 
as amended, the draft of annual return for  
FY 2022-23 in e - form MGt-7 is available on the 
Company’s website: https://www.adorwelding.
com/wp-content/uploads/2023/07/Merged-MGt-
7-to-be-uploaded.pdf

14. Corporate SoCIaL reSpoNSIBILIty (CSr)

 Under the “Corporate Social responsibility” (CSr) 
drive, the Company has spent an amount of rs. 
63.47 Lakhs during FY 2022-23, out of its budgeted 
annual CSr expenditure of rs. 63.34 Lakhs & has 
spent rs. 9.67 Lakhs, out of rs. 10.50 Lakhs parked 
in the Unspent Corporate Social responsibility 
account (UCSr) for an “ongoing project”. the 
various projects / initiatives, undertaken by the 
Company, were in the following areas:

a. promoting education among children, 
women, elderly and differently abled, including 
special education & employment enhancing 
vocational skills, especially skill development 
and encouraging safety practices in welding 
& allied fields for economically challenged / 
financially weaker sections of the Society.

b. empowering women towards individual and 
professional development opportunities.

c. promoting healthcare, sanitation & hygiene for 
the non-privileged / underprivileged.

 Your Company understands its duties towards the 
society and considers social responsibility as an 
integral part of its operations. Your Company tries 
to ensure that its CSr initiatives have a meaningful 
impact on the society at large & that the 
contribution made by it, reaches the beneficiary 
at the earliest, with the aim to create a long-term 
positive impact.

 the Company is committed to continuously 
explore new opportunities, in alignment with its CSr 

philosophy & policy and strives to create a positive 
impact on the society, through its CSr initiatives.

 the brief outline of the Corporate Social 
responsibility (CSr) policy of the Company and 
the initiatives undertaken by the Company on 
CSr activities during the year are set out, in a 
format prescribed in the Companies (CSr policy) 
rules, 2014, as amended from time to time, 
in annexure – I to this report. the CSr policy is 
also available on Company’s website at UrL:  
https:/ /www.adorwelding.com/wp-content/
uploads/2022/05/CSr-policy-FY-2022-23.pdf

 the composition of the CSr Committee is covered 
under the Corporate Governance report, which is 
annexed to this report as annexure - III.

 Brief on “ador Foundation”

 “ador Foundation” is a social initiative, undertaken 
by all ador Group Companies from FY 2022-23 
onwards. the mission of the Foundation is to take 
the ador Group’s socially conscious legacy forward, 
through initiatives in the field of education, Women 
empowerment, Skill-Development & Health Care, 
which are also considered as four pillars of the 
foundation. all the projects are personally vetted 
by the personnel of the Foundation & by at least 
two of our Directors and confirmed to be good, 
genuine and beneficial to the underprivileged 
society at large. ador believes in doing well by 
giving good. It is our firm belief that the long-term 
success of a corporate depends on giving back to 
the society it operates in and ensuring its operations 
are sustainable.

15. LoaNS, GuaraNteeS & INVeStMeNtS

 the details of Loans, Guarantees & Investments, 
covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the 
Companies act, 2013, are given in the notes to the 
Financial Statements, forming part of this annual 
report.

16. FIXeD DepoSIt

 Your Company had no opening balances of fixed 
deposits. Further, the Company has not accepted 
or renewed any deposits, within the meaning of 
Section 73 of the Companies act 2013, read with 
the Companies (acceptance of Deposits) rules, 
2014.

https://www.adorwelding.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/07/Merged-MGT-7-to-be-uploaded.pdf
https://www.adorwelding.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/07/Merged-MGT-7-to-be-uploaded.pdf
https://www.adorwelding.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/07/Merged-MGT-7-to-be-uploaded.pdf
https://www.adorwelding.com/wp-content/uploads/2022/05/CSR-Policy-FY-2022-23.pdf
https://www.adorwelding.com/wp-content/uploads/2022/05/CSR-Policy-FY-2022-23.pdf
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17. SeCretarIaL StaNDarDS (SS)

 Your Company has complied with all the applicable 
Secretarial Standards (SS), issued by the Institute of 
Company Secretaries of India (ICSI), from time to 
time.

18. INSuraNCe

 all the properties / assets of the Company are 
adequately insured.

19. eNerGy CoNSerVatIoN, teCHNoLoGy 
aBSorptIoN & ForeIGN eXCHaNGe

 the information required under Section 134(3) 
(m) of the Companies act, 2013, read with the 
Companies (accounts) rules, 2014 with respect to 
the conservation of energy, technology absorption 
& foreign exchange earnings / outgo is annexed 
hereto as annexure - II.

20. Corporate GoVerNaNCe

 as per the Listing agreements executed with 
the Stock exchanges, the Company has been 
following the Corporate Governance Code since  
FY 2001-02. Your Company has strived to comply  
with all the requirements of Good Corporate 
Governance for the period 01st april, 2022 to 
31st March, 2023 (i.e. FY 2022-23), pursuant to 
regulation 27(2) of SeBI (Listing obligations and 
Disclosure requirements) regulations, 2015. as 
per regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V to SeBI 
(LoDr) regulations, 2015, a separate section on the 
Corporate Governance practices, followed by the 
Company, together with Corporate Governance 
Compliance Certificate received from  
M/s. N. L. Bhatia & associates, practicing Company 
Secretaries, Secretarial auditors of the Company, 
confirming compliance forming an integral part of 
this report is annexed hereto as annexure - III.

 the Management Discussion and analysis (MDa) 
report, as mandated under Schedule V to SeBI 
(Listing obligations & Disclosure requirements) 
regulations, 2015, is also annexed to this report as 
annexure - IV.

21. SIGNIFICaNt & MaterIaL reGuLatory orDerS

 During FY 2022-23, there were no significant orders 
passed against the Company by any regulators 

or courts or tribunals, impacting the going 
concern status and the Company’s operations, 
in future. However, Members attention is drawn 
to the Statement on Contingent Liabilities and 
Commitments in the Notes, forming part of the 
Financial Statement.

 there was no application made or proceeding 
pending against the Company under the 
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (31 of 
2016) during the year under review.

22. NoMINatIoN, reMuNeratIoN & BoarD DIVerSIty 
poLICy

 the Board of Directors has framed a policy, 
on the recommendation of the Nomination & 
remuneration Committee, which lays down 
a framework in relation to appointment and 
remuneration of its Directors. the policy includes 
criteria for determining qualifications, positive 
attributes, independence of Directors etc., as 
required under the provisions of Section 178(3) 
of the Companies act, 2013 and SeBI (LoDr) 
regulations 2015. the policy also broadly lays 
down the guiding principles, philosophy and the 
basis for payment of remuneration to the executive 
& the Non-executive Directors. the said policy has 
been posted on the website of the Company 
at https://www.adorwelding.com/wp-content/
uploads/2021/07/criteria_for_payment_to_NeDs.
pdf

 In case of re-appointment of Non-executive & 
Independent Directors, NrC and the Board takes 
into consideration the performance of the Director, 
based on the Board evaluation and his / her 
engagement level during his / her previous tenure.

 the details of the remuneration policy for Directors, 
are explained in the Corporate Governance 
report, annexed hereto as annexure - III.

23. INDepeNDeNt DIreCtorS

 all the Independent Directors of the Company 
have given declarations under Section 149(7) 
of the act, stating that they meet the criteria of 
independence, as laid down under Section 149(6) 
of the act and regulation 16(1)(b) of SeBI (LoDr) 
regulations, 2015. In terms of regulation 25(8) of 
SeBI (LoDr) regulations, 2015, the Independent 
Directors have confirmed that they are not aware 
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of any circumstance or situation, which exists or 
may be reasonably anticipated, that could impair 
or impact their ability to discharge their duties 
with an objective independent judgement and 
without any external influence. they have also 
given declaration under rule 6(1) and 6(2) of the 
Companies (appointment and Qualification of 
Directors) rules, 2014, that their profile is uploaded 
/ registered in the databank, as maintained by the 
Indian Institute of Corporate affairs (IICa), within the 
stipulated time. Further, the Independent Directors 
have also completed their KYC confirmation on 
the MCa website.

 pursuant to rule 8(5)(iii)(a) of the Companies 
(accounts) rules, 2014, in the opinion of the 
Board, the Independent Directors are competent, 
experienced and are the persons of expertise 
(including the proficiency), having positive 
attributes, standards of integrity, ethical behavior, 
qualifications & independent judgement.

 Your Company has in all 06 (six) Independent 
Directors, including 01 (one) Woman Independent 
Director, as on 31st March, 2023. the Independent 
Directors met on 03rd February, 2023, without the 
presence of the Non-Independent Directors and 
Members of the Management, as required under 
SeBI (LoDr) regulations, 2015 and the Companies 
act 2013, to discuss on various important matters 
& evaluate the working culture in the Company 
/ operations of the Management (Whole-time 
Directors & KMps).

24. DIreCtorS & Key MaNaGerIaL perSoNNeL

 During FY 2022-23 the following changes occurred 
in the composition of the Board of Directors of the 
Company:

a. the Board of Directors, on the recommendation 
of the Nomination & remuneration 
Committee, appointed Mr. Navroze S. Marshall  
(DIN: 00085754) as an additional Director 
(Non- executive & Independent) with effect 
from 21st May, 2022, subject to the approval 
of the Shareholders. the appointment of  
Mr. Navroze S. Marshall was thereafter ratified 
by the Shareholders at the subsequently held 
69th annual General Meeting for FY 2021-22.

b. In accordance with the provisions of Section 
152 of the act and the Company’s articles of 

association (aoa), Mr. ravin a. Mirchandani 
(DIN: 00175501), Non-executive Director, retires 
by rotation at the forthcoming annual General 
Meeting and, being eligible, offers himself 
for re-appointment. the Board recommends 
his re-appointment for consideration of the 
Members of the Company at the forthcoming 
annual General Meeting. Brief profile of  
Mr. ravin a. Mirchandani has been given in 
the Notice convening the 70th annual General 
Meeting.

c. Subsequent to the end of the financial 
year 2022-23, the Board of Directors, 
on the recommendation of the 
Nomination & remuneration Committee, 
re-appointed Mr. aditya t. Malkani  
(DIN: 01585637) as the Managing Director for  
a period of three (03) years with effect from  
14th September, 2023, subject to the approval 
of the Shareholders at the ensuing annual  
General Meeting, considering his rich 
experience in business / strategic management, 
marketing & financial management as well as 
his long term association with the Company / 
ador Group of almost 16 years. according to 
the Company’s articles of association (aoa), 
the Managing Director is not liable to retire by 
rotation.

 the brief profile of Mr. aditya t. Malkani has 
been given in the Notice convening the  
70th annual General Meeting. In the interest 
of the Company’s continued prosperity 
and well-being, the Board recommends his  
re-appointment as the Managing Director at 
the ensuing annual General Meeting.

d. the abovenamed Directors have submitted 
Form DIr-8, pursuant to Section 164 of the 
Companies act, 2013 & rule 14(1) of the 
Companies (appointment & Qualification 
of Directors) rules, 2014, along with their 
consent in Form DIr-2, pursuant to Section 152 
of the Companies act, 2013 & rule 8 of the 
Companies (appointment & Qualification of 
Directors) rules, 2014.

e. Necessary resolutions for the re-appointment 
of the abovenamed Directors have been 
included in the Notice convening the ensuing 
70th annual General Meeting and details of the 
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proposed appointees, as required pursuant 
to regulation 36 of SeBI (LoDr) regulations, 
2015 and Clause 1.2.5 of the Secretarial 
Standard-2 (SS-2), are given in the appendix to 
the explanatory Statement annexed to the said 
Notice.

25. DIreCtorS perForMaNCe eVaLuatIoN

 the annual evaluation process of the Board of 
Directors, individual Directors and Committees of 
the Board was conducted in accordance with the 
provisions of the act and SeBI (Listing obligations 
and Disclosure requirements) regulations, 2015.  
a structured questionnaire was prepared after 
taking into consideration various aspects of 
the Board’s functioning, composition, structure, 
effectiveness of the Board & Committee Meetings, 
execution & performance of specific duties, 
obligations & governance. the performance 
evaluation of the Board of its own performance 
& that of its Committees and individual Directors, 
including the executive Chairman and the 
Independent Directors was completed during 
the year under review. the NrC reviewed the 
performance of individual directors on the basis of 
criteria, such as the contribution of the individual 
director to the Board and committee meetings, 
like preparedness on the issues to be discussed, 
meaningful and constructive contribution and 
inputs in meetings, etc. and the Board as a whole. 
the Board of Directors expressed their satisfaction 
with the evaluation process.

 the evaluation process endorsed the Board’s 
confidence in the ethical standards of the 
Company, cohesiveness amongst the Board 
members, flexibility of the Board and management 
in navigating the various challenges faced from 
time to time and openness of the management in 
sharing strategic information with the Board.

 the manner of evaluation has been explained 
in the Corporate Governance report in  
annexure – III.

26. DIreCtorS reSoNSIBILIty StateMeNt

 pursuant to Sections 134(3)(c) & (5) of the 
Companies act, 2013, the Board of Directors of 
the Company, to the best of their knowledge and 
ability, hereby confirms that:

a. in preparation of the annual accounts for 
FY 2022-23, all the applicable accounting 
Standards (aS) have been followed, along 
with proper explanation relating to material 
departures, if any;

b. the Directors have selected such accounting 
policies & practices and applied them 
consistently & made judgments and estimates, 
that are reasonable and prudent, so as to give 
a true & fair view of the state of affairs of the 
Company and of the profits of the Company 
for the year ended 31st March, 2023;

c. the Directors have taken proper and sufficient 
care for the maintenance of adequate 
accounting records, in accordance with the 
provisions of this act, for safeguarding the 
assets of the Company and for preventing & 
detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d. the Directors have prepared the annual 
accounts, on a going concern basis;

e. the Directors have laid down internal financial 
controls, to be followed by the Company 
and that such internal financial controls are 
adequate & were operating effectively; and

f. the Directors have devised proper systems to 
ensure compliance with the provisions of all 
the applicable laws and that such systems 
were adequate & operating effectively.

27. BuSINeSS reSpoNSIBILIty & SuStaNaBILIty report

 pursuant to regulation 34(2)(f) of SeBI (LoDr) 
regulations, 2015, the Business responsibility 
& Sustainability report (BrSr), in the prescribed 
format, is annexed as annexure VII and forms an 
integral part of this report.

 BrSr includes reporting on the nine principles 
of the National Voluntary Guidelines on social, 
environmental and economic responsibilities of 
business, as framed by MCa.

28. auDIt CoMMIttee & ItS reCoMMeNDatIoNS

 the composition of the audit Committee is covered 
under the Corporate Governance report, which is 
annexed to this report as annexure - III.



2570th Annual Report 2022-23

Corporate proFILe Statutory report FINaNCIaLS

 the audit Committee plays a key role in providing 
assurance about financial statements to the 
Board of Directors. Significant audit observations, 
if any, and corresponding corrective actions taken 
by the Management are presented to the audit 
Committee.

 the Board has accepted all the recommendations 
of the audit Committee and hence, there is no 
further explanation to be provided for, in this report.

29. NuMBer oF BoarD MeetINGS

 the Company has conducted 06 (six) Board 
meetings during FY 2022-23 and the details thereof 
are covered in the Corporate Governance report, 
which is annexed to this report as annexure - III.

30. CoMMItteeS oF tHe BoarD

 the Committees of the Board focus on certain 
specific areas and make informed decisions in line 
with the delegated authority / charter.

 the following Committees, constituted by the 
Board, function according to their respective roles 
and defined scope / charter:

a. audit Committee (aC)

b. Nomination and remuneration Committee 
(NrC)

c. risk Management Committee (rMC)

d. Corporate Social responsibility Committee 
(CSr)

e. Stakeholders’ relationship Committee (SrC)

31. Key MaNaGerIaL perSoNNeL

 the following are the Key Managerial personnel 
(KMps) of the Company as on 31st March, 2023:

a. Mr. aditya t. Malkani, Managing Director

b. Mr. Vinayak M. Bhide, Company Secretary & 
Compliance officer

c. Mr. Surya Kant Sethia, Chief Financial officer

32. Statutory auDItorS

 M/s. Walker Chandiok & Co. LLp, Chartered 
accountants, (FrN: 001076N / N500013), Mumbai, 
were re-appointed as the Statutory auditors of the 

Company for a second term of 5 (five) consecutive 
years at the 67th annual General Meeting (aGM) 
of the Members held on 22nd September, 2020,  
i.e. until the conclusion of the 72nd annual General 
Meeting, on such remuneration, as mutually 
agreed upon by the Board of Directors and the 
Statutory auditors.

 their remuneration is fixed annually, as 
recommended by the audit committee and 
approved by the Board of Directors.

33. Statutory auDItor’S report

 the report of the Statutory auditor, forming part 
of the annual report, does not contain any 
qualification, reservation, adverse remark or 
disclaimer. the observations made in the auditor’s 
report are self-explanatory and therefore do not 
call for any further comments / explanations.

34. SeCretarIaL auDItor & ItS report

 pursuant to the provisions of Section 204(1) of 
the Companies act, 2013 and the rules made 
thereunder, the Board of Directors had appointed 
M/s. N. L. Bhatia & associates, (Unique Identification 
Number: p1996MH055800), a firm of Company 
Secretaries in practice, to undertake the Secretarial 
audit of the Company for FY 2022-23.

 the Secretarial audit report is annexed herewith 
as annexure - V. there are no qualifications in the 
said report and therefore no explanations are 
provided in this report.

35. CoSt auDItor & ItS report

 pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 of the 
Companies act, 2013, the Board of Directors, on 
the recommendation of the audit Committee, 
had appointed M/s. Kishore Bhatia & associates, 
Cost accountants, Mumbai, as the Cost auditor of 
the Company for FY 2022-23.

 the brief information of the Cost auditor and the 
Cost audit report is as under:

a. Name of the Cost auditor: M/s. Kishore Bhatia & 
associates

b. address: 701/702, D-Wing, Neelkanth Business 
park, Nathani road, Vidhyavihar (West), 
Mumbai – 400 086, Maharashtra, India.
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c. Membership No.: 31166

d. Firm registration No.: 00294

e. Due date of submitting Cost audit report for  
FY 2021-22 by the Cost auditor with the 
Company: Within 180 days from the end of the 
financial year (by 30th September, 2022)

f. actual Date of filing of Cost audit report for 
FY 2021-22 with the Central Government:  
22nd august, 2022

 the Company has appointed M/s. Kishore  
Bhatia & associates, Cost accountants, 
Mumbai (Firm registration No. 00294) as 
the Cost auditors for the financial year  
2023-24, as well. M/s. Kishore Bhatia & 
associates have, under rule 6(1a) of the 
Companies (Cost records and audit) rules, 
2014, furnished a certificate of their eligibility 
and consent for the said appointment.  
as required under the Companies act, 2013, the 
remuneration payable to the Cost auditor for  
FY 2023-24 is being placed before the Members 
at the ensuing annual General Meeting, for 
ratification.

 the cost records of the Company, as specified by 
the Central Government under sub-section (1) of 
Section 148 of the Companies act 2013, are duly 
prepared & maintained by the Company.

36. VIGIL MeCHaNISM & WHIStLe BLoWer poLICy

 pursuant to Section 177(9) of the act and regulation 
4(2)(d)(iv) of SeBI (LoDr) regulations, 2015, the 
Company has framed a policy on Vigil Mechanism 
- cum - Whistle Blower, which enables any Director, 
employee & Stakeholder of the Company to report 
their genuine concerns / instances of any unethical 
/ improper activity, directly to the Chairman of the 
audit Committee, as a protected Disclosure. the 
employees who join the Company are apprised 
of the availability of the said policy as a part of 
their induction schedule. the policy also provides 
adequate safeguards against victimization of 
persons, who may use such mechanism.

 the detailed policy is also posted on the Company’s 
Intranet portal “SaNVaD” and also onto its website 
at the following weblink: https://www.adorwelding.
com/wp-content/uploads/2021/07/Mechanism-
For-Whistle-Blower-For-Stakeholders11.pdf

37. poLICy oN preVeNtIoN oF SeXuaL HaraSSMeNt

 the Company has “zero tolerance” for sexual 
harassment at workplace and has complied with 
the provisions relating to the constitution of Internal 
Complaints Committee (ICC) under “the Sexual 
Harassment of Women at Workplace (prevention, 
prohibition and redressal) act, 2013”, as amended 
from time to time, which looks into the complaints 
received, if any. all women associates (permanent, 
temporary, contractual and trainees) as well 
as any women visiting the Company’s office / 
factory premises and women service providers 
are covered under this policy. aDor is committed 
to creating a safe and healthy work environment, 
where every employee, irrespective of gender, is 
treated with respect and is able to work without any 
fear of discrimination, prejudice, gender bias, or 
any form of harassment at workplace.

 Further, there were no complaints received by the 
Committee during the financial year 2022-23.  
the Company has also adopted a policy under 
the said act, which is placed on its internal portal 
as well as on the website of the Company, 
which can be viewed at the following weblink:  
https:/ /www.adorwelding.com/wp-content/
uploads/2022/02/poSH-policy_2022-1.pdf

38. traNSFer oF uNCLaIMeD DIVIDeND to INVeStor 
eDuCatIoN & proteCtIoN FuND (IepF)

 pursuant to Sections 124 and 125 of the Companies 
act, 2013 read with the Investor education and 
protection Fund authority (accounting, audit, 
transfer and refund) rules, 2016 (“IepF rules”), 
as amended from time to time, dividends, if not 
claimed within / for a period of 07 (seven) years from 
the date of transfer to the Unpaid Dividend account 
of the Company, are liable to be transferred to the 
Investor education and protection Fund (“IepF”). 
Furthermore, IepF rules mandate the Companies, 
to transfer shares of the Members, whose dividends 
remain unpaid / unclaimed for a period of  
07 (seven) consecutive years to the demat 
account of IepF authority. the said requirement 
does not apply to shares, in respect of which there 
is specific order of the Court, tribunal or Statutory 
authority, restraining any transfer of shares.

 In the light of the aforesaid provisions, the 
Company has, during the financial year 2022-23 
under review, transferred to IepF, the unclaimed 

https://www.adorwelding.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/07/Mechanism-For-Whistle-Blower-For-Stakeholders11.pdf
https://www.adorwelding.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/07/Mechanism-For-Whistle-Blower-For-Stakeholders11.pdf
https://www.adorwelding.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/07/Mechanism-For-Whistle-Blower-For-Stakeholders11.pdf
https://www.adorwelding.com/wp-content/uploads/2022/02/POSH-Policy_2022-1.pdf
https://www.adorwelding.com/wp-content/uploads/2022/02/POSH-Policy_2022-1.pdf
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dividend of rs. 17,46,250/- pertaining to  
FY 2014-15. Further, 15,255 equity shares of the 
Company, in respect of which dividends were 
not claimed / remained unpaid for 07 (seven) 
consecutive years or more, have also been 
transferred to the demat account of IepF authority. 
the details of the transfer of unclaimed dividend to 
the Investor education and protection Fund (“IepF”) 
are provided in detail in the Corporate Governance 
report, annexed as annexure III, to this report.

 the Members, may claim dividends and / or 
shares from IepF authority, by submitting an online 
application in the prescribed electronic Form IepF-
5, available on the website www.iepf.gov.in and 
subsequently send a physical copy of the e-form 
along with its acknowledgement, duly signed, to 
the Company along with the requisite documents 
enumerated in the said e-form IepF-5. No claims 
shall lie against the Company, in respect of the 
dividend / shares, so transferred. Members may 
also kindly refer to the refund procedure for 
claiming the aforementioned amounts & shares 
transferred to IepF authority, as detailed / given on 
www.iepf.gov.in

 Whilst the Company has already written to the 
Members, informing them about the due date 
for transfer of their shares to IepF, the attention 
of the shareholders is once again drawn to this 
matter through the annual report. the data 
on unpaid / unclaimed dividend and shares is 
also available on the Company’s website at  
www.adorwelding.com. Investors, who have not 
yet encashed their unclaimed / unpaid dividend 
amounts are requested to correspond with the 
Company’s registrar and Share transfer agent, at 
the earliest. those Members / Shareholders, who 
do not remember / recollect having encashed 
their dividend, can also check the “List of Unpaid 
Dividends”, posted on the website of the Company.

39. HuMaN reSourCe (eMpLoyeeS)

 at aDor, employee well-being is of utmost 
importance. the Company has a structured 
induction process at all its locations and undertakes 
training programs to upgrade skills / knowledge 
of its employees. objective appraisal systems, 
based on key result areas (Kras), are in place for 
its employees. aDor believes in harnessing the 
potential of the employees, by providing them 

adequate training, opportunities and inclusive 
work culture, in order to achieve Company’s goal, 
in line with the overall employee development. 
the industrial relations at all the plants and offices 
of the Company continue to remain harmonious, 
cordial and peaceful.

 Disclosure pertaining to remuneration and other 
details, as required under Section 197(12) of 
the act read with rule 5(1) of the Companies 
(appointment and remuneration of Managerial 
personnel) rules, 2014 is annexed to this report, as 
annexure VI.

 Statement containing particulars of top 10 
employees and the employees drawing 
remuneration in excess of limits prescribed under 
Section 197 (12) of the act, read with rule 5(2) 
and 5(3) of the Companies (appointment and 
remuneration of Managerial personnel) rules, 
2014, if any, is provided in the annexure forming part 
of this report. In terms of proviso to Section 136(1) 
of the act, the report and the accounts are being 
sent to the shareholders, excluding the aforesaid 
annexure. the said Statement is also open for 
e-inspection / physical inspection, 21 (twenty one) 
days before and up to the date of the ensuing  
70th annual General Meeting, during business 
hours on working days. any Member interested in 
obtaining a copy of the same, may write to the 
Company Secretary. None of the employees, 
listed in the said annexure, are related to any of the 
Directors of the Company or to each other. None 
of the employees hold (by himself / herself or along 
with his / her spouse and dependent children) 
more than 2% (two percent) of the equity Shares 
of the Company.

 the on-roll manpower strength of the Company, as 
at the date of this report, is 616.

40. MaterIaL CHaNGeS & CoMMItMeNtS

 there were no material changes, affecting the 
financial position of the Company subsequent to 
the close of the financial year 2022-23, at least till 
30th May, 2023 i.e. the date of this report.

41. INterNaL FINaNCIaL CoNtroL SySteM & tHeIr 
aDeQuaCy

 the Board has adopted policies & procedures of 
governance for orderly and efficient conduct of its 
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business, including adherence to the Company’s 
policies, safeguarding its assets, prevention 
& detection of frauds and errors, accuracy & 
completeness of the accounting records and 
timely preparation of reliable financial disclosures. 
aDor has an effective internal control system, 
which is constantly assessed and strengthened. 
the Company’s financial internal control systems 
are commensurate with the nature of its business, 
the size and complexity of its operations.

 the Internal auditor reports to the audit Committee. 
the audit committee defines the scope and 
authority of the Internal auditor. the Internal 
auditor monitors and evaluates the efficacy 
and adequacy of internal control system in 
the Company, its compliance with operating 
systems, accounting procedures and policies at 
all locations of the Company. Based on the report 
of the Internal auditor, process owners undertake 
corrective action in their respective areas and 
thereby strengthen the controls. Significant audit 
observations and the corresponding corrective 
actions are, thereafter presented to the audit 
Committee, on a quarterly basis and as & when 
required.

42. reportING oF FrauDS

 there were no instances of fraud, during the 
financial year 2022-23, which required the Statutory 
auditors to report to the audit Committee and / or 
Board under Section 143(12) of the act and rules 
framed thereunder.

43. DISCLoSure W.r.t. VaLuatIoN

 the requirement to disclose the details of difference 
between amount of the valuation done at the 
time of onetime settlement and the valuation 
done, while taking loan from the Banks or Financial 
Institutions along with the reasons thereof, is not 
applicable during the financial year under review.

44. CoDe For preVeNtIoN oF INSIDer traDING

 Your Company has adopted the Code of Conduct 
for prevention of Insider trading (pIt) for dealing 
/ trading in the Securities of the Company, in 
accordance with the Securities and exchange 
Board of India (prohibition of Insider trading) 

(amendment) regulations, 2018. the Code 
of Conduct for prevention of Insider trading & 
Code of Corporate Disclosure practices is also 
uploaded on the website of the Company at the 
following weblink: https://www.adorwelding.com/
wp-content/uploads/2022/12/Code-of-practices-
and-procedures-for-fair-disclosure-of-unpublished-
price.pdf

 all the Directors, employees and third parties such 
as auditors, consultants, vendors, traders, etc, 
who could have access to the Unpublished price 
Sensitive Information (UpSI) of the Company, are 
governed by this code. the objective of pIt Code 
is to protect the interest of the shareholders at 
large, to prevent misuse of any unpublished price 
sensitive information and to prevent any insider 
trading activity, by / while dealing in shares of the 
Company, by / through its Designated persons 
and their immediate relatives. the trading window 
is closed during the time of declaration of results 
and occurrence of any material events, as per the 
Code. the Company Secretary & Compliance 
officer, is responsible for setting forth procedures 
and implementation of the Code for trading in the 
Company’s securities.

45. eNVIroNMeNt & HeaLtH

 Your Company is conscious of the importance 
of environmentally clean and safe operations. 
aDor has undertaken various initiatives, which 
contribute towards sustainable development. 
Your Company strives to operate, after taking into 
consideration various environmental, social and 
governance initiatives / guidelines / laws, in order to 
achieve maximum output by optimum utilization 
of available resources, in environment friendly 
manner / ways.

 the detailed explanation w.r.t. the intiatives taken 
by the Company from health & environment 
perspective in given in BrSr report, annexed 
herewith as annexure VII.

46. aNNuaL LIStING FeeS

 the Company affirms that the annual listing fees for 
the financial year 2023-24 have been paid to both 
M/s. National Stock exchange of India Limited (NSe) 
and M/s. BSe Limited (Bombay Stock exchange).

https://www.adorwelding.com/wp-content/uploads/2022/12/Code-of-practices-and-procedures-for-fair-disclosure-of-unpublished-price.pdf
https://www.adorwelding.com/wp-content/uploads/2022/12/Code-of-practices-and-procedures-for-fair-disclosure-of-unpublished-price.pdf
https://www.adorwelding.com/wp-content/uploads/2022/12/Code-of-practices-and-procedures-for-fair-disclosure-of-unpublished-price.pdf
https://www.adorwelding.com/wp-content/uploads/2022/12/Code-of-practices-and-procedures-for-fair-disclosure-of-unpublished-price.pdf
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 Your Company has also paid its annual custodial 
fees to M/s. National Securities Depository Limited 
(NSDL) and M/s. Central Depository Services (India) 
Limited (CDSL).

47. aCKNoWLeDGeMeNt

 Your Directors take this opportunity to place 
on record their sincere gratitude and warm 
appreciation for the invaluable contribution and 
spirit of dedication shown by the employees, 
including the support staff, at all levels during  
FY 2022-23. Your Directors also express their deep 
gratitude for the business assistance, co-operation 
and support extended to your Company by its 

Customers, Distributors, Dealers, Vendors, Suppliers, 
Service providers, Bankers, various Government 
organizations / agencies & the Shareholders 
and look forward to their continued support and  
co-operation in the future, as well.

For and on behalf of the Board

Ninotchka Malkani Nagpal 
executive Chairman 

(DIN: 00031985)

place: Mumbai
Date: 30th May, 2023
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aNNeXure I - to tHe DIreCtorS’ report

aNNuaL report oN Corporate SoCIaL reSpoNSIBILIty (CSr) aCtIVItIeS For Fy 2022-23

1. a brief outline of the Company’s CSr policy, including overview of projects / programs, proposed to be 
undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSr policy and projects or programs:

 ador Welding Limited (aDor) is committed to comprehensive growth and has adopted a framework of 
integrating social, environmental & humanitarian concerns into its core business strategy, in the best interest 
of all its stakeholders. as a responsible corporate citizen, the Company strives for community empowerment 
through socio-economic development of underprivileged and marginalized sections of the society, thereby 
raising the Country’s Human Development Index (HDI). at aDor, CSr is a cornerstone of its corporate culture 
and the Company’s endeavor ardently adds more value on the societal front and to make a significant 
impact on the community.

 the key focus areas that echo aDor’s CSr policy are the following and its CSr programs generally cover all 
or majority of these focus areas:

- eradicating hunger, poverty and malnutrition, promoting preventive healthcare & sanitation, making 
available safe drinking water;

- promoting education; including special education & employment enhancing vocational skills, especially 
among children, women, elderly and the differently abled and livelihood enhancement projects;

- promoting gender equality, empowering women, setting-up homes and hostels for women and orphans, 
setting-up old age homes, day care centres and such other facilities for senior citizens and measures for 
reducing inequalities, faced by socially and economically challenged groups;

- ensuring environmental sustainability, ecological balance, protection of flora and fauna, animal welfare, 
agro forestry, conservation of natural resources and maintaining quality of soil, air & water;

- taking-up rural development projects / Conducting various social awareness programs;

- Contributing to development & improvement in quality of life of the workforce and their families, as well 
as of the society at large;

- Conservation of energy, including projects related to renewable sources of energy;

- Contribution to the prime Minister’s National relief Fund [or prime Minister’s Citizen assistance and relief 
in emergency Situations Fund (pM CareS Fund)] or any other fund set up by the central govt. for socio 
economic development and relief & welfare of the schedule caste, tribes, other backward classes, 
minorities and women;

- Contribution to research and development projects in the field of science, technology, engineering and 
medicine, funded by the Central Government or State Government or public Sector Undertaking or any 
agency of the Central Government or the State Government;

- Contributions to public funded Universities; Indian Institute of technology (IIts); National Laboratories and 
autonomous bodies, established under Department of atomic energy (Dae); Department of Biotechnology 
(DBt); Department of Science and technology (DSt); Department of pharmaceuticals; Ministry of ayurveda, 
Yoga and Naturopathy, Unani, Siddha and Homoeopathy (aYUSH); Ministry of electronics and Information 
technology and other bodies, namely Defense research and Development organization (DrDo); 
Indian Council of agricultural research (ICar); Indian Council of Medical research (ICMr) and Council 
of Scientific and Industrial research (CSIr), engaged in conducting research in science, technology, 
engineering and medicine, aimed at promoting Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs).
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2. Composition of CSr Committee:

Sr. 
No.

Name of the 
Director

Designation / Nature of 
Directorship

Number of 
meetings of CSr 
Committee held 
during the year

Number of meetings 
of CSr Committee 
attended during the 
year

1. Dr. Deep a. Lalvani Chairman (Non-executive Director) 2 2

2. Mrs. Ninotchka 
Malkani Nagpal

Member (executive Chairman) 2 2

3. Mrs. Nita Dempo 
Mirchandani

Member (Non-executive & 
Independent Director)

2 2

3. Web-links:

a. Composition of CSr committee: https://www.adorwelding.com/wp-content/uploads/2022/05/
Composition-of-Committees-FY-2022-23.pdf

b. CSr policy: https://www.adorwelding.com/wp-content/uploads/2022/05/CSr-policy-FY-2022-23.pdf

c. CSr projects, approved by the Board: https://www.adorwelding.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/04/CSr-
activities-FY-2022-23.pdf

4. provide the details of Impact assessment of CSr projects carried out in pursuance of Sub-rule (3) of rule 
8 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility policy) rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the report): 
Not applicable for FY 2022-23, hence not carried out.

5. a. average net profit of the Company as per sub-section (5) of section 135: rs. 3,171.40 Lakhs

b. two percent of average net profit of the Company as per sub-section (5) of section 135: rs.63.43 Lakhs

c. Surplus arising out of the CSr projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years: NIL

d. amount required to be set-off for the financial year, if any: rs. 0.09 Lakh

e. total CSr obligation for the financial year [(b)+(c)-(d)]: rs.63.34 Lakhs

https://www.adorwelding.com/wp-content/uploads/2022/05/Composition-of-Committees-FY-2022-23.pdf
https://www.adorwelding.com/wp-content/uploads/2022/05/Composition-of-Committees-FY-2022-23.pdf
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6.  a. amount spent on CSr projects (both ongoing project and other than ongoing project):

i. Details of CSr amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10) (11)

Sr. 
No.

Name of the 
project

Items from 
the list of 

activities in 
Schedule VII 

to the act

Local area 
(yes/ No)

Location of the project project 
duration

amount 
allocated 

for the 
project 
(rs. in 
lakhs)

amount 
spent 
in the 

current 
financial 
year (rs. 
in lakhs)

amount 
transferred 
to unspent 

CSr 
account 
for the 

project as 
per Section 
135(6) (rs. 
in lakhs)

Mode of 
Implementation 

- Direct 
(yes/No)

Mode of Implementation - through 
Implementing agency

State District Name CSr 
registration 

Number

1. renovation 
of a Higher 
Secondary 
School

promoting 
education

Yes Chhattisgarh raipur 3 years 10.50 3.50 0.83* Yes Na Na

total 10.50 3.50 0.83

* this is the balance in unspent CSr account as of 31st March, 2023

ii. Details of CSr amount spent against, other than ongoing projects for the financial year:

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)

Sr. 
No.

Name of the project Items from the 
list of activities in 

schedule VII to the 
act

Local area 
(yes/ No)

Location of the project amount 
spent for 

the project 
(rs. in 
lakhs)

Mode of 
implementation 
- Direct (yes/No)

Mode of implementation 
- through implementing 

agency

State District Name CSr 
registration 

Number

1. additional salary to school 
teachers at advani oerlikon 
Higher Secondary School, 
Birgaon, raipur

promoting education Yes Chhattisgarh raipur 6.30 Yes raipur plant 
(Directly by the 

Company)

Na

2. Setting up of “rotary 
Innovation Centre” for 
Imparting employability / 
entrepreneurship skills and Skill 
development w.r.t. robotics, 
aI, Iot, 3D printing

promoting education Yes Maharashtra Mumbai 0.25 No rotary Club 
of Mumbai,  

Kandivali West, 
Charitable trust

CSr00004849

3. Women & children 
empowerment

Livelihood 
enhancement 
project

Yes Dadra & 
Nagar Haveli

Silvassa 3.50 No Department of 
Social Welfare 

(Women 
& Children 

Development)

CSr00025593

4. education, Women 
empowerment, Skill 
Development & Healthcare 
activities

education, Women 
empowerment, Skill 
Development & 
Healthcare

Yes Maharashtra Mumbai 42.00 No ador 
Foundation

CSr00029675

5. purchase of Sports equipments 
at advani oerlikon Higher 
Secondary School, Birgaon, 
raipur

promoting education Yes Chhattisgarh raipur 0.38 Yes raipur plant 
(Directly by the 

Company)

Na
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(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)

Sr. 
No.

Name of the project Items from the 
list of activities in 

schedule VII to the 
act

Local area 
(yes/ No)

Location of the project amount 
spent for 

the project 
(rs. in 
lakhs)

Mode of 
implementation 
- Direct (yes/No)

Mode of implementation 
- through implementing 

agency

State District Name CSr 
registration 

Number

6. repair, painting & flooring 
work at advani oerlikon Higher 
Secondary School

promoting education Yes Chhattisgarh raipur 5.77 Yes raipur plant 
(Directly by the 

Company)

Na

7. providing facilities, such as 
Chairs and Washing Machine, 
for orphan & Needy Girls

Livelihood 
enhancement 
projects

Yes Maharashtra Lonavala, 
pune

1.47 No Social action 
for Manpower 

Creation - 
SaMparC 
Balgram – 

Bhaje

CSr00003752

8. “rabies Mukti Mission – 
2025” working in the field of 
vaccinating stray dogs in 
Maharashtra with anti-rabies 
vaccination with the view to 
eradicate / prevent rabies

animal Welfare Yes Maharashtra Mumbai, 
thane & 
Nashik

0.25 No Utkarsh Global 
Foundation

CSr00003183

9. treatment (radiation therapy) 
of an underprivileged girl child, 
suffering from deadly disease

promoting health-
care including 
preventive health 
care

Yes Maharashtra Mumbai 0.30 No Nanhi pari 
Foundation

CSr00003182

10. Improvisation of the old-age 
home.

Livelihood 
enhancement 
project

Yes Maharashtra pune 1.00 No Shri 
Dadamaharaj 
Natekar Morya 

trust

CSr00013253

11. Health-care of underprivileged 
adivasi children

Livelihood 
enhancement 
project

Yes Maharashtra pune 1.00 No punaruttan 
Samarasata 
Gurukulam

CSr00010340

12. Financial assistance for 
providing mental health to the 
low income group people

promoting Health 
Care Including 
preventive Health 
Care

Yes Maharashtra thane & 
pune

1.25 Yes Institute for 
psychological 
Health (IpH)

CSr00002456

        total 63.47 Lakhs

b. amount spent in administrative overheads: NIL

c. amount spent on Impact assessment, if applicable: Na

d. total amount spent for the Financial year (6a+6b+6c): rs. 66.97 Lakhs

e. CSr amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

total amount 
Spent for the 

Financial year  
(rs. in Lakhs)

amount unspent
total amount transferred to 

unspent CSr account, as per 
section 135(6)

amount transferred to any other fund specified 
under Schedule VII, as per second proviso to 

section 135(5)

rs. 63.47 amount Date of transfer Name of the 
Fund

amount Date of transfer

Nil Not applicable Nil



34

CREATING THE BEST WELDING EXPERIENCE

f. excess amount for set-off, if any:

Sr. No. particulars amount

(i) two percent of average net profit of the Company as per sub-section (5) of 
section 135

rs.63.43 Lakhs

(ii) Surplus arising out of CSr projects or programmes or activities of the previous 
Financial Years, if any

rs. 0.09 Lakh

(iii) total amount spent for the Financial Year rs.63.47 Lakhs

(iv) excess amount spent for the Financial Year [(iii)-(i)] rs. 0.04 Lakh

(v) amount available for set off in succeeding Financial Years [(ii)+(iv)] rs. 0.13 Lakh

7. Details of unspent CSr amount for the preceding three (03) financial years:

Sr. 
No.

preceding 
Financial 

year

amount 
transferred to 
unspent CSr 

account under 
section 135 (6) 

(rs. in lakhs)

amount 
spent in the 

reporting 
Financial 

year (rs. in 
lakhs)

amount transferred to any fund 
specified under Schedule VII, as per 

Section 135(6), if any

amount 
remaining to 
be spent in 
succeeding 

financial years 
(rs. in lakhs)

Name of 
the Fund

amount (in 
rs.)

Date of 
transfer

1. 2020-21 10.50 3.50 NIL NIL NIL 0.83

8. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social responsibility 
amount spent in the Financial year: No

 If Yes, enter the number of Capital assets created / acquired: Not applicable

9. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two percent of the average net profit as per 
Section 135(5): Not applicable. 

 the Company has spent rs. 63.47 Lakhs, out of its budgeted CSr expenditure of rs. 63.34 Lakhs (excluding 
set off of rs. 0.09 Lakh available, as a result of excess spent in FY 2021-22) for / in FY 2022-23.

For and on behalf of the Board

Ninotchka Malkani Nagpal Dr. Deep a. Lalvani

place: Mumbai executive Chairman Chairman of CSr Committee

Date: 30th May, 2023 (DIN: 00031985) (DIN: 01771000)
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pHILoSopHy oN CSr:

ador Welding Limited (aWL) believes that a Company’s 
performance must be quantified in a balanced 
economic, environmental and social imperative. 
as a pioneer in the welding industry, aWL has played  
a significant part in the country’s industrialization and 
infrastructure development and its welders have played 
a huge role in this development. the Company’s CSr 
vision is “Welding is an essential part of everyday life, 
as right from manufacturing cars to high rise buildings, 
airplanes to rockets, pipelines to highways, all of it 
requires welding.” as a responsible corporate citizen, the 
Company strives for community empowerment through 
socio- economic development of underprivileged and 
marginalized sections of society, thereby raising the 
Country’s human development index.

In pursuit of our commitment towards  
a comprehensive growth, we venture to have in 
place a framework to integrate social, environmental, 
humanitarian concerns into our core business strategy, 
in the best interest of all our stakeholders. at aWL, 
CSr is a cornerstone of its corporate culture and the 
Company’s endeavor ardently adds more value on 
the societal front and makes a significant impact on 
livelihood. this entails transcending business interests 
and grappling with the “quality of life” challenges that 
underserve communities face, and working towards 
creating a meaningful difference to them.

appLICaBILIty & SCope:

the scope of this policy is to strategically draw the 
guiding principles for selection, implementation and 
monitoring of CSr activities as well as formulation of 
the annual action plan by the Board of the Company, 
after taking into account the recommendations of 
CSr Committee.

the said policy is to be read in alignment with the 
provisions of Section 135 of the Companies act, 2013 
(‘the act’) and the corresponding rules made there 
under, as amended from time to time (‘CSr rules’), 
Schedule VII of the act and aWL philosophy & CSr 
values.

Corporate SoCIaL reSpoNSIBILIty (CSr) poLICy

FoCuS areaS oF eNGaGeMeNt:

arising from this, the key focus areas that echo aWL’s 
CSr policy, are the following and aWL’s CSr programs 
will generally cover all or any of these focus areas:

i. eradicating hunger, poverty and malnutrition, 
promoting preventive healthcare & sanitation, 
making available safe drinking water;

ii. promoting education; including special education 
and employment enhancing vocational skills 
especially among children, women, elderly and 
the differently abled and livelihood enhancement 
projects;

iii. promoting gender equality, empowering women, 
setting up homes and hostels for women and 
orphans, setting up old age homes, day care 
centres and such other facilities for senior citizens 
and measures for reducing inequalities faced by 
socially and economically backward groups;

iv. ensuring environmental sustainability, ecological 
balance, protection of flora and fauna, animal 
welfare, agro forestry, conservation of natural 
resources and maintaining quality of soil, air & 
water;

v. taking up rural development projects / Conducting 
various social awareness programs;

vi. Contributing to development & improvement in 
quality of life of the workforce and their families as 
well as of the society at large;

vii. Conservation of energy, including projects related 
to renewable sources of energy;

viii. Contribution to the prime Minister’s National relief 
Fund [or prime Minister’s Citizen assistance and 
relief in emergency Situations Fund (pM CareS 
Fund)] or any other fund set up by the Central 
govt. for socio economic development & relief 
and welfare of the schedule caste, tribes, other 
backward classes, minorities and women;

ix. Contribution to research and development projects 
in the field of science, technology, engineering 
and medicine, funded by the central Government 
or State Government or public Sector Undertaking 
or any agency of the Central Government or State 
Government;
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x. Contributions to public funded Universities; 
Indian Institute of technology (IIts); National 
Laboratories and autonomous bodies, established 
under Department of atomic energy (Dae); 
Department of Biotechnology (DBt); Department 
of Science and technology (DSt); Department of 
pharmaceuticals; Ministry of ayurveda, Yoga and 
Naturopathy, Unani, Siddha and Homoeopathy 
(aYUSH); Ministry of electronics and Information 
technology and other bodies, namely Defense 
research and Development organization (DrDo); 
Indian Council of agricultural research (ICar); 
Indian Council of Medical research (ICMr) and 
Council of Scientific and Industrial research (CSIr), 
engaged in conducting research in science, 
technology, engineering and medicine, aimed at 
promoting Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs)

orGaNIZatIoNaL MeCHaNISM For CSr:

the Board of Directors shall form a Corporate Social 
responsibility (CSr) Committee, pursuant to the 
provisions of Section 135 of the act, which shall be 
responsible for formulating & recommending to the 
Board, the CSr policy & CSr annual action plan, list 
of CSr activities / manner of execution / utilization of 
fund and timelines / monitoring of projects and shall 
lay down the guidelines / key focus areas for the CSr 
activities every year.

CoMpoSItIoN oF tHe CSr CoMMIttee:

three or more directors, of which at least one director 
shall be an Independent Director. No sitting fees will 
be paid to the members of CSr Committee. the 
Company Secretary shall act as the Secretary to the 
Committee.

the number of members of the CSr Committee and 
their powers and functions can be specified, varied, 
altered or modified from time to time by the Board, 
subject to the provisions of the applicable law.

FuNCtIoNS oF tHe CSr CoMMIttee:

i. to formulate and recommend to the Board, a CSr 
policy, indicating the activities to be undertaken by 
the Company in the areas or subject, specified in 
Schedule VII;

ii. recommend the amount to be spent on these 
activities in every financial year;

iii. Monitor the Company’s CSr activities under the 
policy periodically;

iv. Developing the CSr annual strategy, based on 
the guidelines, set by the Companies act, 2013 & 
rules framed there under.

v. Formulate and recommend to the Board, the 
annual action plan for CSr activities, CSr project 
development, CSr project approval, etc. in 
accordance with the CSr policy, indicating the 
following:

•	 list	 of	 CSR	 projects	 or	 programmes	 that	 are	
approved to be undertaken in areas or 
subjects, specified in Schedule VII of the act;

•	 manner	 of	 execution	 of	 such	 projects	 or	
programmes;

•	 modalities	 of	 utilisation	 of	 funds	 and	
implementation schedules, for the projects or 
programmes;

•	 monitoring	and	 reporting	mechanism,	 for	 the	
projects or programmes;

•	 details	of	need	and	impact	assessment,	if	any,	
for the projects, undertaken by the company:

vi. Monitoring the execution mechanism for CSr 
projects; periodic reporting and communication to 
the Board.

tHe CSr CoMMIttee WILL eNSure tHe FoLLoWING:

- appropriate organizational structure, to effectively 
identify, monitor & manage CSr activities.

- all kinds of income accrued to aWL, by way of CSr 
activities, if any, to be credited back to CSr corpus.

IMpLeMeNtatIoN MeCHaNISM oF CSr:

ador Foundation, the philanthropy arm of ador Group 
Companies will be the core / principal implementation 
agency for undertaking all / major CSr activities of 
ador Group Companies, as well as their Subsidiaries.

the CSr activities of aWL can be undertaken by the 
Company either directly by itself or through ador 
Foundation or through any other organization / 
agency, which is into CSr activities and registered with 
the Central Government, namely:

•	 a	Company	established	under	Section	8	of	the	Act,	
or a registered public trust or a society, registered 
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under section 12a and 80G of the Income tax act, 
1961 (43 of 1961), established by the Company, 
either singly or along with any other Company, or

•	 a	 Company	 established	 under	 section	 8	 of	 the	
act or a registered trust or a registered society, 
established by the Central Government or State 
Government; or

•	 any	entity	established	under	an	Act	of	Parliament	
or a State legislature; or

•	 a	Company	established	under	section	8	of	the	Act,	
or a registered public trust or a society, registered 
under section 12a and 80G of the Income tax act, 
1961, and having an established track record of at 
least three years, in undertaking similar activities.

aWL can conduct due diligence, prior to selection of 
an entity as its implementation organization / agency, 
to verify the credentials and ensure that the proposed 
implementation agency is eligible & capable to be 
appointed as such.

aWL can also enter into Collaborative partnerships 
with the Government, NGos, independently registered 
non-profit organisations, or with other like-minded 
organisations / stakeholders, so as to widen the 
Company’s reach and leverage upon the collective 
expertise & experience, these partnerships will bring on 
pooling their resources for CSr activities.

In undertaking CSr activities, the Company shall give 
preference to the local areas wherein the Company 
operates or has its offices i.e. areas in the vicinity of its 
factories, depots and sales offices, if any, to the extent 
possible.

all contributions to the funds, referred to in the ‘Focus 
areas of engagement’ clauses shall be made directly 
by the Company and shall be utilized, accounted 
for and monitored, strictly in accordance with the 
applicable provisions of law.

aWL can also engage international organizations for 
designing, monitoring and evaluation of CSr projects 
or programmes as per its CSr policy, as well as for 
capacity building of its own personnel for CSr.

CSr eXpeNDIture:

Statutory requirement

the Company shall spend at least 2% (two percent) of 
its average Net profits, made during the last 3 (three) 

immediately preceding financial years, in accordance 
with the act & the rules and the CSr policy.

Set-off

Where the Company spends an amount in excess 
of requirement, provided under Section 135(5) of 
the act, such excess amount will be set-off against 
the requirement to spend under section 135(5) up 
to immediate succeeding 3 (three) financial years, 
subject to certain conditions, given under the act.

ongoing project

“ongoing project” means a multi-year project 
undertaken by a Company in fulfilment of its CSr 
obligation, having timelines not exceeding three 
years, excluding the financial year in which it was 
commenced and shall include such project that was 
initially not approved as a multi-year project but whose 
duration has been extended beyond one year by the 
board, based on reasonable justification.

In case of ongoing project, the Board shall monitor the 
implementation of the project with reference to the 
approved timelines & year-wise allocation and shall 
make modifications, if any, for smooth implementation 
of the project, within the overall permissible time period.

Surplus

any surplus arising out of the CSr activities will not be 
considered as a part of the business profit and will 
be re-allocated to the same CSr project or will be 
transferred to the Unspent CSr account and will be 
spent in pursuance of this CSr policy and / or annual 
action plan.

administrative overheads

the Board shall ensure that the administrative 
overheads shall not exceed 05% (five percent) of total 
CSr expenditure of the Company, for the financial 
year.

“administrative overheads”, as defined under the 
act, mean the expenses incurred by the Company 
for ‘general management and administration’ of 
Corporate Social responsibility functions in the 
Company, but shall not include the expenses directly 
incurred for the designing, implementation, monitoring 
and evaluation of a particular Corporate Social 
responsibility project or programme.
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Creation or acquisition of a Capital asset

the CSr amount may be spent by a Company for 
creation or acquisition of a capital asset in accordance 
with the CSr rules.

unspent amount

any unspent amount, other than unspent amount 
relating to an ongoing project, will be transferred to 
a Fund specified in Schedule VII, within a period of 06 
(six) months of the expiry of the financial year.

Further, unspent CSr funds of ongoing projects will be 
transferred within a period of 30 days from the end 
of the financial year to a special account, opened 
by the Company in any scheduled bank, called the 
“Unspent Corporate Social responsibility account”. 
Such amount shall be spent by the Company towards 
CSr within a period of 3 financial years, from the date 
of such transfer, failing which, the Company shall 
transfer the same to a Fund specified in Schedule VII, 
within a period of 30 days from the date of completion 
of the third financial year.

the Board shall be responsible for sanctioning the CSr 
expenditure and shall be responsible, along with the CSr 
Committee, for taking steps to ensure that the amount 
for CSr expenditure is available for the implementation 
/ application towards the CSr activities.

MoDaLItIeS For utILIZatIoN oF FuNDS:

our CSr underpins the significance of the people 
behind this development and identifies areas, where 
we can help nurture their current and future potential, 
while supporting the families of underprivileged and 
communities, through the following ways:

1. up skilling India to make more Indians have 
meaningful jobs through education, training 

(basic education, up-skilling India with welding 
skills):

- providing sponsorship for training to 
underprivileged youth, to take up courses on 
welding skills

2. Women empowerment:

 providing a safe working environment for women

3. areas around our factories and offices by 
providing basic sanitation, drinking water, 
education for economically challenged and 
community services:

•	 Environmental	Compliances	at	all	plants

•	 CE	Safety	Standards

•	 Tree	plantations	at	all	plants

•	 Provide	medical	help,	as	may	be	fit	to	various	
strata’s of society

4. Welfare activities

 Undertaking relief / welfare activities, especially 
during pandemic.

MoNItorING MeCHaNISM:

Certain CSr activities will be carried out, to the extent 
possible, around the factory areas of the Company and 
the respective plant In-charge(s) can be authorized to 
monitor the implementation of the said CSr activities 
in the vicinity of the plants.

Mr. Vinayak M. Bhide, Company Secretary & Mr. S. K. 
Sethia, Chief Financial officer will be responsible to 
oversee the overall functioning of the CSr activities / 
projects of the Company.

this policy was approved by the Board on Friday,  
20th May, 2022.
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aNNeXure II - to tHe DIreCtorS’ report

Disclosure of particulars with respect to Conservation of energy, technology absorption and Foreign exchange 
earnings & outgo, as required under Section 134 (3)(m) of the Companies act, 2013, read with rule 8(3) of 
the Companies (accounts) rules, 2014

a. Conservation of energy

 aWL believes that the workplace forms one of the strongest pillars for implementation of best practices 
for sustainable development. aWL is committed to making continuous efforts that contribute towards an 
integrated development, on an ongoing basis, by adopting various innovative measures at its plants, which 
lead to positive consequences, such as reduction of wastages, optimum consumption of non-renewable 
resources, climate change mitigation as well as reduction in operational costs.

 Some of the initiatives / measures taken by your Company are as follows:

1. Installed Solar power plant at Silvassa Factory with the capacity of 115 KWp, during FY 2021-22, which 
generated 1,32,783 units in FY 2022-23.

2. Installed Solar power plant at raipur Factory with the capacity of 518 KWp during FY 2019-20, which 
generated 4,59,851 units, effectively reducing the greenhouse gas emission by 271.3 Mt in FY 2022-23.

3. Installed timers & optimization of heat run cycles, in FY 2022-23, which resulted in improvement of process 
control & optimized energy usage i.e consumption of power units per machine reduced from average 
10.5 units per machine to 8.40 units per machine i.e appx. 20% saving per machine over FY 2021-22.

4. Installed motion sensors and on / off timers at appropriate locations which resulted in reduction of energy 
consumption at Chinchwad plant.

B. technology absorption

 as a pioneer in the welding industry and a major supplier of a variety of Welding Consumables, equipment and 
automation systems to National as well as International markets, aWL is consistently investing in “technology 
and Innovation” to deliver the best / “state of the art” products. the Company has 2 (two) technology 
Development Centers (tDCs), 1 (one) each for Consumables and equipment, both located at Chinchwad, 
pune in Maharashtra. the tDCs continue to pursue their goals, with renewed vigor, in terms of innovation, 
upgradation, improvements & cost optimization. these tDCs regularly interact with the market / users for 
improving the competitive features and performance of the Company’s products.

 Some of the significant technology absorption / innovations w.r.t. tDCs are listed hereunder:

 tDC equipment:

1. Developed and introduced the welding machine using thyristor based technology for Gauging application 
with highest current rating of 1500a.

2. Introduced compact and light weight 400a inverter based Multi process (MMa / GMaW / GtaW) welding 
machine. the compactness of this machine is unique in 400a range of machines available in market.

3. Developed engine driven welding machines, which can give power and run two number of 400a three 
phase inverter based MMa machines and one 200a single phase inverter based machine, apart from 
welding output.

 tDC Consumables:

1. tDC team works in tandem with product Management team, to understand various customized 
requirements and bridge the gap between present features & expected modifications through 
technological improvements in product design.
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2. Many of our Low alloy Steel products (tenalloy series) have been tuned to meet sub-zero toughness 
properties down to minus 60°C applications.

3. positional welding and suitability for pipe-welding is an essential requirement for any Cr-Mo electrodes. 
often, sub-zero toughness properties are also demanded. thus we have upgraded our Cr-Mo electrodes, 
both, in their performance & properties, to position ourselves higher over other competing brands.

4. Developed e7016-1 electrode (tenalloy 16-Spl) for 6G position pipe-welding, meeting full penetration and 
radiographic quality standards with aC polarity.

5. Upgraded hard-facing consumable range for improved wear resistant properties. Introduced new hard-
surfacing electrodes with positional welding characteristics.

6. our technical team assists customers like; BHeL, oNGC, NpCIL, railways, BarC by offering them with “Make 
in India” products. We are privileged to contribute to various key projects of these prestigious customers, 
meeting their need of stringent manufacturing practices & critical properties.

energy Conservation and Safety:

Installed LpG gas ovens during the last 02 (two) years, which resulted in saving of electrical power and improved 
the overall baking efficiency at raipur Factory.

Summary of expenditure on r & D:

(rs. In Lakhs)

particulars Fy 2022-23 FY 2021-22

Capital 43 2

recurring 441 332

total 484 334

total r & D expenditure as a percentage of total turnover 0.62% 0.51%

Foreign exchange earnings & outgo:

(rs. In Lakhs)

particulars Fy 2022-23 FY 2021-22

Foreign exchange earnings 7,129 3,142

Foreign exchange outgo 6,375 5,686

For and on behalf of the Board

Ninotchka Malkani Nagpal 
place: Mumbai  executive Chairman 
Date: 30th May, 2023  (DIN: 00031985)
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aNNeXure III – to tHe DIreCtorS’ report

Corporate GoVerNaNCe report
the detailed report on Corporate Governance for the financial year ended 31st March, 2023, in terms of 
regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V (C) of SeBI (Listing obligations and Disclosure requirements) regulations, 
2015 is set out below. In this report, we confirm the compliance of Corporate Governance criteria, as required 
under the said SeBI (LoDr) regulations, 2015.

a) Mandatory requirements:
1) Company’s philosophy on the Code of Corporate Governance
 the Company has a strong legacy of believing in sound corporate practices, based on transparency, 

accountability and high level of integrity, which forms an essential part in the functioning of the Company and 
increasing the long-term enhancement of stakeholders’ value & interest. the Company believes that its actions 
must result in enhancing corporate performance by maximizing stakeholders’ value and also in motivating 
work force. We, as a Company, have always focused on ‘best-in-class’ Corporate Governance practices, 
which is a key driver for sustainable corporate growth and long-term value creation for our stakeholders. 
through the Governance mechanism in the Company, the Board along with its Committees undertakes its 
fiduciary responsibilities towards all its stakeholders by ensuring transparency, fair play and independence in its 
decision making. the Company’s policies are an extension of its values and reflect its commitment to ethical 
business practices, integrity and regulatory compliances.

2) Board of Directors
 the Board is entrusted with the ultimate responsibility of the management and performance of the Company. 

It provides strategic direction, leadership and guidance to Company’s Management. It monitors the 
performance of the Company, with the objective of creating long-term value for the Company’s stakeholders 
as well as it ensures that the Management adheres to highest standards of ethics, transparency and disclosures.

2.1) Core Skills / expertise of the Board
 the Board of Directors, at its meeting held on 30th May, 2023, has approved the following list of core skills / 

expertise in context of / with respect to the line of business of the Company, for it to function effectively. the 
below matrix summarizes a mix of skills, expertise & competencies, possessed by the individual Directors on 
the Board, which are key to good corporate governance and board effectiveness:

Sr. 
No.

Core Skills / expertise Name of the Director(s)

1. General Management & Strategic Financial planning Mrs. Ninotchka Malkani Nagpal,  
Mr. K. Digvijay Singh, Mr. Navroze S. Marshall

2. product Manufacturing & technology Development Mr. aditya t. Malkani, Mr. Navroze S. Marshall
3. Financial Management Dr. Deep a. Lalvani , Mrs. Ninotchka Malkani 

Nagpal, Mr. aditya t. Malkani, Mrs. Nita 
Dempo Mirchandani, Mr. Navroze S. Marshall

4. Brand building & e-Commerce Dr. Deep a. Lalvani, Mr. Gaurav M. Lalwani
5. Business / technology collaboration, Mergers & 

acquisitions
Mr. ravin a. Mirchandani,  
Ms. tanya H. advani, Mr. rakesh N. Sapru

6. Banking & Finance Mr. rakesh N. Sapru,
7. Sales & Corporate Marketing Mr. K. Digvijay Singh, Mr. Gaurav M. Lalwani,  

Mr. rakesh N. Sapru, Ms. tanya H. advani
8. project Management Mr. aditya t. Malkani, Ms. tanya H. advani
9. Intellectual property, Joint Ventures & International Law Mr. piyush K. Gupta

10. Digital transformation, data analytics, B2B and CrM 
marketing

Mr. Gaurav M. Lalwani
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2.2) Composition, Number of Meetings held and attendance

 In order to maintain independence of the Board, we have a judicious mix of executive, Non-executive & 
Independent Directors. the Board of Directors of the Company, as of 31st March, 2023 comprises of 11 
(eleven) Directors, consisting of 2 (two) executive / Whole-time Directors and 9 (nine) Non-executive Directors 
including 6 (six) Independent Directors. there are 3 (three) Women Directors on the Board, out of which 1 (one) 
is an Independent Woman Director, as stipulated under regulation 17(1)(a) of SeBI (Listing obligations and 
Disclosure requirements) regulations, 2015. the composition and strength of the Board is reviewed from time 
to time for ensuring that it remains aligned with the statutory as well as business requirements. the Board of 
Directors meet, generally once in every quarter, primarily to review the quarterly performance and the financial 
results of the Company, amongst other things. the Meetings of the Board of Directors & the Committees of the 
Board are usually held at the registered office of the Company. the Meetings are scheduled well in advance 
and the intimation of each Board & Committee Meeting is given in writing to each Director / Member about 8 
to 10 weeks before the scheduled date of the Meeting. In case of business exigencies, the Board’s approval 
is taken through circular resolutions. the circular resolutions are then noted at the subsequent Board Meeting.

 the information, as set out in regulation 17 read with part a of Schedule II of SeBI (LoDr) regulations, 2015, is 
provided to the Board and to the Board Committees, to the extent applicable & relevant. Such information 
is submitted either as part of the agenda papers, in advance, of the respective Meetings or by way of 
presentations & discussions during the Meetings.

 the Company Secretary, in consultation with the executive Chairman and the Managing Director, prepares 
the detailed agenda for the Board / Committee Meetings. all the necessary documents, including annexures, 
explanatory Notes etc., are circulated, along with the agenda, to all the Directors about 7 to 10 days in 
advance. the Board / Committee Members are also free to recommend inclusion of any matter in the 
agenda, for discussion at the Board / Committee Meetings. the important decisions taken at the Board / 
Committee Meetings are communicated to the concerned department / division and the major outcome of 
the Board Meetings are also informed to the Stock exchanges, where the Company’s shares are listed.

 During FY 2022-23 under review, the Board of Directors met 6 (six) times, i.e. on 20th May, 2022, 31st May, 2022, 
11th august, 2022, 21st September, 2022, 04th November, 2022 and 03rd February, 2023. the requisite quorum 
was present at all the Meetings. the maximum gap between any two consecutive meetings was less than 
one hundred & twenty (120) days, as stipulated under Section 173(1) of the act, and regulation 17(2) of SeBI 
(LoDr) regulations, 2015 and the Secretarial Standard (SS), issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of 
India (ICSI). the Board has accepted almost all the recommendations of its committees, during the relevant 
financial year.

 Brief details of the Board Meetings held during Fy 2022-23 are as follows:

Sr. 
No.

Date of the Board Meeting Board Strength No. of Directors 
present

No. of Independent 
Directors present

1. 20th May, 2022 10 10 05

2. 31st May, 2022 11 11 06

3. 11th august, 2022 11 11 06

4. 21st September, 2022 11 11 06

5. 04th November, 2022 11 11 06

6. 03rd February, 2023 11 10 05
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 the composition of the Board of Directors, attendance at the Board Meetings, held during FY 2022-23 and at 
the last annual General Meeting, number of Directorships in other Companies & Membership of Committees 
across other Companies, in which the Director is a Member / Chairman, are given below:

Sr. 
No.

Name of the 
Director

Category of 
Directorship

Financial year 2022- 23 
attendance at

as on 31st March, 2023

Board Meetings Last aGM  
(27th July, 

2022)

No. of other 
Director- 
ships #

No. of 
Director- 
ships in 
listed 

entities^

Committee positions @

No. of 
Memberships

No. of 
Chairmanships

1. Mrs. N. Malkani 
Nagpal

executive 
(Chairman)

6 of 6 present 2 2 2 0

2. Mr. a. t. Malkani executive 
(Managing 

Director)

6 of 6 present 1 2 0 0

3. Dr. D. a. Lalvani Non-executive$ 6 of 6 present 2 2 4 1

4. Mr. r. a. 
Mirchandani

Non-executive 6 of 6 present 1 1 2 1

5. Ms. tanya H. advani Non-executive 6 of 6 present 2 2 3 0

6. Mr. p. K. Gupta Independent 6 of 6 present 0 1 1 0

7. Mr. r. N. Sapru Independent 6 of 6 present 0 1 0 1

8. Mr. K. Digvijay Singh Independent 6 of 6 present 0 1 0 0

9. Mr. G. M. Lalwani Independent 6 of 6 present 0 1 0 1

10. Mrs. Nita Dempo 
Mirchandani

Independent 6 of 6 present 0 1 0 0

11. Mr. N. S. Marshall* Independent 4 of 5 present 3 4 5 1
$ with effect from 01st april, 2022
* with effect from 21st May, 2022

 Notes:

#  excludes Directorships in ador Welding Ltd., Foreign Companies, private Limited Companies and Charitable 
Companies, if any.

^  Includes Directorship in ador Welding Limited

@  Considered Memberships / Chairmanships of the audit Committee & the Stakeholders relationship Committee only, 
other than that of ador Welding Ltd., as per regulation 26(1)(b) of SeBI (Listing obligations and Disclosure requirements) 
regulations, 2015.

 None of the Directors is a Member of more than 10 (ten) Board Committees and Chairman of more than 
05 (five) such Committees [the committees being, the audit Committee and the Stakeholders’ relationship 
Committee], across all the public limited companies, in which he / she is a Director, as required under 
regulation 26(1) of SeBI (Listing obligations and Disclosure requirements) regulations, 2015. None of the 
Directors on the Company’s Board hold the office of Director in more than 20 (twenty) companies, including 
10 (ten) public companies and none of the Directors of the Company, are related to each other. as per 
regulation 17a of SeBI (LoDr) regulations, 2015, none of the Directors hold Directorship in more than 08 
(eight) listed entities and none of the Independent Directors serve as Independent Director in more than 07 
(seven) listed entities and in case they are Whole time Directors / Managing Directors in any listed entity, then 
they do not serve as Independent Director in more than 03 (three) listed entities. the same is also evident from 
the above table.

 all the Directors have made necessary disclosures regarding Committee positions held by them in other 
Companies, as required under Section 184 of the Companies act, 2013. each Director informs the Company, 
on an annual basis, about the Board and the Committee positions she / he occupies in other Companies, 
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including Chairmanships and notifies changes during the year, if any. the Members of the Board, while 
discharging their duties, avoid conflict of interest in the decision making process. the Members of the Board 
restrict themselves from any discussions and voting in transactions, in which they have concern / interest.

 all the Non-Independent Directors, except the Managing Director, are liable to retire by rotation. the executive 
Chairman is also liable to retire by rotation.

 None of the Non-executive Directors, including the Independent Directors of the Company, have any material 
pecuniary relationship or have executed any transactions with the Company, its promoters or its Management, 
which would affect the independence or judgment of the Board. the Company has also not entered into 
any materially significant related party transactions with its promoters, Directors or their relatives or with the 
Management etc., that may have potential conflict with the interest of the Company, at large.

 all the Independent Directors of the Company have certified & confirmed their independence by giving 
declarations that they meet the criteria of independence, as laid down under Section 149(6) of the Companies 
act, 2013 and regulation 16(1)(b) read with regulation 25(8) of SeBI (LoDr) regulations, 2015. In the opinion 
of the Board, the Independent Directors, fulfil the conditions of independence, specified in the Companies 
act, 2013 and SeBI (LoDr) regulations, 2015. they have also given declaration under rule 6(1) and 6(2) of the 
Companies (appointment and Qualification of Directors) rules, 2014, that their names are registered in the 
databank, as maintained by the Indian Institute of Corporate affairs (IICa). In terms of Section 150 of the act 
read with rule 6(4) of the Companies (appointment & Qualification of Directors) rules, 2014, the Independent 
Directors, if applicable, are required to undertake online proficiency self-assessment test conducted by IICa, 
within a period of one (1) year from the date of inclusion of their names in the data bank or such time, as 
may be amended by the Central Government. In the opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors, fulfil 
the criteria of independence, specified in Section 149(6) of the act and regulation 16(1) (b) of SeBI (LoDr) 
regulations, 2015. the Board hereby confirms that the Independent Directors fulfill the conditions, specified in 
these regulations and are independent of the Management.

 Details of their directorship in listed entities, other than ador Welding Limited, and their category of Directorship, 
as required under SeBI (LoDr), regulations 2015, as on 31st March, 2023, are as under:

Sr. 
No.

Name of the Director Name of the Listed entity & Category of Directorship

1. Mrs. Ninotchka Malkani Nagpal ador Fontech Limited – Non - executive Director

2. Mr. a. t. Malkani ador Fontech Limited – Chairman & Non-executive Director

3. Dr. D. a. Lalvani ador Multiproducts Limited – Chairman & Non - executive 
Director

4. Mr. r. a. Mirchandani Na

5. Ms. tanya H. advani ador Multiproducts Limited- Non-executive Director

6. Mr. p. K. Gupta Na

7. Mr. r. N. Sapru Na

8. Mr. K. Digvijay Singh Na

9. Mr. G. M. Lalwani Na

10. Mrs. Nita Dempo Mirchandani Na

11. Mr. N. S. Marshall Simmonds Marshall Limited - Chairman & executive Director 
Hindustan Hardy Limited – Independent Director
ador Fontech Limited – Independent Director
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 Broad terms of reference / Functions of the Board:

 the duties of the Board of Directors have been enumerated in SeBI (LoDr) regulations, 2015, Section 166 
of the Companies act, 2013 and Schedule IV to the said act (Schedule IV is specifically for Independent 
Directors). there is a clear demarcation of responsibility and authority, amongst the Board of Directors.

 the following information is generally provided to the Board of Directors:

•	 Annual	operating	plans	&	budgets	and	updates	thereon.

•	 Capital	budgets	and	updates	thereon.

•	 Quarterly	Unaudited	Financial	Results	(UFR)	of	the	Company	and	its	Operating	Divisions	/	Business	Segments.

•	 Audited	Financial	Results	(AFR)	of	the	Company.

•	 Minutes	of	the	Meetings	of	the	Board,	Committees	of	the	Board	&	Subsidiary	of	the	Company.

•	 The	information	on	recruitment	and	remuneration	of	senior	officers,	just	below	the	Board	level,	including	
the appointment & / or removal of the Chief Financial officer (CFo) and the Company Secretary (CS).

•	 Show	cause,	demand,	prosecution	notices	and	penalty	notices,	which	are	materially	important.

•	 Fatal	or	serious	accidents,	dangerous	occurrences,	any	material	effluent	or	pollution	problems.

•	 Any	material	default	in	financial	obligations	by	the	Company,	or	substantial	non-payment	of	goods	sold	
by the Company.

•	 Any	 issue,	which	 involves	possible	public	or	product	 liability	claims	of	 substantial	nature,	 including	any	
judgement or order, which may have passed strictures on the conduct of the Company or taken an 
adverse view regarding another enterprise, that may have negative implications on the Company.

•	 Risk	Mitigation	plans	/	updates.

•	 Details	of	any	Joint	Venture	or	Collaboration	Agreement.

•	 Transactions	that	involve	substantial	payment	towards	Goodwill,	Brand	Equity	or	Intellectual	Property.

•	 Significant	labor	problems	and	their	proposed	solutions.

•	 Any	significant	development	in	Human	Resources	/	Industrial	Relations	front,	like	signing	of	wage	agreement,	
implementation of Voluntary retirement Scheme (VrS), etc.

•	 Quarterly	/	Half	yearly	/	Yearly	details	of	financials	&	other	material	information	of	the	Subsidiary	Companies.

•	 Sale	of	investments,	subsidiaries,	assets,	etc.,	which	are	material	in	nature	&	not	in	the	normal	course	of	
business.

•	 Quarterly	details	of	Foreign	Exchange	exposures	and	steps	taken	by	the	Management	to	limit	the	risks	of	
adverse exchange rate movement, if material.

•	 Non-compliance	of	any	 regulatory,	 statutory	or	 listing	 requirements	and	 shareholder	 services,	 such	as	
non-payment of dividend, delay in share related services etc.

•	 Updates	on	working	of	the	Subsidiaries.

 the Board of Directors is routinely provided with all the above information, whenever applicable. these are 
submitted either as a part of agenda or are tabled in the course of the Board Meeting, which get discussed 
/ noted by the Board.

 Code of Conduct for Board of Directors & Senior Management:

 the Board of Directors has laid down / adopted a ‘Code of Conduct for Board of Directors & Senior 
Management’ for all the Board Members and Senior Management personnel of the Company. the Code 
requires Directors and employees to act honestly, fairly, ethically, & with integrity, and conduct themselves 
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in professional, courteous and respectful manner. the ‘Code of Conduct’ has been communicated to the 
Directors and the Members of Senior Management & also been posted onto the website of the Company. 
all the Directors and Senior Management personnel have confirmed / affirmed compliance with the Code of 
Conduct for FY 2022–23.

 the Company has also adopted a separate code for Independent Directors, as laid down under Schedule IV 
to the Companies act, 2013 and the same is also posted onto the website of the Company at the following 
web-link: https://www.adorwelding.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/02/Code-of-Conduct-for-Directors-Senior-
Managerial-personnels-1.pdf

 Further, the Company / Board confirms that all of its Independent Directors have affirmed with the “Code of 
Conduct for the Independent Directors.”

 Committees of the Board:

 the Board of Directors has constituted Board Committees to deal with specific areas and activities, as 
mandated under the law, which concerns the Company and requires a closer review. the Board Committees 
are formed with the approval of the Board and function under their respective Charters. these Committees 
play an important role in the overall Management of the day-to-day affairs and governance of the Company. 
the Board Committees meet at regular intervals and take necessary steps, to perform its duties entrusted by 
the Board. the Minutes of the Committee Meetings are placed before the Board for noting.

 the Company has 05 (five) Board Level Committees:

 a) audit Committee (aC)
 b) Nomination and remuneration Committee (NrC)
 c) risk Management Committee (rMC)
 d) Corporate Social responsibility Committee (CSr)
 e) Stakeholders’ relationship Committee (SrC)

3) audit Committee

 Broad terms of reference / Functions of the Committee:

 the audit Committee functions according to its Charter that defines its composition, authority, responsibility and 
reporting functions, in accordance with Section 177 of the act, regulation 18 read with part C of Schedule II to 
SeBI (LoDr) regulations, 2015. audit Committee is entrusted with the responsibility to supervise the Company’s 
financial reporting process and internal controls.

 the audit Committee also reviews and ensures that the financial statements are correct, sufficient and 
credible with reference, particularly, to the requirements, as enumerated under part C of Schedule II to SeBI 
(LoDr) regulations 2015, to the extent applicable.

 In order to effectively discharge its responsibilities, the audit Committee has been empowered:

•	 To	call	for	the	comments	of	the	auditors	on	the	internal	control	systems,	design	the	scope	of	audit	and	
review the observations of the auditors and also to review the financial reports, before they are submitted 
to the Board.

•	 To	discuss	any	significant	issues	/	findings	with	the	Internal	&	Statutory	Auditors	and	the	Management	of	the	
Company.

•	 To	evaluate	adequacy	of	Risk	Management	System	and	Risk	Mitigation.
•	 To	investigate	into	any	matter,	in	relation	to	the	items	referred	to	it	by	the	Board.
•	 To	have	full	access	to	the	information,	contained	in	the	records	of	the	Company.

https://www.adorwelding.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/02/Code-of-Conduct-for-Directors-Senior-Managerial-Personnels-1.pdf
https://www.adorwelding.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/02/Code-of-Conduct-for-Directors-Senior-Managerial-Personnels-1.pdf
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•	 To	seek	information	from	any	employee.
•	 To	obtain	professional	advice	from	external	sources.
•	 To	secure	attendance	of	outsiders	with	relevant	expertise	in	the	meeting,	if	it	considers	necessary.
•	 To	invite	Auditors	or	any	subject	experts,	to	the	meeting.

 Composition, Number of Meetings held and attendance:

 all the Members of the audit Committee are financially literate and bring in expertise in the fields of Finance, 
taxation and economics. During FY 2022-23 under review, 06 (six) audit Committee Meetings were held, 
i.e. on 20th May, 2022, 31st May, 2022, 11th august, 2022, 21st September, 2022, 04th November, 2022 and  
03rd February, 2023. the maximum gap between two Meetings was not more than 120 days. the requisite 
quorum was present at all the Meetings.

 the Company Secretary acts, as the Secretary of the audit Committee.

 the audit Committee bridges the gap between the Internal auditors and the Statutory auditors. the Statutory 
auditors are responsible for performing / conducting Independent audit of the Company’s Financial  
Statements and the Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting, in accordance with the 
generally accepted auditing practices and have been / are issuing reports, based on such audits, while the 
Internal auditors are responsible for checking the internal risk controls.

 the Company follows best practices in the financial reporting. the Company has been reporting, on 
quarterly basis, the Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements, as required by regulation 33 of  
SeBI (LoDr) regulations, 2015. the Company’s quarterly Unaudited Standalone and Consolidated Financial 
Statements are made available on the website www.adorwelding.com and are also uploaded on to the 
website of the Stock exchanges, where its shares are listed.

 It is the prerogative of the audit Committee to invite Senior executives, whom it considers apropos, to be 
present at any of the audit Committee Meetings, as & when required. the Internal auditors, who report  
directly to the audit Committee and the representatives of the Statutory auditors also attend the meetings of 
the audit Committee, besides the executives invited by the audit Committee, to be present thereat, if any.

 Mr. r. N. Sapru, Chairman of the audit Committee, was present at the last annual General Meeting of the 
Company held on 27th July, 2022, by Video Conferencing for addressing the queries of the shareholders.

 the composition of the audit Committee and attendance at the Meetings held in FY 2022-23 is given here 
under:

Sr. 
No.

Name of the Member position in the 
Committee

Category of 
Directorship

attendance during  
Fy 2022-23

1. Mr. r. N. Sapru Chairman Independent Director 6 of 6

2. Mr. p. K. Gupta Member Independent Director 6 of 6

3. Mr. r. a. Mirchandani Member Non-executive Director 6 of 6

4. Mr. N. S. Marshall Member Independent Director 4 of 5

 the highlights of each of the audit Committee Meetings are informed / provided to the Board of Directors and 
discussed in the Board Meeting. Subsequently, the Minutes of the audit Committee Meetings are also sent to 
the Board for noting.

 Subsequent to the financial year ended 31st March, 2023, the audit Committee meeting was held on  
30th May, 2023, wherein the audited Financial results and audited Financial Statements of the Company for 
the financial year ended 31st March, 2023, were reviewed, considered and recommended to the Board.
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4) Nomination & remuneration Committee

 Broad terms of reference / Functions of the Committee:

 the Committee is vested with all the crucial powers and authority to ensure appropriate disclosures of the 
remuneration of Directors and to deal with all the elements of remuneration packages w.r.t. all the Directors. 
the Nomination & remuneration Committee recommends to the Board, the compensation terms of the 
Directors & Senior Management. the Committee functions in line with the Nomination & remuneration 
Committee Charter, prepared in accordance with Section 178 of the Companies act, 2013 & regulation 19 
read with part D (a) of Schedule II to SeBI (LoDr) regulations 2015, adopted by the Board, which, inter alia, 
includes the following functions:

•	 Formulating	the	criteria	for	determining	qualifications,	positive	attributes	and	independence	of	the	Director.

•	 Formulating	the	criteria	for	evaluation	of	the	Independent	Directors	and	the	Board.

•	 Evaluating	balance	of	skills,	knowledge	&	experience	on	the	Board	and	prepare	a	description	of	the	role	
and capabilities required of an Independent Director.

•	 Identifying	suitable	candidates,	by	considering	/	using	the	services	of	any	external	agencies,	if	required,	
from a wide range of backgrounds, having due regard to diversity and the time commitments of the 
candidates.

•	 Devising	a	policy	on	Board	diversity.

•	 Identifying	 persons,	 who	 are	 qualified	 to	 become	 Directors	 and	 who	 may	 be	 appointed	 in	 senior	
management, in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the Board their appointment 
& removal.

•	 Ensuring	that	the	level	and	composition	of	the	remuneration	is	reasonable	&	sufficiently	good	to	attract,	
retain and motivate Directors, with the required competencies, to run the Company successfully & 
efficiently.

•	 Ensuring	that	the	relationship	of	remuneration	to	performance	is	clear	and	meets	appropriate	performance	
benchmarks.

•	 Ensuring	 that	 the	 remuneration	 of	 the	 Directors,	 Key	 Managerial	 Personnel	 and	 Senior	 Management	
involves a balance between fixed & variable pay, reflecting short and long- term performance objectives, 
appropriate to the working of the Company & its goals.

•	 Carrying	out	evaluation	of	every	Director’s	performance,	including	that	of	the	Independent	Directors.

•	 Reviewing	and	recommending	to	the	Board,	the	following:

a) appointment / re-appointment of the Whole-time Directors and the Non-executive Directors, including 
contract terms, performance criteria / targets, fees, travel and other benefits, etc.

b) “remuneration report”, in accordance with the Companies act, 2013, for inclusion in the Directors’ 
report.

c) “remuneration policy”

	 •	 for	the	Whole-time	/	Executive	Directors	and	the	Non-Executive	Directors;
	 •	 for	the	Key	Managerial	Personnel	&	Senior	Management;	and
	 •	 for	other	employees,	if	required	/	requested	by	the	Management.

d) the size, qualification and composition of the Board.
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e) Short-term incentive strategy, performance targets and bonus payments for / to the executive Directors.

•	 Reviewing	major	changes	and	developments	 in	 the	Company’s	 remuneration,	 recruitment,	 retention,	
superannuation arrangements, human resource practices and employee relations.

•	 Ensuring	that	the	Board	&	the	Management	makes	available	to	them	sufficient	information	and	external	
advice, for informed decision-making, regarding remuneration.

 Composition, Number of Meetings held and attendance:

 During FY 2022-23 under review, 02 (two) Nomination & remuneration Committee (NrC) Meetings were held 
i.e. on 05th May, 2022 and 03rd February, 2023. the requisite quorum was present at both the Meetings. the 
Company Secretary acts as the Secretary of the Nomination & remuneration Committee.

 Mr. r. N. Sapru, an Independent Director, is the Chairman of the Nomination & remuneration Committee and 
he was present at the last annual General Meeting of the Company held on 27th July, 2022, through Video 
Conferencing (VC).

 the composition of the Nomination & remuneration Committee (NrC) and the attendance at its Meeting, 
during FY 2022-23 is given hereunder:

Sr. 
No.

Name of the Member position in the 
Committee

Category of 
Directorship

attendance during  
Fy 2022-23

1. Mr. r. N. Sapru Chairman Independent Director 2 of 2

2. Mr. p. K. Gupta Member Independent Director 2 of 2

3. Mr. r. a. Mirchandani Member Non-executive Director 2 of 2

 the highlights of each of the Nomination & remuneration Committee Meetings are provided to the Board of 
Directors and discussed in the Board Meeting. Subsequently, the Minutes of the Nomination & remuneration 
Committee Meeting are also sent to the Board for its noting.

 Subsequent to the financial year ended 31st March, 2023, NrC Meeting was held on 30th May, 2023, wherein 
the remuneration to be paid to executive Directors & Senior Management, Commission to be paid to executive 
& Non-executive Directors was determined and evaluation of the performance of the Board, its Committees 
and the Directors was carried-out & discussed.

 performance evaluation:

 the Nomination & remuneration Committee, pursuant to regulation 19 read with part D (a) of Schedule II to 
SeBI (LoDr) regulations 2015, has laid down the criteria for performance evaluation of the Directors, including 
the Independent Directors, which shall be carried out for / by the entire Board of Directors.

 the evaluation is based on various parameters, as stated below:

•	 Participation	in	the	Committee	Meetings,	Board	Meetings	and	Annual	General	Meeting.

•	 Quality	of	inputs	(contribution)	in	the	Meetings.

•	 Contribution	towards	development	of	Strategies.

•	 Contribution	towards	Risk	Management	/	Mitigation.

•	 Efforts	taken	towards	acquiring	knowledge	about	the	Company	and	its	businesses.

•	 Concern	towards	the	holistic	development	of	the	Company,	short	term	as	well	as	long	term.
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 pursuant to the provisions of the act and regulation 17 of SeBI (LoDr) regulations, 2015, the Board has 
carried out the annual evaluation. the evaluation process includes performance evaluation of individual 
Directors, performance evaluation of all the Board Committees by the individual Directors and performance 
evaluation by the individual Directors of the entire Board. a structured questionnaire is prepared, covering 
various aspects of the Board’s functioning. a consolidated summary of the ratings, given by each Director 
is then prepared & presented. the report of performance evaluation is then discussed and noted by the 
Nomination & remuneration Committee and the Board. 

 remuneration policy for Directors:

 pursuant to the requirements of the Companies act, 2013 and part D(a)(1) of Schedule II to SeBI (LoDr) 
regulations 2015, the Board has, on the recommendation of the Nomination & remuneration Committee, 
framed a remuneration policy for its Directors, considering particularly the following, amongst other things:

I. remuneration to the executive Directors:

 the remuneration of the Managing / Whole-time / executive Director(s) is decided by the Nomination 
& remuneration Committee (NrC), based on the criteria such as industry benchmarks, Company’s 
performance vis-à-vis Industry performance / track record of the Managing / Whole-time / executive 
Director(s) and the same is recommended to the Board of Directors. the Company pays remuneration 
by way of salary, perquisites & allowances (fixed component) and Bonus, performance Incentive & 
Commission (variable component) upto a maximum of 1% of the net profits of the Company, specifically 
computed for this purpose, as per the provisions of Section 198 of the Companies act, 2013, to all / each 
of its Whole-time / executive Director(s), as may be recommended by NrC and approved by the Board, 
such that the total remuneration (including commission / bonus, if any), as decided by the Board of 
Directors in its absolute discretion, does not exceed the limits prescribed under Section 197 and Schedule 
V to the Companies act, 2013. In case of inadequate or no profits, remuneration is paid, subject to the 
provisions of the act and / or approval of the shareholders.

 In terms of regulation 17 (6) (e) of SeBI (LoDr) (amendment) regulations, 2018, the remuneration payable 
to the executive Directors, who are promoters or Members of promoter Group, shall be subject to the 
approval of the shareholders by way of special resolution in the annual General Meeting, if the aggregate 
annual remuneration payable to such Directors exceeds 5% of the net profits of the Company, as 
calculated under Section 198 of the Companies act, 2013, where there is more than 1 (one) such Director. 
the Board has, on the recommendation of the Nomination & remuneration Committee, approved the 
said payment exceeding 5% of the net profits of the Company, and was included in detail, in the Notice 
conveying 68th annual General Meeting for the consideration & approval of the Shareholders.

 Further, the annual increments are recommended by the Nomination & remuneration Committee within 
the salary scale of each of the executive Directors. the terms of remuneration are approved by the 
Shareholders at the annual General Meeting and are effected in the individual agreements, executed 
with the respective executive Directors.

II. remuneration to the Non-executive Directors:

 as required under Schedule V(C)(5)(b) to SeBI (LoDr) regulations 2015, the Company has uploaded the 
criteria for payment of remuneration to the Non- executive Directors onto the website of the Company, at 
the following web link: https://www.adorwelding.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/07/criteria_for_payment_
to_NeDs.pdf

https://www.adorwelding.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/07/criteria_for_payment_to_NEDs.pdf
https://www.adorwelding.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/07/criteria_for_payment_to_NEDs.pdf
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 the summary of the remuneration paid / payable to all the Directors for FY 2022–23 is given below:-

(rs. in Lakhs)

Sr. 
No.

Name of the Director Salary# Benefits 
(perquisites)

Commission Sitting Fees 
@ #

total £

1. Mrs. N. Malkani Nagpal 138.37 4.09 9.83 -- 152.29

2. Mr. a. t. Malkani 131.52 4.33 9.83 -- 145.68

3. Dr. D. a. Lalvani -- -- 9.83 -- 9.83

4. Mr. r. a. Mirchandani -- -- 9.83 -- 9.83

5. Ms. tanya H. advani -- -- 9.83 -- 9.83

6. Mr. p. K. Gupta -- -- 9.83 2.15 11.98

7. Mr. r. N. Sapru -- -- 9.83 2.40 12.23

8. Mr. K. Digvijay Singh -- -- 9.83 0.90 10.73

9. Mr. G. M. Lalwani -- -- 9.83 1.30 11.13

10. Mrs. Nita Dempo 
Mirchandani

-- -- 9.83 1.05 10.88

11. Mr. N. S. Marshall -- -- 8.45 1.20 9.65

total 269.89 8.42 106.75 9.00 394.06

# Fixed Component

@ as Member / Invitee, wherever applicable

£ excluding tDS / GSt

Notes:

•	 The	Whole	Time	Directors,	as	per	their	Agreements,	are	entitled	to	Commission	upto	1%	of	the	net	
profits of the Company, as calculated under Section 198 of the Companies act, 2013.

•	 The	Non	-	Executive	Directors	are	also	entitled	to	commission	upto	1%	of	the	net	profits	of	the	Company	
proportionately / on pro-rata basis collectively, as calculated under Section 198 of the Companies 
act, 2013.

•	 The	Agreement	with	 the	Whole	 time	Directors	 is	 for	a	period	of	03	 (three)	years.	Either	party	 to	 the	
agreement is entitled to terminate the agreement by giving 03 (three) months’ notice to the other 
party, as mentioned in the agreement.

•	 All	the	Promoter	Directors,	including	the	Executive	Chairman	&	the	Whole	–	Time	Director,	are	liable	to	
retire by rotation.

•	 According	to	the	Articles	of	Association	(AOA)	of	the	Company,	the	Managing	Director	is	not	liable	to	
retire by rotation.

•	 As	per	the	Companies	Act	2013,	none	of	the	Independent	Directors	are	liable	retire	by	rotation.

•	 The	Company	does	not	have	any	stock	option	scheme	for	its	Directors	or	employees.

•	 Severance	fees:	NIL
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5) Stakeholders relationship Committee

 Broad terms of reference / Functions of the Committee:

 the Stakeholders’ relationship Committee functions in accordance with the Charter prepared as per 
Section 178 of the act and regulation 20 read with part D of Schedule II to SeBI (LoDr) regulations, 2015.  
the Committee looks into the matters of Shareholders / Investors grievances along with other matters,  
as listed below:

•	 to	consider	and	resolve	the	grievances	of	security	holders	of	the	Company,	including	complaints	related	
to transfer / transmission of shares, non-receipt of annual report, non-receipt of dividends, issue of new / 
duplicate share certificates, etc.

•	 to	consider	and	approve	de-mat	/	re-mat	of	shares	/	split	/	consolidation	/sub-division	of	share	certificates	
etc.

•	 to	 consider	 and	 approve	 issue	 of	 share	 certificates	 (including	 issue	 of	 renewed	 or	 duplicate	 share	
certificates), transfer and transmission of securities, etc.

•	 to	review	measures	taken	by	the	Company,	for	effective	exercise	of	voting	rights	by	the	shareholders

•	 to	review	adherence	to	the	standards	adopted	by	the	Company,	 in	respect	of	various	services,	being	
rendered by the registrar & Share transfer agent (rta)

•	 to	review	the	measures	and	initiatives	taken	by	the	Company	for	reducing	the	quantum	of	unclaimed	
dividend and ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants / annual reports / statutory notices, by the 
shareholders of the Company.

 the status / summary of complaints received & replied is also reported to the Board of Directors, as an agenda 
item, in every quarterly Board Meeting and is also reported to the Stock exchanges. this information is also 
uploaded on the website of the Company. the Committee also empowers few executives of the Company, 
to process the share transfer, etc.

 Composition, Number of Meetings held and attendance:

 During FY 2022-23 under review, 2 (two) Stakeholders relationship Committee (SrC) Meetings were held,  
i.e. on 05th May, 2022 and 03rd February, 2023. the requisite quorum was present at both the Meetings.

 the Company Secretary acts as the Secretary of the Stakeholders relationship Committee.

 the composition of the Stakeholders relationship Committee and attendance at its Meetings is given 
hereunder:

Sr. 
No.

Name of the 
Member

position in the 
Committee

Category of 
Directorship

attendance during  
Fy 2022-23

1. Mr. G. M. Lalwani Chairman Non - executive & 
Independent Director

2 of 2

2. Dr. Deep a. Lalvani Member Non - executive Director 2 of 2

3. Ms. tanya H. advani Member Non - executive Director 2 of 2

 the Secretarial Department of the Company and the registrar & Share transfer agent (rta) attend to all 
the grievances of the shareholders, received directly or through SeBI, the Stock exchanges, the Ministry of 
Corporate affairs (MCa), the registrar of Companies (roC), etc.

 We strive to ensure that the grievances are more expeditiously redressed to the complete satisfaction of 
the investors. Shareholders are also requested to furnish their updated e-mail addresses to facilitate prompt 
action.
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 the Minutes of each of the Stakeholders relationship Committee Meetings are sent to the Board of Directors.

 Mr. G. M. Lalwani, an Independent Director, is the Chairperson of the Stakeholders’ relationship Committee 
and he was present at the last annual General Meeting of the Company held on 27th July, 2022, through 
Video Conferencing (VC).

 Compliance officer:

 Mr. Vinayak M. Bhide, Company Secretary, has been designated by the Board of Directors, as the Compliance 
officer.

 Details of Shareholders complaints received & replied, and the status on pending complaint(s) is given below:

•	 The	 total	 number	 of	 complaints	 received	 and	 replied,	 to	 the	 satisfaction	 of	 the	 shareholders,	 during	 
FY 2022-23 are 09 (nine).

•	 There	were	no	complaints	pending	as	on	31st March, 2023 with the Company.

•	 The	 Investors	 can	 also	 raise	 complaints	 in	 a	 centralized	 web-based	 complaints	 redressal	 system	
called “SCoreS”. the Company uploads the action taken report (atr) on the complaints raised by the 
Shareholders, on “SCoreS”, which can be viewed by the Shareholders.

•	 The	Statement	of	Directors’	Shareholding	is	as	under:

Sr. No. Name of the Director Shareholding (No. of Shares held) as on 31st March, 2023

1. Mrs. Ninotchka Malkani Nagpal 1,99,952

2. Mr. aditya t. Malkani 1,23,198

3. Dr. Deep a. Lalvani 4,419

4. Mr. ravin a. Mirchandani 8,002

5. Ms. tanya H. advani Nil

6. Mr. piyush K. Gupta Nil

7. Mr. rakesh N. Sapru Nil

8. Mr. K. Digvijay Singh Nil

9. Mrs. Nita Dempo Mirchandani Nil

10. Mr. Gaurav M. Lalwani 10

11. Mr. Navroze S. Marshall 37,800

6) Corporate Social responsibility (CSr) Committee

 Broad terms of reference / Functions of the Committee:

 the Corporate Social responsibility (CSr) Committee functions in accordance with the Charter prepared & 
approved by the Board of Directors and the terms of reference of the CSr Committee broadly comprise the 
following:

•	 Formulating	&	recommending	to	the	Board,	a	CSR	policy,	which	shall	indicate	the	activities,	that	can	be	
undertaken by the Company, pursuant to Schedule VII to the Companies act, 2013.

•	 Recommending	the	annual	budget	of	the	CSR	expenditure	/	activities,	which	indicates	the	amount	of	
expenditure to be incurred on the CSr projects / programmes.

•	 Monitoring	the	implementation	of	CSR	Policy	of	the	Company	from	time	to	time.
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•	 Setting	up	a	transparent	system	to	oversee	the	implementation	of	the	CSR	activities	/	projects	/	programmes.

•	 Recommending	to	the	Board,	the	projects,	that	can	be	considered	as	“ongoing	projects”	of	the	Company,	
at the end of every financial year, if any.

 CSr policy is formulated & approved by the Board, as mandated under the provisions of Section 135 of 
the Companies act, 2013. the CSr policy & CSr activities / initiatives carried-out during the financial year  
(FY) 2022-23 are posted onto the Company’s website on the following web-link: https://www.adorwelding.
com/wp-content/uploads/2022/05/CSr-policy-FY-2022-23.pdf

Composition, Number of Meetings held and attendance:

 the Composition of CSr Committee is in accordance with the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies 
act, 2013, read with the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility policy) rules, 2014, as amended from 
time to time.

 During FY 2022-23 under review, 2 (two) CSr Committee Meetings were held, i.e. on 05th May, 2022 and  
13th December, 2022. the requisite quorum was present at both the Meetings.

 the Company Secretary acts as the Secretary of the CSr Committee.

 the composition of the CSr Committee and attendance at its Meetings are given hereunder:

Sr. 
No.

Name of the Member position in the 
Committee

Category of Directorship attendance during 
Fy 2022-23

1. Dr. Deep a. Lalvani Chairman Non-executive Director 2 of 2

2. Mrs. N. Malkani Nagpal Member executive Chairman 2 of 2

3. Mrs. Nita Dempo 
Mirchandani

Member Non-executive & Independent 
Director

2 of 2

 the highlights of each of the CSr Committee Meetings are informed / presented to the Board of Directors and 
discussed in the Board Meetings. Subsequently, the Minutes of the CSr Committee Meetings are also sent / 
circulated to the Board its noting.

7) risk Management Committee

 Broad terms of reference / Functions of the Committee:

 In terms of regulation 21 of SeBI (LoDr) regulations, 2015, the Company has constituted a risk Management 
Committee and has risk Management Framework / Charter / policy in place, the details of which are provided 
in the Directors’ report.

 the risk Management Committee (rMC) functions in accordance with the Charter prepared in accordance 
with regulation 21 read with part D (C) of Schedule II to SeBI (LoDr) regulation 2015, approved by the Board 
of Directors and the terms of reference of rMC the broadly comprise the following:

•	 Formulating	detailed	Risk	Management	Policy,	which	 includes	framework	 for	 identification	of	 internal	&	
external risk, measures risk mitigation, Business continuity plan.

•	 Ensuring	appropriate	methodology,	 process	 and	 systems	are	 in	 place,	 to	monitor	 and	evaluate	 risks,	
associated with the business of the Company.

•	 Monitoring	 &	 overseeing	 implementation	 of	 the	 risk	 management	 policy,	 including	 evaluating	 the	
adequacy of risk management systems.

https://www.adorwelding.com/wp-content/uploads/2022/05/CSR-Policy-FY-2022-23.pdf
https://www.adorwelding.com/wp-content/uploads/2022/05/CSR-Policy-FY-2022-23.pdf
https://www.adorwelding.com/wp-content/uploads/2022/05/CSR-Policy-FY-2022-23.pdf
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•	 Reviewing	the	risk	management	policy,	at	least	once	in	every	02	(two)	years,	including	by	considering	the	
changing industry dynamics and evolving complexity.

•	 Keeping	the	Board	of	Directors	informed	about	the	nature	and	content	of	its	discussions,	recommendations	
& actions, to be taken.

•	 Reviewing	the	appointment,	removal	&	remuneration	of	the	Chief	Risk	Officer	(if	appointed).

 Composition, Number of Meetings held and attendance

 During FY 2022-23 under review, 2 (two) risk Management Committee meetings were held i.e. on  
05th May, 2022 & 04th November, 2022. the requisite quorum was present at both the Meetings.

 the risk Management Committee was constituted by the Board of Directors at its Meeting held on  
28th May, 2021 with immediate effect, as per the requirement of SeBI (LoDr) regulations, 2015.

 the composition of the risk Management Committee and the attendance at its Meetings, during the  
FY 2022-23 is given hereunder:

Sr. 
No.

Name of the Member position in the 
Committee

Category of 
Directorship

attendance during  
Fy 2022-23

1. Mr. Gaurav M. Lalwani Chairman Non – executive 
& Independent 
Director

2 of 2

2. Mrs. Ninotchka Malkani Nagpal Member executive Chairman 2 of 2

3. Mr. Surya Kant Sethia Member Chief Financial 
officer (CFo)

2 of 2

 a detailed risk Management policy has been formulated & approved by the 
Board, as mandated under regulation 21 of SeBI (LoDr) regulations, 2015. the risk 
Management policy is posted onto the Company’s website at the following web-link:  
https://www.adorwelding.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/07/risk-Management-policy.pdf

 the highlights of each of rMC, Meetings are informed / presented at the Board Meeting and key risks  
highlighted by rMC, are discussed thereat. Subsequently, the Minutes of rMC Meetings are also sent to the 
Board for noting.

8) General Body Meetings

 Location & time of the last 03 (three) annual General Meetings of the Company is given below:

Sr. 
No.

Financial year Date Location time

1. 2021-22 27th July, 2022 through Video Conferencing (VC), deemed to 
be held at the registered office of the Company

11:00 am

2. 2020-21 12th august, 2021 through Video Conferencing (VC), deemed to 
be held at the registered office of the Company

11:00 am

3. 2019-20 22nd September, 2020 through Video Conferencing (VC), deemed to 
be held at the registered office of the Company

11:00 am

 all the special resolutions, moved in the previous 03 (three) annual General Meetings were passed by the 
majority of the Members present & voted at the Meeting / remotely e-voted before the Meeting and there 
was 01 (one) special resolution in last aGM of FY 2021-22.

https://www.adorwelding.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/07/Risk-Management-Policy.pdf
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 During the financial year under review, there was no special resolution passed through postal Ballot.

 the summary of outflow on account of Dividends & Dividend tax for the last 10 (ten) years along with the 
percentage & type of Dividend is given below:

Sr. 
No

Financial 
year

Dividend 
(%)

type of 
Dividend

Dividend 
outflow 
(rs. in 
lakhs)

Dividend 
tax 

outflow 
(rs. in 
lakhs)

total 
outflow 
(rs. in 
lakhs)

profit after 
tax (pat) 
(rs. in 
lakhs)

% of 
Dividend 

& tax 
outflow to 

pat

a B C D e F G = (e+F) H I = (G/H)%

1 2021-22 125 Final 1,546.34 153.50 1,699.84 4,519.00 37.62

2 2020-21 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

3 2019-20 65 Interim 883.90 181.73 1,065.63 2,877.00 37.04

4 2018-19 65 Final 883.90 181.73 1,065.63 2,385.00 44.68

5 2017-18 50 Final 679.92 138.42 818.34 1,856.00 44.09

6 2016-17 50 Final 679.92 138.42 818.34 1,812.00 45.16

7 2015-16 50 Final 679.92 138.42 818.34 2,264.76 36.13

8 2014-15 50 Final 679.92 138.42 818.34 3,237.32 25.28

9 2013-14 50 Final 679.92 115.55 795.47 422.70 188.19

10 2012-13 60 Final 815.91 132.36 948.27 1,908.02 49.70

9) Independent Directors Meeting and Familiarization programme for the Independent Directors

 the Independent Directors of the Company have been appointed in accordance with the provisions of 
Section 149 of the Companies act, 2013 and applicable provisions of SeBI (LoDr) regulations, 2015.

 pursuant to Schedule IV to the Companies act, 2013, every Independent Director has been issued a letter 
of appointment, containing the terms and conditions of his / her appointment. the terms and conditions 
of appointment have been posted on the website of the Company at https://www.adorwelding.com/wp-
content/uploads/2021/07/terms_and_conditions_of_appointment_of_independent_Directors2019.pdf

9.1) Independent Directors’ Meeting:

 During the financial year under review, the Independent Directors met on Friday, 03rd February, 2023, 
without the attendance of Non-independent Directors and the Members of the Management, inter alia, 
to discuss the following:

•	 Evaluate	 /	 review	 the	 performance	 of	 Non-Independent	 Directors	 and	 the	 Board	 of	 Directors,	 as	 
a whole.

•	 Evaluate	/	review	the	performance	of	the	Executive	Chairman	of	the	Company,	taking	into	consideration	
the views of other executive, Non- executive & Independent Directors.

•	 Assess	the	quality,	quantity	and	timeline	of	flow	of	information	between	the	Company	Management	
and the Board, that / which is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform its duties.

 all the Independent Directors attended the meeting through the electronic mode of video conferencing. 
the Independent Directors thereafter briefed the Board on their suggestions / outcome of their meeting.

https://www.adorwelding.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/07/terms_and_conditions_of_appointment_of_independent_Directors2019.pdf
https://www.adorwelding.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/07/terms_and_conditions_of_appointment_of_independent_Directors2019.pdf
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9.2) Familiarization program for Independent Directors:

 pursuant to regulation 25 (7) of SeBI (Listing obligations and Disclosure requirements) regulations 2015, 
the Company carries out Familiarization program for the Independent Directors w.r.t. nature of the industry, 
in which the Company operates, business model of the Company, etc., through which the Independent 
Directors are briefed on the affairs & operations of the Company and their roles / responsibilities thereon. 
the methodology of the Familiarization program is uploaded on the Company’s website at the following 
web link: https://www.adorwelding.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/02/Familiarization-programme-for-
Independent-Director-2.pdf

9.3) Materially significant related party transactions (rpts):

 all transactions entered into with the related parties, as defined under the act and regulation 23 of SeBI 
(LoDr) regulations, 2015, during the financial year, were on arms’ length basis and were in compliance 
with the requirements of the provisions of Section 188 of the act. related party transactions have been 
disclosed under significant accounting policies and notes forming part of the Financial Statements in 
accordance with “IND aS”. a statement, in summary form, of transactions with related parties in ordinary 
course of business and arms’ length basis is periodically placed before the audit committee, for their 
review and recommended to the Board, for their approval.

 During FY 2022-23 under review, there were no materially significant related party transactions (rpts) of 
the Company executed with its promoters, Directors or the Senior Management personnel or their relatives, 
as well as its subsidiaries, etc., that had a potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large.  
all the transactions were on arms’ length basis and had no potential conflict with the interest of the 
Company at large and were carried out on an arms’ length or fair value basis.

9.4) policy for entering into related party transactions:

 all transactions entered into with the related parties, as defined under the Companies act, 2013 and 
regulation 23 of SeBI (LoDr) regulations, 2015, during the financial year were in the ordinary course of 
business and on arms’ length basis & did not attract the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies act, 
2013. there were no materially significant transactions with the related parties, during the financial year, 
that had potential conflict with the interests of the Company at large. related party transactions are 
disclosed in Note No. 51 to the Financial Statements.

 the Company has formulated “related party transactions policy”, as required under the 
provisions of the Companies act, 2013 & regulation 23 (1) of SeBI (LoDr) regulations, 
2015, and the same is uploaded on the Company’s website at the following web link:  
https://www.adorwelding.com/wp-content/uploads/2022/05/rpt-Materiality-policy-2022-23.pdf

 a statement in summary form of transactions with related parties is periodically / quarterly placed before 
the audit Committee & the Board for their review. omnibus approvals are obtained for transactions, which 
are repetitive in nature. transactions entered into, pursuant to omnibus approvals, were placed before the 
audit Committee for its review, during the year.

 Material Subsidiaries:

 the Minutes of the Board Meetings of the Subsidiary Company, along with the details of related party 
transactions and arrangements entered into by the Subsidiary Company are shared with the Board of 
Directors on a quarterly basis. the financial statements of the Subsidiary Companies are also presented to 
the audit Committee.

 pursuant to regulation 16(1)(c) of SeBI (LoDr) regulations 2015, a policy for determining ‘material’ 
subsidiaries has been adopted by the Company, and the same is uploaded on the Company’s website 
at following web link: https://www.adorwelding.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/07/policy-for-determining-
Material-Subsidiary.pdf

https://www.adorwelding.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/02/Familiarization-Programme-for-Independent-Director-2.pdf
https://www.adorwelding.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/02/Familiarization-Programme-for-Independent-Director-2.pdf
https://www.adorwelding.com/wp-content/uploads/2022/05/RPT-Materiality-Policy-2022-23.pdf
https://www.adorwelding.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/07/Policy-for-determining-Material-Subsidiary.pdf
https://www.adorwelding.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/07/Policy-for-determining-Material-Subsidiary.pdf
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9.5) Details of non-compliance by the Company, penalties and strictures imposed on the Company by the 
Stock exchanges or the Securities & exchange Board of India (SeBI) or any authority on any matter related 
to capital markets during the last three (03) financial years.

 the Company has generally complied with all the known rules & regulations prescribed by the Stock 
exchanges, where the shares of the Company are listed, the Securities & exchange Board of India (SeBI), 
the Ministry of Corporate affairs (MCa) and all other statutory authorities relating to the capital markets 
during the last three (03) financial years. there were no instances of levy of any penalties or strictures on 
the Company.

9.6) Vigil Mechanism - Whistle Blower policy:

 pursuant to Section 177(9) and (10) of the act and regulation 22 of SeBI (LoDr) regulations, 2015, the 
Company has established Vigil Mechanism–cum–Whistle Blower policy, to enable its Directors, employees 
& Stakeholders to report the instances of any unethical / improper activity in the Company. the mechanism 
provides for adequate safeguards against victimization of employees, Directors & stakeholders, who use 
such mechanism. the said policy is uploaded on the Company’s website, on the following web link:

 For Stakeholders-

 https://www.adorwelding.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/07/Mechanism-For-Whistle-Blower-For-
Stakeholders11.pdf

 For Directors & employees-

 https://www.adorwelding.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/07/Whistle-Blower-for-employees-Directors2019.
pdf

 No person is denied access to the Chairman of the audit Committee, under the said policy.

9.7) Statutory audit Fees:

 the Statutory auditors of the Company, M/s. Walker Chandiok & Co. LLp, Chartered accountants, Mumbai 
are being paid a total fees of rs. 38.00 Lakhs plus out of pocket expenses at actuals and GSt / taxes, as 
applicable, at actuals, for carrying out the Statutory audit, Limited review and tax audit of the Company 
for FY 2022-23.

10) Means of Communication

10.1.) the Company regularly publishes its Quarterly / Half-yearly & annual Financial results in newspapers, viz. 
Business Standard (english) & Mumbai Sakal (Marathi) and simultaneously uploads them onto the website 
of the Company: https://www.adorwelding.com/. Hence, the financial results are not sent / posted to 
the shareholders residence. the annual report is e-mailed to those Shareholders, whose e-mail IDs are 
registered with the Company / rta / Dp and posted / sent / couriered to balance / other shareholders, 
who either do not have e-mail IDs or whose e-mail IDs are not registered with the Company / rta / Dp,  
(except for 67th annual report for FY 2019-20, 68th annual report for FY 2020-21, 69th annual report for 
FY 2021-22 & 70th annual report for FY 2022-23) or who have specifically requested for a physical copy. 
the Company has a designated e-mail id: investorservices@adorians.com exclusively for investor 
relation, and the same is prominently displayed on the Company’s website www.adorwelding.com.  
a separate dedicated section under “Investors”, on the Company’s website gives information on unclaimed 
dividends, shareholding pattern, quarterly / half yearly results and other relevant information of interest to 
the investors / public.

https://www.adorwelding.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/07/Mechanism-For-Whistle-Blower-For-Stakeholders11.pdf
https://www.adorwelding.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/07/Mechanism-For-Whistle-Blower-For-Stakeholders11.pdf
https://www.adorwelding.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/07/Mechanism-For-Whistle-Blower-For-Stakeholders11.pdf

https://www.adorwelding.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/07/Whistle-Blower-for-Employees-Directors2019.pdf
https://www.adorwelding.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/07/Whistle-Blower-for-Employees-Directors2019.pdf


5970th Annual Report 2022-23

Corporate proFILe Statutory report FINaNCIaLS

10.2) as a part of Green Initiative, the Members who wish to receive the notices / documents through e-mail, may 
kindly intimate their e-mail addresses to the Company at investorservices@adorians.com

10.3) Schedule of investors & / or analysts meet, the presentation made to the institutional investors & / or 
analysts, audio / video recording & transcript of the analysts meet is intimated to / uploaded onto the Stock 
exchanges, within the prescribed time period, specified under SeBI (LoDr) regulations, 2015 and also 
hosted on the Company’s website.

10.4) the Management Discussion & analysis (MDa) report is an integral part of the annual report. (refer annexure 
IV to the Directors’ report).

10.5) General Shareholder Information

Day, Date and time of annual General Meeting Wednesday, 09th august, 2023 at 11:00 am

Venue of the annual General Meeting through VC, pursuant to MCa circulars

Financial Year (FY) 01st april, 2022 – 31st March, 2023

Cut-off date for e-voting Wednesday, 02rd august, 2023

Financial reporting Calendar for FY 2023–24 Financial (unaudited) reporting for the quarter 
ending June 2023 – by 14th august, 2023

Financial (unaudited) reporting for the quarter 
ending September 2023 – by 14th November, 2023

Financial (unaudited) reporting for the quarter 
ending December 2023 – by 14th February, 2024

Financial (audited) reporting for the financial year 
ending March 2024 – by 30th May, 2024

Investor education and protection Fund (IepF):

•	 During	FY	2022-23,	the	unclaimed	dividend	amount	of	Rs.	17,46,250/-,	pertaining	to	the	Dividend	for	 
FY 2014-15 was transferred to IepF.

•	 During	FY	2022-23,	15,255	Equity	Shares,	on	which	dividend	had	remained	unclaimed	for	a	period	of	
07 (seven) consecutive years, were transferred to IepF authority.

•	 Before	transferring	the	unclaimed	dividends	to	IEPF,	letters	are	sent	to	those	Members,	whose	unclaimed	
dividends are due for transfer, to enable them to claim the dividends before the due date for such 
transfer. the details of unclaimed / unpaid dividends are available on the website of the Company.

•	 During	 FY	 2023-24,	 about	 18,510	 Equity	 Shares,	 on	 which	 dividend	 shall	 remain	 unclaimed	 for	 
a period of 07 (seven) consecutive years, will be liable to be transferred to IepF authority on or before  
05th october, 2023, unless Dividend is claimed on these shares till the date of transfer.
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•	 Year	wise	amount	of	unpaid	/	unclaimed	dividend	lying	in	the	unpaid	Divided	account	up	to	the	financial	
year ended 31st March, 2023 and the corresponding shares, which are liable to be transferred to IepF, is 
given below:

Sr. 
No.

Financial 
year

amount of unclaimed 
dividend (rs.)

No. of shares on which 
dividend is unclaimed

remarks

1. 2021-22 17,47,344 1,50,305 If the dividend remains 
unclaimed for a period 

of 7 consecutive years (till 
01st october, 2023), then 

unclaimed dividend / 
corresponding shares will be 

transferred to IepF

2. 2020-21 NIL NIL
3. 2019-20 13,68,973 2,10,415
4. 2018-19 12,45,522 1,91,576
5. 2017-18 11,40,695 2,28,139
6. 2016-17 19,30,785 3,86,157
7. 2015-16 18,79,125 3,75,825

 

Credit rating:
 pursuant to SeBI (LoDr) regulations, 2015, the details of credit rating obtained by the Company from Care 

& CrISIL for all its outstanding instruments, as on 31st March, 2023 are enumerated below:

•	 Long	Term	Credit	Facilities:	CARE	A+;	Stable	(Single	A	Plus;	Outlook:	Stable)
•	 Short	Term	Credit	Facilities:	CARE	A1+	(A	One	Plus)
  Further, the details of credit rating obtained by the Company from CrISIL rating, for all its outstanding 

instruments, as on 31st March, 2023 are enumerated below:
•	 Long	Term	Credit	Facilities:	CRISIL	A+/	Stable	(Single	A	Plus;	Outlook:	Stable)
•	 Short	Term	Credit	Facilities:	CRISIL	A1	(A	One)
  the detailed information of credit rating is uploaded on the website of the Company, at the following 

web-link: https://www.adorwelding.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/04/Credit-rating-For-ador-Welding-
Limited-1.pdf

Listing:
the Stock exchanges, on which the Company’s securities are listed and the Company’s corresponding 
Stock Code / symbol is as under:

Name of the Stock exchange address Stock Code / Symbol

BSe Limited, Mumbai phiroze Jeejeebhoy towers, 01st Floor, Dalal 
Street, Fort, Mumbai - 400 001.

517041

the National Stock exchange of 
India Limited (NSe), Mumbai

exchange plaza, C - 1, Block G, Bandra - Kurla 
Complex, Bandra (east), Mumbai - 400 051.

aDorWeLD

International Securities Identification Number (ISIN):

ISIN is an identification number for traded shares. this number needs to be quoted in each transaction 
relating to the dematerialized equity shares of the Company. Your Company’s ISIN number, for its equity 
shares, is INe045a01017.

annual Listing Fees and Custodial Fees:
the annual listing fees and custodial fees for the financial year 2023-24 has been paid by the Company 
within the stipulated timeline.

https://www.adorwelding.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/04/Credit-Rating-For-Ador-Welding-Limited-1.pdf
https://www.adorwelding.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/04/Credit-Rating-For-Ador-Welding-Limited-1.pdf
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Market price Data:

Market price data, during each month of FY 2022-23, is given hereunder:

INDeX BSe NSe

Month High 
(rs.)

Low 
(rs.)

No. of 
Shares

No. of 
trades

High 
(rs.)

Low  
(rs.)

No. of 
Shares

No. of 
trades

april, 2022 718.90 625.85 22,600 2,504 737.60 616.00 3,99,189 25,469

May, 2022 734.00 595.00 18,715 2,589 710.00 595.00 2,58,863 18,808

June, 2022 698.60 589.80 34,416 2,505 700.00 589.50 3,05,045 22,035

July, 2022 812.90 643.95 48,244 8,979 812.30 644.70 7,28,756 67,793

august, 2022 964.75 751.20 65,444 12,685 965.00 750.00 9,12,090 80,190

September, 2022 1038.00 870.00 93,147 19,078 1,037.80 870.00 10,38,079 1,11,192

october, 2022 918.20 841.75 20,342 5,092 919.00 842.00 2,10,768 26,939

November, 2022 933.90 773.50 42,235 8,749 930.00 772.00 4,57,564 54,297

December, 2022 888.55 758.00 21,833 4,221 889.80 753.90 3,01,168 28,492

January, 2023 884.00 778.75 10,396 2,106 885.95 777.00 2,38,195 27,422

February, 2023 919.00 794.45 25,888 4,041 913.00 794.00 4,55,991 43,324

March, 2023 955.00 804.85 29,254 6,468 956.85 808.15 5,78,222 62,153
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registrar & Share transfer agent:

the name of the registrar & Share transfer agent (rta) of the Company is:

•	 M/s.	Link	Intime	India	Pvt.	Ltd.

the share transfer is handled by the Company’s rta at the following address:

•	 M/s. Link Intime India pvt. Ltd.
 C 101, 247 park, L.B.S. Marg,
 Vikhroli (West), Mumbai – 400 083,
 Maharashtra, India
 tel: +91 22 4918 6000
 Website: www.linkintime.co.in
 e-mail: rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in

Share transfer System:

Shares lodged for physical transfer (in the nature of transmission or Name Deletion or transposition) with rta 
of the Company are normally processed within a period of 15 days from the date of lodgment, provided 
the documents are in order / clear in all respects. all requests for de-materialization of shares are also 
processed and the confirmation is given by rta to the depositories within 15 days. the Company Secretary 
and a couple of Senior executives of the Company are empowered to approve the share transfers.

Grievances and other miscellaneous correspondence on / with respect to change of address, bank 
mandates, NeCS etc. received from the Members, are generally processed by rta of the Company, within 
07 (seven) working days.

Distribution of shareholding as on 31st March, 2023:

Sr. 
No.

range of 
Shareholding

No. of 
Shareholders

% of total 
Shareholders

No. of Shares 
Held

% of total 
Shareholding

1. 1-100 14,065 71.43 4,19,594 3.09

2. 101-200 2,296 11.66 3,60,247 2.65

3. 201-500 2,403 12.20 7,19,540 5.29

4. 501-1,000 454 2.31 3,44,286 2.53

5. 1,001-5,000 360 1.83 8,07,223 5.94

6. 5,001-10,000 51 0.26 3,84,208 2.83

7. 10,001-1,00,000 50 0.25 13,36,611 9.83

8. 1,00,001 and above 12 0.06 92,26,758 67.85

total 19,691 100.00 1,35,98,467 100.00
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Shareholding pattern (category wise) as on 31st March, 2023:

Sr. 
No.

Category No. of Shares Held % of total Shareholding

1. promoters 77,38,162 56.90

2. Mutual Funds 4,06,090 2.99

3. Banks & Financial Institutions (FIIs) 582 0.00

4. Foreign portfolio Investors 43,034 0.32

6. NrIs 2,45,997 1.81

7. Foreign nationals 1,182 0.01

8. trusts 1,000 0.01

9. Investor education and protection Fund (IepF) 2,54,582 1.87

10. HUFs 5,26,572 3.87

11. private Corporate Bodies & LLps 4,26,376 3.14

12. resident Individuals 39,50,280 29.05

13. Clearing Members 4,610 0.03

total 1,35,98,467 100.00

De-materialization of Shares and Liquidity:

•	 1,31,95,694	Equity	shares	of	the	Company,	representing	about	97.04%	(NSDL	87.15%	&	CDSL	12.84%)
of the total shares of the Company, have been dematerialized as on 31st March, 2023.

•	 Trading	 in	 the	shares	of	ADOR	WELDING	LIMITED	 is	permitted	only	 in	de-materialized	 form	with	effect	
from 08th May, 2000 and the said shares are available for trading on both the depositories of India, i.e.  
M/s. National Securities Depository Ltd. (NSDL) & M/s. Central Depository Services (India) Ltd. (CDSL).

 reconciliation of Share Capital audit report

 as stipulated by SeBI, a qualified practicing Company Secretary carries out Share Capital audit to reconcile 
the total admitted capital with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository  
Services (India) Limited (CDSL) with the total issued and listed capital. this audit is carried out in every 
quarter and the report thereon is submitted to the Stock exchanges, where the Company’s shares are listed.  
the audit confirms that the total Listed and paid-up Share Capital is in agreement with the aggregate of the 
total number of shares in dematerialized form (held with NSDL and CDSL) and the total number of shares 
held in physical form.

 Statutory Compliance:

 During FY 2022-23 under review, the Company has generally complied with all the applicable provisions, 
filed all returns, forms, etc. & furnished all the relevant particulars, as required under the Companies act, 
2013, to the extent notified and other allied acts / rules and the Securities & exchange Board of India (SeBI) 
regulations.

 outstanding GDr / aDr / Warrants or any convertible instruments, conversion date and its impact on 
equity: NIL

 Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and hedging activities:
 the Company takes ‘forward cover’ of appropriate amount and hedges its ForeX exposure, whenever 

necessary / required. the Company does not hedge in commodity prices.
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 plant Locations:
 the Company has the following manufacturing plants as of 31st March, 2023:

raipur plant Silvassa plant
Industrial estate, Bilaspur road, Birgaon,  

raipur - 493 221, Chattisgarh, India
Survey No. 59/11/1, Khanvel road, opp. Gulf oil, 
Masat, Silvassa - 396 230, Ut of Dadra & Nagar 

Haveli, India

Chinchwad plant
Survey No. 147/2B, akurdi, Near Khandoba Mandir,  
Chinchwad, pune - 411 019, Maharashtra, India

address for Correspondence:
ador Welding Limited
ador House, 4th Floor, 6, K. Dubash Marg, Fort, Mumbai - 400 001-16, Maharashtra, India.

Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (prevention, prohibition and 
redressal) act, 2013
the details of number of complaints filed, disposed-off, during the year and pending as on 31st March, 
2023 have been provided in the Directors’ report.

Disclosure on Compliance
the Company has complied with all the mandatory corporate governance requirements under SeBI (LoDr) 
regulations, 2015. the Company confirms compliance with corporate governance requirements specified 
in regulation 17 to 27 and sub-regulation (2) of regulation 46 of SeBI (LoDr) regulations, 2015.

Disclosure on accounting treatment in preparation of Financial Statements
the Company has prepared financial statements in accordance with Indian accounting Standards (“Ind 
aS”), notified under the Companies (Indian accounting Standards) rules, 2015 and relevant amendment 
rules issued thereafter.

Disclosures with respect to demat suspense account / unclaimed suspense account
In accordance with the requirements of SeBI Circular No. SeBI/Ho/MIrSD/MIrSD_rtaMB/p/CIr/2022/8 
dated 25th January, 2022, the Company has opened a Suspense escrow Demat account with the Dp for 
transfer of shares lying unclaimed for more than 120 days from the date of issue of Letter of Confirmation 
to the shareholders in lieu of physical share certificate(s), to enable them to make a request to Dp for 
dematerialising their shares.
During the year under review, none of the shares has been transferred to Suspense escrow Demat account.

B) Non Mandatory requirements:
	 •	 Chairman of the Board:
  the Company has an executive Chairman and hence the requirement pertaining to reimbursement of 

expenses to a Non-executive Chairman does not arise.

	 •	 Shareholders rights:
  as the Company’s financial results are published in english newspaper having a wide circulation all 

over India and in a Marathi newspaper widely circulated in Mumbai (Maharashtra), the same are not 
sent individually to the shareholders of the Company. the Company’s quarterly / half yearly / annual 
Financial results are posted onto the Company’s website.
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	 •	 audit Qualifications:
  there are no qualifications in the auditor’s report.

	 •	 Separate posts for Chairman & Ceo:
  the Company has separate posts of Chairman (executive), being Mrs. Ninotchka Malkani Nagpal and 

the Managing Director (MD), being Mr. aditya tarachand Malkani.

	 •	 Modified opinion(s) in audit report:
  there are no modified opinions in the audit report for FY 2022-23.

	 •	 training of the Board Members:
  the necessary training will be provided to the Board Members, as & when required.

	 •	 reporting of the Internal auditors:
  In accordance with the provisions of Section 138 of the act, M/s. Kirtane & pandit, LLp., Chartered 

accountants, pune, were appointed as the Internal auditors of the Company for the financial year 
2022-23, to conduct the Internal audit w.r.t. all its plants, sales offices and Head (registered) office, as 
per the scope approved by the audit Committee. the internal auditor reports to the audit Committee. 
Quarterly internal audit reports are submitted to the audit Committee, which reviews the audit reports 
and suggests necessary action, if any / required.

  a certificate from a Company Secretary in practice stating / confirming that none of the Directors on 
the Board of the Company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing 
as Directors of Companies by the Board / the Ministry of Corporate affairs (MCa) or any such statutory 
authority, is annexed herewith, as a part of the report.

  the auditor’s Certificate on Corporate Governance obtained from M/s. N. L. Bhatia & associates, 
practicing Company Secretaries (Firm registration No. p1996MH055800) for compliance with SeBI 
(Listing obligations and Disclosure requirements) regulations, 2015, is annexed to the report.

For and on behalf of the Board

Ninotchka Malkani Nagpal
place: Mumbai executive Chairman
Date: 30th May, 2023 (DIN: 00031985)

Declaration by the Managing Director pursuant to regulation 34(3) & Schedule V –  
part D of SeBI (Listing obligations & Disclosure requirements) regulations, 2015

as the Managing Director of M/s. ador Welding Limited and as required pursuant to regulation 34(3) and 
Schedule V - part D of SeBI (Listing obligations and Disclosure requirements) regulations, 2015, I hereby declare 
that all the Members of the Board of Directors and Senior Management personnel of ador Welding Limited have 
affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct of the Board of Directors & Senior Management, adopted by the 
Company, for FY 2022-23.

For and on behalf of the Board

aditya t. Malkani
place: Mumbai Managing Director
Date: 30th May, 2023 (DIN: 01585637)
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CertIFICate oN Corporate GoVerNaNCe

to

tHe MeMBerS oF aDor WeLDING LIMIteD

We have examined all the relevant records of M/s. ador Welding Limited (“the Company”) for the purpose of 
certifying compliance of the conditions of the Corporate Governance under Chapter IV to the Securities and 
exchange Board of India (Listing obligations and Disclosure requirements) regulations, 2015 (“LoDr regulations”) 
for the period from april 1, 2022 to March 31, 2023. We have obtained all the information and explanations, which 
to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of certification.

the compliance of conditions of the Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. our 
examination was limited to procedures and implementation process adopted by the Company for ensuring the 
compliance of the conditions of the Corporate Governance. this certificate is neither an audit nor an expression 
of opinion on the Financial Statement of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations and information furnished to 
us, we certify that the Company has complied with all the conditions of Corporate Governance, as stipulated in 
the said LoDr regulations.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company, nor the 
efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

        

  For M/s N. L. Bhatia & associates
practising Company Secretaries

uIN: p1996MH055800
peer review No.: 700/2020

Bharat Upadhyay
partner

FCS: 5436
Date: 30th May, 2023 Cp. No. 4457
place: Mumbai  uDIN: F005436e000418167
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to the Members of M/s. aDor WeLDING LIMIteD

I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of  
M/s. aDor WeLDING LIMIteD, having CIN: L70100MH1951pLC008647 and having registered office at ador 
House, 6, K. Dubash Marg, Fort, Mumbai – 400 001 -16 (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), produced 
before me by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with regulation 34(3) read 
with Schedule V para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities and exchange Board of India (Listing obligations and 
Disclosure requirements) regulations, 2015.

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including Directors Identification 
Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to me 
by the Company & its officers, I hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated 
/ listed below for the Financial Year ending on 31st March, 2023 have been debarred or disqualified from being 
appointed or continuing as Directors of the Company, by the Securities and exchange Board of India (SeBI), the 
Ministry of Corporate affairs (MCa) or any such other Statutory / regulatory authority.

Sr. No. Name of Director(s) DIN Date of appointment in Company
1. Ninotchka Malkani Nagpal 00031985 03/10/1997
2. aditya tarachand Malkani 01585637 27/07/2007
3. Deep ashda Lalvani 01771000 27/07/2007
4. ravin ajit Mirchandani 00175501 28/07/2006
5. tanya Halina advani 08586636 19/11/2019
6. piyush Kumar Gupta 00963094 27/10/2006
7. rakesh Narain Sapru 02332414 19/10/2008
8. Kunwar Digvijay Singh 00004607 01/02/2009
9. Gaurav Lalwani Mohan 06928792 10/11/2014

10. Nita Dempo Mirchandani 01103973 01/04/2020
11. Navroze Shiamak Marshall 00085754 21/05/2022

ensuring the eligibility for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the 
Management of the Company. our responsibility is to express an opinion on these, based on our verification. this 
certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness 
with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Hemanshu Kapadia & associates
practicing Company Secretaries

Hemanshu Kapadia
proprietor

C.p. No. 2285
Membership No.: F3477

uDIN: F003477e000586554 
pr No. 1620/2021

place: Mumbai

CertIFICate oF NoN-DISQuaLIFICatIoN oF DIreCtorS
[pursuant to regulation 34(3) and Schedule V para C clause (10)(i) of the SeBI (Listing obligations and 

Disclosure requirements) regulations, 2015]
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Declaration by the Managing Director pursuant to regulation 17(8)  
of SeBI (Listing obligations and Disclosure requirements) regulations, 2015

We, aditya t. Malkani, Managing Director and Surya Kant Sethia, Chief Financial officer, do hereby certify to the 
Board that:-

a. We have reviewed financial statements as at 31st March, 2023 and the cash flow statement for the year 
ended on that date and to the best of their knowledge and belief:

i. the said statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain 
statements that might be misleading;

ii. the said statements together present a true and fair view of the listed entity’s affairs and are in compliance 
with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

B. there are, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the listed entity during the 
year which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s Code of Conduct.

C. We accept the responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and 
that we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial 
reporting and we have disclosed, to the auditors & to the audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or 
operation of such internal controls, if any, of which they are aware and the steps they have taken or propose 
to take to rectify these deficiencies.

D. We have indicated to the auditors and to the audit Committee that:

i. there have not been any significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year;

ii. there have not been any significant changes in accounting policies during the year;

iii. there have been no instances of significant fraud, of which we have become aware and involvement 
therein, if any, of the Management or an employee having a significant role in the Company’s control 
system over financial reporting.

               For aDor WeLDING LIMIteD  

 aditya t. Malkani Surya Kant Sethia
 Managing Director   Chief Financial officer
 DIN: 01585637

place: Mumbai
Mumbai: 30th May, 2023
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aNNeXure IV - to tHe DIreCtorS’ report

MaNaGeMeNt DISCuSSIoN & aNaLySIS report

oVerVIeW

For over 70 (seventy) years, we have been 
serving clients in India and around the world with  
end-to-end welding & cutting products and solutions. 
What makes us unique, is our willingness to make that 
extra effort for “Creating the best welding experience” 
to our customers.

our goal is to form a sustainable organization that 
meets the needs of the welding community, while 
providing jobs for our citizens and generating wealth 
for our stakeholders. achieving these goals is not simple 
and we face many obstacles. We have addressed 
some of these challenges in this report’s “risk Factors” 
section.

INDuStry StruCture aND DeVeLopMeNtS

the Welding Industry forms the backbone of the 
manufacturing sector, which is expected @ 17% 
of GDp. Welding is critical for many manufacturing 
processes and the quality of welding has a direct 
impact on the quality of the final product.

the last financial year 2022-23 (FY23) commenced 
with strong expectations of economic growth, after the 
massive disruptions witnessed, in the previous years,  
due to impact of CoVID. the impact of CoVID 
continued to be felt during the initial part of FY23. 
Global developments led to supply chain interruptions 
throughout the year with longer lead times and 
higher costs on imports. Strong inflationary trends 
were witnessed even in locally sourced raw materials, 
driven by a surge in Steel prices throughout the year.  
the Company continued to focus on product mix 
and cost reductions to sustain growth and profitability. 
Capital goods segment witnessed some revival in 
activity over the previous years. New product launches 
continued to show encouraging results. the Company 
witnessed reasonably stable market conditions, despite 
the volatilities, to achieve growth in sales and profits.

Significant growth in the manufacturing industries is 
boosting the market’s outlook. In line with this, rising 
demand for welding consumables in the energy 

sector is fuelling market expansion. other factors, 
such as, extensive growth in the automotive industry 
and various technological advancements, such as 
the use of dissimilar metal welding via fibre lasers in 
the production of electric cars, are expected to drive 
the market further in the country. Furthermore, the 
Indian welding equipment and consumables market 
is expected to benefit from the growth of the railway 
industry and the mining industry in India.

We have a sizable market share in both, the 
consumable and equipment markets, and we are 
market pioneers in a variety of goods & geographies. 
We wish to cater to all the customer needs, with our 
solutions and products under one roof, through our 
Welding & Cutting automation (WCa) division.

Gross Capital Formation, which represents net 
investments in Fixed assets, stood at rs. 51.23 Lakh 
Crore (US$ 694.70 billion) in Q1 of FY 2022-23. the 
Government of India aims to increase the share of 
manufacturing in GDp to around 25% from 17%. all 
this augurs well for the welding industry, which can be 
expected to grow @ CaGr of around 8-9%, over the 
period.

opportuNItIeS aND tHreatS

the Indian Welding equipment & Consumables market 
is expected to grow at more than 7% CaGr from 
the year 2023 to 2028. India has a large population, 
which has led to an increase in demand for housing, 
healthcare and transportation. this has led to an 
increase in demand for welding equipment and 
consumables in various industries. Furthermore, with 
the increasing competition in the market, end-users are 
now focusing on the quality of welding equipment and 
consumables. this has led to an increase in demand 
for high-quality welding equipment and consumables 
that can meet the stringent quality standards.  
Moreover, with the increasing number of welding 
equipment and consumables being used in various 
industries, the demand for repair and maintenance 
services is also increasing. this has led to an increase in 
the demand for welding equipment and consumables 

70th annual report 2022-23
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that are easy to repair and maintain. In addition, India 
has a large pool of skilled and unskilled workers, which 
has led to an increase in the availability of trained 
welders and welding technicians.

the mandatory requirement of BIS marking for 
products, used in Government Industries, has opened 
up the opportunities for “Made-in-India” products 
and manufacturers like aDor, can obtain the BIS 
certification without any additional investment or 
efforts, since its products are already designed and 
manufactured in India with specifications, surpassing 
requirements of the standards.

outLooK, rISKS aND CoNCerNS

the last FY23 started on an encouraging note only to 
run into more turbulence with the developments arising 
from the conflict in europe. Supply chain disruptions 
have, since become a key operational challenge, 
apart from further doses of inflation in commodity prices. 
a weaker rupee, higher interest rates and extreme 
challenges of inflation globally are key concerns for 
the ongoing financial year. Despite inherent resilience, 
the impact of global developments are bound to 
affect demand and profitability during the rest of the 
year. opportunities exist in product categories where 
our new product launches can help gain market share 
and in terms of improvements in productivity and 
costs. a sustained period of global turbulence and 
squeeze on liquidity are immediate threats. rBI has 
shown intent to keep checks on runaway inflation. It 
will be important to see how it manages to continue 
with its accommodative stance. even if private CapeX 
is affected due to combination of inflation and rising 
interest rates, we hope that the Government spending 
will continue to boost the economy. Continued focus 
on infrastructure development has ensured major 
markets of welding industries, such as oil & gas, power, 
heavy engineering, shipbuilding, railways, automotive 
etc. with continued growth.

In the Union Budget for FY 23, Finance Minister delivered 
a growth-oriented budget for the coming fiscal year. 
the Finance Minister tried to revitalize the infrastructure 
sector in India, in order to, probably, have a multiplier 
effect on the Indian economy and help it stay on 
the path of growth for the coming year. She counted 
physical infrastructure as one of the six (06) pillars of her 
Budget. this should help Welding Industry to grow.

INCoMe StateMeNt aNaLySIS

In FY23 overall revenue from operations reached 
rs. 77,676 Lakhs from rs. 66,148 Lakhs in FY22. this 
translates to about 17.4% increase from the previous 
year FY22. revenue from consumables business was at  
rs. 61,449 Lakhs, as compared to rs. 53,540 Lakhs 
in FY22. revenue from equipment & automation 
business was at rs. 11,504 Lakhs, as compared 
to rs. 9,854 Lakhs in FY22. revenue from Flares & 
process equipment (erstwhile project engineering 
Business (peB)) was at rs. 4,723 Lakhs, as compared to  
rs. 2,754 Lakhs in FY22. other income of rs. 667 Lakhs, 
mainly consisted of forex gains, interest income, rental 
income and export incentive, etc.

BaLaNCe SHeet aNaLySIS

During FY23, overall working capital days have been 
controlled at 85 days, compared to 68 days in the 
previous year, even after significant increase in business 
and undertaking a large scale project with longer lead 
time. the borrowings are under control, with Debt to 
equity ratio of 0.05.

INterNaL CoNtroL SySteMS aND tHeIr aDeQuaCy

the Company continues to strongly believe that 
effective internal controls are critical for good corporate 
governance and that the operational freedom in 
conducting business should be exercised within the 
framework of appropriate checks & restraints, subject 
to adherence to applicable laws of the land.

the Company has robust Internal Financial Control 
System (IFCS), which covers the following critical 
aspects of business processes and reporting:

1. Financial propriety of business transactions
2. Manufacturing operations and processes
3. reporting of financial transactions, as per the 

applicable accounting standards
4. Compliance with the established Company 

policies, guidelines, and statutes

the Company has a well-defined Internal audit System. 
the scope of Internal audit is reviewed & finalized at 
the beginning of every financial year, in consultation 
with the Statutory auditors and approved by the audit 
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Disclaimer:

the information and opinion expressed in this section of the annual report may contain certain forward looking 
statements, which the Management believes are true to the best of its knowledge, at the time of its preparation. 
the Company and the Management shall not be held liable for any loss, which may arise, as a result of any 
action taken on the basis of the information contained herein.

For and on behalf of the Board

Ninotchka Malkani Nagpal
place: Mumbai executive Chairman
Date: 30th May, 2023 (DIN: 00031985)

Committee. the audit plan is focused, primarily, on the 
following objectives:

•	 Operational	activities
•	 Management	control
•	 Process	efficiency

the audit Committee reviews the Internal audit reports 
on a quarterly basis and offers necessary guidance 
with respect to its coverage, scope & corrective 
measures.

our erp & It system makes Finance & accounts 
Management robust, data tracking easier and 
decision making faster.

the Company’s software helps in centralizing its order 
processing, leading to better logistics / movement of 
goods. the Company has a very sound compliance 
track record with all the Legal and Statutory authorities 
in the Country, and there is a regular Management 
audit mechanism to ensure that the Company, does 
not violate any known Legal or Statutory provisions, 
applicable to the Company.

“MaterIaL DeVeLopMeNtS” IN tHe HuMaN reSourCeS 
FroNt

In FY23, our focus continued to be on working towards 
achieving our Vision of “Creating the best Welding 
experience” by imbibing three (03) core values of 
enhancing performance, Building trust & relationship 
and strive to give better Customer experience.

We believe that our employees (Human Capital) are 
our assets and key to the Company’s success. We 
strive to attract and retain them through various Hr 
policies, learning & development programs, employee 
engagement and other employee wellbeing initiatives. 
the success of our employees not only benefits the 
organization but also our Customers, Business partners 
and other Stakeholders. Hence, we strive to provide 
them a happy and safe working environment. this is 
obtained through good Hr policies and practices. We 
also conduct feedback surveys, to actively seek views 
from all our employees, regarding our Hr practices & 
policies, with an idea of continuously improving them, 
in line with the expectation of majority, if not all.

We have laid emphasis on creating culture of 
performance, transparency and well-being of our 
employees. a good & positive working environment 
enables learning and growth for the employees. In last 
FY23, we could conduct classroom training sessions 
and also sent our senior employees to some classroom 
programs of reputed Business Schools, since CoVID-19 
impact had subsided. Several technical & behavioral 
development programs were conducted, to train 
the managers and other employees, apart from the 
regularly conducted on-the-job and other technical 
trainings.

We will continue to keep our focus on retaining and 
attracting best talents and strive to do even better to 
achieve our vision.

the employee strength as of 31st March, 2023 stood 
at 596.
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ForM No. Mr-3

SeCretarIaL auDIt report
For tHe FINaNCIaL year eNDeD 31st MarCH, 2023

[pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies act, 2013 and rule No. 9 of the Companies
(appointment and remuneration of Managerial personnel) rules, 2014]

to,
the Members,
ador Welding Limited

We have conducted the Secretarial audit of the Compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence 
to good corporate practices by ador Welding Limited (hereinafter called ‘the Company’). Secretarial audit was 
conducted in conformity with the auditing standards, issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India 
(‘ICSI’) (“the auditing Standards”) and the processes and practices followed during the conduct of audit are 
aligned with the auditing Standards, to provide us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts / 
statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minutes books, forms, returns filed & other records 
maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and 
authorized representatives during the process of Secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the 
Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2023, has complied with 
the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board processes and compliance 
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minutes books, forms, returns filed & other records maintained by the 
Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2023, according to the provisions of:

1. the Companies act, 2013 (‘the act’) and the rules made thereunder including statutory amendments made 
thereto and modifications thereof for the time being in force;

2. the Securities Contracts (regulation) act, 1956 (‘SCra’) and the rules made thereunder;

3. Foreign exchange Management act, 1999 and the rules & regulations made thereunder to the extent 
applicable;

4. the Securities and exchange Board of India (Depositories & participants) regulations, 2018 and amendments 
thereof and the regulations and bye-laws framed thereunder;

5. the following regulations and Guidelines, prescribed under the Securities and exchange Board of India act, 
1992 and amendments thereto (‘SeBI act’):-

a) the Securities and exchange Board of India (Listing obligations and Disclosure requirements) regulations, 
2015

b) the Securities and exchange Board of India (Substantial acquisition of Shares and takeovers) regulations, 
2011;

c) the Securities and exchange Board of India (prohibition of Insider trading) regulations, 2015;
d) the Securities and exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) regulations, 2018; Not applicable 

during the financial year
e) Securities and exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure requirements) regulations 2018; 

Not applicable during the financial year
f) Securities and exchange Board of India (Share Based employee Benefits and Sweat equity) regulations, 

2021; Not applicable during the financial year

aNNeXure V - to tHe DIreCtorS’ report
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g) the Securities and exchange Board of India (registrars to an Issue and Share transfer agents) regulations, 
1993, regarding the Companies act and dealing with client; Not applicable during the financial year

6. other applicable Laws as per list attached as ‘annexure a’ to this report.

 We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

a. the Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (‘ICSI’),

b. Guidelines issued by the Ministry of Corporate affairs (‘MCa’) and the Securities and exchange Board of 
India (‘SeBI’), relating to conducting the meeting via video conferencing and other audio-Visual means.

During the period under review, we observed that the Company has complied with the provisions of the act, 
rules, regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

We further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of executive 
Directors, Non-executive Directors and Independent Directors. the changes in the composition of the Board of 
Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the 
act and SeBI (LoDr) regulations, 2015.

adequate notice is given to all the Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on 
agenda were sent at least 07 (seven) days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further 
information and clarifications on the agenda items, before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the 
meeting.

Majority decision is carried through, while the dissenting Members views / opinions are captured & recorded, as 
part of the minutes.

all the decisions have been taken with requisite majority in the General Meetings and the views expressed by the 
dissenting members are captured & recorded, as part of the minutes.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size 
and operations of the Company, to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and 
guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period, the application of amalgamation between the Company and its 
wholly owned subsidiary, ador Welding academy private Limited (‘aWapL’) was approved vide Hon’ble National 
Company Law tribunal, Mumbai bench (‘NCLt’) order dated 03rd February, 2023.

We further report that during the audit period, the Board of Directors of the Company, at their meeting held 
on 31st May, 2022, approved the Scheme of amalgamation (Merger by absorption) of ador Fontech Limited 
(‘aDFL’) with the Company. the ‘appointed date’ for this merger was proposed as 01st april 2022. Further, both the 
Companies have independently filed an application on 20th June, 2022, with the recognized stock exchanges, 
where the respective Company’s shares are listed, for obtaining NoC from them, as well as from the Securities & 
exchanges Board of India and have received NoC from BSe & NSe on 26th September, 2022 & 27th September, 
2022 respectively. Subsequently, both the Companies filed separate application under Section 230 to Section 
232 of the Companies act, 2013 in Hon’ble NCLt, Bengaluru Bench and Mumbai Bench on 02nd February, 2023.

   For M/s N. L. Bhatia & associates
practicing Company Secretaries

uIN: p1996MH055800
p/r No: 700/2020

 Bharat Upadhyay
partner

 FCS: 5436
place: Mumbai Cp. No. 4457
Date: 30th May, 2023 uDIN: F005436e000417837
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‘aNNeXure a’

LISt oF otHer appLICaBLe LaWS (including statutory amendments made thereto or amendments thereof for 
the time being in force):

other Laws applicable to the Company;

a) Factories act, 1948 and rules made thereunder
b) Industrial employment (Standing orders) act, 1946 & rules 1957
c) payment of Bonus act, 1965, & rules, 1965
d) Maternity Benefit act,1961 & rules
e) employees Compensation act, 1923 & rules.
f) Minimum Wages act, 1948, M.W (C) rules, 1950
g) Child Labour (p&r) act 1986, & rules.
h) air (prevention and Control of pollution) act, 1981
i) Water (prevention and Control of pollution) act, 1974
j) the Noise (regulation and Control) rules, 2000
k) the environment (protection) act, 1986
l) payment of Wages act, 1936
m) employees State Insurance act, 1948
n) employees pF & Miscellaneous provisions act, 1952
o) Contract Labour (regulation & abolition) act, 1970
p) Legal Metrology act, 2009
q) payment of Gratuity act, 1972
r) Industrial Disputes act, 1947
s) Indian Contract act, 1872
t) the States Shops and establishment act
u) Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (prevention, prohibition and redressal) act, 2013
v) Income tax act, 1961
w) the States Goods and Services tax act, 2017
x) the Central Goods and Services tax act, 2017
y) the Interstate Goods and Services tax act, 2017
z) any other Central and State acts and rules made thereunder, as may be applicable
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to,           

the Members,

ador Welding Limited

our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

(1) Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the Management of the Company. our responsibility 
is to express an opinion on these secretarial records, based on our audit.

(2) We have followed the auditing standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI) and 
audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness 
of the contents of the Secretarial records. the verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts 
are reflected in the Secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we have followed 
are aligned with auditing Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI) provide a 
reasonable basis for our opinion.

(3) We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of the financial records and the Books of accounts 
of the Company.

(4) Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of the 
applicable Laws, rules & regulations and happening of events etc.

(5) the compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable Laws, rules, regulations, Standard is the 
responsibility of the Management. our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

(6) the Secretarial audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficacy 
or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

   For M/s N. L. Bhatia & associates
practicing Company Secretaries

uIN: p1996MH055800
p/r No: 700/2020

 Bharat Upadhyay
partner

 FCS: 5436
place: Mumbai Cp. No. 4457
Date: 30th May, 2023 uDIN: F005436e000417837



76

CREATING THE BEST WELDING EXPERIENCE

aNNeXure VI – to tHe DIreCtorS’ report

Details pertaining to remuneration, as required under Section 197(12) of the Companies act, 2013 read with 
rule 5(1) of the Companies (appointment and remuneration of Managerial personnel) rules, 2014:

1. the ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the employees of the Company 
for the Financial Year (FY) 2022-23:

Sr. No. Name of the Director Designation ratio

1. Mrs. N. Malkani Nagpal executive Chairman 29.12
2. Mr. a. t. Malkani Managing Director 27.86
3. Dr. D. a. Lalvani Director (Non-executive) 1.88
4. Mr. r. a. Mirchandani Director (Non-executive) 1.88
5. Ms. tanya H. advani Director (Non-executive) 1.88
6. Mr. p. K. Gupta Director (Independent & Non-executive) 2.29
7. Mr. r. N. Sapru Director (Independent & Non-executive) 2.34
8. Mr. K. Digvijay Singh Director (Independent & Non-executive) 2.05
9. Mr. G. M. Lalwani Director (Independent & Non-executive) 2.13

10. Mrs. Nita Dempo Mirchandani Director (Independent & Non-executive) 2.08
11. Mr. N. S. Marshall* Director (Independent & Non-executive) 1.85

* w.e.f. 21st May, 2022

2. the percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial officer, Chief executive officer, 
Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the financial year (FY) 2022-23:

Sr. No. Name of the Directors / KMp Designation % variance

1. Mrs. N. Malkani Nagpal executive Chairman 22.79

2. Mr. a. t. Malkani Managing Director 18.49

3. Dr. D. a. Lalvani Director (Non-executive) -92.77

4. Mr. r. a. Mirchandani Director (Non-executive) 48.04

5. Ms. tanya H. advani Director (Non-executive) 48.04

6. Mr. p. K. Gupta Director (Independent & Non-executive) 49.00

7. Mr. r. N. Sapru Director (Independent & Non-executive) 46.64

8. Mr. K. Digvijay Singh Director (Independent & Non-executive) 48.20

9. Mr. G. M. Lalwani Director (Independent & Non-executive) 48.60

10. Mrs. Nita Dempo Mirchandani Director (Independent & Non-executive) 53.46

11. Mr. N. S. Marshall* Director (Independent & Non-executive) --

12. Mr. V. M. Bhide Company Secretary (CS) 5.40

13. Mr. S. K. Sethia Chief Financial officer (CFo) 7.16

* w.e.f. 21st May, 2022

3. the percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in FY 2022-23 over FY 2021-22: 8%

4. the number of permanent employees on the roll of the Company as on 31st March, 2023: 596
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5. average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial  
personnel in FY 2022-23 and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and 
justification thereof and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial 
remuneration: - the percentile increase in the remuneration of Non-Managerial cadre and Managerial  
cadre (excluding Whole-time Directors) is 59 percentile and 70 percentile respectively.

6. affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company: yes, we affirm / confirm 
that the remuneration paid, during Fy 2022-23, was as per the remuneration policy of the Company.

7. Details of top 10 employees of the Company in terms of remuneration* drawn in FY 2022-23:

Sr. 
No.

Name age 
(years)

Designation Qualification/s years of 
experience

Date of 
Commencement 
of employment

Last employment

post Held Name of the Last 
employer

1. Sunanda 
Kumar palit

60 Head - Strategy 
& Customer 
experience

B. tech. 
(Hons.) from IIt 
Kharagpur

40 04-Jun-2012 Divisional 
product 
Manager 
(equipment 
Division)

eSaB India Ltd

2. Somnath 
Chakravarty

59 Head – research, 
Development & 
Quality (Welding 
Consumables)

M.tech and 
B.tech in 
Metallurgy

32 01-Jun-2022 plant Head 
- Saw Wire 
& r&D

Modi Hitech India 
Ltd.

3. Sachin H. 
Dobhada

56 Head – research, 
Development & 
Quality (Welding 
equiment)

B.e. (Industrial 
electronics)

35 08-May-2006 Manager-
r&D

Hueco electronic 
(India) pvt. Ltd.

4. Vinayak M. 
Bhide

54 Head - Hr, 
admin, Ia, Legal 
& Company 
Secretary

B.Com., LL.B. 
(Gen), aICMa, 
DtL, DLL & LW  
FCS

33 04-Jan-1993 assistant 
(costing 
Dept.)

BaSF India Ltd

5. Vineet 
Bansal

54 Head - India 
Welding Business & 
Customer Success

Mechanical 
engineering

32 03-Nov-1992 engineer – 
technical 
Services

Cimmco Limited, 
Bharatpur

6. Mustafa 
Faizullabhoy

50 Head – 
International 
operations

Masters in HrM, 
Bachelors in IB

23 06-apr-2022 General 
Manager

abicor Binzel 
Middle east

7. Ulhas pujari 50 General Manager 
- Special projects

Be and MBa 29 15-Jul-2013 DGM - 
production

Carraro India 
Limited

8. Dr. Shrikant 
S. Suvarna

45 Head - Supply 
Chain & 
procurement

pHD 
(Management 
Studies), e- MBa - 
Foreign trade

25 05-oct-2020 Head - 
Supply 
Chain

Voestalpine Bohler 
Welding India 
private Limited

9. Dr. ajay 
Gorasia

44 Head - Flares & 
process equipment 
Division

B.tech, 
M.Chem & pHD 
(Chemical engg)

14 05-Jan-2021 account 
Manager- 
Callidus & 
Gp&H

Uop India pvt. Ltd.

10. SuryaKant 
Sethia

43 Chief Financial 
officer

Chartered 
accountant

18 22-Jun-2015 DGM - 
(accounts 
& Finance)

Desert Landscape 
Company LLC

 * the statement of remuneration will be made available for e-inspection / inspection by the Members during 
the business hours on any working day, 21 days prior to the date of aGM. 

 Interested Members may write to the Company for obtaining a copy of the same.
 one employee, who is posted abroad (i.e. ador International) is drawing remuneration of over rs. 60 Lakhs per 

financial year & rs. 5 Lakhs per month.
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8. Details of employees with annual remuneration of rs. 102 Lakhs or more, who are employed throughout 
the year or monthly remuneration of rs. 8.50 Lakhs or more, even if employed for part of the year during  
FY 2022-23:

Sr. 
No.

Name age 
(years)

Designation remuneration 
(Gross)  

(rs. in Lakhs)

Qualification/s years of 
experience

Date of 
Commence- 

ment of 
employment

Last employment

post Held Name of the 
Last employer

1. Mrs. N. 
Malkani 
Nagpal

53 executive 
Chairman

152.29 •	 MBA.	with	
specialization 
in Finance from 
Imperial College, 
UK;

•	 B.Sc.	in	Business	&	
economics from 
Lehigh University, 
pa, USa

30 03.10.1997 Chairman & 
Whole time 
Director

J. B. advani & 
Co. pvt. Ltd.

2. Mr. aditya 
t. Malkani

42 Managing 
Director

145.68 •	 Pursued	B.A.	
(economics) from 
oberlin College 
(ohio, USa)

•	 MBA	from	Indian	
School of Business 
(ISB, Hyderabad)

16 27.07.2007 Chairman & 
Whole time 
Director

ador Fontech 
Limited

Notes:

1. all the above appointments are Contractual.

2. remuneration shown above comprises of salary, allowances, bonus, commission, perquisites, contribution to 
provident Fund, Superannuation Fund, Gratuity Fund etc., wherever applicable.

3. Information regarding qualifications, experience and last employment held, is based on particulars furnished 
to the Company, by the employees concerned.

4. Mrs. Ninotchka Malkani Nagpal holds 1,99,952 equity shares and Mr. aditya t. Malkani holds 1,23,198 equity 
shares of the Company as on 31st March, 2023.

5. Mrs. Ninotchka Malkani Nagpal and Mr. aditya t. Malkani are not related to any other Directors or to each other 
or to any of the employees of the Company.

6. No other employees mentioned above is related to any Director of the Company in terms of Section 2(77) of 
the Companies act, 2013.

For and on behalf of the Board

Ninotchka Malkani Nagpal
place: Mumbai executive Chairman
Date: 30th May, 2023 (DIN: 00031985)
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Basic Information,

ador Welding Limited (aWL), erstwhile advani – oerlikon Limited, is a pioneer in the welding industry. aWL, since 
its inception in the year 1951, has played a significant role in the country’s industrialization and infrastructure 
development by providing the finest range of welding consumables, equipment and automation solutions, 
coupled with skill development in India. the Company has progressively extended its welding knowledge and 
expertise to cover many high-end specializations and has catered to a sophisticated range of user needs in India 
and in the overseas markets.

aWL’s Vision is “Creating the Best Welding experience”. aWL adopts responsible business practices, which are 
in the interest of the environment and the society, at large. aWL commits towards a comprehensive growth, by 
adopting a framework to integrate social, environmental, humanitarian concerns into its core business strategy, 
in the best interest of all its stakeholders. aWL believes that a Company’s performance must be quantified in 
a balanced economic, environmental and social imperative. the core values of aWL strive in developing a 
sustainable business model, which flows from the top and infuses throughout the organization and across business 
segments.

aligned with the United Nations Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs), ador conducts its business activities 
responsibly and sustainably. the Company has prioritized 9 SDGs for focused action, all of which are critical to 
achieving its vision of “Creating the Best Welding experience”.

ador’s Business responsibility and Sustainability report (BrSr) is a comprehensive account of its business 
performance and impacts. It is aligned with the National Guidelines on responsible Business Conduct (NGrBC) on 
Social, environmental and economic responsibilities of Business, issued by the Ministry of Corporate affairs (MCa). 
the BrSr is in accordance with clause (f) of subregulation (2) of regulation 34 of the Securities and exchange 
Board of India (Listing obligations and Disclosure requirements) regulations, 2015, as amended. the Company’s 
business performance and impacts are disclosed based on the 9 principles, as mentioned in NGrBC, reflecting 
ador’s unwavering commitment to responsible and sustainable business practices.

the Company’s comprehensive reporting framework provides stakeholders with a transparent and detailed 
account of its business performance and impacts, reflecting its commitment to responsible and sustainable 
business practices.

ethics, transparency and  
accountability

product Life Cycle  
Sustainability

employee Well-Being

Stakeholder engagement Human rights environment

policy advocacy Inclusive Growth and  
equitable Development

Customer Value Creation

principles

1 2 3

4 5 6

7 8 9

aNNeXure VII - to tHe DIreCtorS’ report

BuSINeSS reSpoNSIBILIty aND SuStaINaBILIty report
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I. Details of the listed entity

1. Corporate Identity Number (CIN) of 
the Listed entity

L70100MH1951pLC008647

2. Name of the Listed entity ador Welding Limited
3. year of Incorporation october 22, 1951
4. registered office address ador House, 6, K. Dubash Marg, Fort, Mumbai 400 001-16, 

Maharashtra, India
5. Corporate address ador House, 6, K. Dubash Marg, Fort, Mumbai 400 001-16, 

Maharashtra, India
6. e-mail investorservices@adorians.com
7. telephone 022 6623 9300 / 022 2284 2525
8. Website www.adorwelding.com
9. Financial year, for which reporting is 

being done
FY 2022-23

10. Name of Stock exchange(s) where 
shares are listed

1. BSe Limited
2. National Stock exchange of India Ltd (NSe)

11. paid-up Capital 1,35,98,467 equity Shares of rs. 10/- each, fully paid-up
12. Name and contact details 

(telephone, email address) of the 
person, who may be contacted in 
case of any queries on the BrSr 
report

Details of director responsible for implementation of business 
responsibility policy
Name: Mr. aditya t. Malkani 
Designation: Managing Director
DIN: 01585637 
telephone number: 022-66239300 / 022-22842525 
e-mail id - investorservices@adorians.com

13. reporting boundary - are the 
disclosures under this report made 
on a standalone basis (i.e. only for 
the entity) or on a consolidated basis 
(i.e. for the entity and all the entities 
which form a part of its consolidated 
financial statements, taken together).

the disclosures made in this report are on a Standalone basis 
and pertain only to ador Welding Limited.

SeCtIoN a: GeNeraL DISCLoSureS

II. products / services

14. Details of business activities (accounting for 90% of the turnover):

Sr. 
No.

Description of 
Main activity

Description of Business activity % of turnover  
of the entity

1 Manufacturing Manufacturing of Welding Consumables like electrodes, Wires 
and Fluxes

80

2 assembly assembly line for assembly of welding equipments 14

3 automation Flare processes, Cutting automation and Welding processes 6
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15. products / Services sold by the entity (accounting for 90% of the entity’s turnover):

Sr. 
No.

product / Service
NIC Code % of total turnover 

contributed

1 Welding electrodes 83111000 44

2 Coated Welding Wires 72230010
75052200
72299016
83112000

30

3 Machinery and apparatus for Soldering, 
Brazing or Welding

85158090
85153990
84688000
85151900
84689000

16

III. operations

16. Number of locations where plants and / or operations / offices of the entity are situated:

Location Number of plants Number of offices total

National 3 6 9

International - 1 1

17. Markets served by the entity:

a. Number of locations:

Locations Number

National (No. of States + Union territories) 36

International (No. of Countries) 15
             

 b. What is the contribution of exports as a percentage of the total turnover of the entity?

 exports contribute to 8% of the total turnover of the Company.     

 c. a brief on types of customers.

 our customer base includes entities involved in Heavy Fabrication, rail Coach Manufacturing, railway Work 
Shops, Indian Defence, oil & Gas, Ship Building, power plants, automobiles, Hydro plants, Nuclear plants, Steel 
Mfgs., Sugar Industries, Cement Industries, other metal manufacturing such as aluminium, Copper etc.
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IV. employees 

18. Details as at the end of Financial year:

a.  employees and workers (including differently abled):

Sr. 
No. particulars

total (a) Male Female

No. (B) % (B / a) No. (C) % (C / a)

eMpLoyeeS

1. permanent (D) 596 565 95 31 5

2. other than permanent (e) - - - - -

3. total employees 
 (D + e)

596 565 95 31 5

WorKerS

4. permanent (F) - - - - -

5. other than permanent (G) 652 624 96 28 4

6. total workers (F + G) 652 624 96 28 4

b.  Differently abled employees and workers: 

Sr. 
No particulars

total 
 (a)

Male Female

No. (B) % (B / a) No. (C) % (C / a)

DIFFereNtLy aBLeD eMpLoyeeS

1. permanent (D) - - - - -

2. other than permanent (e) - - - - -

3. total differently abled employees 
(D + e)

- - - - -

DIFFereNtLy aBLeD WorKerS

4. permanent (F) - - - - -

5. other than permanent (G) - - - - -

6. total differently abled workers  
(F + G)

- - - - -

19. participation / Inclusion / representation of women:       
      

Sr. 
No Category

total (a) No. and percentage of Females

No. (B) % (B / a)

1. Board of Directors 11 3 27

2. Key Management personnel 3 0 -
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20. turnover rate for permanent employees and workers: (Disclose trends for the past 3 years)  
            

Sr. 
No

Category

Fy 2022-23  
(turnover rate in current Fy)

Fy 2021-22 
(turnover rate in previous Fy)

Fy 2020-21 
(turnover rate in the year prior 

to the previous Fy)

Male Female total Male Female total Male Female total

1. permanent employees 11.33% 41.94% 12.92% 12.62% 16.67% 12.85% 18.09% 37.04% 19.08%

2. permanent Workers - - - - - - - - -
      

V. Holding, Subsidiary and associate Companies (including Joint Ventures)

21.(a) Names of holding / subsidiary / associate companies / joint ventures:
             

Sr. 
No.

Name of the holding /
subsidiary / associate 

companies / joint ventures 
(a)

Indicate whether holding / 
Subsidiary / associate / Joint 

Venture

% of shares held by listed 
entity

Does the entity indicated 
at column a, participate in 
the Business responsibility 

initiatives of the listed 
entity? (yes / No)

Na - Since our 100% Subsidiary ador Welding acedemy pvt. Ltd. merged with ador Welding Limited effective 
from 16th March 2023.

VI. CSr Details           

22. (i)  Whether CSr is applicable as per section 135 of the Companies act, 2013: Yes

 (ii) turnover (in rs.) : 77,676 Lakhs (FY 2022-23); 66,148 Lakhs (FY 2021-22)

 (iii)  Net worth (in rs.) : 32,351 Lakhs (FY 2022-23); 28,192 Lakhs (FY 2021-22)

 the highlights of CSr interventions are reported in CSr annexure to the Directors’ report. 

VII. transparency and Disclosures Compliances

23. Complaints/Grievances on any of the principles (principles 1 to 9), under the National Guidelines on 
responsible Business Conduct:          
     

Stakeholder 
group, 

from whom 
complaint is 

received

Grievance redressal Mechanism in 
place (yes / No)

Fy 2022-23 
Current Financial year

Fy 2021-22 
previous Financial year

(If yes, then provide web-link for 
grievance redressal policy)

Number of 
complaints 

filed 
during the 

year

Number of 
complaints 

pending 
resolution 
at close of 
the year

remarks Number of 
complaints 

filed 
during the 

year

Number of 
complaints 

pending 
resolution 
at close of 
the year

remarks

Communities No - - - - - -

Investors 
(other than 
shareholders)

Yes 

https://www.adorwelding.com/wp-
content/uploads/2021/07/Mechanism-
For-Whistle-Blower-For-Stakeholders11.pdf

- - - - - -
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Stakeholder 
group, 

from whom 
complaint is 

received

Grievance redressal Mechanism in 
place (yes / No)

Fy 2022-23 
Current Financial year

Fy 2021-22 
previous Financial year

(If yes, then provide web-link for 
grievance redressal policy)

Number of 
complaints 

filed 
during the 

year

Number of 
complaints 

pending 
resolution 
at close of 
the year

remarks Number of 
complaints 

filed 
during the 

year

Number of 
complaints 

pending 
resolution 
at close of 
the year

remarks

Shareholders Yes

the Company has empowered a 
Board-level Stakeholders relationship 
Committee (‘SrC’) to examine and 
redress complaints from / by shareholders.

the status of complaints is reported 
to the entire Board on a quarterly 
basis. SrC meets atleast twice a year 
and as & when required to resolve 
shareholders grievances. Most of the 
grievances received through electronic 
communications are attended within 
a period of seven days and for postal 
communication within a period of twelve 
days from the date of receipt of such 
grievances.

ht tps: / /www.adorwelding.com/wp-
content/uploads/2022/11/ Investor-
Grievance-redressal-policy.pdf

9 0 - 10 0 -

employees 
and workers

Yes, the grievances of the employees 
and workers are redressed through 
emails, open forum meetings and also 
through vigil mechanism.

ht tps: / /www.adorwelding.com/wp-
content/uploads/2021/07/Whistle-Blower-
for-employees-Directors2019.pdf

- - - - - -

Customers Yes 

all the grievances received through 
various available channels are registered 
and tracked through the Complaint CrM 
system. once the complaint is registered, 
it is tracked through a unique number. 
the grievance is resolved through one-
on-one interaction with the customer 
either telephonically or physically.  
Upon the final resolution of the grievance, 
feedback is taken through call / response 
sheet / feedback form.

1,046 0 - 806 0 -

Value Chain 
partners

No - - - - - -

other (please 
specify)

- - - - - - -

there have been no grievances regardging the 9 principles of BrSr filed with the Company for FY 2022-23. However, if such complaints 
exist, they can be reported via the Whistleblower Mechanism set up by the Company that is available on the website, which also contains 
details of the framework along with turn around time, designated authority and the chain of process.

https://www.adorwelding.com/wp-content/uploads/2022/11/Investor-Grievance-Redressal-Policy.pdf
https://www.adorwelding.com/wp-content/uploads/2022/11/Investor-Grievance-Redressal-Policy.pdf
https://www.adorwelding.com/wp-content/uploads/2022/11/Investor-Grievance-Redressal-Policy.pdf
https://www.adorwelding.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/07/Whistle-Blower-for-Employees-Directors2019.pdf
https://www.adorwelding.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/07/Whistle-Blower-for-Employees-Directors2019.pdf
https://www.adorwelding.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/07/Whistle-Blower-for-Employees-Directors2019.pdf
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24. overview of the entity’s material responsible business conduct issues: 

 please indicate material responsible business conduct and sustainability issues pertaining to environmental 
and social matters that present a risk or an opportunity to your business, rationale for identifying the same, 
approach to adapt or mitigate the risk along-with its financial implications, as per the following format: 
              

Sr. 
No.

Material 
issue 
identified

Indicate 
whether 
risk or 
opportunity 
(r/o)

rationale for identifying the risk / opportunity In case of risk, approach to 
adapt or mitigate

Financial 
implications of the 
risk or opportunity 
(Indicate positive or 
negative 
implications)

1 Core 
products

opportunity aWL’s products’ design has incorporated social or environmental 
concerns:
1. Iot in Welding Machines: With the help of digitization, the 

welding machines can communicate through internet to 
outside world, which provide real time welding performance 
information in the form of welding data. this has enabled 
user to monitor and control the arc, on time and quality of 
welding, which saves on the wastage of electrical energy 
and material, due to unwanted quality and idle time.

2.  engine driven Welding Machines with higher fuel efficiency: 
With the help of High speed engines, aWL developed engine 
driven welding sets, which are specially designed for higher 
fuel efficiency and weight reduction, by making it compact 
in size. these engine driven welding sets are environment 
friendly and compliant with the stringent norms of pollution 
emission, set by pollution Control Board.

3. Special electrodes for special material:  aWL developed 
special electrodes, specially designed for high strength 
material, which enables user to go for lower thickness of 
material to reduce the overall weight of the job & make it 
lighter.

- positive

2 Natural 
resources

risk and 
opportunity

Conserving natural resources is a relevant & important part of 
our value creation model, which drives us towards meeting our 
business needs by creating sustainable products and solutions 
with minimum impact on the natural ecosystem

the Company has invested 
in rooftop solar projects for 
captive consumption within 
the plants. plant wise plans /
actions implemented for 
alternate sources of water like 
borewell, tanker water supply, 
effluent treatment plant water 
re-use, rainwater usage and 
achieving water neutrality.

positive: Scope to 
increase reliability 
on renewal energy. 
 
Negative: 
Unavailability can 
impact service to 
customer.

3 environment 
risk

risk and 
opportunity

Changes in existing regulations / emerging regulations impacting 
sourcing of materials, emissions, waste generation, storage and 
use of material or quality of finished goods

pro-actively work on emerging 
areas and implement much 
ahead of statute; and 

the Company continues 
to monitor all emerging 
regulations, incidents, 
developments and map it for 
compliance.

positive: Scope to 
explore new sources 
of raw materials.

Negative: Increased 
expenses in 
transiting towards 
meeting new 
regulations.
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Sr. 
No.

Material 
issue 
identified

Indicate 
whether 
risk or 
opportunity 
(r/o)

rationale for identifying the risk / opportunity In case of risk, approach to 
adapt or mitigate

Financial 
implications of the 
risk or opportunity 
(Indicate positive or 
negative 
implications)

4 Handling 
Hazardous 
Material / 
Waste

risk Handling hazardous material / waste in business operations with 
care to avoid any threats posed to the health and well-being of 
our employees and to our surrounding environment

adherence to standards 
pertaining to occupational 
Health and Safety, the 
Company’s environment, 
Health and Safety (‘eHS’) 
policy and highest operational 
standards for handling 
hazardous materials;

Continuous engagement with 
suppliers for identifying any 
better options, to mitigate 
the risks; 

plant design to adhere to 
inherent safe design

Negative: Impact 
on health and well-
being of employees 
at the plants & 
community near by.

5 product 
& plastic 
packaging

risk Several states across India are banning / restricting use of single-
use plastic.

the Company is putting its 
efforts to keep pace with the 
changing regulations around 
plastic waste management

Negative: Failure 
to comply with 
current or future 
regulations on 
plastic packaging 
or failure to meet 
commitments on 
packaging and the 
environment would 
attract hefty fines 
and may even lead 
to loss of sales.

6 Safety risk risk and 
opportunity

the manufacturing operations of the Company require 
employees to work on plant, machinery and material handling 
equipment, all of which carry an inherent risk of injury

adherence to safety 
standards, the Company’s 
eHS policy and highest 
operational standards for 
handling hazardous materials 
at plants

positive: adoption 
of latest and 
cutting edge safety 
related protocols 
and measures to 
create a safe work 
environment.

Negative: Impact 
on health and well-
being 
of employees at the 
Company.
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Sr. 
No.

Material 
issue 
identified

Indicate 
whether 
risk or 
opportunity 
(r/o)

rationale for identifying the risk / opportunity In case of risk, approach to 
adapt or mitigate

Financial 
implications of the 
risk or opportunity 
(Indicate positive or 
negative 
implications)

7 Labour 
Unrest

risk and 
opportunity

Disruption in manufacturing due to labour unrest Implementing alternatives 
in the plants – productivity 
measure changed from norm 
based output to output / 
group based output in many 
plants;

Knowledge sharing sessions 
on labour laws, situations 
based learnings, employee 
life cycle documentation, 
regular Ir management 
and Contract Labour 
management; and 

physical, Mental and Financial 
Wellness sessions conducted 
on regular basis.

positive: opportunity 
to develop stronger 
relationship and 
engagement with 
workers.

Negative: Labour 
unavailability 
can impact 
manufacturing.

8 reputation opportunity Bad publicity arising out of any act / inaction by the Company on 
social media or any other platform

actively addressing product 
complaints;

ensuring product delivery, as 
promised;

Compliance with all 
regulatory norms;

Strengthening corporate 
governance norms, including 
adherence to the code of 
conduct by all; 

Sign off for all product / 
Warranty promises to the 
customer. 

active monitoring of voices 
on social media and having 
a crisis management plan 
ready

positive: opportunity 
to improve brand 
presence and 
reputation through 
proactively 
managing possible 
issues.
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SeCtIoN B: MaNaGeMeNt aND proCeSS DISCLoSureS

Disclosure Questions p 
1

p 
2

p 
3

p 
4

p 
5

p 
6

p 
7

p 
8

p 
9

policy and management processes:

1. a. Whether your entity’s policy / policies cover each  
 principle and its core elements of the NGrBCs.   
 (Yes /No)

Y Y Y Y Y Y Na Y Y

b. Has the policy been approved by the Board? (Yes /
No)

Y N N Y Y N Na Y N

c. Web Link of the policies, if available https://www.adorwelding.com/corporate-policies/

2. Whether the entity has translated the policy into 
procedures. (Yes / No)

No

3. Do the enlisted policies extend to your value chain 
partners? (Yes / No)

No

4. Name of the national and international codes /
certifications / labels / standards (e.g. Forest Stewardship 
Council,Fairtrade,rainforest alliance,trustea) standards 
(e.g. Sa 8000, oHSaS, ISo, BIS) adopted by your entity 
and mapped to each principle.

oHSaS, BIS, ISo 14001, Corporate Governance 
Code are adopted and mapped at applicable 
principle.

5. Specific commitments, goals and targets set by the 
entity with defined timelines, if any.

No

6. performance of the entity against the specific 
commitments, goals and targets along-with reasons in 
case the same are not met.

No

Governance, leadership and oversight:

7. Statement by director responsible for the business 
responsibility report, highlighting eSG related challenges, 
targets and achievements (listed entity has flexibility 
regarding the placement of this disclosure)

the Board of Directors of the Company oversee 
the implementation of the Business responsibility 
policies.

8. Details of the highest authority responsible for 
implementation and oversight of the Business 
responsibility policy(ies).

the Board of Directors of the Company and 
Stakeholders relationship Committee oversee 
the implementation of the Business responsibility 
policies.

9. Does the entity have a specified Committee of the 
Board/Director responsible for decision making on 
sustainability related issues? (Yes / No). If yes, provide 
details.

No

https://www.adorwelding.com/corporate-policies/
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10.  Details of review of NGrBCs by the Company:

Subject for review Indicate whether review was undertaken by Director 
/ Committee of the Board / any other Committee

Frequency (annually / Half yearly / Quarterly /  
any other–please specify)

p 
1

p 
2

p 
3

p 
4

p 
5

p 
6

p 
7

p 
8

p 
9

p 
1

p 
2

p 
3

p 
4

p 
5

p 
6

p 
7

p 
8

p 
9

performance against above policies 
and follow up action

YeS periodically

Compliance with statutory 
requirements of relevance to the 
principles and rectification of any 
non-compliances

the Company generally complies with all the known 
applicable statutory requirements.

Quarterly

        

11. Has the entity carried out independent 
assessment / evaluation of the working of 
its policies by an external agency? (Yes/
No). If yes, provide name of the agency.

p
1

p 
2

p 
3

p 
4

p 
5

p 
6

p 
7

p 
8

p 
9

No

      

12. If answer to question (1) above is “No” i.e. not all principles are covered by a policy, reasons to be stated:

Questions p 1 p 2 p 3 p 4 p 5 p 6 p 7 p 8 p 9

the entity does not consider the principles material 
to its business (Yes / No)

Not applicable

the entity is not at a stage, where it is in a position to 
formulate and implement the policies on specified 
principles (Yes / No)

the entity does not have the financial or / human 
and technical resources available for the task (Yes 
/ No)

It is planned to be done in the next financial year 
(Yes / No)

any other reason (please specify)
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SeCtIoN C: prINCIpLe WISe perForMaNCe DISCLoSure

prINCIpLe 1: Businesses should conduct and govern themselves with integrity,and in a manner that 
is ethical,transparent and accountable.

eSSeNtIaL INDICatorS

1. percentage coverage by training and awareness programmes on any of the principles during the 
 financial year: there are regular training sessions for new inductees as well as existing employees.  
 

Segment total number 
of training and 
awareness 
programmes held

topics / principles covered under the training and its impact % of persons 
in respective 

category 
covered by 

the awareness 
programmes

Board of 
Directors & KMps

6 During the year, the Board was presented updates pertaining to business, 
regulatory, safety, eSG matters, etc. these topics provided insights on the 
said principles.

topics covered include: 
1) Corporate Governance 
2) Companies act 
3) SeBI Listing requirements 
4) environmental & Safety matters

100

employees other 
than BoD & KMps

10 Sessions Following training and awareness programmes were held for employees of 
the Company 
- Code of Conduct 
- Health & Safety  
- prevention of Sexual Harassment 
- employee Well Being 
- Cyber Security 
- Skill Upgradation / advanced Skills pertaining to respective departments

all the policies of the Company are available on Intranet for employees to 
refer / access.

94

Workers although the company does not have any permanent workers, all the contract workers are given 
regular health and awareness trainings to ensure their safety.

100

          
Notes: 

1.  Health and Safety related training and awareness sessions are conducted and provided to the workers at 
regular intervals.

2.  HoDs also give training to their team members periodically about the process, product manufacturing etc. 
this is to be mandatorily attended to, by all the staff of the said function.    
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2. Details of fines / penalties / punishment / award / compounding fees / settlement amount paid in 
proceedings (by the entity or by directors / KMps) with regulators / law enforcement agencies / judicial 
institutions, in the financial year, in the following format note: the entity shall make disclosures, on the 
basis of materiality, as specified in regulation 30 of SeBI (Listing obligations and Disclosure requirements) 
regulations, 2015 and as disclosed on entity’s website):       
    

Monetary

type
NGrBC 

principle
Name of the 

regulatory / enforcement 
agencies / judicial institutions

amount (In INr) Brief of the 
Case

Has an 
appeal been preferred? 

(yes / No)

penalty / Fine there were no cases during the year, where monetary action has been appealed under the Companies act, 
2013 and SeBI (Listing obligations and Disclosure requirements) regulations, 2015, as amended.Settlement

Compounding Fee

Non-Monetary

type
NGrBC 
principle

Name of the 
regulatory / enforcement 
agencies / judicial institutions

Brief of the Case Has an 
appeal been preferred?  
(yes / No)

Imprisonment there were no cases during the year, where non-monetary action has been appealed under the Companies act, 
2013 and SeBI (Listing obligations and Disclosure requirements) regulations, 2015, as amended.punishment

            

3. of the instances disclosed in Question 2 above,details of the appeal / revision preferred in cases where 
monetary or non-monetary action has been appealed.       
     

Case Details Name of the regulatory / enforcement agencies / judicial institutions

Not applicable, since there were no cases during the year where monetary or non-monetary action has been appealed under the 
Companies act, 2013 and SeBI (Listing obligations and Disclosure requirements) regulations, 2015, as amended.

            

4. Does the entity have an anti-corruption or anti-bribery policy? If yes, provide details in brief and if 
available, provide a web-link to the policy. 

 Yes, we strictly prohibit our employees, agents and intermediaries from engaging in any illegal or 
inappropriate payments or benefits, either directly or indirectly, that may be perceived as an attempt to 
gain undue advantages for our business operations. the policy is available at the Company’s website at  
https://www.adorwelding.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/05/anti-Bribery-and-anti-Corruption-policy.
pdf 

5. Number of Directors / KMps / employees / workers, against whom disciplinary action was taken by any law 
enforcement agency for the charges of bribery / corruption:      
      

Category
Fy 2022-23 
(Current Fy)

Fy 2021-22 
(previous Fy)

Directors No Directors / KMps / employees / workers were involved in bribery / corruption, both, in FY23 and FY22. Hence, 
no action was taken by any law enforcement agency.KMps

employees

Workers
           

            

https://www.adorwelding.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/05/Anti-Bribery-and-Anti-Corruption-Policy.pdf
https://www.adorwelding.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/05/Anti-Bribery-and-Anti-Corruption-Policy.pdf


92

CREATING THE BEST WELDING EXPERIENCE

6. Details of complaints with regard to conflict of interest:       
     

particulars Fy  2022-23 
(Current Fy)

Fy 2021-22 
(previous Fy)

Number remarks Number remarks

Number of complaints received in relation to issues of Conflict of 
Interest of the Directors

NIL Na NIL Na

Number of complaints received in relation to issues of Conflict of 
Interest of KMps

NIL Na NIL Na

     

7. provide details of any corrective action taken or underway, on issues related to fines / penalties / action 
taken by regulators / law enforcement agencies / judicial institutions,on cases of corruption and conflicts 
of interest 

 Not applicable

LeaDerSHIp INDICatorS
           
1. awareness programmes conducted for value chain partners on any of the principles during the financial 

year:            

total number of awareness 
programmes held

topics / principles 
covered under the 

training

% of value chain partners covered (by value of business done with 
such partners), under the awareness programmes

No Na Na
         

2. Does the entity have processes in place to avoid / manage conflict of interests, involving members of the 
Board? (yes / No) If yes, provide details of the same. 

 Yes, the Company has a Code of Conduct for Board of Directors and senior management personnel, 
which provides clear guidelines for avoiding and disclosing actual or potential conflict of interest 
with the Company. the Company receives an annual declaration from its Board of Directors and 
senior management personnel in the entities they are interested in and ensures requisite approvals, 
as required under the applicable laws, are taken prior to entering into transactions with each entities. 
the policy is available on the Company’s website at https://www.adorwelding.com/wp-content/
uploads/2023/02/Code-of-Conduct-for-Directors-Senior-Managerial-personnels-1.pdf 

prINCIpLe 2: Businesses should provide goods and services in a manner that is sustainable and safe

eSSeNtIaL INDICatorS
 
1. percentage of r&D and capital expenditure (CapeX) investments in specific technologies to improve the 

environmental and social impacts of product and processes to total r&D and CapeX investments made 
by the entity, respectively.           
 

type Current Fy previous Fy Details of improvements in environmental and social impacts

r&D and
CapeX

environmental and Social impact assessment is one of the key inputs for the new product development /  process changes.  
Capital expenditure and r&D spends incurred by the Company embeds cost incurred to mitigate environmental &   
social hazards. these are inseparable cost of the projects and hence separately identifying such cost is not feasible.

https://www.adorwelding.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/02/Code-of-Conduct-for-Directors-Senior-Managerial-Personnels-1.pdf
https://www.adorwelding.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/02/Code-of-Conduct-for-Directors-Senior-Managerial-Personnels-1.pdf
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2.a.Does the entity have procedures in place for sustainable sourcing? (yes / No)

 the Company focuses on eliminating / minimizing restricted raw materials from their products. the Company 
has a strong process to control the entry of hazardous material into products.

 Currently, the Company mostly deals with vendors, who are ISo Compliant, as a basis / with the presumption 
that they comply to the environmental norms, required by ISo Guidelines. However, in order to create a 
sustainable value chain, we have issued a Supply Chain Management Sustainability policy that has come 
into effect from March 01, 2023. embedded in it, is a Supplier Code of Conduct, which will help us to take 
our sustainability efforts towards our value chain partners as well. the policy and Code of Conduct can be 
accessed at https://www.adorwelding.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/06/Supply-Chain-Management-
Sustainability-policy.pdf and https://www.adorwelding.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/06/Supplier-Code-of-
Conduct.pdf 

  b. If yes, what percentage of inputs were sourced sustainably?

 Not applicable 

3. Describe the processes in place, to safely reclaim your products for reusing, recycling and disposing at 
the end of life, for

 (a) plastics (including packaging),

(b) e-waste,           

(c) Hazardous waste & 

(d) other waste.

 80% of the turnover of the Company is welding cosumables that are used up in welding process. Hence, 
the Company does not have a process in place to reclaim the products. However, the Company does 
encourage all its customers to dispose off its products through government authorized Hazardous and Waste 
Disposal facilities, after end of their useful life. also, the company encourages the customers, to safely dispose 
off the packing materials used for different products in an environmentally friendly way.

4. Whether extended producer responsibility (epr) is applicable to the entity’s activities (yes / No). If yes, 
whether the waste collection plan is in line with the extended producer responsibility (epr) plan submitted 
to pollution Control Boards? If not, provide steps taken to address the same.

 extended producer responsibility (epr) is not applicable to the Company. 

LeaDerSHIp INDICatorS

1. Has the entity conducted Life Cycle perspective / assessments (LCa) for any of its products (for manufacturing 
industry) or for its services (for service industry)? If yes, provide details in the following format? 

 No            

NIC Code Name of the 
product /
Service

% of total 
turnover 

contributed

Boundary, for which the 
Life Cycle perspective/

assessment was conducted

Whether 
conducted by 
independent 

external agency 
(yes / No)

results communicated in 
public domain (yes /No) 

If yes,provide the  
web-link.

Na
  

https://www.adorwelding.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/06/Supply-Chain-Management-Sustainability-Policy.pdf
https://www.adorwelding.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/06/Supply-Chain-Management-Sustainability-Policy.pdf
https://www.adorwelding.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/06/Supplier-Code-Of-Conduct.pdf
https://www.adorwelding.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/06/Supplier-Code-Of-Conduct.pdf
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2. If there are any significant social or environmental concerns and / or risks arising from production or 
disposal of your products / services,as identified in the Life Cycle perspective / assessments (LCa) or 
through any other means, briefly describe the same along-with action taken to mitigate the same. 

 No           

Name of product / Service Description of the risk / concern action taken

Na
     

3. percentage of recycled or reused input material to total material (by value) used in production (for 
manufacturing industry) or providing services (for service industry).     
       

Indicate input material recycled or re-used input material to total material

Fy 2022-23 
Current Financial year

Fy 2021-22 
previous Financial year

resource efficiency forms an integral part of our environmental strategy. through our continuous efforts, we strive to meet the needs of 
our customers. In doing so, we optimise our resource management approach to efficiently utilise the raw materials and minimise material 
waste.

            

4.  of the products and packaging reclaimed at end of life of products, amount (in metric tonnes) reused, 
recycled and safely disposed, as per the following format:      
     

Fy 2022-23 
Current Financial year

Fy 2021-22 
previous Financial year

re-used recycled Safely 
Disposed

re-used recycled Safely 
Disposed

plastics (including packaging)

Na
e-waste

Hazardous waste

other waste
           

5. reclaimed products and their packaging materials (as percentage of products sold) for each product 
category. 

             

Indicate product 
category

reclaimed products and their packaging materials as % of total products sold in respective category

Not applicable
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prINCIpLe 3: Businesses should respect and promote the well-being of all employees, including 
those in their value chains          
 

eSSeNtIaL INDICatorS

1.a. Details of measures for the well-being of employees:      
 

Category % of employees covered by

total (a) Health Insurance accident 
Insurance

Maternity Benefits paternity Benefits Day Care facilities

Number 
(B)

% (B / a) Number 
(C)

% (C / a) Number 
(D)

% (D / a) Number 
(e)

% (e / a) Number 
(F)

% (F / a)

permanent employees

Male 565 565 100 565 100 - - 565 100 - -

Female 31 31 100 31 100 31 100 - - - -

total 596 596 100 596 100 31 5 565 95 - -

other than permanent 
employees

Male - - - - - - - - - - -

Female - - - - - - - - - - -

total - - - - - - - - - - -
  

b. Details of measures for the well-being of workers:        
     

Category % of workers covered by

total (a) Health Insurance accident 
Insurance

Maternity Benefits paternity Benefits Day Care Facilities

Number 
(B)

% (B / a) Number 
(C)

% (C / a) Number 
(D)

% (D / a) Number 
(e)

% (e / a) Number 
(F)

% (F / a)

permanent workers

Male - - - - - - - - - - -

Female - - - - - - - - - - -

total - - - - - - - - - - -

other than permanent 
workers

Male 624 - - 624 100 - - - - - -

Female 28 - - 28 100 - - - - - -

total 652 - - 652 100 - - - - - -

the Company ensures that all the Statutory Benefits are extended to Contract Workforce.    
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2. Details of retirement benefits, for Current Financial year and previous Financial year.   
          

Benefits

Fy 2022-23 
Current Financial year

Fy 2021-22 
previous Financial year

No.of 
employees 
covered as 
a % of total 
employees

No.of workers 
covered as a 

% of 
total workers

Deducted & 
deposited with 
the authority 

(y/N/Na)

No.of 
employees 
covered as 
a % of total 
employees

No.of workers 
covered as a % 
of total workers

Deducted & 
deposited with 
the authority 

(y/N/Na)

pF 99 100 Y 100 100 Y

Gratuity 100 100 Y 100 100 Y

eSI 8 100 Y 12 100 Y

others –please specify - Na Na - Na -

the Company ensures that all the Statutory Benefits are extended to Contract Workforce.    
             

3. accessibility of workplaces: 

 are the premises / offices of the entity accessible to differently abled employees and workers, as per the 
requirements of the rights of persons with Disabilities act, 2016? If not, whether any steps are being taken 
by the entity in this regard.

 Yes, even though the Company has no employee or worker with a disability in active employment, the 
premises of the company including the factory premises are accessible to differently abled employees and 
workers, except head office & sales offices.

4. Does the entity have an equal opportunity policy as per the rights of persons with Disabilities act, 2016? 
If so, provide a web-link to the policy.

 Yes, the policy is available on the Company’s website at https://www.adorwelding.com/wp-content/
uploads/2023/05/equal-opportunity-policy.pdf

5. return to work and retention rates of permanent employees and workers, that took parental leave. 
            

Gender
permanent employees permanent workers

return to work rate retention rate return to work rate retention rate

Male 100% 100% 100% 100%

Female 100% 100% 100% 100%

total 100% 100% 100% 100%
      

6. Is there a mechanism available to receive & redress grievances, for the following categories of employees 
& worker? If yes, give details of the mechanism in brief.       
      

Category yes / No (If yes,then give details of the mechanism in brief)

permanent Workers Yes, the Company has mechanism to redress grievances, namely Whistle Blower policy. 
the concern can also be raised through email. all concerns are investigated by a team of 
investigators and appropriate action is taken.

other than permanent Workers

permanent employees

other than permanent employees
             

https://www.adorwelding.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/05/Equal-Opportunity-Policy.pdf
https://www.adorwelding.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/05/Equal-Opportunity-Policy.pdf
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7. Membership of employees and worker in association(s) or unions recognised by the listed entity:  
           

Category Fy 2022-23 
(Current Financial year)

Fy 2021-22 
(previous Financial year)

total 
employees 
/ workers in 
respective 
category 

(a)

No. of employees / 
workers in respective 

category,who are part of 
association(s) or union 

(B)

% (B / a) total 
employees/
workers in 
respective 
category 

(C)

No. of employees 
/ workers in 
respective 

category,who 
are part of 

association(s) or 
union (D)

% (D/C)

total permanent employees
    - Male - - - - - -
    - Female - - - - - -
total permanent Workers
    - Male - - - - - -
    - Female - - - - - -

   

8. Details of training given to employees and workers:       
      

Category Fy 2022-23 Current Financial year Fy 2021-22 previous Financial year
total (a) on Health & Safety 

Measures
on Skill upgradation total (D) on Health & Safety 

Measures
on Skill upgradation

No. 
(B)

% (B/ a) No. 
(C)

% (C /a) No. 
(e)

% (e / D) No. (F) % (F / D)

employees
Male 565 270 48 157 28 507 264 52 284 56
Female 31 7 23 7 23 30 18 60 11 37
total 596 277 46 164 28 537 282 53 295 55

Workers
Male

although the Company does not have any permanent workers, all the contract workers are provided with training and 
awareness programs for their safety and skills upgradation

Female
total

             

9. Details of performance and career development reviews of employees and worker:   
          

Category Fy 2022-23 
Current Financial year

Fy 2021-22 
previous Financial year

total (a) No. (B) % (B / a) total (C) No. (D) % (D / C)
employees

Male 565 558 99 507 485 96
Female 31 29 94 30 24 80
total 596 587 98 537 509 95

Workers

Male
Na NaFemale

total

 all the employees undergo performance and Career Development reviews, through its pMS (performance 
Management System). the Company has a robust It tool to conduct the same. Discussions are carried out 
periodically and feedback for development is provided. 
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10. Health and safety management system:        

a. Whether an occupational health & safety management system has been implemented by the entity? 
(yes / No). If yes, the coverage of such system?

 the Company has a functioning system for health & safety managemnent implemented for employees 
and workers. the employees are given appropriate training regarding the same. the coverage of this 
system is for 100% of employees and workers, as well as non-permanent contract workers 

b. What are the processes used to identify work-related hazards and assess risks on a routine and non-
routine basis by the entity?

 the Company has its HIra (Hazard Identification and risk analysis) system in place, which is reviewed and 
updated regularly, which forms the basis of risk assessment at workplace.

c. Whether you have processes for workers to report the work related hazards and to remove themselves 
from such risks. (y/N)

 every location of the Company has a designated Safety officer. the workers and employees can report 
such hazards to the Safety officer and appropriate measures to avert such hazards in the future are taken. 
also, regular trainings are given to all the employees and workers to avoid risks and to remove them from 
such situations. Safety audits are carried out every alternate year by a third party to ensure highest level 
of safety. Further, there are also safety meetings, near miss / unsafe form and tool box meetings, that are 
carried out regularly

d. Do the employees / worker of the entity have access to non-occupational medical and healthcare 
services? (yes / No)

 all the locations of the Company have a visiting doctor for regular health check up including eye check 
ups. also, the Company has tie-ups with hospitals in the vicinity of the area, where it operates in case 
of any future medical emergencies. Further, the company has provided Mediclaim Facility to all its 
employees. 

11. Details of safety related incidents, in the following format:       
      

Safety Incident / Number Category Fy 2022-23 
Current Financial year

Fy 2021-22 
previous Financial year

Lost time Injury Frequency rate (LtIFr) (per one 
million-person hours worked)

employees - -

Workers - -

total recordable work-related injuries employees - 6

Workers (Contract Workers) 39 56

No. of fatalities employees - -

Workers - -

High consequence work-related injury or  
ill-health (excluding fatalities)

employees - -

Workers - -

 Note: Most of these injuries were minor in nature and treated with first aid.    
 

12. Describe the measures taken by the entity to ensure a safe and healthy work place.

 the Company has a policy integrated for Quality, Health, Safety & environment in place at all its factory 
locations. the policy is issued in accordance with ISo requirement. the premises of the Company are also 
audited every year by ISo auditors.
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 the Company also carries out Safety audit, alternate year, through Competent authority (as required under 
the Factories act).

 For Health of the employees and Contract Workers, Health Check-up Camps including eye Check-ups are 
organized at the plants. there is also a visiting Medical practitioner at every plant along with tie-ups with 
hospitals in the vicinity of the plant for any emergency cases.

 Further, various measures such as, Class room safety training, shop floor safety training, tool box talk , Safety 
discussion, safety meeting, safety inspection, safety induction, Contractors meeting, safety observation & 
unsafe identification, awareness drills, safety campaign, recording of unsafe conditions & near miss cases, 
Display of signage boards along with providing protective gear is / are done.     
        

13. Number of Complaints on the following, made by employees and workers:    
         

topic Fy 2022-23 
(Current Financial year)

Fy 2021-22 
(previous Financial year)

Filed 
during the 

year

pending resolution at 
the end of year

remarks Filed 
during the 

year

pending resolution at 
the end of year

remarks

Working Conditions - - - - - - - -

Health & Safety - - - - - - - -
     

14. assessments for the year:           
  

topic % of your plants and offices that were assessed  (by entity or statutory authorities or  
third parties)

Health and Safety practices 100

Working Conditions 100
            

15. provide details of any corrective action taken or underway to address safety-related incidents (if any) 
and on significant risks / concerns arising from assessments of health & safety practices and working 
conditions.            

 For the safety related incidents a root cause analysis is done by the team, which is monitored and reviewed 
by the central quality & safety team. Corrective measures, in various forms, based on the root cause is taken 
(like elimination of man machine interaction, inadequate guarding etc.). the corrective action is shared in the 
form of horizontal deployment with all the manufacturing locations for assessment and implementation. 
            

LeaDerSHIp INDICatorS
             

1.  Does the entity extend any life insurance or any compensatory package in the event of death of (a) 
employees (y/N) (B) Workers (y/N). 

a.  employees (Y/N): Yes, Group term Life Insurance (GtLI)

b.  Workers (Y/N): Yes, Group term Life Insurance (GtLI)       
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2.  provide the measures undertaken by the entity to ensure that statutory dues have been deducted and 
deposited by the value chain partners.

 the entity ensures adherence to statutory compliances related to workers, such as timely wage payment and 
provident Fund. In case of non-compliances stringent actions are taken against defaulter business partner.

3. provide the number of employees / workers having suffered high consequence work- related injury /  
ill-health / fatalities (as reported in Q11 of essential Indicators above), who have been are rehabilitated 
and placed in suitable employment or whose family members have been placed in suitable employment:

Category

total no. of affected  
employees / workers

No. of employees / workers that are rehabilitated 
and placed in suitable employment or whose family 
members have been placed in suitable employment

Fy 2022-23 
(Current Financial year)

Fy 2021-22 
(previous Financial year)

Fy 2022-23  
(Current Financial year)

Fy 2021-22  
(previous Financial year)

employees Nil Nil Nil Nil

Workers Nil Nil Nil Nil
      

4. Does the entity provide transition assistance programs to facilitate continued employability and the 
management of career endings resulting from retirement or termination of employment? (yes/ No)

 No, However we retain few employees post retirement, either as consultants or extend their employment.

5. Details on assessment of value chain partners:        
     

topic % of value chain partners (by value of business done with such partners) that were assessed

Health & Safety practices Nil

Working Condition Nil
           

6. provide details of any corrective actions taken or underway to address significant risks / concerns, arising 
from assessments of health and safety practices and working conditions of value chain partners. 

 Nil             

prINCIpLe 4: Businesses should respect the interests of and be responsive to all its stakeholders

eSSeNtIaL INDICatorS

1. Describe the processes for identifying key stakeholder groups of the entity.

 Stakeholders are identified on the basis of their immediate impact on the operations and working of the 
Company. Currently, these groups include internal as well as external group of stakeholders and are identified 
as Shareholder, employees & Workers and finally Value Chain partners, which include vendors as well as 
customers.
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2. List stakeholder groups identified as key for your entity and the frequency of engagement with each 
stakeholder group.           
 

Stakeholder Group Whether identified 
as Vulnerable 

& Marginalized 
Group (yes / No)

Channels of 
communication 

(email,SMS, 
Newspaper, pamphlets, 

advertisement, 
Community Meetings, 
Notice Board, Website), 

other

Frequency of 
engagement 

(annually / Half yearly 
/ Quarterly / others –

please specify)

purpose & scope 
of engagement 
including key 

topics & concerns, 
raised during such 

engagement

Shareholders No annual General Meeting, 
Shareholders Meeting, 
email, Letters, Website

annual, periodic Feedback on 
operations & 
performance

Investors (other than shareholders) No Investors Meetings, email annual, periodic Feedback on 
operations & 
performance

employees and Workers No emails, Calls, MD’s 
Communication

regular employee 
engagement

Value Chain partners No email, Surveys annual engagements, Surverys

Communities No CSr initiatives & 
interventions

on-going Local development 
& touching lives of 

people.
  

LeaDerSHIp INDICatorS

1. provide the processes for consultation between stakeholders and the Board on economic,environmental, 
& social topics or if consultation is delegated, how is feedback from such consultations, provided to the 
Board.

 We believe that consultation with our stakeholders is an ongoing process, and our leadership takes the lead 
by engaging with them regularly across various platforms. additionally, we have established a Corporate 
Social responsibility Committee at the Board level that reviews progress periodically. Moreover, we provide 
shareholders with the opportunity to interact with all board members on an annual basis during annual 
General Meeting. this enables us to keep a constant pulse on the needs and concerns of our stakeholders 
and ensures that we remain accountable to them

2. Whether stakeholder consultation is used to support the identification & management of environmental, 
and social topics (yes / No). If so, provide details of instances as to how the inputs received from stakeholders 
on these topics were incorporated into policies and activities of the entity.   

 Yes, there have been many instances in which Company has inculcated these feedbacks into 
planning. 

3. provide details of instances of engagement with & actions taken to, address the concerns of vulnerable 
/ marginalized stakeholder groups.

 the Company identifies the disadvantaged, vulnerable and marginalised stakeholders on an ongoing basis. 
any new proposed project or expansion is mapped by engaging the stakeholder proactively, specifically via 
Corporate Social responsibility activities. 
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prINCIpLe 5: Businesses should respect and promote human rights

eSSeNtIaL INDICatorS

1. employees & workers who have been provided training on human rights issues and policy(ies) of the entity, 
in the following format:          

Category
Fy  2022-23 Current Financial year Fy 2021-22 previous Financial year

total (a) No.of employees /
Workers covered (B)

% (B / a) total (C) No.of employees /
Workers covered (D)

% (D / C)

employees
permanent 596 216 36 537 187 35
other than permanent - - - 7 - -
total 596 216 36 544 187 34

Workers
permanent - - - - - -
other than permanent 652 - - 653 - -
total 652 - - 653 - -

Notes:
1.  the trainings on human rights are a part of the Code of Conduct and recorded data is available for the 

financial year 2022-23 only.
2.  For other categories of employees and workers, the Code of Conduct policy is available for their reference on 

the Company’s website and on the Company’s intranet portal. they are expected to read and understand 
this Code, uphold these standards in day-to-day activities, and comply with: all applicable laws; rules and 
regulations; and all applicable policies and procedures adopted by the Company.    
         

2. Details of minimum wages paid to employees and workers, in the following format:   
          

Category

Fy 2022-23  
Current Financial year

Fy 2021-22  
previous Financial year

total (a)
equal to minimum 

Wage
More than 

Minimum Wage
total (D)

equal to minimum 
Wage

More than 
Minimum Wage

No. 
(B)

%  
(B / a)

No. 
(C)

%  
(C / a)

No.  
(e)

%  
(e / D)

No.  
(F)

%  
(F / D)

employees
permanent
Male 565 - - 565 100 507 - - 507 100
Female 31 - - 31 100 30 - - 30 100
other than permanent
Male - - - 6 - 7 - - - -
Female - - - - - - - - - -

Workers
permanent
Male - - - - - - - - - -
Female - - - - - - - - - -
other than permanent
Male 624 494 79 130 21 630 424 67 206 33
Female 28 20 71 8 29 30 20 67 10 33

the Company is providing either equal to or more than the statutorily required minimum wages to all its employees 
and workers, whether permanent or temporary and ensures equal remuneration for equal work.
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3. Details of remuneration /salary / wages, in the following format:      
       

Category

Male Female

Number Median remuneration /  
salary / wages of respective 

category

Number Median remuneration / salary 
/ wages of 

respective category

Board of Directors (BoD) 8 10,92,716 3 10,87,716

Key Managerial personnel (KMp) 2 45,84,000 - -

employees, other than BoD and KMp 565 5,22,891 31 5,43,000

Workers - - - -
     

4. Do you have a focal point (Individual / Committee) responsible for addressing human rights impacts or 
issues caused or contributed to by the business? - (yes / No) 

 Yes, Head - Hr is responsible for addressing human rights impacts or issues caused or contributed to, by the 
business.

5. Describe the internal mechanisms in place to redress grievances, related to human rights issues. 

 Human rights principles, as enshrined in the United Nations Global Compact (“UNGC”), are embedded 
in our core values and system. We have framework that focuses on good governance, our commitment 
to abiding by each law, ensuring timely payment of employee salaries and providing equal opportunities 
without exception. Grievances are routed to Human resource Function. Necessary action is taken in line with 
underlying polices and regulations, applicable to the workplace. the closure is intimated to the aggrieved 
person.             

6. Number of Complaints on the following made by employees and workers:    
         

particulars

Fy 2022-23  
Current Financial year

Fy 2021-22 
previous Financial year

Filed during 
the year

pending 
resolution at 

the 
end of year

remarks Filed during 
the year

pending 
resolution at 

the 
end of year

remarks

Sexual Harassment - - - - - -

Discrimination at workplace - - - - - -

Child Labour - - - - - -

Forced Labour / Involuntary Labour - - - - - -

Wages - - - - - -

other human rights related issues - - - - - -
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7. Mechanisms to prevent adverse consequences to the complainant in discrimination and harassment 
cases.             

 the Company has a prevention of Sexual Harassment policy (poSH) and a committee is set up for such 
cases. 

 the Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at the workplace and has adopted a comprehensive 
policy on preventing, prohibiting and redressing sexual harassment of women in the workplace. We have 
established an Internal Committee (IC) in compliance with the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 
(prevention, prohibition and redressal) act, 2013. Members of IC are responsible for conducting inquiries 
related to such complaints. throughout the process, IC will safeguard the identities of all parties involved, as 
well as the contents of complaints and inquiry proceedings.

8. Do human rights requirements form part of your business agreements and contracts? (yes / No)

 Yes, all the business agreement and contracts which are entered into by the Company with any party include 
relevant clauses on the affirmation of applicable regulatory requirements, which include human rights.

9. assessments for the year:           
  

Category
% of your plants and offices that were assessed (by entity or statutory authorities or 

third parties)

Child labour

100

Forced / involuntary labour

Sexual Harassment

Discrimination at workplace

Wages

others – please specify
           

10. provide details of any corrective actions taken or underway to address significant risks/concerns arising 
from the assessments at Question 9 above.

 Not applicable 

LeaDerSHIp INDICatorS

1. Details of a business process being modified / introduced, as a result of addressing human rights 
grievances / complaints. 

 the Company is of the belief that it has upheld the basic principles of human rights in all its dealings. the 
Company regularly creates awareness among its employees on the Code of Conduct, through various 
training programmes.

2. Details of the scope and coverage of any Human rights due-diligence conducted. 

 Human rights due-diligence will be conducted in FY 2023-24.
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3. Is the premise / office of the entity accessible to differently abled visitors,as per the requirements of the 
rights of persons with Disabilities act, 2016?

 planned steps are being taken to create the infrastructure support for persons with Disabilities in offices & 
plants. 

4. Details on assessment of value chain partners:        
     

particulars
% of value chain partners (by value of business done with such partners) that 

were assessed

Sexual Harassment

Nil

Discrimination at workplace

Child Labour

Forced Labour / Involuntary Labour

Wages

others – please specify
             
 

5. provide details of any corrective actions taken or underway, to address significant risks / concerns arising 
from the assessments at Question 4 above.

 Not applicable            
 

prINCIpLe 6: Businesses should respect and make efforts to protect and restore the environment

eSSeNtIaL INDICatorS

1. Details of total energy consumption (in joules or multiples) and energy intensity, in the following format: 
           

parameter
Fy 2022-23 

(Current Financial year)
Fy 2021-22 

(previous Financial year)

total electricity consumption (a) 49723498.80 47671284.24

total fuel consumption (B) 30959829.46 27047463.10

energy consumption through other sources (C) 2133482.40 2165058.00

total energy consumption (a+B+C) 82816810.66 76883805.34

energy intensity per rupee of turnover (total energy consumption (in Megajoules) /
turnover in rupees (in lakhs) )

0.0106618 0.0116230

energy intensity (optional)–the relevant metric may be selected by the entity - -
       

 Note: Indicate if any independent assessment / evaluation / assurance has been carried out by an external 
agency? (Y/N) if yes, name of the external agency.

 No



106

CREATING THE BEST WELDING EXPERIENCE

2. Does the entity have any sites / facilities identified as Designated Consumers (DCs) under the performance, 
achieve and trade (pat) Scheme of the Government of India? (y/N) If yes, disclose whether targets set 
under pat scheme have been achieved. In case targets have not been achieved, provide the remedial 
action taken, if any.

 No, the entity does not have any facilities under pat Scheme 

3. provide details of the following disclosures related to water, in the following format:   
         

parameter
Fy 2022-23 

(Current Financial year)
Fy 2021-22 

(previous Financial year)
Water withdrawal by source (in kilolitres)
(i) Surface water - -
(ii) Groundwater 36813.29 37883.63
(iii) third party water 25029 18116
(iv) Seawater / desalinated water - -
(v) others - -
total volume of water withdrawal (in kilolitres) (i + ii + iii + iv + v) 61842.29 55999.63
total volume of water consumption (in kilolitres) 60042.29 54199.63
Water intensity per rupee of turnover (Water consumed / turnover) 0.0000077 0.0000082
Water intensity (optional) – the relevant metric may be selected by the entity - -

 Note: Indicate if any independent assessment / evaluation / assurance has been carried out by an external 
agency? (Y / N) if yes, name of the external agency.

 No 

4. Has the entity implemented a mechanism for Zero Liquid Discharge? If yes, provide details of its coverage 
and implementation.

 Zero Liquid Discharge (ZLD) is applicable to / at all the plants of the Company. treated water is used in 
restrooms of the factories and also used for tree / garden and other plantations. However, as the requirement 
of water is very low for the process of manufacturing, the processing at ZLD processor happens just once in a 
month. 

5. please provide details of air emissions (other than GHG emissions) by the entity, in the following format: 
           

parameter
please specify unit Fy 2022-23 

(Current Financial year)
Fy 2021-22  

(previous Financial year)
Nox

We do not have meters / instruments to measure this, hence these are not 
being monitored currently.

Sox
particulate Matter (pM)
persistent organic pollutants (pop)
Volatile organic Compounds (VoC)
Hazardous air pollutants (Hap)
others–please specify

 Note: Indicate if any independent assessment / evaluation / assurance has been carried out by an external 
agency? (Y/N) If yes, name of the external agency.

 No
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6. provide details of greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 1 & Scope 2 emissions) & its intensity, in the following 
format: 

parameter
unit Fy 2022-23 (Current 

Financial year)
Fy 2021-22 

(previous Financial 
year)

total Scope 1 emissions (Break-up of the GHG into Co2, CH4, N2o, 
HFCs, pFCs, SF6, NF3, if available)

Metric tonnes of 
Co2 equivalent

1244.49 1059.15

total Scope 2 emissions (Break-up of the GHG into Co2, CH4, N2o, 
HFCs, pFCs, SF6, NF3, if available)

Metric tonnes of 
Co2 equivalent

8393.59 8047.16

total Scope 1 and Scope 2 emissions per rupee of turnover tonne / rupee 0.0000012408 0.0000013767

total Scope 1 and Scope 2 emission intensity (optional) – the 
relevant metric may be selected by the entity

- -

 Note: Indicate if any independent assessment/ evaluation/assurance has been carried out by an external 
agency? (Y/N), if yes, name of external agency.

 No

7. Does the entity have any project related to reducing Green House Gas emission? If yes, then provide 
details.

 the Company has set up Solar power Generation units at its raipur and Silvassa plants for conservation of 
energy and for reduction of Greenhouse Gas emissions. 

 the Solar power plant set up at raipur has a capacity of 518 KWp, which generated 468841 units, effectively 
reducing GreenHouse Gas emissions by 272 Mt. Similarly, Solar power plant set up at Silvassa has a capacity 
of 115 KWp which generated 132564 units, effectively reducing Greenhouse Gas emissions by 52 Mt.

8. provide details related to waste management by the entity, in the following format:   
         

parameter
Fy 2022-23  

(Current Financial 
year)

Fy 2021-22 
(previous Financial 

year)

total Waste generated (in metric tonnes)

plastic waste (a) 65.40 65.94

e-waste (B) 360.115 100.33

Bio-medical waste (C) - -

Construction & demolition waste (D) - -

Battery waste (e) - -

radioactive waste (F) - -

other Hazardous waste. please specify if any (G) 82.23 74.18

other Non-Hazardous waste generated (H).please specify, if any. (Break-up by 
composition  i.e. by materials relevant to the sector)

1125.69 1284.49

total (a+B + C + D + e + F + G + H) 1633.435 1524.94
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parameter
Fy 2022-23  

(Current Financial 
year)

Fy 2021-22 
(previous Financial 

year)

For each category of waste generated, total waste recovered through recycling, re-using or  
other recovery operations (in metric tonnes)

Category of waste

(i) recycled 1191.09 1349.93

(ii) re-used - -

(iii) other recovery operations - -

total 1191.09 1349.93

For each category of waste generated, total waste disposed by nature of disposal method  
(in metric tonnes)

Category of waste

(i) Incineration - -

(ii) Landfilling 1.03 13.44

(iii) other disposable operations (Sell) 35.91 15.12

total 36.94 28.56

 Note: Indicate if any independent assessment / evaluation / assurance has been carried out by an external 
agency? (Y/N) If yes, name of the external agency.

 No, we are working on a technical solution for replacing existing wooden pallets used for material storage/
movement by eco friendly (Bio-Degradbel) pallets. this will be done in phases with a target to replace all 
pallets across all plants in the next one year. although this will increase the cost of pallets, still “Going Green” 
is treated as the topmost priority by us (the Company). 

9. Briefly describe the waste management practices adopted in your establishments. Describe the strategy 
adopted by your company to reduce usage of hazardous and toxic chemicals in your products and 
processes and the practices adopted to manage such wastes. 

 Company has tied up with the State pollution Control Board recognized vendors, who collect the Hazardous 
Waste from our plant and send it to Common Hazardous Waste treatment, Storage and Disposal Facility of /  
for disposal purpose.

10. If the entity has operations /offices in / around ecologically sensitive areas (such as national parks, 
wildlife sanctuaries, biosphere reserves, wetlands, biodiversity hotspots, forests, coastal regulation zones 
etc.) where environmental approvals / clearances are required, please specify details in the following 
format:            

Sr. 
No.

Location of operations / offices type of operations Whether the conditions of environmental approval/clearance 
are being complied with? (y/N) If no,the reasons thereof & 
corrective action taken, if any.

Na
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11. Details of environmental impact assessments of projects undertaken by the entity, based on applicable 
laws, in the current financial year:          
  

Name and brief 
details of project

eIa Notification 
No.

Date Whether conducted by independent 
external agency (yes / No)

results communicated in 
public domain (yes / No)

relevant Web 
link

- - - - - -

 During FY 2022-23, No environment Impact assessment (eIa) projects, were undertaken.

12. Is the entity compliant with the applicable environmental law / regulations / guidelines in India; such 
as the Water (prevention and Control of pollution) act, air (prevention and Control of pollution) act, 
environment protection act and rules thereunder - (y/N) if not, provide details of all such non compliance, 
in the following format:

 Yes
            

Sr. 
No.

Specify the law / regulation /
guidelines which was not 

complied with

provide details of the 
non- compliance

any fines / penalties / action taken by 
regulatory agencies such as pollution 

control boards or by courts

Corrective action 
taken, if any

Na
             

LeaDerSHIp INDICatorS

1. provide break-up of the total energy consumed (in Joules or multiples) from renewable and non-renewable 
sources, in the following format:          
  

parameter Fy 2022-23 
(Current Financial 

year)

Fy 2021-22 
(previous Financial 

year)

From renewable sources

total electricity consumption (a) - -

total fuel consumption (B) - -

energy consumption through other sources (C) - -

total energy consumed from renewable sources (a+B+C) - -

From non-renewable sources

total electricity consumption (D) - -

total fuel consumption (e) - -

energy consumption through other sources (F) - -

total energy consumed from non-renewable sources (D+e+F) - -

 Note: Indicate if any independent assessment / evaluation / assurance has been carried out by an external 
agency? (Y/N) If yes, name of the external agency.       
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2. provide the following details related to water discharged:       
     

parameter
Fy 2022-23 (Current 

Financial year)
Fy 2021-22 (previous 

Financial year)

Water discharge by destination and level of treatment (in kilolitres)

(i)  to Surface water

Na

  No treatment

  With treatment –please specify level of treatment

(ii)  to Ground water

  No treatment

  With treatment –please specify level of treatment

(iii) to Sea water

  No treatment

  With treatment –please specify level of treatment

(iv)  Sent to third-parties

  No treatment

  With treatment –please specify level of treatment

(v)  others

  No treatment

  With treatment –please specify level of treatment

total water discharged (in kilolitres)

 Note: Indicate if any independent assessment / evaluation / assurance has been carried out by an external 
agency? (Y/N) If yes, name of the external agency.

 No

3. Water withdrawal, consumption and discharge in areas of water stress (in kilolitres): 

 For each facility / plant located in areas of water stress, provide the following information:

 (i) Name of the area
 (ii) Nature of operations
 (iii) Water withdrawal, consumption and discharge in the following format:     

       

parameter
Fy 2022-23 

(Current Financial year)
Fy 2021-22 

(previous Financial 
year)

Water withdrawal by source (in kilolitres)

(i)  Surface water

Na

(ii)  Ground water

(iii)  third party water

(iv)  Sea water / desalinated water

(v)  others

total volume of water withdrawal (in kilolitres)

total volume of water consumption (in kilolitres)

Water intensity per rupee of turnover  (Water consumed / turnover)

Water intensity (optional) – the relevant metric may be selected by the entity
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parameter
Fy 2022-23 

(Current Financial year)
Fy 2021-22 

(previous Financial 
year)

Water discharge by destination and level of treatment (in kilolitres)
(i)  Into Surface water

Na

  No treatment
  With treatment –please specify level of treatment
(ii)  Into Ground water
  No treatment
  With treatment –please specify level of treatment
(iii)  Into Sea water
  No treatment
  With treatment –please specify level of treatment
(iv)  Sent to third-parties
  No treatment
  With treatment –please specify level of treatment
(v)  others
  No treatment
  With treatment –please specify level of treatment
total water discharged (in kilolitres)

 Note: Indicate if any independent assessment / evaluation / assurance has been carried out by an external 
agency? (Y/N) If yes, name of the external agency.

 None of our factories or offices withdraw, consume and discharge water from areas of water stress.
 No independent assessment / evaluation / assurance has been carried out by any external agency.

4. please provide details of total Scope 3 emissions & its intensity, in the following format:   
         

parameter
unit Fy 2022-23 

(Current Financial 
year)

Fy 2021-22 (previous 
Financial year)

total Scope 3 emissions (Break-up of the GHG into Co2, CH4, 
N2o, HFCs, pFCs, SF6, NF3, if available)

Metric tonnes of 
Co2 equivalent

Natotal Scope 3 emissions per rupee of turnover

total Scope 3 emission intensity (optional) – the relevant metric 
may be selected by the entity

 Note: Indicate if any independent assessment / evaluation / assurance has been carried out by an external 
agency? (Y/N) If yes, name of the external agency.

 No

5. With respect to the ecologically sensitive areas reported at Question 10 of essential Indicators above, 
provide details of significant direct & indirect impact of the entity on biodiversity in such areas along with 
prevention and remediation activities.

 Not applicable 

6. If the entity has undertaken any specific initiatives or used innovative technology or solutions to improve 
resource efficiency, or reduce impact due to emissions / effluent discharge / waste generated, please 
provide details of the same as well as outcome of such initiatives, as per the following format:  
          

Sr. 
No.

Initiative undertaken Details of the initiative  
(Web-link, if any, may be provided along-with summary)

outcome of the initiative

Na
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7. Does the entity have a business continuity and disaster management plan? Give details in 100 words / 
web link.            

 emergency plan is prepared at all plants and mock drills are conducted once in six months.

 Following are the major components of the emergency plan:
•		 Emergency	response	team	on	site	consists	of	site	main	controller,	incident	controller,	firefighting	team,	first	

aiders, communications team, power and utility teams.
•		 Responsibilities	are	assigned	to	key	members	of	emergency	response	team.
•		 List	of	Regulatory	agencies	with	names	and	telephone	numbers.
•		 List	of	Local	Hospitals	with	names	and	telephone	numbers	 	 	 	 	 	

     
8. Disclose any significant adverse impact to the environment, arising from the value chain of the entity. 

What mitigation or adaptation measures have been taken by the entity in this regard. 

 there has been no adverse impact to the environment arising from the value chain of the entity, as per our 
understanding.

9. percentage of value chain partners (by value of business done with such partners) that were assessed for 
environmental impacts.          

 Nil            

prINCIpLe 7: Businesses, when engaging in influencing public and regulatory policy, should 
do so in a manner that is responsible and transparent      
 

eSSeNtIaL INDICatorS
           
1. a.  Number of affiliations with trade and industry chambers / associations.

b. List the top 10 trade and industry chambers / associations (determined based on the total members 
of such body) the entity is a member of / affiliated to.       
  

Sr. 
No.

Name of the trade and industry chambers / associations reach of trade and industry chambers / associations 
(State / National)

1 Bombay Chamber of Commerce and Industry (BCCI) State

2 association of Welding products Manufacturers (aWpM) National
             
2. provide details of corrective action taken or underway on any issues related to anti-competitive conduct 

by the entity, based on adverse orders from regulatory authorities.

 No adverse order was received by the Company from regulatory authorities during the Financal Year  
2022-23, hence no corrective action was required to be taken.     
 

LeaDerSHIp INDICatorS

1. Details of public policy positions advocated by the entity:       
 

Sr. No. public policy 
advocated

Method resorted for 
such advocacy

Whether information 
available in public 
domain? (yes / No)

Frequency of review by Board 
(annually / Half yearly / Quarterly / 

others– please specify)

Web Link,if 
available

the Company does not have a separate policy on “policy advocacy”.
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prINCIpLe 8: Businesses should promote inclusive growth & equitable development

eSSeNtIaL INDICatorS

1. Details of Social Impact assessments (SIa) of projects undertaken by the entity, based on applicable laws, 
in the current financial year.          
   

Name & brief 
details of project

SIa Notification 
No.

Date of 
notification

Whether conducted by 
independent external agency 

(yes / No)

results communicated in 
public domain (yes / No)

relevant Web link

Na
             

2. provide information on project(s) for which ongoing rehabilitation and resettlement (r&r) is being 
undertaken by your entity, in the following format:        
      

Sr. No. Name of project for 
which r&r is ongoing

State District No. of project affected 
Families (paFs)

% of paFs covered 
by r&r

amounts paid to paFs in 
the Fy (In INr)

Na
             

3. Describe the mechanisms to receive and redress grievances of the community.

 For FY 2021-22 and 2022-23 we did not have any grievance from the Community. at present, there is no such 
mechanism in place in / with the Company. However, we may plan on developing a mechanism to resolve 
any community grievances in future, if required.

4. percentage of input material (inputs to total inputs by value) sourced from suppliers:   
           

Business Fy 2022-23 
Current Financial year

Fy 2021-22 
previous Financial year

Directly sourced from MSMes / small producers 17% 13%

Sourced directly from within the district & neighbouring districts 34% 38%
      

LeaDerSHIp INDICatorS

1. provide details of actions taken to mitigate any negative social impacts identified in the Social Impact 
assessments (reference: Question 1 of essential Indicators above):     
         

Details of negative social impact identified Corrective action taken

Na Na
        

2. provide the following information on CSr projects, undertaken by your entity in designated aspirational 
districts as identified by government bodies:        
      

Sr. No. State aspirational District amount spent (In INr)

Na
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3.(a)Do you have a preferential procurement policy where you give preference to purchase from suppliers 
comprising marginalized / vulnerable groups? (yes/No)

 No             

 (b) From which marginalized / vulnerable groups do you procure? Na

 (c) What percentage of total procurement (by value) does it constitute? Na

4. Details of the benefits derived and shared from the intellectual properties owned or acquired by your 
entity (in the current financial year), based on traditional knowledge:     
         

Sr. 
No.

Intellectual property based on traditional 
knowledge

owned / acquired (yes /
No)

Benefit shared  
(yes / No)

Basis of calculating 
benefit share

NIL
             

5. Details of corrective actions taken or underway, based on any adverse order in intellectual property 
related disputes, wherein usage of traditional knowledge is involved.     
         

Name of authority Brief of the Case Corrective action taken

NIL
            

6. Details of beneficiaries of CSr projects:         
     

Sr. 
No.

CSr project No. of persons benefitted from CSr projects % of beneficiaries from vulnerable and marginalized groups

Haven’t assessed.

prINCIpLe 9: Businesses should engage with and provide value to their consumers in a responsible 
manner

eSSeNtIaL INDICatorS

1. Describe the mechanisms in place to receive and respond to consumer complaints and feedback.

 Consumer Complaints resolution: 
 a well-established system viz. Customer Care Center (CCC) is in place for dealing with customer feedback and 

complaints. Customers are provided various options to connect with the Company through Zendesk platform, 
Whatsapp. e-mails, telephone, website, social media, feedback forms etc. all complaints are appropriately 
addressed and efforts are taken to resolve the same in a timely manner. around 75% of the complaints were 
related to application issue (lack of knowledge of customer / their welder). the application issues were all 
addressed and resolved within maximum of 48 hours through online consultation or physical visits by technical 
experts from the related plants. all the complaints are efficiently attended by our cross functional team (plant 
Customer Care / plant QC team / plant production / tDC {r&D} team) along with our service team.

 Further, we conduct regular meetings with customer representatives for understanding the nature of difficulties 
faced by our customers. Based on the feedback of representatives, we suggest welding parameters specific 
to the customer’s job, provide demonstration to the welders at customer’s premises as well as replace specific 
lot, if required, in order to satisfactorily resolve the complaints. Corrective & preventive actions are taken and 
shared with the customers as well.
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 Consumer Feedback:
 We do have a system in place to get feedback from our customers, which is through our Sales and Service 

team. a feedback sheet is sent to the customers, to give their views / feedback on our services, including 
product quality, cost and timely delivery, amongst other things. 

 In the said feedback sheet the customer can rate our services in the scale from “poor to excellent” and has 
to also mention their expectations, if any. In addition to this, we also carry out survey through electronic media 
from time-to- time to get customer feedback. Upon receipt of feedbacks, the same are analyzed and a 
suitable action plan is formed for improvements.

 We have not carried-out any consumer survey / consumer satisfaction survey in the last Financial Year 2022-23. 
However, we have collected customer feedback forms / performance letters from our customers / vendors.

2. turnover of products and / services as a percentage of turnover from all products / service that carry 
information about:            
  

particulars as a percentage to total turnover

environmental and social parameters relevant to the product -

Safe and responsible usage 100%

recycling and / or safe disposal 100%
        

3. Number of consumer complaints in respect of the following:      
        

particulars

Fy 2022-23  
(Current Financial year)

remarks Fy 2021-22  
(previous Financial year)

remarks

received 
during the 

year

pending 
resolution at 
end of year

received 
during the 

year

pending 
resolution at 
end of year

Data privacy - - - - - -

advertising - - - - - -

Cyber-Security - - - - - -

Delivery of essential services - - - - - -

restrictive trade practices - - - - - -

Unfair trade practices - - - - - -

other - - - - - -
     

4. Details of instances of product recalls on account of safety issues:     
         

particulars Number reasons for recall

Voluntary recalls - -

Forced recalls - -
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5. Does the entity have a framework / policy on cyber security and risks related to data privacy? (yes / No) 
If available, provide a web-link of the policy. 

 We use Vulnerability assessment and penetration testing (Vapt) for identifying and addressing Cyber Security 
vulnerabilities.

 Vapt is a comprehensive approach to assessing and improving the security of computer systems, networks 
and applications. It involves a combination of vulnerability scanning, vulnerability assessment, and penetration 
testing to identify vulnerabilities and potential security weaknesses in an organization’s digital infrastructure. 

6.  provide details of any corrective actions or underway, on issues to relating advertising, and delivery of 
essential services; cyber security and data privacy of customers; reoccurance of instances of product 
recalls; penalty / action taken by regulatory authorities on safety of product / services:

      Not applicable            
            

LeaDerSHIp INDICatorS

1. Channels / platforms, where information on products and services of the entity can be accessed (provide 
web link, if available).

 the platforms used for the information are Website, annual report, Social Media platforms and Media 
advertisement / publications. Information relating to all the products and services provided by the Company 
are available on the Company’s website at www.adorwelding.com

2. Steps taken to inform and educate consumers about safe and responsible usage of products and / or 
services

 Instructions go alongwith product package / invoice

3. Mechanisms in place to inform consumers of any risk of disruption / discontinuation of essential services.

 Instructions go alongwith product package / invoice

4. Does the entity display product information on the product over & above, what is mandated as per 
local laws? (yes / No / Not applicable) If yes, provide details in brief. Did your entity carry out any survey 
with regard to consumer satisfaction relating to the major products / services of the entity, significant 
locations of operation of the entity or the entity as a whole? (yes / No)

 No, we seek Customer Feedback on a printed form but do not carry out Customer Satisfaction Survey.

5. provide the following information relating to data breaches:

a. Number of instances of data breaches along-with impact 

 Nil

b. percentage of data breaches involving personally identifiable information of customers 

 Nil           
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Independent auditor’s report

to the Members of ador Welding Limited

report on the audit of the Financial Statements

opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying financial statements of ador Welding Limited (‘the Company’), 
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023, the Statement of profit and Loss (including other 
Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flow and the Statement of Changes in equity for the year 
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of the significant accounting policies 
and other explanatory information.

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
financial statements give the information required by the Companies act, 2013 (‘the act’) in the manner so 
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian accounting Standards (‘Ind aS’) specified 
under section 133 of the act read with the Companies (Indian accounting Standards) rules, 2015 and other 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 
2023, and its profit (including other comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes in equity for the 
year ended on that date.

Basis for opinion

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on auditing specified under section 143(10) of 
the act. our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor’s responsibilities for the 
audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance 
with the Code of ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered accountants of India (‘ICaI’) together with the 
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the act 
and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements and the Code of ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit Matters

4. Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit 
of the financial statements of the current period. these matters were addressed in the context of our audit of 
the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate 
opinion on these matters.

5. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our 
report.

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

revenue recognition

refer Notes 1(II)(l), 34 and 60 to the financial statements

revenue from sale of goods (hereinafter referred to as 
“revenue”) is recognized when control of the products 
being sold is transferred to the customer and when 
there are no longer any unfulfilled obligations.
the timing of revenue recognition is relevant to 
the reported performance of the Company. the 
management considers revenue as a key measure for 
evaluation of performance. there is a risk of revenue 
being recorded before control is transferred.

our audit procedures, related to revenue recognition, 
included, but were not limited, to the following:
•  Assessed the appropriateness of the Company’s 

revenue recognition accounting policies in line 
with Ind aS 115 (“revenue from contracts with 
customers”) and testing thereof.

•  Evaluated the design and operating effectiveness 
of Company’s controls (including the automated 
controls) around revenue recognition (including 
rebates / discounts).
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Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

revenue recognition

refer Notes 1(II)(l), 34 and 60 to the financial statements

the Company has three reportable business
segments: i) Consumables ii) equipment and 
automation; and iii) Flares and process equipment 
Division (FpeD).
the timing of recognition of revenue in case of sale 
of consumables is when control over the same is 
transferred to the customer, which is mainly upon 
delivery. the performance obligations are fulfilled at 
the time of dispatch, delivery or upon formal customer 
acceptance depending on customer terms i.e., 
performance obligations are satisfied at a point in 
time.
the performance obligations in case of FpeD, are 
satisfied over the time, whereas in case of equipment, 
performance obligations are satisfied at a point in 
time.

•  Tested the effectiveness of such controls over 
revenue cut off at year-end by selecting samples 
and verified the same with underlying documents, 
which included shipping documents, loading 
receipt, gate register. We carried out a combination 
of procedures involving inquiry and observation, 
reperformance and inspection of evidence in 
respect of operation of these controls.

•  Inspected the samples of sales return and checked 
the appropriateness of sales return accounted in 
the books by verifying its approval from authorized 
person and goods inward note.

•  Selected a sample of continuing and new contracts 
and performed the following procedures.
o  read, analyzed and identified the performance 

obligations in these contracts.
o  Compared these performance obligations with 

that identified and recorded by the Company.
o Considered the terms of the contracts to 

determine the transaction price including any 
variable consideration to verify the transaction 
price used to compute revenue and to 
test the basis of estimation of the variable 
consideration; and

o  Determined the allocation of transaction price 
to identified performance obligations in the 
contract.

•  Scrutinized sales ledgers to verify completeness of 
sales transactions.

• We performed substantive testing by extracting 
samples of revenue transactions recorded during 
the year by verifying the underlying documents, 
which included shipping documents, lorry receipt, 
sales order, approved price list, proper recording in 
ledger of receivables etc.

•  Performed analytical procedures on current year 
revenue based on overall revenue recognized, 
customer wise analysis, product wise analysis and 
where appropriate, conducting further enquiries 
and testing.

•  Obtained balance confirmations for samples of 
customers selected and reviewed the reconciling 
items, if any;

•  Tested the related disclosures made in financial 
statements in accordance with Ind aS 115.
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Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Indirect tax balances and litigations

refer Notes 1(II)(r), 13 and 44 to the financial statements

Indirect tax balances and litigations

as at 31 March 2023, the Company has balances 
with indirect tax authorities aggregating to rs. 2,442 
lakhs (pY rs. 2,406 lakhs) net of provision rs. 1,389 lakhs  
(pY 1,353 lakhs) and has contingent liabilities amounting 
rs. 2,285 lakhs (pY rs. 2,344 lakhs) pertaining to various 
indirect tax matters pending before appropriate 
authorities. Based on a detailed assessment done 
by the management of recoverability of aforesaid 
balances.

the amounts involved are material and the application 
of accounting principles as given under Ind aS 37, 
provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent assets, 
in order to determine the amount to be recognised as 
a liability or to be disclosed as a contingent liability, in 
each case, is inherently subjective, and needs careful 
evaluation and judgement to be applied by the 
management.

the eventual outcome of the said legal proceedings 
is dependent on the outcome of future events and 
unexpected adverse outcomes could significantly 
impact the Company’s reported profits and balance 
sheet position.

We considered this as Key audit matter due to the 
materiality of the amounts involved, inherent high 
estimation uncertainty and significant judgements as 
stated above.

•  Obtained an understanding of the management 
process for identification of indirect tax matters that 
are under litigations or involve balances with the 
authorities that are doubtful of recovery, assessment 
of accounting treatment for each such litigation 
identified in accordance with the principles of 
under Ind aS 37, and measurement of amounts 
involved in such litigations and assessments.

•  Evaluated the design and tested the operating 
effectiveness of key controls around above 
process.

•  Obtained and read the Company’s accounting 
policies in respect of balances, provisions, and 
contingent liabilities to assess compliance with 
accounting standards.

•  Obtained list of indirect tax balances, litigations and 
claims as at 31 March 2023 from management 
and reviewed their assessment of the likelihood of 
outflow of economic resources being probable, 
possible or remote in respect of the litigations 
and recoverability of balances with government 
authorities. this involved assessing the probability of 
an unfavourable outcome of a given proceeding 
and testing the computation of amounts involved, 
through inspection of underlying documents and 
communications with the tax authorities.

•  Evaluated assessment of the management 
with respect to long standing balances with 
authorities which have been considered good and 
recoverable as at 31 March 2023.

•  Engaged auditor’s experts, who obtained an 
understanding of the management’s assessment 
of the recoverability, conducted discussions with 
the management, and considered relevant tax 
laws and available precedents to validate the 
conclusions made by the management.

• Assessed and evaluated the adequacy and 
appropriateness of the disclosures made by the 
management in the accompanying financial 
statements.
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 Information other than the Financial Statements and auditor’s report thereon

6. the Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. the other information comprises 
the information included in the annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s 
report thereon.

 our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form 
of assurance conclusion thereon.

 In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, 
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or 
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we 
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required 
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

 responsibilities of Management and those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

7. the accompanying financial statements have been approved by the Company’s Board of Directors. the 
Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the act with respect 
to the preparation and presentation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial 
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of 
the Company in accordance with the Ind aS specified under section 133 of the act and other accounting 
principles generally accepted in India. this responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of the act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for 
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting 
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation 
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the 
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error.

8. In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using 
the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intend to liquidate the Company 
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

9. those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

 auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Statements

10. our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinion. reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with Standards on auditing will always detect a material misstatement when 
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 
basis of these financial statements.

11. as part of an audit in accordance with Standards on auditing, specified under section 143(10) of the act, we 
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence 
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. the risk of not detecting a material 
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misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the act we are also responsible for 
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference 
to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls;

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management;

• Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If 
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report 
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. 
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern;

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a 
manner that achieves fair presentation;

12. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control 
that we identify during our audit.

13. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards.

14. From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that 
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the 
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public 
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should 
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be 
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

 other Matter

15. the comparative financial information presented in the accompanying financial statements includes the 
financial information of erstwhile wholly owned subsidiary, ador Welding academy private Limited (‘the transferor 
company’) which has been merged with the Company as explained in Note 64 to the accompanying 
financial statements. Such financial information of the transferor company for the year ended 31 March 
2022 has been audited by the auditor of the transferor company, M/s phadke & associates, who had issued 
an unmodified opinion vide their audit report dated 25 april 2023, which have been furnished to us by the 
management and have been relied upon by us for the aforementioned purpose. our opinion is not modified 
in respect of the matter referred above.

 report on other Legal and regulatory requirements

16. as required by section 197(16) of the act, based on our audit, we report that the Company has paid 
remuneration to its directors during the year in accordance with the provisions of and limits laid down under 
section 197 read with Schedule V to the act.
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17. as required by the Companies (auditor’s report) order, 2020 (‘the order’) issued by the Central Government 
of India in terms of section 143(11) of the act we give in the annexure a, a statement on the matters specified 
in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the order, to the extent applicable.

18. Further to our comments in annexure a, as required by section 143(3) of the act, based on our audit, we 
report, to the extent applicable, that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge 
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the accompanying financial statements;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 
appears from our examination of those books;

c) the financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with Ind aS specified under section 133 of the 
act;

e) on the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the Board 
of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2023 from being appointed as a director 
in terms of section 164(2) of the act;

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements 
of the Company as on 31 March 2023 and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our 
separate report in annexure B wherein we have expressed an unmodified opinion; and

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the auditor’s report in accordance with rule 11 of 
the Companies (audit and auditors) rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. the Company, as detailed in note 44 to the financial statements, has disclosed the impact of pending 
litigations on its financial position as at 31 March 2023;

ii. the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were 
any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2023;

iii. there has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor education and 
protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2023;

iv. a. the management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in note 
59 to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from 
borrowed funds or securities premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or 
in any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘the intermediaries’), with the understanding, 
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly 
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 
Company (‘the Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf the 
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b. the management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in note 
59 to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or 
entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘the Funding parties’), with the understanding, whether recorded 
in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other 
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding party (‘Ultimate 
Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 
and
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c. Based on such audit procedures performed as considered reasonable and appropriate in the 
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the management 
representations under sub-clauses (a) and (b) above contain any material misstatement.

v. a. the final dividend paid by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2023 in respect of such 
dividend declared for the previous year is in accordance with section 123 of the act to the extent it 
applies to payment of dividend.

b. as stated in note 68 to the accompanying financial statements, the Board of Directors of the Company 
have proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2023 which is subject to the approval of 
the members at the ensuing annual General Meeting. the dividend declared is in accordance with 
section 123 of the act to the extent it applies to declaration of dividend.

vi. proviso to rule 3(1) of the Companies (accounts) rules, 2014 requires all companies which use accounting 
software for maintaining their books of account, to use such an accounting software which has a feature of 
audit trail, with effect from the financial year beginning on 1 april 2023 and accordingly, reporting under rule 
11(g) of Companies (audit and auditors) rules, 2014 (as amended) is not applicable for the current financial 
year.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLp
Chartered accountants
Firm’s registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Khushroo B. panthaky
partner
Membership No.: 042423
uDIN: 23042423BGWIoH6891

place: Mumbai
Date: 30 May 2023



124

CREATING THE BEST WELDING EXPERIENCE

annexure a referred to in paragraph 17 of the Independent auditor’s report of even date 
to the members of ador Welding Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 
31 March 2023

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of account 
and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we report 
that:

(i) (a) (a)  the Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details 
and situation of property, plant and equipment, right of use assets and investment property.

  (B)  the Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b) the Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its property, plant and equipment, right 
of use assets and investment property under which the assets are physically verified in a phased manner 
over a period of three years, which in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company 
and the nature of its assets. In accordance with this programme, certain property, plant and equipment, 
right of use assets and investment property were verified during the year and no material discrepancies 
were noticed on such verification.

(c)  the title deeds of all the immovable properties including investment properties held by the Company 
(other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in 
favour of the lessee) disclosed in note 2 to the financial statements are held in the name of the Company.

(d)  the Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment including right of Use assets or intangible 
assets during the year.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami 
property under the prohibition of Benami property transactions act, 1988 (as amended) and rules made 
thereunder.

(ii) (a)  the management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals during the year, 
including inventory lying with third parties. In our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification 
by the management is appropriate and no discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each 
class of inventory were noticed. In respect of inventory lying with third parties, these have substantially 
been confirmed by the third parties.

(b) as disclosed in note 46 to the financial statements, the Company has been sanctioned a working 
capital limit in excess of rs 5 crore by banks based on the security of current assets. the quarterly returns/
statements, in respect of the working capital limits have been filed by the Company with such banks and 
such returns/statements are in agreement with the books of account of the Company for the respective 
periods which were subject to audit/review, except for the following :
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(rs. in Lakhs)
Name of 
the Bank

Working 
capital limit 
sanctioned

Nature of 
current assets 

offered as 
security

Quarter Information 
disclosed as 

per return

Information 
as per 

books of 
accounts

Difference

HDFC Bank 10,550 Working 
Capital *

Jun-22 13,792 13,263 529

IDFC Bank 7,500 Working 
Capital *

Jun-22 13,792 13,263 529

HDFC Bank 10,550 Working 
Capital *

Sep-22 13,159 13,244 (85)

IDFC Bank 7,500 Working 
Capital *

Sep-22 13,159 13,244 (85)

HDFC Bank 10,550 Working 
Capital *

Dec-22 14,424 14,424 0

IDFC Bank 7,500 Working 
Capital *

Dec-22 14,424 14,424 0

HDFC Bank 10,550 Working 
Capital *

Mar-23 17,249 17,249 0

IDFC Bank 7,500 Working 
Capital *

Mar-23 17,249 17,249 0

*Working Capital = Inventory + trade receivables + Unbilled revenue – trade payables

(iii) the Company has not made any investment in, provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or 
advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability partnerships (LLps) 
or any other parties during the year. accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iii) of the order is not applicable to 
the Company.

(iv) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied 
with the provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the act in respect of loans and investments made and 
guarantees and security provided by it, as applicable.

(v)  In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted 
any deposits or there are no amounts which have been deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 
73 to 76 of the act and the Companies (acceptance of Deposits) rules, 2014 (as amended). accordingly, 
reporting under clause 3(v) of the order is not applicable to the Company. 

(vi) the Central Government has specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of section 148 
of the act in respect of the products of the Company. We have broadly reviewed the books of account 
maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance 
of cost records and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been 
made and maintained However, we have not made a detailed examination of the cost records with a view 
to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

(vii) (a) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, undisputed statutory dues 
including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, 
service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues, as 
applicable, have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities by the Company, 
though there have been slight delays in a few cases. Further, no undisputed amounts payable in respect 
thereof were outstanding at the year-end for a period of more than six months from the date they became 
payable.
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(b)  according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory dues referred in sub-
clause (a) which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute 
except for the following:

Name of 
the statute

Nature of dues Gross 
amount 

(rs. in 
Lakhs)

amount 
paid 

under 
protest (rs. 

in Lakhs)

period to 
which the 

amount 
relates

Forum where dispute is 
pending

Income 
tax act, 
1961

Disallowance of 
scientific research 
expenses

62.63 12.55 2013-14 Commissioner of Income-
tax (appeals)

addition in Income 
and Disallowance of 
entrance fees and 
subscriptions and 
restatement Impact

89.88 - 2019-20 Commissioner of Income-
tax (appeals)

Customs 
act, 1962

rejection of refund of 
excess duty paid

45.53 45.53 2016-17 Custom, excise and Service 
tax appellate tribunal

the Central 
excise act, 
1944

additional Liability 
arising due to 
difference in 
assessable value, 
disallowance of 
CeNVat credit 
(including penalty/
interest, if any)

7.72 1 1998-99 Custom, excise and Service 
tax appellate tribunal

2.18 0.96 2006-07 assistant Commissioner

13.42 - 2008-09 Commissioner-appeal

899 898.16 april-2012 
to Mar-2017

Custom, excise and Service 
tax appellate tribunal

Central 
Sales tax 
act and 
Local Sales 
tax acts 
of various 
statues

additional Liability 
arising due to 
difference in 
assessable value, 
disallowance of 
CeNVat credit 
(including penalty/
interest, if any)

18.07 9.21 1987-1988, 
1992-1993

High court

45.19 35.87 2005-2006 Deputy Commissioner-
appeals

152.23 5.50 2005-2006 Maharashtra Sales tax 
tribunal

20.09 - 2004-05 Joint Commissioner-Sales 
tax

6.88 - 2004-05 Joint Commissioner-Sales 
tax

7.98 - 2003-04 Joint Commissioner-Sales 
tax

0.21 - 2003-04 Joint Commissioner-Sales 
tax

327.42 - 2009-10 Joint Commissioner (Vat)

3.74 - 2011-12 Joint Commissioner (Vat)

0.24 - 2012-13 Joint Commissioner

76.27 - 2014-15 Joint Commissioner (Vat)

144.77 - 2015-16 Joint Commissioner (Vat)
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Name of 
the statute

Nature of dues Gross 
amount 

(rs. in 
Lakhs)

amount 
paid 

under 
protest (rs. 

in Lakhs)

period to 
which the 

amount 
relates

Forum where dispute is 
pending

14.90 0.74 July’2017 to 
March’2019

Commissioner-appeal

159.60 - 2016-17 Joint Commissioner (Vat)

9.16 - 2016-17 Commissioner-appeal

21.99 - 2017-18 Joint Commissioner (Vat)

8.66 - 2017-18 Joint Commissioner-
appeals

93.40 6.65 2017-18 Joint Commissioner-
appeals

72.83 3.50 2017-18 Joint Commissioner-
appeals

11.10 - 2016-17 Commissioner-appeal

121.87 41.83 2016-17 Deputy Commissioner 
(appeals)

(viii) according to the information and explanations given to us, no transactions were surrendered or disclosed as 
income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income tax act, 1961 (43 of 1961) which have not 
been previously recorded in the books of accounts.

(ix)  (a) according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment 
of its loans or borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) according to the information and explanations given to us including representation received from the 
management of the Company, and on the basis of our audit procedures, we report that the Company has 
not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government 
authority.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, money raised by way of 
term loans were applied for the purposes for which these were obtained.

(d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, and on an overall 
examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised by the Company on short term 
basis have, prima facie, not been utilised for long term purposes.

(e) according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any subsidiaries, 
associates or joint ventures. accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(e) and clause 3(ix)(f) of the order is 
not applicable to the Company.

(x)  (a)  the Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt 
instruments), during the year. accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the order is not applicable to 
the Company.

(b)  according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the 
records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of 
shares or (fully, partially or optionally) convertible debentures during the year. accordingly, reporting under 
clause 3(x)(b) of the order is not applicable to the Company.
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(xi)  (a)  to the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud 
by the Company or no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the period 
covered by our audit.

(b)  according to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to us by the 
management of the Company, no report under sub-section 12 of section 143 of the act has been filed 
by the auditors in Form aDt-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (audit and auditors) rules, 2014, 
with the Central Government for the period covered by our audit.

(c)  according to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to us by the 
management of the Company, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the Company during 
the year.

(xii) the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi rules, 2014 are not applicable to it. accordingly, 
reporting under clause 3(xii) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions entered 
into by the Company with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the act, 
where applicable. Further, the details of such related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial 
statements, as required under Indian accounting Standard (Ind aS) 24, related party Disclosures specified in 
Companies (Indian accounting Standards) rules 2015 as prescribed under section 133 of the act.

(xiv)(a)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has an  
 internal audit system as per the provisions of section 138 of the act which is commensurate with the size  
 and nature of its business.

(b)  We have considered the reports issued by the Internal auditors of the Company till date for the period 
under audit.

(xv) according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not entered into any non-cash 
transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors and accordingly, reporting under clause 
3(xv) of the order with respect to compliance with the provisions of section 192 of the act are not applicable 
to the Company.

(xvi)  the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-Ia of the reserve Bank of India act, 1934. 
accordingly, reporting under clauses 3(xvi)(a),(b) and (c) of the order are not applicable to the Company.

(xvii) the Company has not incurred any cash losses in the current financial year as well as the immediately 
preceding financial year.

(xviii) there has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. accordingly, reporting under clause 
3(xviii) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

(xix) according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing 
and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information 
accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the plans of the Board of Directors and 
management and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has 
come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the 
audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance 
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state 
that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is 
based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance 
that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by 
the company as and when they fall due.

(xx) (a) according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no unspent amounts towards 
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Corporate Social responsibility pertaining to other than ongoing projects as at end of the current financial 
year. accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has transferred the remaining 
unspent amounts towards Corporate Social responsibility (CSr) under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the 
act, in respect of ongoing project, within a period of 30 days from the end of financial year to a special 
account in compliance with the provision of sub-section (6) of section 135 of the act, except for the 
following:

Financial year* amount unspent on 
CSr activities for 

“on going projects”

amount transferred 
to Special account 
within 30 days from 

the end of the 
Financial year

amount 
transferred after 

the due date

Date of transfer

FY 20-21 9.40 - 10.50 24-May-2021

(xxi) the reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the order is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone financial 
statements of the Company. accordingly, no comment has been included in respect of said clause under 
this report.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLp
Chartered accountants
Firm’s registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Khushroo B. panthaky
partner
Membership No.: 042423
uDIN: 23042423BGWIoH6891

place: Mumbai
Date: 30 May 2023
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annexure B to the Independent auditor’s report of even date to the members of ador 
Welding Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Independent auditor’s report on the internal financial controls with reference to the 
financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies 
act, 2013 (‘the act’)

1. In conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of ador Welding Limited (‘the Company’) as at and 
for the year ended 31 March 2023, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements of the Company as at that date.

 responsibilities of Management and those Charged with Governance for Internal Financial Controls

2. the Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 
based on internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on audit of Internal 
Financial Controls over Financial reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered accountants of India. these 
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls 
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of the Company’s business, 
including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection 
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation 
of reliable financial information, as required under the act.

 auditor’s responsibility for the audit of the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial 
Statements

3. our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on 
auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered accountants of India (‘ICaI’) prescribed under Section 143(10) of 
the act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, 
and the Guidance Note on audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial reporting (‘the Guidance Note’) 
issued by the ICaI. those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements 
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated 
effectively in all material respects.

4. our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. our audit of internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements includes obtaining an understanding of such internal 
financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design 
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. the procedures selected depend 
on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

 Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

6. a company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements 
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. a company’s internal 
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financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and procedures that (1) pertain 
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as 
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with 
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance 
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s 
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

 Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including 
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error 
or fraud may occur and not be detected. also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls 
with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls 
with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that 
the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

 opinion

8. In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements and such controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2023, based on the internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICaI.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLp
Chartered accountants
Firm’s registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Khushroo B. panthaky
partner
Membership No.: 042423
uDIN: 23042423BGWIoH6891

place: Mumbai
Date: 30 May 2023
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(rs. in lakhs)
particulars Notes as at 

31 March 2023
as at 

31 March 2022 
(restated)^

assets
 (1) Non-current assets
  (a) property, plant and equipment 2 10,738 10,471
  (b) right-of-use asset 3 484 481
  (c) Capital work-in-progress 4 151 706
  (d) Investment property 5 1,045 729
  (e) Intangible assets 6 47 66
  (f) Intangible assets under development 7 41 4
  (g) Financial assets
   (i) Investment 8 269 -
   (ii) Loans 9 22 30
   (iii) other financial assets 10 767 927
  (h) Non-current income tax assets (net) 11 1,115 1,192
  (i) Deferred tax assets (net) 12 464 268
  (j) other non-current assets 13 1,654 1,394
total non-current assets 16,797 16,268
 (2) Current assets
  (a) Inventories 14 11,621 8,997
  (b) Financial assets
   (i) Investments 15 1,759 1,988
   (ii) trade receivables 16 12,517 9,315
   (iii) Cash and cash equivalents 17 595 661
   (iv) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalent 18 94 102
   (v) Loans 19 38 38
   (vi) other financial assets 20 50 92
  (c) other current assets 21 1,617 1,797

28,291 22,990
  (d) assets classified as held for sale 22 80 7
total current assets 28,371 22,997

total assets 45,168 39,265

equity and liabilities
 equity
  (a) equity share capital 23 1,360 1,360
  (b) other equity 30,991 26,832
total equity 32,351 28,192
 Liabilities
 (1) Non-current liabilities
  (a) Financial liabilities

  (i) Borrowings 24 73 60
  (ii) Lease liabilities 47 84 127
  (iii) other financial liabilities 25 16 18

  (b) provisions 26 615 469
  (d) other non-current liabilities 27 6 3
total non-current liabilities 794 677
 (2) Current liabilities
  (a) Financial liabilities

  (i)  Borrowings 28 1,513 8
  (ii)  Lease liabilities 47 58 26
  (iii) trade payables 29

  total outstanding dues to micro and small enterprises 1,366 192
  total outstanding dues to creditors other than micro and small  
  enterprises

5,942 7,559

  (iv) other financial liabilities 30 1,346 996
  (b) other current liabilities 31 809 923
  (c) provisions 32 660 651
  (d) Current tax liabilities, (net) 33 329 41
total current liabilities 12,023 10,396

total equity and liabilities 45,168 39,265

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information    1
the accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
^restated pursuants to Merger of subsidiary company (refer note 64). 
this is the balance sheet referred to in our report of even date.

BaLaNCe SHeet aS at 31 MarCH 2023

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLp For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered accountants
Firm registration No: 001076N/N500013 

Khushroo B. panthaky Vinayak M. Bhide Surya kant Sethia aditya t. Malkani N. Malkani Nagpal
partner
Membership No. 042423

Head - Corp. admin, 
Legal and Company 
Secretary

Chief Financial officer Managing Director
DIN : 01585637

executive Chairman
DIN : 00031985

place : Mumbai place : Mumbai
Date : 30 May 2023 Date : 30 May 2023
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StateMeNt oF proFIt aND LoSS For tHe year eNDeD 31 MarCH 2023
(rs. in lakhs)

particulars Notes year ended  
31 March 2023

year ended  
31 March 2022 

 (restated)^
I.  Income
 (a) revenue from operations 34 77,676 66,148
 (b) other income 35 667 548
total Income 78,343 66,696
II. expenses
 (a) Cost of raw materials and components consumed 36 51,065 42,125
 (b) purchase of stock-in-trade 37 2,643 5,850
 (c) Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and  

 work-in-progress
38 (1,396) (990)

 (d) employee benefits expenses 39 5,685 4,866
 (e) Finance costs 40 236 372
 (f) Depreciation and amortisation expense 2,3,5,6 1,161 1,090
 (g) other expenses 41 10,958 8,460
total expenses 70,352 61,773
III. profit before exceptional items and tax (I-II) 7,991 4,923
IV. exceptional items (net) (expenses) / income 62 (80) 898

V. profit before tax (III-IV) 7,911 5,821
VI. tax expense / (credit) 42
 (a) Current tax 2,174 1,473
 (b) Deferred tax credit (173) (168)
 (c) tax pertains to earlier years (19) -
 (d) Mat Credit entitlement - 14
total tax expense 1,982 1,319
VII. profit for the year (V-VI) 5,929 4,502
VIII. other comprehensive income 43
 (a) Items that will not be reclassified to statement of profit and  

 loss
(91) (81)

 (b) Income tax relating to above items 23 20
total other comprehensive loss (net) (68) (61)
IX. total comprehensive income for the year (VII+VIII) 5,861 4,441
X. earnings per equity share 56
 Basic and diluted earnings / (losses) per share (Face value per
 share rs. 10)

43.60 33.10

Summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information

1

the accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
^restated pursuants to Merger of subsidiary company (refer note 64)
this is the statement of profit and loss referred to in our report of even date.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLp For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered accountants
Firm registration No: 001076N/N500013 

Khushroo B. panthaky Vinayak M. Bhide Surya kant Sethia aditya t. Malkani N. Malkani Nagpal
partner
Membership No. 042423

Head - Corp. admin, 
Legal and Company 
Secretary

Chief Financial officer Managing Director
DIN : 01585637

executive Chairman
DIN : 00031985

place : Mumbai place : Mumbai
Date : 30 May 2023 Date : 30 May 2023
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StateMeNt oF CaSH FLoW For tHe year eNDeD 31 MarCH 2023
(rs. in lakhs)

particulars year ended 
31 March 2023 

year ended 
31 March 2022 

(restated)^
(a) Cash flow from operating activities

profit before tax 7,911 5,821
adjustment for:
Fair value adjustments relating to
- Financial assets at amortised cost (4) 1
provision / liabilities no longer required now written 
back

(61) (70)

Depreciation and amortisation expense 1,161 1,090
Bad debts written off 29 24
expected Credit Loss 492 106
Inventory written off 126 38
property. plant and equipment written off 29 21
Gain on derecognition of roU and Lease liability (29) -
Items considered separately:
Finance costs 220 359
Surplus on sale of investments (49) -
Interest expense on lease liability 15 13
(profit)/loss on sale of property, plant & equipment (11) 10
Fair value change of financial asset measured at 
FVtpL

9 (52)

Interest income (116) (86)
rental income (126) (122)
exchange gain on revaluation of foreign currency 
monetary item

(1) -

exceptional items (refer note 62) 80 1,764 (898) 434
operating profit before working capital changes 9,675 6,255
adjustments for changes in working capital
Inventories (2,750) (2,789)
trade receivables (3,717) 629
Loans and other receivables 166 (249)
trade payables (382) (229)
Liabilities and provisions 165 (6,518) 458 (2,180)
Cash generated from operating activities 3,157 4,075
Income tax paid (1,790) (1,436)
Net cash generated from operating activities 1,367 2,639

(B) Cash flow from investing activities
acquisition of property, plant and equipment 
(including capital work-in-progress, intangible assets 
under development and capital advances)

(1,475) (1,733)

purchase of investments (680) (2,016)
proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 123 1,853
advance received against proposed sale of property - 14
proceeds from sale of investments 680 1,149
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(rs. in lakhs)

particulars year ended 
31 March 2023 

year ended 
31 March 2022 

(restated)^
Interest received 97 85
rental received 129 130
Increase/ (decrease) in fixed deposits 160 (27)
Net cash used in investing activities (966) (545)

(C) Cash flow from financing activities
Finance cost (220) (375)
Finance cost paid on lease liabilities (15) (13)
repayment of lease liability (49) (17)
repayment of borrowings (11) (2,802)
Dividend paid (1,700) -
proceeds from borrowings 1,528 70
Net cash used in financing activities (467) (3,137)

(D) Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 
(a+B+C)

(66) (1,043)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the 
year

661 1,704

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 
[refer note 17]

595 661

Notes to the cash flow statement
(a) the statement of cash flow has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Indian accounting 

Standard (Ind aS 7) statement of cash flows.
(b) Components of cash and cash equivalents:

(rs. in lakhs)
particulars as at  

31 March 2023
as at  

31 March 2022
Cash on hand 5 5
Balances with banks in current accounts 590 656

total 595 661

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information  1
the accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
^restated pursuants to Merger of subsidiary company (refer note 64)

this is the cash flow statement referred to in our report of even date.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLp For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered accountants
Firm registration No: 001076N/N500013 

Khushroo B. panthaky Vinayak M. Bhide Surya kant Sethia aditya t. Malkani N. Malkani Nagpal
partner
Membership No. 042423

Head - Corp. admin, 
Legal and Company 
Secretary

Chief Financial officer Managing Director
DIN : 01585637

executive Chairman
DIN : 00031985

place : Mumbai place : Mumbai
Date : 30 May 2023 Date : 30 May 2023
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StateMeNt oF CHaNGeS IN eQuIty aS at aND For tHe year eNDeD 31 MarCH 2023

a) equity share capital (refer note 23)

particulars Number of shares amount (rs. in lakhs)

Issued, subscribed and paid up:

as at 1 april 2022 13,598,467 1,360

as at 31 March 2023 1,35,98,467 1,360
       

B) other equity

(rs. in lakhs)

particulars reserves and surplus

total
General 
reserve

Capital 
redemption 

reserve

Capital 
reserve on 

amalgamation 
(refer note 64)

retained 
earning

Balance as at 1april 2021 (as 
reported earlier)

14,669 223 - 7,491 22,383

amalgamation of ador 
Welding academy private 
Limited (refer note 64)

- - 140 (132) 8

restated balance as at the 
beginning of the reporting 
year

14,669 223 140 7,359 22,391

profit for the year - - - 4,502 4,502

Net other comprehensive 
(loss) for the year

- - - (61) (61)

Balance as at 31 March 
2022

14,669 223 140 11,800 26,832

Balance as at 1april 2022 14,669 223 140 11,800 26,832

profit for the year - - - 5,929 5,929

Net other comprehensive 
(loss) for the year

- - - (68) (68)

transfer from retained 
earnings to general reserve

452 - - (452) -

equity dividend including 
taxes thereon as above

- - - (1,700) (1,700)

Balance as at 31 March 
2023

15,121 223 140 15,509 30,991
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Nature and purpose of the reserves     

(1)  General reserve     

 the general reserve is a distributable reserve maintained by the Company to be utilised in accordance with 
the act.     

(2)  Capital redemption reserve     

 the Capital redemption reserve has been created on/during buy back of equity shares and it is a non- 
distributable reserve.     

(3)  Capital reserve on amalgamation     

 the Capital reserve has been created on the difference between the consideration for acquisition of ador 
Welding academy private Limited (aWapL) and the amount of share capital and security premium of aWapL 
as per Ind aS 103 (appendix C), Business combinations of entities under common control (refer note 64).

(4)  retained earnings     

 the retained earnings pertain to the accumulated earnings made by the Company over the years.  
   

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information  1 

the accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements    

this is the statement of changes in equity referred to in our report of even date.    
 
For Walker Chandiok & Co LLp For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered accountants
Firm registration No: 001076N/N500013 

Khushroo B. panthaky Vinayak M. Bhide Surya kant Sethia aditya t. Malkani N. Malkani Nagpal
partner
Membership No. 042423

Head - Corp. admin, 
Legal and Company 
Secretary

Chief Financial officer Managing Director
DIN : 01585637

executive Chairman
DIN : 00031985

place : Mumbai place : Mumbai
Date : 30 May 2023 Date : 30 May 2023



138

CREATING THE BEST WELDING EXPERIENCE

Note 1 - Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the financial statements for 
the year ended 31 March 2023

I. Corporate Information

 ador Welding Limited (‘the Company’) was incorporated in 1951 and is one of India’s leading player in the 
field of Welding products, technologies and Services. the Company is also engaged in providing customized 
solutions for multi-disciplinary projects and contracts related to refineries, oil and gas, petrochemicals, 
fertilizers, steel plants, pharma, water and other chemical process industries. the Company is a public limited 
company and domiciled in India and its shares are listed on two recognised stock exchanges in India- the 
Bombay Stock exchange Limited (BSe) and the National Stock exchange (India) Limited (NSe). the registered 
and corporate office of the Company is situated at ador House, 6, K. Dubash Marg, Fort, Mumbai.

 the separate financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with the resolution of the Board of 
Directors on 30 May 2023.

II. Significant accounting policies followed by the Company

 the significant accounting policies applied by the Company in the preparation of its financial statements are 
listed below. Such accounting policies have been applied consistently to all the periods presented in these 
financial statements, unless otherwise indicated.

(a) Basis of preparation

 the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian accounting Standards 
(referred to as “Ind aS”) prescribed under section 133 of the Companies act, 2013 read with Companies 
(Indian accounting Standards) rules, 2015, as amended and other relevant provisions of the act and 
guidelines issued by the Securities & exchange Board of India (SeBI).

 the financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention and accrual basis, except 
for the certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value and defined benefit plan 
assets measured at fair values by Ind aS.

 Fair value is the price that would be received on sale of asset or paid on transfer of liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is 
directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset 
or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants 
would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.

 Current and non-current classification

 all assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current based on the Company’s normal 
operating cycle for each of its businesses, as per the criteria set out in Schedule III to the act.

(b) Critical estimates and judgments

 the preparation of Financial Statements in conformity with Ind aS, which requires management to make 
estimates, assumptions and exercise judgment in applying the accounting policies that affect the reported 
amount of assets, liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of financial statements and 
the reported amounts of income and expenses during the year.

 the Management believes that these estimates are prudent and reasonable and are based upon the 
Management’s best knowledge of current events and actions. actual results could differ from these 
estimates and differences between actual results and estimates are recognised in the periods in which 
the results are known or materialised.

 this note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgment or complexity, and 
of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to 
be different than those originally assessed.
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 useful lives of ppe, investment property and Intangible assets

 property, plant and equipment represent a significant proportion of the asset base of the Company. 
Depreciation is provided as per the Straight Line Method over the estimated useful lives of assets. the 
Company depreciates its property, plant and equipment over the useful life in the manner prescribed 
in Schedule II to the act. Management believes that the useful life of assets are the same as those 
prescribed in Schedule II to the act- refer note 1(II)(d),(e),(f),(g).

 Valuation of deferred tax assets / liabilities

 the Company reviews the carrying amount of deferred tax assets at the end of each reporting period. 
Significant judgment is involved in arriving at the deferred tax assets and liabilities, which is based on the 
Company’s current operations and projections for the future. - refer note 1(II)(q)

 Defined benefit obligation

 the cost of post-employment benefits is determined using actuarial valuations. the actuarial valuation 
involves making assumptions about discount rates, expected rate of return on assets, future salary 
increases and mortality rates. Due to the long term nature of these plans such estimates are subject to 
significant uncertainty. the assumptions used are disclosed in Note 50.

 Fair value measurements of financial instruments

 When the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot 
be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation 
techniques including Discounted Cash Flow Model. the inputs to these models are taken from observable 
markets wherever possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing 
fair values. Judgments include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risks, credit risks and volatility. 
Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments. 
- refer note 1(II)(j).

other areas involving critical estimates or judgments are :

i) revenue from Flares and process equipment Division - refer note 1(II)(n)

ii) estimation of tax expenses and tax payable - refer note 42

iii) probable outcomes of matters included under Contingent Liabilities - refer note 44

iv) Leases - estimating the incremental borrowing rate - refer note 1(II)(r)

(c) property plant and equipment (including Capital Work-in-progress)

 Freehold Land is carried at historical cost less any accumulated impairment losses. all other items of 
property, plant and equipment are stated at cost/deemed cost, less accumulated depreciation and 
impairment. Cost includes all direct costs and expenditures incurred to bring the asset to its working 
condition and location for its intended use. trial run expenses (net of revenue) are capitalised. Borrowing 
costs incurred during the period of construction are capitalised as part of the cost of qualifying asset.

 Items of property, plant and equipment that have been retired from active use and are held for disposal 
are stated at the lower of their net book value or net realisable value and are shown separately in the 
financial statements. any expected loss is recognised immediately in the Statement of profit and Loss. 
Losses arising from the retirement of, and gains or losses arising from disposal of tangible assets, which are 
carried at cost, are recognised in the Statement of profit and Loss.

 Depreciation is provided on a pro-rata basis on the straight-line method based on useful life as estimated 
by the management and aligned to Schedule II to the Companies act, 2013 in order to reflect the actual 
usage of assets. Depreciation on assets acquired under finance lease is spread over the lease period or 
useful life, whichever is shorter.
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 estimated useful lives of assets are as follows:

assets Category useful Life (in years) Basis of Determination of useful life

Buildings 30-60 years assessed to be in line with schedule II to the act

ownership premises 30-60 years assessed to be inline with schedule II to the act

plant and equipments 
(including computer)

8 to15 years assessed to be in line with schedule II to the act

electrical installation 10 years assessed to be in line with schedule II to the act

Furniture and fixtures 8 to10 years assessed to be in line with schedule II to the act

office equipment 5 years assessed to be in line with schedule II to the act

Vehicles 4 to10 years Management estimate^

 ^ as per management estimate, motor cars purchased after 1-4-2019 are depreciated over 4 years as 
per the new vehicle policy. assets not yet ready for use are recognised as capital work-in-progress.

(d) Non-current assets and liabilities classified as held for sale

 assets that are available for immediate sale and where the sale is highly probable of being completed 
within one year from the date of classification are considered and classified as assets held for sale. assets 
classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell. the 
determination of fair value less costs to sell includes use of management estimates and assumptions. 
the fair value of asset held for sale has been estimated using observable inputs such as price quotations. 
assets and liabilities classified as held for sale are presented separately from other items in the balance 
sheet.

(e) Intangible assets (including intangibles under development)

 Initial recognition and measurement

 Intangible assets relating to product development are recorded at actual cost incurred on the development 
of products and are capitalised once the products receive approval from relevant authorities and the 
same are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation.

 Subsequent measurement (amortisation and useful lives)

 Intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. the amortisation 
period and the amortisation method are reviewed at least at each financial year end. If the expected 
useful life of the asset is significantly different from previous estimates, the amortisation period is changed 
accordingly.

 Software and implementation costs including users license fees of the enterprise resource planning (erp) 
system and other application software costs are amortised over a period of three years. the amortisation 
expense on intangible assets with finite life is recognised in the statement of profit and loss under the head 
Depreciation and amortization expense.

 Derecognition

 Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an intangible asset are determined as the 
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and recognised as 
income or expense in the Statement of profit and Loss.

(f) Investment properties

 Initial recognition and measurement

 property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied 
by the entity, is classified as Investment property. Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including 
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related transaction costs and where applicable borrowing costs. Subsequent expenditure is capitalised 
to the asset’s carrying amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the 
expenditure will flow to the entity and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. all other repairs and 
maintenance costs are expensed, when incurred. When part of an investment property is replaced, the 
carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.

 Depreciation is provided on a pro-rata basis on the straight-line method, based on useful life as estimated 
by the management and aligned to Schedule II to the Companies act, 2013 in order to reflect the actual 
usage of assets.

 Derecognition
 Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of or when they are 

permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from their disposal. the 
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognised in profit 
or loss in the period of derecognition. In determining the amount of consideration from the derecognition 
of investment property the Company considers the effects of variable consideration, existence of a 
significant financing component, non-cash consideration, and consideration payable to the buyer (if 
any).

 transfers are made to (or from) investment property only when there is a change in use. transfers between 
investment property, owner-occupied property and inventories do not change the carrying amount of 
the property transferred and they do not change the cost of that property for measurement or disclosure 
purposes.

 estimated useful lives of assets are as follows:

assets Category useful Life (in years) Basis of Determination of useful life

Buildings 30-60 years assessed to be in line with schedule II to the act

ownership premises 30-60 years assessed to be inline with schedule II to the act

(g) Impairment of non-financial assets
 the carrying amount of the non-financial assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date if there is 

any indication of impairment based on internal /external factors. an impairment loss is recognised, 
whenever the carrying amount of an asset or a cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount. 
the recoverable amount of the assets (or where applicable, that of the cash generating unit to which 
the asset belongs) is estimated as the higher of its net selling price and its value in use. Impairment loss is 
recognised in the statement of profit and loss. (Fair value less disposal cost)

 after impairment, depreciation / amortisation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over 
its remaining useful life.

 a previously recognised impairment loss is increased or reversed depending on changes in circumstances. 
However, the carrying value after reversal is not increased beyond the carrying value that would have 
prevailed by charging usual depreciation / amortisation, if there were no impairment.

 (h) Investments and financial assets Classification
 the Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

(i)  those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or 
through profit or loss), and

(ii) those measured at amortised cost.
 the classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the 

contractual terms of the cash flows.
 For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in a statement of profit and 

loss or other comprehensive income. For investments in debt instruments, this will depend on the business 
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model, in which the investment is held. For investments in equity instruments, this will depend on whether 
the Company has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity 
investment at fair value through other comprehensive income.

 the Company reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those 
assets changes.

 Initial recognition and measurement

 at initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a 
financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the 
acquisition of the financial asset. transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or 
loss are expensed in profit or loss. Subsequently Company measures a financial asset at amortised cost 
using the effective interest method, less any impairment losses. However, trade receivables and unbilled 
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component are measured at the transaction price.

 Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining whether 
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and interest.

 Measurement of debt instruments

 Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business model for managing 
the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset.

 there are three measurement categories into which the Company classifies its debt instruments:

(i) amortised cost: assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows 
represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. a gain or loss 
on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at amortised cost and is not part of a hedging 
relationship is recognised in the statement of profit and loss, when the asset is derecognised or 
impaired. Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective 
interest rate method.

(ii) Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVtoCI): assets that are held for collection of 
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent 
solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at fair value through other comprehensive 
income (FVtoCI). Movements in the carrying amount are taken through oCI, except for the 
recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses 
which are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the 
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in oCI is reclassified from equity to statement of profit or 
loss and recognised in other gains/ (losses). Interest income from these financial assets is included in 
other income using the effective interest rate method.

(iii) Fair value through profit or loss: assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVtoCI are 
measured at fair value through profit or loss. a gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently 
measured at fair value through profit or loss and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in 
statement of profit and loss and presented net in the statement of profit and loss within other gains/
(losses) in the period in which it arises. Interest income from these financial assets is included in the 
other income.

 Impairment of financial assets

 the Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets 
carried at amortised cost and FVtoCI debt instruments. the impairment methodology applied depends 
on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

 For trade receivables, the Company applies the simplified approach, permitted by Ind aS 109 Financial 
Instruments, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the 
receivables.
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 De-recognition of financial assets
a financial asset is derecognised only when
(i) the Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or,
(ii) retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual 

obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

(i) Cash and cash equivalents
 Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the cash flow statement comprise of the cash on hand 

and at bank and current investments with an original maturity of three months or less. Cash and cash 
equivalents consist of balances with banks which are unrestricted for withdrawal and usage.

(j) Borrowings and other financial liabilities
 Borrowings and other financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value (net of transaction costs 

incurred). the difference between the fair value and the transaction proceeds on initial is recognised as 
an asset / liability based on the underlying reason for the difference. Subsequently all financial liabilities 
are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

(k) Inventories
 Inventories are stated at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using the ‘average 

cost’ method. the cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises raw material, packing materials, 
direct labour, other direct costs and related production overheads. Net realisable value is the estimated 
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.

(l) revenue recognition
 revenue is recognized on satisfaction of performance obligation upon transfer of control of promised 

products or services to customers, at an amount that reflects the consideration expected to be received 
by the Company in exchange for those products or services.

 the Company satisfies a performance obligation and recognises revenue over time, if one of the following 
criteria is met: (i.) the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the 
Company’s performance as the Company performs; or (ii). the Company’s performance creates or 
enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced; or (iii). the Company’s 
performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Company and an entity has an 
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date. For performance obligations where 
none of the above conditions are met, revenue is recognised at the point in time at which the performance 
obligation is satisfied. revenue from sale of products are recognised by the Company at a point in time 
on which the performance obligation is satisfied. amounts disclosed as revenue are inclusive of excise 
duty and net of returns, trade allowances, rebates and discounts, value added taxes, goods and service 
tax and applicable taxes, which are collected on behalf of the government or on behalf of third parties.

i) Sale of consumables
 revenue from sale of consumables is recognised at point in time when the control of the asset is 

transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of the consumables.

ii) Flares and process equipment division (FpeD)
 FpeD contracts generally take 1 to 2 years for execution. a contract’s transaction price is allocated to 

each distinct performance obligation within that contract and recognized as revenue when, or as, the 
performance obligation is satisfied. the majority of Company’s contracts have a single performance 
obligation as the promise to transfer the individual goods or services is not separately identifiable from 
other promises in the contracts and is, therefore, not distinct. For contracts with distinct performance 
obligations, Company allocates the contract’s transaction price to each performance obligation 
using the best estimate of the standalone selling price (i.e., fair value based on market approach) 
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of each distinct goods or service in the contract. Generally, most of the revenue in FpeD segments is 
recognized over time, because control of the asset is transferred as and when the asset is created or 
enhanced to customers.

 the Company monitors estimates of total contract revenue and costs on a regular basis throughout 
the contract period. the cumulative impact of any change in estimates of the contract value or cost 
is reflected in the period in which the changes become known. In the event that a loss is anticipated 
on a particular contract, provision is made for the estimated loss.

iii) Contract assets

 Contract assets represent revenue recognized in excess of revenue billed. these amounts are billed 
after milestones specified in the agreement are achieved. Contract assets are disclosed under other 
Current assets in the Balance sheet.

iv) Benefit on account of entitlement to Import duty

 Duty drawback or merchant export from India (MeIS) scheme are accounted in the year of export 
as export incentives. From, 1 January 2021 onwards, Merchant export from India (MeIS) Scheme has 
been abolished by Central Government and introduced remission of Duties and taxes on export 
products (roDtep) scheme, under which exporters receive the refunds on the embedded taxes and 
duties previously non- recoverable. tax credit as per roDtep scheme is accounted on receipt basis.

(m) other income

 Interest income for all debt instruments is recognised using the effective interest rate method. the effective 
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of 
the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset. When calculating the effective 
interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms 
of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not 
consider the expected credit losses.

(n) employee Benefits

 provident fund: Contribution towards provident fund for employees is made to the regulatory authorities, 
where the Company has no further obligations. Such benefits are classified as “Defined Contribution 
Schemes”, as the Company does not carry any further obligations, apart from the contributions made on 
a monthly basis.

 Gratuity fund: the Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan (the “Gratuity plan”) covering 
eligible employees in accordance with the payment of Gratuity act, 1972. the Gratuity plan provides 
a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation, or termination of 
employment, of an amount based on the respective employee’s salary and the tenure of employment.

 the Company’s liability is actuarially determined (using the projected Unit Credit method) at the end of 
each year. actuarial gains / losses arising on the measurement of defined benefit obligation are credited 
/ charged to other comprehensive income.

 Superannuation fund: Contribution towards superannuation fund for certain employees is made to ador 
Welding employees Superannuation Fund trust administered by the Company. the benefit is classified as 
a “Defined Contribution Schemes” as the Company does not carry any further obligation, apart from the 
contribution made on a monthly basis.

 employees state insurance scheme: the Company makes contributions to state plans namely employees 
State Insurance Scheme and has no further obligation beyond making the payment to them.

 Compensated absences: accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed 
or encashed within 12 months from the end of the year are treated as short term employee benefits. 
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the obligation towards the same is measured at the expected cost of accumulating compensated 
absences as the additional amount expected to be paid as a result of the unused entitlement as at the 
year end.

 accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed or encashed beyond 12 
months from the end of the year are treated as other long term employee benefits. the Company’s liability 
is actuarially determined (using the projected Unit Credit method) at the end of each year. actuarial losses 
/ gains are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the year in which they arise.

 termination benefits: termination benefits in the nature of voluntary retirement benefits are recognised in 
the statement of profit and loss, as and when incurred.

(o) Income taxes
 Income tax expense comprises current tax expenses and net change in the deferred tax assets or liabilities 

during the year. Current and deferred taxes are recognised in the Statement of profit and loss, except 
when they relate to item that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which 
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in 
equity respectively.

(i) Current income tax
 the current income tax includes income tax payable by the Company, computed in accordance 

with the tax laws applicable in the jurisdiction in which the Company operates. advance tax and 
provision for current income tax are presented in the Balance sheet after offsetting the advance tax 
paid and income tax provision arising in the same jurisdiction and where the relevant tax paying units 
intends to settle the asset and liability on a net basis.

(ii) Deferred income tax
 Deferred income tax is recognised using Balance sheet approach. Deferred income tax assets and 

liabilities are recognised for deductible and taxable temporary differences arising between the tax 
base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount, except when the deferred income tax arises 
from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and 
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of recognition.

 Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that taxable profit will be available against which the 
deductible temporary differences and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses 
can be utilised.

 the carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to 
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow or part 
of deferred income tax assets to be utilised. at each reporting date, the Company re-assesses 
unrecognized deferred tax assets. It recognizes unrecognized deferred tax asset to the extent that 
it has become reasonably certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be 
available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized.

 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using substantively enacted tax rates expected to 
apply to taxable income in the years in which the temporary differences are expected to be received 
or settled.

 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current 
tax assets and liabilities. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally 
enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle 
the liability simultaneously.

(p) Leases

 the Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for Land and Buildings. the Company 
assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of a contract. a contract is, or contains, 
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a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in 
exchange for consideration. to assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an 
identified asset, the Company assesses whether:
(i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset
(ii) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period 

of the lease and
(iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

 at the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognises a right-of-use asset (“roU”) and 
a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a 
term of twelve months or less (short term leases) and leases of low value assets. For these short term and 
leases of low value assets, the Company recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a 
straightline basis over the term of the lease.

 the right-of-use assets are initially recognised at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease 
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus 
any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. they are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and impairment losses, if any. right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement 
date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset.

 the lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the future lease payments. the lease 
payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using 
the incremental borrowing rates. the lease liability is subsequently remeasured by increasing the carrying 
amount to reflect interest on the lease liability, reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments 
made. a lease liability is remeasured upon the occurrence of certain events such as a change in the 
lease term or a change in an index or rate used to determine lease payments. the remeasurement 
normally also adjusts the leased assets.

 Lease liability and roU assets have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments 
have been classified as financing cash flows.

 as a Lessor:
 Lease income from operating leases where the Company is a lessor is recognised in other income on a 

straight line basis over the lease term unless the receipts are structured to increase in line with expected 
general inflation to compensate for the expected inflationary cost increases. the respective leased assets 
are included in the balance sheet based on their nature.

(q) Foreign currency transactions
 the functional and presentation currency of the Company is Indian rupee.
 transactions in foreign currency are recorded at an exchange rate prevailing on the date of transaction. 

Foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the exchange rate 
prevailing on the Balance sheet date and exchange gain or loss arising on settlement and restatement 
are recognised in the Statement of profit and Loss.

 Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in foreign currencies are 
not retranslated.

(r) provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets
 a provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past events and it 

is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a 
reliable estimate can be made. provisions are not discounted to their present value and are determined 
based on management estimate of the amount required to settle the obligation at the Balance Sheet 
date. these are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current management 
estimates.
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 Contingent liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from past events, whose 
existence would be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future 
events, not wholly within the control of the Company.

 Contingent assets are not recognised in financial statements. However, it is disclosed only when an inflow 
of economic benefits is probable.

(s) earnings per share
 Basic earning per share is computed by dividing net profit after tax (excluding other comprehensive 

income) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.
 Diluted earning per share is computed by dividing net profit after tax (excluding other comprehensive 

income) as adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges to expense or income relating to the 
dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of shares considered for deriving basic 
earning per share and the weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issued on 
conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if 
their conversion to equity shares would decrease the net profit per share.

(t) provision for warranty
 Warranty costs are provided based on a technical estimate of the costs required to be incurred for repairs, 

replacement, material cost, servicing on the basis of the past experience of the Company. It is expected 
that this expenditure will be incurred over the contractual warranty.

(u) research & Development
 revenue expenditure on research & development (including overheads) are charged out as expense in 

the year in which they are incurred. expenditure of a capital nature on research & development is debited 
to respective fixed assets and depreciation is provided on such assets, as are depreciable.

III. recent accounting pronouncements

 Ministry of Corporate affairs (“MCa”) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under 
Companies (Indian accounting Standards) rules as issued from time to time. on March 31, 2023, MCa 
amended the Companies (Indian accounting Standards) rules, 2015 by issuing the Companies (Indian 
accounting Standards) amendment rules, 2023, applicable from april 1, 2023, as below:

 Ind aS 1 - presentation of Financial Statements
 the amendments require companies to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant 

accounting policies. accounting policy information, together with other information, is material when it can 
reasonably be expected to influence decisions of primary users of general purpose financial statements. the 
Company does not expect this amendment to have any significant impact on its financial statements.

 Ind aS 12 - Income taxes
 the amendments clarify how companies account for deferred tax on transactions such as leases and 

decommissioning obligations. the amendments narrowed the scope of the recognition exemption in 
paragraphs 15 and 24 of Ind aS 12 (recognition exemption) so that it no longer applies to transactions that, 
on initial recognition, give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences. the Company does 
not expect this amendment to have any significant impact on its financial statements.

 Ind aS 8 - accounting policies, Changes in accounting estimates and error
 the amendments will help entities to distinguish between accounting policies and accounting estimates. the 

definition of a change in accounting estimates has been replaced with a definition of accounting estimates. 
Under the new definition, accounting estimates are “monetary amounts in financial statements that are 
subject to measurement uncertainty’. entities develop accounting estimates if accounting policies require 
items in financial statements to be measured in a way that involves measurement uncertainty. the Company 
does not expect this amendment to have any significant impact on its financial statements.
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Note 3 - right-of-use asset [refer note 47]

(rs. in lakhs)

Description Leasehold 
Land

ownership 
premises

Computers total

Gross carrying value

as at 1 april 2021 22 126 11 159

additions 357 - 43 400

Deductions 15 1 - 16

as at 31 March 2022 364 125 54 543

additions - 111 23 134

Deductions - 122 - 122

as at 31 March 2023 364 114 77 555

accumulated amortisation

as at 1 april 2021 - 36 - 36

amortisation charge 5 12 9 26

as at 31 March 2022 5 48 9 62

amortisation charge 2 29 26 57

Deductions - 48 - 48

as at 31 March 2023 7 29 35 71

Net carrying value

as at 31 March 2022 359 77 45 481

as at 31 March 2023 357 85 42 484

Notes:-

(a) the Company incurred rs. 331 lakhs in the year ended 31 March 2023 (31 March 2022: rs. 220 lakhs) 
towards expenses relating to short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. the total cash outflow for 
leases is rs. 396 lakhs for the year ended 31 March 2023 (31 March 2022: rs. 250 lakhs), including cash 
outflow of short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. Interest on lease liabilities is rs. 15 lakhs for the 
year 31 March 2023 (31 March 2022: rs. 13 lakhs). [refer note 40 and note 47]
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Note 4 - Capital work-in-progress
(rs. in lakhs)

particulars as at 
31 March 2023

as at 
31 March 2022 

(restated)^
opening balance 706 327
add : addition during the year 1,049 1,127
Less : Capitalised during the year (1,604) (748)

total 151 706

a) Capital work-in-progress aging schedule
(rs. in lakhs)

CWIp project in process amount in CWIp for a period of 31 March 2023
totalLess than 1 

year
1-2 years 2-3 years above 3 

years
projects in progress 148 3 - - 151
projects temporarily 
suspended

- - - - -

total 148 3 - - 151

(rs. in lakhs)
CWIp project in process amount in CWIp for a period of 31 March 2022

totalLess than 1 
year

1-2 years 2-3 years above 3 
years

projects in progress 470 236 - - 706
projects temporarily 
suspended

- - - - -

total 470 236 - - 706

(b) Completion schedule (For projects where completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared 
to its original plan) as at 31 March 2023

(rs. in lakhs)

CWIp to be completed in
Less than 1 

year
1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 

years
project in process - - - -

Completion schedule (For projects where completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared 
to its original plan) as at 31 March 2022

(rs. in lakhs)
CWIp to be completed in

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 
years

project in process
Stainless Steel plant 246 - - -
Note : there are no overdue projects or projects which has exceeded costs compared to original plan, 
other than mentioned above
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Note 5 - Investment property
(rs. in lakhs)

Description Freehold 
land

Leasehold 
land

Buildings ownership 
premises

total

Gross carrying value (at deemed cost)
as at 1 april 2021 49 21 886 82 1,038
additions - - - - -
Deductions - 21 34 - 55
as at 31 March 2022 49 - 852 82 983
additions - - - - -
adjustments [refer note (d) below] 18 12 30
Deductions 18 - - 12 30
transfer from ppe 0 - 663 38 701
as at 31 March 2023 13 - 1,516 96 1,625
accumulated depreciation
as at 1 april 2021 - - 217 32 249
Depreciation charge - - 17 1 18
Deductions - - 13 - 13
as at 31 March 2022 - - 221 33 254
Depreciation charge - - 26 1 27
adjustments - - - 5 5
Deductions - - - 5 5
transfer from ppe - - 299 10 309
as at 31 March 2023 - - 546 34 580
Net carrying value
as at 31 March 2022 49 - 631 49 729
as at 31 March 2023 13 - 970 62 1,045

Notes:
(a) Fair Value of Investment properties*

(rs. in lakhs)
Description Freehold 

land
Leasehold 

land
Buildings ownership 

premises
total

as at 31 March 2022 301 1,441 751 646 1,697
as at 31 March 2023 9,035 1,463 1,457 841 11,333

 *estimation of fair value     

 During the year, valuations of the Investment properties is performed by a registered valuer as defined under 
rule 2 of Companies (registered Valuers and Valuation) rules, 2017. the fair value measurement is based on 
comparable sales approach. the fair value measurement is categorised in level 3 of fair value hierarchy.

 the fair valuation is based on current prices in the active market of similar properties. the main inputs used 
for valuation are quantum, area, location, demand, quality of construction, age of building and trend of fair 
market etc.    
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(b) Information regarding income and expenditure of Investment property :
(rs. in lakhs)

particulars year ended  
31 March 2023

as at 
31 March 2022 

(restated)^

rental income derived from investment properties 126 122
Direct operating expenses (including repairs and maintenance) for 
properties generating rental income

21 15

profit arising from investment properties before depreciation 105 107
Less: Depreciation (27) (18)
profit arising from investment properties 78 89

(c) the Company has no restrictions on the reliability of its investment property and no contractual 
obligations to purchase, construct or develop investment property or for repairs, maintenance and 
enhancements. 

(d) During the current year, the Company has sold part property at kochi (1st Floor), for a consideration of  
rs. 90 lakhs having gross block of rs. 30 lakhs and accumulated depreciation of rs. 5 lakhs shown under head 
“Investment property”.     

Note 6 - Intangible assets
(rs. in lakhs)

Description Computer  
Software

e learning 
Module

total

Gross carrying value
as at 1 april 2021 (as reported earlier) 709 - 709
amalgamation of ador Welding academy private Limited (refer 
note 64)

1 11 12

restated balance as at the beginning of the reporting year 710 11 721
additions 25 - 25
Deductions - - -
as at 31 March 2022 735 11 746
additions 5 - 5
Deductions - - -
as at 31 March 2023 740 11 751
accumulated amortisation
as at 1 april 2021 (as reported earlier) 634 - 634
amalgamation of ador Welding academy private Limited (refer 
note 64)

- 10 10

restated balance as at the beginning of the reporting year 634 10 644
amortisation charge 35 - 35
Deductions - - -
as at 31 March 2022 669 10 679
amortisation charge 25 - 25
Deductions - - -
as at 31 March 2023 694 10 704
Net carrying value
as at 31 March 2022 65 1 66
as at 31 March 2023 46 1 47



Corporate proFILe StatUtorY report FINaNCIaLS

15370th Annual Report 2022-23

Note 7 - Intangible assets under development

particulars as at 
31 March 2023

as at 
31 March 2022 

(restated)^

opening balance 4 -

add : addition during the year 37 4

Less : Capitalised during the year - -

total 41 4

Intangible assets under development 
project in process

amount in Intangible assets under development 
as on 31 March 2023

total
Less than 

1 year
1-2 years 2-3 years above 3 

years

projects in progress 37 4 - - 41

projects temporarily suspended - - - - -

total 37 4 - - 41

Intangible assets under development 
project in process

amount in Intangible assets under development as 
on 31 March 2022

total
Less than 

1 year
1-2 years 2-3 years above 3 

years

projects in progress 4 - - - 4

projects temporarily suspended - - - - -

total 4 - - - 4

Note : there are no overdue projects or projects which has exceeded costs compared to original plan, other than 
mentioned above

Note 8 - Investment (Non-current)

(rs. in lakhs)

particulars as at 
31 March 2023

as at 
31 March 2022 

(restated)^

Investment in debt instruments

Investment in quoted market linked debentures valued at cost, fully 
paid up

Capsave Finance private Ltd 100 -

Incred Financial Services Limited 169 -

total 269 -

aggregate amount of quoted investments 269 -

Market value of quoted investments (including interest accrued) 287 -
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Note 9 - Loans (Non-current)
Unsecured, considered good (unless otherwise stated)

(rs. in lakhs)
particulars as at 

31 March 2023
as at 

31 March 2022 
(restated)^

Loan to employees 22 30
total 22 30

Break-up:
(rs. in lakhs)

particulars as at 
31 March 2023

as at 
31 March 2022 

(restated)^
Loans considered good - Unsecured 22 30

total 22 30

Note 10 - other financial assets (Non-current)
(rs. in lakhs)

particulars as at 
31 March 2023

as at 
31 March 2022 

(restated)^
Security deposit 177 177
Fixed deposits held as lien by bank against bank guarantees (refer note 
44)

590 750

total 767 927

Note 11 - Non-current income tax assets (net)
(rs. in lakhs)

particulars as at 
31 March 2023

as at 
31 March 2022 

(restated)^
advance income tax (net of provision) 1,115 1,192

total 1,115 1,192

Notes:

(a) the following table provides the details of income tax assets and liabilities:

(rs. in lakhs)

particulars as at 
31 March 2023

as at 
31 March 2022 

(restated)^

Income tax assets 5,619 4,223

Income tax liabilities 4,504 3,031

Net balances 1,115 1,192
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Note 12 - Deferred tax assets (net)
(rs. in lakhs)

particulars as at 
31 March 2023

as at 
31 March 2022 

(restated)^
Deferred tax assets on account of:
employee benefits 250 202
expected Credit Loss 943 817

1,193 1,019
Deferred tax liabilities on account of:
on timing difference between book depreciation and depreciation  
as per Income tax act, 1961 

727 746

Financial asset measured at FVtpL 2 5
729 751

Net deferred tax assets 464 268

Note 13 - other non-current assets

(rs. in lakhs)

particulars as at 
31 March 2023

as at 
31 March 2022 

(restated)^
Capital advances considered good [refer notes (a) below] 198 23

Capital advances credit impaired [refer notes (a) below] 27 27

Less : Loss allowance (27) (27)

198 23

Balances with government authorities considered good 1,389 1,353

Balances with government authorities credit impaired 1,053 1,053

Less : Loss allowance [refer notes (b) below] (1,053) (1,053)

1,389 1,353

prepaid expenses 67 18

total 1,654 1,394

Break-up:

(rs. in lakhs)

particulars as at 
31 March 2023

as at 
31 March 2022 

(restated)^
other assets considered good - Secured - -

other assets considered good - Unsecured 1,654 1,394

other assets credit impaired 1,080 1,080

other assets which have significant increase in credit risk - -

Loss allowance (1,080) (1,080)

total 1,654 1,394
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Notes:

(a) Capital advances include:

(rs. in lakhs)

particulars as at 
31 March 2023

as at 
31 March 2022 

(restated)^
Land at raipur 30 -

Land at Silvassa 27 27

Less : provision for capital advances (27) (27)

Building 55 12

plant and equipment 113 11

total 198 23

Note 14 - Inventories

(Valued at lower of cost or net realisable value)

(rs. in lakhs)

particulars as at 
31 March 2023

as at 
31 March 2022 

(restated)^

raw materials, components and packing material 4,751 3,771

Work-in-progress 1,433 1,026

Finished goods * 4,095 2,817

Stock-in-trade 526 742

Stores, spares, parts, scrap etc. 531 283

right to receive inventory 285 358

total 11,621 8,997

Inventory write downs are accounted, considering the nature of inventory, ageing, and net realisable value. Write-
downs of inventories to net realisable value amounted to rs. 126 lakhs (31 March 2022: 38 lakhs). these write 
down were recognised as an expense during the year and included in the ‘Changes in inventories of finished 
goods, work-in-progress, and stock-in-trade’ in the Statement of profit and Loss.   

* Certain imported inventory amounting to rs. 336 lakhs, which has been detained by the Bureau of Indian 
Standards (BIS). as accordingly to BIS, the said imported inventory doesn’t meet the standards as specified in the 
notification issued by BIS. the matter is still pending before BIS and Company is awaiting for the outcome of the 
same.   

refer note 24 for details on Inventory pledged as security against borrowings of the Company.
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Note 15 - Investments (Current)

(rs. in lakhs)
particulars as at 

31 March 2023
as at 

31 March 2022 
(restated)^

Financial assets classified and measured at fair value through profit 
or loss
(a) Investment in mutual funds (unquoted)
 axis Bluechip fund - growth-direct plan 96 70
 (31 March 2023: 206,470.03 units, 31 March 2022: 140,799.06 units)
 axis Strategic Bond fund - growth-direct plan 162 154
 (31 March 2023: 641,195.42 units, 31 March 2022: 641,195.41 units)
 Birla Sunlife Low Duration fund - direct plan-growth 102 351
 (31 March 2023: 16,652.44 units, 31 March 2022: 60,854.154 units)
 HDFC Balanced advantage fund - regular plan - growth - 310
 (31 March 2023: Nil, 31 March 2022: 108,461.36 units)
 HDFC Credit risk Debt fund - growth - direct plan 162 155
 (31 March 2023: 749,799.09 units, 31 March 2022: 749,799.09 units)
 Hdfc Short term Debt fund - growth - direct plan 134 127
 (31 March 2023: 486,028.23 units, 31 March 2022: 486,071.23 units)
 ICICI prudential Medium term Bond fund - growth - direct plan 163 154
 (31 March 2023: 399,964.54 units, 31 March 2022: 399,964.54 units)
 ICICI prudential Short term fund - growth - direct plan 136 128
 (31 March 2023: 249,850.69 units, 31 March 2022: 249,850.69 units)
 Kotak Bluechip fund -growth - direct plan 142 97
 (31 March 2023: 34,117.28 units, 31 March 2022: 23,816.45 units)
 Kotak Medium term fund -growth - direct plan 101 -
 (31 March 2023: 491,699.74 units, 31 March 2022: Nil)
 Mirae asset Focused fund -growth - direct plan 96 69
 (31 March 2023: 506,294.33 units, 31 March 2022: 345,780.12 units)
 Mirae asset Large Cap fund -growth - direct plan 103 71
 (31 March 2023: 121,533.18 units, 31 March 2022: 84,312.81 units)
 SBI Focused equity fund -growth - direct plan 96 70
 (31 March 2023: 40,104.67 units, 31 March 2022: 27,428.11 units)
 utI Flexicap fund - growth - direct plan 123 92
 (31 March 2023: 52,881.32 units, 31 March 2022: 35,883.81 units)
 Birla sunlife floating rate fund - growth - direct plan 12 10
 (31 March 2023: 4048.083 units; 31 March 2022: 4048.083 units)
 Birla sunlife arbitrage fund - growth - direct plan 6 6
 (31 March 2023: 25184.984 units; 31 March 2022: 25184.984 units)
 Birla sunlife arbitrage fund - growth - regular plan 37 35
 (31 March 2023: 160644.404 units; 31 March 2022: 160644.404 units)
 SBI Magnum low duration fund - growth plan 18 18
 (31 March 2023: 602.522 units; 31 March 2022: 602.522 units)
 aditya Birla sunlife arbitrage fund - growth - regular plan 7 7
 (31 March 2023: 30761.186 units; 31 March 2022: 30761.186 units)



158

CREATING THE BEST WELDING EXPERIENCE

(rs. in lakhs)
particulars as at 

31 March 2023
as at 

31 March 2022 
(restated)^

 Bandhan Banking & pSu Debt Fund - regular plan - Growth 7 7
 (31 March 2023: 35493.508 units; 31 March 2022: 35493.508 units)
 aditya Birla sunlife equity hybrid 95 fund - growth - direct plan 14 15
 (31 March 2023: 1245.128 units; 31 March 2022: 1245.128 units)
 HDFC Corporate bond fund - growth - regular plan 12 11
 (31 March 2023: 43871.772 units; 31 March 2022: 43871.772 units)
Investment in mutual funds 1,729 1,958
(B)  Investment in bonds (Quoted)
 9.60% tourism Finance Corporation Limited Bonds_2028 20 20
 (31 March 2023: 2 units, 31 March 2022: 2 units)
 9.65% tourism Finance Corporation Limited Bonds_2033 10 10
 (31 March 2023: 1 unit, 31 March 2022: 1 unit)
Investment in bonds 30 30

total (a+B) 1,759 1,988
aggregate amount of investments and its market value
Unquoted 1,729 1,958
Quoted 30 30

Note 16 - trade receivables

(rs. in lakhs)

particulars as at 
31 March 2023

as at 
31 March 2022 

(restated)^

trade receivables 12,485 9,089

receivables from related parties (refer note 51) 32 226

trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk - -

trade receivables - credit impaired 2,684 2,193

Less : Loss allowance (2,684) (2,193)

total 12,517 9,315

Break-up:

(rs. in lakhs)

particulars as at 
31 March 2023

as at 
31 March 2022 

(restated)^

Secured, considered good [refer note (a) below] 1,457 295

Unsecured, considered good [refer note (b) below] 11,060 9,020

Unsecured, credit impaired 2,684 2,193

Less : Loss allowance (2,684) (2,193)

total 12,517 9,315
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trade receivable aging schedule as at 31 March 2023
(rs. in lakhs)

particulars outstanding for following periods from due date of 
payment

totalNot 
due

Less 
than 6 
months

6 
months 
-1 year

1-2 
years

2-3 
years

More 
than 3 
years

(i) Undisputed trade receivables – 
considered good

6,238 4,164 406 333 186 - 11,327

(ii)  Undisputed trade receivables – 
which have significant increase in 
credit risk

- - - - - - -

(iii)  Undisputed trade receivables – 
credit impaired

- 141 35 235 209 379 999

(iv)  Disputed trade receivables–
considered good

- - - 1,061 - 129 1,190

(v)  Disputed trade receivables – 
which have significant increase in 
credit risk

- - - - - - -

(vi)  Disputed trade receivables – 
credit impaired

- - - 1,661 13 11 1,685

total 6,238 4,305 441 3,290 408 519 15,201
Less: allowance for credit impaired balances (2,684)

total 12,517

trade receivable aging schedule as at 31 March 2022
(rs. in lakhs)

particulars outstanding for following periods from due date of 
payment

totalNot 
due

Less 
than 6 
months

6 
months 
-1 year

1-2 
years

2-3 
years

More 
than 3 
years

(i)  Undisputed trade receivables – 
considered good

4590 2,456 304 480 131 164 8,125

(ii)  Undisputed trade receivables – 
which have significant increase in 
credit risk

- - - - - - -

(iii)  Undisputed trade receivables – 
credit impaired

- 96 82 14 56 260 508

(iv) Disputed trade receivables–
considered good

- - 1,061 - 129 - 1,190

(v)  Disputed trade receivables – 
which have significant increase in 
credit risk

- - - - - - -

(vi)  Disputed trade receivables – 
credit impaired

- - 1,433 241 11 - 1,685

total 4,590 2,552 2,880 735 327 424 11,508
Less: allowance for credit impaired balances (2193)

total 9,315
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Notes:       

(a)  Secured by letter of credit       

(b)  refer notes 54(a) for information on credit risk and details regarding past dues receivables and, movement in 
loss allowance.       

(c)  No amount is due by directors or other officers of the company or any of them either severally or jointly with 
any other person or debts due by firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner or 
a director or a member except disclosed in note no. 51.

(d)  refer note 24, for details on trade receivables pledged as security against the borrowings of the company.

Note 17 - Cash and cash equivalents

(rs. in lakhs)

particulars as at 
31 March 2023

as at 
31 March 2022 

(restated)^

Cash on hand 5 5

Balances with banks in current accounts 590 656

total 595 661

Note 18 - Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

(rs. in lakhs)

particulars as at 
31 March 2023

as at 
31 March 2022 

(restated)^

earmarked balances with banks [refer note (a) below] 93 94

Unspent corporate social responsibilities balances with banks 1 8

total 94 102

Note:       

(a)  there are no amounts due and outstanding to be credited to the Investor education and protection Fund as 
at 31 March 2023 and as at 31 March 2022.

Note 19 - Loans (Current)

Unsecured, considered good (unless otherwise stated)

(rs. in lakhs)

particulars as at 
31 March 2023

as at 
31 March 2022 

(restated)^

Loans to employees 38 38

total 38 38



Corporate proFILe StatUtorY report FINaNCIaLS

16170th Annual Report 2022-23

Break-up:
(rs. in lakhs)

particulars as at 
31 March 2023

as at 
31 March 2022 

(restated)^
Loans considered good - Secured - -
Loans considered good - Unsecured 38 38
Loans which have significant increase in credit risk - -
Loans - credit impaired - -

total 38 38

Note 20 - other financial assets (Current)
(rs. in lakhs)

particulars as at 
31 March 2023

as at 
31 March 2022 

(restated)^
Security deposits 20 38
Interest accrued but not due on fixed deposits 20 2
other receivables
(a) from related parties (refer note 51) - 3
(b) from others 10 49

total 50 92

Note 21 - other current assets
(rs. in lakhs)

particulars as at 
31 March 2023

as at 
31 March 2022 

(restated)^
Contract assets 114 125
advance to suppliers 840 1,234
prepaid expenses 319 159
export incentive receivable 20 26
Input tax credit receivable 242 220
other receivables 26 30
others 56 3

total 1,617 1,797

Note 22 - asset classified as held for sale
(rs. in lakhs)

particulars as at 
31 March 2023

as at 
31 March 2022 

(restated)^
Leasehold land (refer note (b) below) 18 -
ownership premises (refer note (b) below) 7 7
plant and equipments (refer note (c) below) 55 -

total 80 7
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Note 23 - equity share capital

(rs. in lakhs)

particulars as at 
31 March 2023

as at 
31 March 2022 

(restated)^

authorised shares

33,000,000 (31 March 2022: 33,000,000) equity shares of rs. 10 each 3,300 3,300

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares

13,598,467 (31 March 2022: 13,598,467) equity shares of rs. 10 each 
fully paid up

1,360 1,360

total 1,360 1,360
      

Note: asset classified as held for sale ( Ind aS 105)       

(a)  During the Current year, the Company has sold one flat at Silvassa (ownership premises), for a consideration 
of rs. 20 lakhs which was duly approved by Board which was reported under ‘assets classified as held for sale’ 
in FY 2022-23.       

(b)  During the Current year, the Company has sold part property at kochi (1st Floor), for a consideration of rs. 90 
lakhs which was duly approved by Board. Further the Company intents to sale the balance portion of property 
at kochi (Ground Floor), hence same has been classified as ‘assets classified as held for sale’.

(c)  During the Current year, the Company has received an order from interested buyers for one of the 
manufacturing facility of wires at Silvassa, for a consideration of rs. 77 lakhs which has been duly approved 
by Board. the Company has received rs. 5 lakhs as advance against the transactions. the transactions is likely 
to be completed in FY 2023-24, hence same has been classified as ‘assets classified as held for sale’.

 Item wise net carrying value as at 31 March 2023 of the asset classified as held for sale is as follows: 
     

(rs. in lakhs)

particulars Gross carrying  
value

Impairement accumulated 
depreciation

Net carrying  
value 

Leasehold land 18 - - 18

ownership premises 12 - 5 7

plant and equipments 206 146 5 55

total 236 146 10 80
       

 Item wise net carrying value as at 31 March 2022 of the asset classified as held for sale is as follows:  
       

(rs. in lakhs)

particulars Gross carrying  
value 

accumulated 
depreciation

Net carrying  
value 

ownership premises 9 2 7

total 9 2 7
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Note 23 a- reconciliation of number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the 
year: 

particulars as at 31 March 2023 as at 31 March 2022 
 (restated)^

No. of shares (rs. in lakhs) No. of shares (rs. in lakhs)

equity shares

Shares outstanding at the 
beginning of the year

1,35,98,467 1,360 1,35,98,467 1,360

add: Shares issued during the 
year

- - - -

Shares outstanding at the end of 
the year

1,35,98,467 1,360 1,35,98,467 1,360

      

Note 23 b- rights, preferences and restrictions

the Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having a par (face) value of rs. 10 per 
share. each and every shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the equity shareholders will be entitled to receive the remaining assets 
of the Company, after distribution of all the preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

Note 23 c- Shares held by holding Company         
 

particulars as at 31 March 2023 as at 31 March 2022 
 (restated)^

No. of shares 
held

% of holding No. of shares 
held

% of holding

equity shares of rs. 10 each

J. B. advani & Company private 
Limited

6,800,531 50.01% 6,800,531 50.01%

     

Note 23 d- Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of aggregate shares in the 
Company          

particulars as at 31 March 2023 as at 31 March 2022 
 (restated)^

No. of shares 
held

% of holding No. of shares 
held

% of holding

equity shares of rs. 10 each

J. B. advani & Company private 
Limited

6,800,531 50.01% 6,800,531 50.01%

total 68,00,531 50.01% 68,00,531 50.01%
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Note 23 e- the Company has not issued any bonus shares or shares for consideration other than cash nor has 
there been any buyback of shares during five years immediately preceding 31 March 2023.

Note 24 - Borrowing (Non-current)

(rs. in lakhs)

particulars as at 
31 March 2023

as at 
31 March 2022 

(restated)^

Secured term Loan from Bank

Vehicle Loan* 73 60

total 73 60

* the Company has availed vehicle loans from Bank of Baroda @ 7.1%, repayable in 84 eMI of rs. 1.62 lakhs. 
the above loan is hypothecated against the vehicles having a gross block of rs. 125 lakhs (March 2022 : 94 
lakhs) and written-down value of rs. 92 lakh (March 2022 : 86 lakhs) as at March 2023.

Note 25 - other financial liabilities (Non-current)

(rs. in lakhs)

particulars as at 
31 March 2023

as at 
31 March 2022 

(restated)^

rent deposit - 3

rent deposit from related parties [refer note 51] 16 15

total 16 18

Note 26 - provisions (Non-current)

(rs. in lakhs)

particulars as at 
31 March 2023

as at 
31 March 2022 

(restated)^

provision for employee benefits

Gratuity [refer note 50(II)] 615 469

total 615 469

Note 27 - other non-current liabilities

(rs. in lakhs)

particulars as at 
31 March 2023

as at 
31 March 2022 

(restated)^

advance income 6 3

total 6 3
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Note 28 - Borrowings (Current)
(rs. in lakhs)

particulars as at 
31 March 2023

as at 
31 March 2022 

(restated)^
Secured Borrowings
From banks
Working capital loan repayable on demand [refer notes (i) below and 
note 57]

1,500 -

Current maturities of Long term borrowing 13 8
total 1,513 8

Notes:  
(i)  Nature of Security and terms of repayment for short term secured borrowings of Company: 
 Working capital loan from a bank, balance outstanding amount as at 31 March 2023 is rs. 1,500 Lakhs (31 

March 2022: rs Nil) is secured first pari passu charge by way of hypothecation of Company’s entire stocks and 
book debts, both present and future, exclusive charge on the entire plant and machinery and other movable 
fixed assets of the Company and on the land and building of the Company located at survey no. 59/11/1, 
59/11/2, 59/11/3, 59/12 and 59/13 situated at village Masat, Silvassa Dadra and Nagar Haveli. Working capital 
loan repayable on demand, rate of interest 7.86 % p.a. (31 March 2022: 7 % p.a.)

(ii)  Guarantees given by banks to third parties amounting to rs. 1,742 lakhs (31 March 2022: rs. 2,286 lakhs) on 
behalf of the Company are secured against securities mentioned in (i) above. (refer note 44)

Note 29 - trade payables
(rs. in lakhs)

particulars as at 
31 March 2023

as at 
31 March 2022 

(restated)^
Dues to micro and small enterprises [refer notes (a) below] 1,366 192
others 4,876 6,678
amounts due to related parties [refer note 51] 315 232
Sub-total 6,557 7,102
accrued expenses 751 649

total 7,308 7,751

trade payable ageing schedule as at 31 March 2023

(rs. in lakhs)
particulars outstanding for following periods from due date of 

payment
total

Less than 1 
year

1-2 years 2-3 years More than 
3 years

Undisputed - MSMe 1,366 - - - 1,366
Undisputed - others 3,882 31 1,219 60 5,191
Disputed dues - MSMe - - - - -
Disputed dues - others - - - - -

5,248 31 1,219 60 6,557
accrued expenses 751

total 5,248 31 1,219 60 7,308
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trade payable ageing schedule as at 31 March 2022
(rs. in lakhs)

particulars outstanding for following periods from due date of 
payment

total
Less than 1 

year
1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 

years
Undisputed - MSMe 179 1 1 - 181
Undisputed - others 5,540 1,265 15 90 6,910
Disputed dues - MSMe - - - 11 11
Disputed dues - others - - - - -

5,719 1,266 16 101 7,102
accrued expenses 649

total 5,719 1,266 16 101 7,751

Notes :         

(a)  the Company has amount due to suppliers under the Micro, Small and Medium enterprises Development 
act, 2006, (MSMeD act). the disclosure pursuant to the said act is as under:    
 

(rs. in lakhs)

particulars as at 
31 March 2023

as at 
31 March 2022 

(restated)^

principal amount due remaining unpaid to supplier as at the end of 
accounting year

1,366 192

Interest due remaining unpaid to supplier as at the end of accounting 
year

- 1

amount of interest paid by the buyer under MSMeD act, 2006 along 
with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the 
appointed day during each accounting year

- -

amount of interest due and payable for the period (where the 
principal has been paid but interest under the MSMeD act, 2006 not 
paid)

- -

amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the 
accounting year

- 1

amount of further interest due and payable even in the succeeding 
year, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually 
paid to the small enterprises, for the purpose of disallowance as a 
deductible expenditure under section 23

- -

    - -

 this information has been given in respect of such vendors to the extent they could be identified as Micro and 
Small enterprises on the basis of information available with the Company.
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Note 30 - other financial liabilities (Current)
(rs. in lakhs)

particulars as at 
31 March 2023

as at 
31 March 2022 

(restated)^
Deposits:

(a) rent deposit 14 14
(b) to distributors 290 293
(c) to others 4 8

employee benefits payable 553 450
Unclaimed dividend 93 94
Creditors for capital goods 163 5
Corporate Social responsibility Liability 1 4
other payables

(a) to related parties (refer note 51) 109 70
(b) to others 119 58

total 1,346 996

Note 31 - other current liabilities
(rs. in lakhs)

particulars as at 
31 March 2023

as at 
31 March 2022 

(restated)^
advances received from distributors on behalf of customers 12 12
advances received from customers 228 490
Statutory dues 568 407
advance received against sale of asset - 14
advance income 1 -

total 809 923

Note 32 - provisions (Current)

(rs. in lakhs)

particulars as at 
31 March 2023

as at 
31 March 2022 

(restated)^

provision for employee benefits

Gratuity [refer note 50(II)] 49 71

provision for Compensated absences [refer note 50(III)] 329 262

other provisions [refer note (a) below]

provision for warranties [refer note (b) below] 83 96

provision for sales return 199 222

total 660 651
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Notes:     
(a)  Movement in provision:          

(rs. in lakhs)
particulars provision for  

warranties 
provision for  
sales return

as at 1 april 2021 53 200
additional provision recognised 96 222
amount used (charged against provisions) during the year (53) (200)
as at 31 March 2022 96 222
additional provision recognised 83 199
amount used (charged against provisions) during the year (96) (222)
as at 31 March 2023 83 199

     

(b)  provision of rs. 83 lakhs (31 March 2022: rs. 96 lakhs) has been recognised for expected warranty claims 
on welding equipment and goods traded during the current financial year. It is expected that all these 
expenditures will be incurred in next financial year.

Note 33 - Current tax liabilities, (net)

(rs. in lakhs)

particulars as at 
31 March 2023

as at 
31 March 2022 

(restated)^

provision for income tax (refer note below) 329 41

total 329 41

Note : provision for income tax is net of advance tax. (provision for Income tax rs. 2,174 lakhs and advance tax  
rs. 1,845 lakhs). 

Note 34 - revenue from operations

(rs. in lakhs)

particulars year ended  
31 March 2023

Year ended  
31 March 2022 

(restated)^

Sale of goods (refer notes (a) below and refer note 51)

Domestic 69,927 62,504

export 7,129 3,142

Sale of services 59 54

other operating revenue:

Sale of scraps and others 561 448

total 77,676 66,148

Notes:

(a)  refer note 60 for information on revenue from contracts with customers under Ind aS 115.
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Note 35 - other income
(rs. in lakhs)

particulars year ended  
31 March 2023

Year ended  
31 March 2022 

(restated)^
Interest income on financial asset measured at amortised cost:

(i) Fixed deposits with banks 35 37
(ii) overdue amount from customers 50 36
(iii) others 31 13

realised gain on financial assets measured at fair value through profit 
or loss

49 -

rent received (refer notes 48 and 51) 126 122
Duty drawback and export incentive 119 60
Insurance recovered (net of expense) - 15
profit on sale of property, plant and equipment (net) 11 -
Foreign currency fluctuation gain (net) 93 100
provisions/ liabilities no longer required now written back 61 70
Fair value change of financial asset measured at fair value through profit 
or loss

- 52

Insurance claims received 6 7
Miscellaneous income 86 36

total 667 548

Note 36 - Cost of raw materials and components consumed

(rs. in lakhs)

particulars year ended  
31 March 2023

Year ended  
31 March 2022 

(restated)^

opening stock 3,771 2,044

add: purchases 52,045 43,852

Less: Closing stock (4,751) (3,771)

total 51,065 42,125

Note 37 - purchase of stock-in-trade

(rs. in lakhs)

particulars year ended  
31 March 2023

Year ended  
31 March 2022 

(restated)^

Welding products 1,796 5,210

Welding accessories 847 640

total 2,643 5,850
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Note 38 - Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and work-in-progress

(rs. in lakhs)

particulars year ended  
31 March 2023

Year ended  
31 March 2022 

(restated)^

at the beginning of the year

Finished goods (including right to receive 
inventory)

3,175 2,781

Stock-in-trade 742 109

Work-in-progress 1,026 4,943 1,063 3,953

at the end of the year

Finished goods (including right to receive 
inventory)

4,380 3,175

Stock-in-trade 526 742

Work-in-progress 1,433 6,339 1,026 4,943

total (1,396) (990)

Note 39 - employee benefits expenses

(rs. in lakhs)

particulars year ended  
31 March 2023

Year ended  
31 March 2022 

(restated)^

Salaries, wages and bonus 4,730 4,086

Contribution to provident and other funds [refer note 50(I)] 274 278

Contribution to gratuity [refer note 50(II)] 103 77

Staff welfare expenses 578 425

total 5,685 4,866

Note 40 - Finance costs

(rs. in lakhs)

particulars year ended  
31 March 2023

Year ended  
31 March 2022 

(restated)^

Interest expense on borrowings 166 242

Interest on supplies 54 112

Interest on lease liability [refer note 47] 15 13

Interest on others 1 5

total 236 372
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Note 41 - other expenses
(rs. in lakhs)

particulars year ended  
31 March 2023

Year ended  
31 March 2022 

(restated)^
Manufacturing and other expenses [refer note 41(a)] 4,437 3,730
electricity expenses 24 15
rent [refer note 47] 331 220
Freight 2,364 1,410
Legal and professional fees 498 378
Insurance 92 42
repairs and maintenance - others 174 210
travelling, conveyance and vehicle expenses 612 467
Directors fees [refer note 51] 9 5
telephone, postage and telegram 162 133
rates and taxes 84 93
advertisement and sales promotion expenses 198 31
Commission paid 49 54
Bad debts written off 29 24
expected credit loss 492 106
Donations - 3
Fair value change of financial asset measured at FVtpL 9 -
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment (net) - 10
property. plant and equipment written off 29 21
printing and stationery 85 60
auditors remuneration [refer note 41(b)] 46 49
Corporate social responsibility [refer note 63] 63 58
Selling and distribution incentive 183 168
Housekeeping and security charges 225 207
Bank charges 144 208
Miscellaneous expenses 619 759

total 10,958 8,460

Note 41(a)- Manufacturing and other expenses
(rs. in lakhs)

particulars year ended  
31 March 2023

Year ended  
31 March 2022 

(restated)^
Consumption of stores, spare parts and scraps 1,170 894
power and fuel 1,594 1440
repairs to machinery 156 153
repairs to building 49 22
payment to contract labours 860 732
other manufacturing expenses 608 489

total 4,437 3,730
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Note 41(b)- auditors’ remuneration (excluding taxes)
(rs. in lakhs)

particulars year ended  
31 March 2023

Year ended  
31 March 2022 

(restated)^
Statutory audit fees (including limited review fees) 31 24
tax audit fees 7 7
Certification and other matters 7 17
reimbursement of out of pocket expenses 1 1

total 46 49

Note 42 - tax (credit)/expense
(rs. in lakhs)

particulars year ended  
31 March 2023

Year ended  
31 March 2022 

(restated)^
Current tax 95 95
Current tax for the year 2,174 1,473
Mat Credit entitlement - 14
tax pertains to earlier years (19) -

2,155 1,487
Deferred tax - -
Change in deferred tax assets (151) (138)
Change in deferred tax liabilities (22) (30)

(173) (168)
total 1,982 1,319

     
Notes :     

(a)  the reconciliation of estimated income tax expense at tax rate to income tax expense reported in profit is as 
follows for 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022:     

(rs. in lakhs)
particulars year ended 31 

March 2023
Year ended 31 

March 2022 
(restated)^

profit before tax as per books 7,911 5,823
applicable income tax rate 25.17% 25.17%
estimated income tax expenses 1,991 1,466
tax effect of the amounts which are not deductible / (taxable) in 
calculating taxable income:
Non-deductible expenses 16 28
tax on income at different tax rates (6) (183)
other items - (7)
Mat Credit entitlement - 14
tax pertains to earlier years (19) -
reported income tax expenses 1,982 1,319
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(b) Deferred tax related to the following:     

(rs. in lakhs)

particulars as at 
31 March 

2023

recognised 
through 

profit and 
loss and oCI

as at 
31 March 

2022

recognised 
through 

profit and 
loss and 

oCI

as at 
1 april 
2021

Deferred tax assets on account of:

provision for gratuity and Leave 
encashment

250 48 202 51 151

expected Credit Loss 943 126 817 144 673

Deferment of revenue - - - (36) 36

total deferred tax assets 1,193 174 1,019 159 860

Deferred tax liabilities on account of:

on timing difference between book 
depreciation and depreciation as per 
Income tax act, 1961 

727 (19) 746 (33) 779

Financial asset measured at FVtpL 2 (3) 5 4 1

total deferred tax liabilities 729 (22) 751 (29) 780

Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) (net) 464 196 268 188 80

Note 43 - other comprehensive income

(rs. in lakhs)

particulars year ended 31 
March 2023

Year ended 31 
March 2022 
(restated)^

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

actuarial (loss) on defined benefit obligations (91) (81)

Income tax effect on above 23 20

total (68) (61)
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Note 44 - Contingent Liabilities not provided for :

(rs. in lakhs)

particulars as at 
31 March 2023

as at 
31 March 2022 

(restated)^

a. Claims against the company not acknowledged as debt:

 -  Disputed sales tax as the matters are in appeal (advance paid 31 
March 2023: rs 102 lakhs; 31 March 2022: rs 105 lakhs)

1,317 1,376

 -  Disputed excise duties as the matters are in appeal (advance paid 
31 March 2023: rs 900 lakhs; 31 March 2022:rs 900 Lakhs)

922 922

 -  Disputed income tax as the matters are in appeal (advance paid 
31 March 2023: rs 13 lakhs; 31 March 2022: rs. 13 lakhs)

153 63

 -  Custom Duty refund (advance paid 31 March 2023: rs 46 lakhs; 31 
March 2022: rs. 46 lakhs)

46 46

B. Guarantees :

 -  Bank guarantees Bank guarantees of rs. 1811 lakhs (31 March 
2022: rs. 2434 lakhs) has been issued to various customers as 
performance gurantee, rs. 235 lakhs (31 March 2022: rs. 182 lakhs) 
issued for securing supplies of materials and services and rs. 41 
lakhs (31 March 2022: rs. 41 lakhs) to various agencies including 
government as security. the Company does not anticipate any 
liability on these guarantees.”

2,087 2,657

C. other money for which the company is contingently liable :

 -  other matters 363 98

 -  provident fund Based on the Honorable Supreme Court judgment 
dated 28 February 2019, relating to components of salary 
structure that needs to be taken into account while computing the 
contribution to provident fund under the employee provident Fund 
act. past provident fund liability is not determinable at present in view 
of uncertainty on the applicability of the judgment to the Company 
with respect to timing and the components of its compensation 
structure. In absence of further clarification, the Company has been 
advised to await further developments in this matter to reasonably 
assess the implications on its financial statements, if any.”

amount not  
determinable 

amount not  
determinable 

 -  Inventory Certain imported inventory amounting to rs. 336 lakhs, 
which has been detained by the Bureau of Indian Standards (BIS). 
as accordingly to BIS, the said imported inventory doesn’t meet the 
standards as specified in the notification issued by BIS. the matter is 
still pending before BIS and Company is awaiting for the outcome 
of the same.”

amount not  
determinable 

amount not  
determinable 

Future cash outflows in respect of above matters are determinable only on receipt of judgments/decisions pending 
at various forums/authorities. the management does not expect these claims to succeed and accordingly, no 
provision for the contingent liability has been recognised in the financial statements. 
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Note 45 - estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed

(rs. in lakhs)

particulars as at 
31 March 2023

as at 
31 March 2022 

(restated)^

on Capital account and not provided for (net of advances) 450 182
          

Note 46 - Borrowings secured against current assets :

Disclosure of current assets secured and filed with the banker against borrowings availed

(rs. in lakhs)

Quarter 
ended

Name of 
Bank

particulars of  
securities 
provided

Fy 2022-2023 FY 2021-2022

as per 
books of 
account

reported 
to Bank

amount of 
difference 
[refer note 

(a) & (b) 
below]

as per 
books of 
account

reported 
to Bank

amount of 
difference 
[refer note 
(c) below]

Jun HDFC Bank Working capital * 13,263 13,792 529 12,859 13,038 179

IDFC Bank Working capital * 13,263 13,792 529 12,859 13,038 179

Sep HDFC Bank Working capital * 13,244 13,159 (85) 13,141 13,644 503

IDFC Bank Working capital * 13,244 13,159 (85) 13,141 13,644 503

Dec HDFC Bank Working capital * 14,424 14,424 - 14,465 14,513 48

IDFC Bank Working capital * 14,424 14,424 - 14,465 14,513 48

Mar HDFC Bank Working capital * 16,944 16,944 - 11,335 11,532 197

IDFC Bank Working capital * 16,944 16,944 - 11,335 11,532 197

* trade receivables + Inventories + Unbilled revenue/contract asset - trade payables 

Note for discrepancies : 

a)  Difference was on account of reclassification of provision of expenses in financial statement for the quarter 
ended 30, June 2023 amouting to rs. 529 Lakhs. 

b)  Difference was on account of reclassification of contract liability in financial statement for the half year ended 
30, September 2023 amounting to rs. 85 Lakhs. 

c)  the Bank returns were prepared and filed before the completion of all financial statements closure activities 
including Ind aS related adjustments / reclassifications, as applicable, which led to these differences 
between the final books of accounts and the bank returns which were based on provisional books of 
accounts. 
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Note 47- Leases: Ind aS 116         
the Company’s lease asset primarily consist of leasehold land, ownership premises and Computers used in 
its operations. the Company recognized right-of-use assets and lease liabilities amounting to rs. 134 lakhs (31 
March 2022: rs. 400 lakhs) and rs. 134 lakhs (31 March 2022: rs. 43 lakhs) respectively. During the year ended, 
the Company had recognized interest expense on lease amounting to rs. 15 lakhs (31 March 2022: rs. 13 lakhs) 
and depreciation on right-of-use assets amounting to rs. 57 lakhs (31 March 2022: rs. 26 lakhs). 
the weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities is 9.5 % p.a.

right-of-use assets:          

additional information on the right-of-use assets by class of assets are as follows:    
(rs. in lakhs)

particulars Gross  
carrying value

accumulated  
depreciation  

[refer note (a) 
below]

Net  
carrying value

as at 31 March 2023
Leasehold Land 364 7 357
ownership premises 114 29 85
Computers 77 35 42

total 555 71 484
as at 31 March 2022
Leasehold Land 364 5 359
ownership premises 125 48 77
Computers 54 9 45

total 543 62 481

the following is the movement in right-of-use assets for the year ended:

(rs. in lakhs)
particulars as at 

31 March 2023
as at 

31 March 2022 
(restated)^

Balance at the beginning of the year 543 159
addition during the year [refer notes (b) below] 134 400
Deductions during the year [refer notes (c) below] (122) (16)
Gross carrying value 555 543
accumulated depreciation [refer notes (a) below] (71) (62)
Net carrying value 484 481

Lease liabilities:          
Lease liabilities are presented in the balance sheet are as follows:     

(rs. in lakhs)

particulars as at 
31 March 2023

as at 
31 March 2022 

(restated)^
Non-current lease liabilities 84 127
Current lease liabilities 58 26

total 142 153
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the following is the movement in lease liabilities for the year ended:

(rs. in lakhs)
particulars as at 

31 March 2023
as at 

31 March 2022 
(restated)^

Balance at the beginning of the year 153 119
addition during the year [refer notes (b) below] 134 42
Deductions during the year (102) -
Finance cost accrued during the year [refer notes (c) below] 15 13
revaluation of lease liability 7 9
payment of lease liabilities (65) (30)

total 142 153

Notes:          

a.  the aggregate depreciation expense on right-of-use assets is included under ”Depreciation and amortization 
expense” in the statement of profit and Loss.

b.  During the current year 2022-23 in right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, there is addition of rs 23 lakhs 
towards laptops and rs. 111 lakhs towards office premises taken on rental basis. 

c.  the accrued finance cost on lease liabilities is included under “Finance cost” in the statement of profit and 
Loss.

Cash flow from leases   

(rs. in lakhs)
particulars year ended  

31 March 2023
Year ended 

 31 March 2022 
(restated)^

Cash payments for the principal and interest portion of lease liability 
within financing activities

65 30

Short-term lease payments, payments for lease of low-value assets and 
variable lease payments not included in the measurement of lease 
liability from operating activies

331 220

total 396 250
   

the lease liabilities are secured by the related underlying assets. the undiscounted maturity analysis of lease 
liabilities is as follows:   

(rs. in lakhs)

particulars Minimum lease payment

as at 
31 March 2023

as at 
31 March 2022 

(restated)^

amount due within one year 69 33

amount due from one to five years 90 99

amount due from five years and above - 69

total 159 201



Corporate proFILe StatUtorY report FINaNCIaLS

17970th Annual Report 2022-23

Note 48- Lease rental income 

the investment properties (office premises) are leased to tenants under operating leases. Lease income from 
operating leases where the Company is a lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the lease 
term. the aggregate amount of rent credited to statement of profit and loss account during the year is rs. 126 
lakhs (31 March 2022: rs. 122 lakhs). [refer note 35]   

(rs. in lakhs)

particulars Minimum lease payment

as at 
31 March 2023

as at 
31 March 2022 

(restated)^

amount due within one year 110 83

amount due from one year to two years 106 66

amount due from two to three years 104 62

amount due from three to four years 68 66

amount due from four to five years 41 32

amount due from five years and above 5 37

total 434 346
   

Note 49- In the current year, Company operations are at normalcy and there is no impact of pandemic on the 
Company’s financials for the year ended 31 March 2023. However, the Management is continuously monitoring 
the current CoVID-19 developments and possible effects that may result from the current pandemic on it’s 
financial conditions, liquidity, operations and actively working to minimise the impact of this unprecedented 
situation. 

Note 50 - employee benefits   

as per Indian accounting Standard-19 ‘employee Benefits’, the disclosure of employee benefits as defined in the 
Standard are given below:   

Brief description of the plans:   

the Company has various schemes for employee benefits such as provident fund, superannuation and gratuity. 
In case of funded schemes, the funds are administered through trustees/ appropriate authorities. the Company’s 
defined contribution plans are superannuation, employees state insurance and provident fund as the Company 
has no further obligation beyond making the contributions. the Company’s defined benefit plans consists of 
gratuity only. the employees of the Company are entitled to compensated absences as per the Company’s 
policy.   

I.  Defined Contribution plan:   
(i)  Superannuation fund   
(ii)  provident fund   
(iii)  employees State Insurance fund 

 During the year, the Company has recognised the following amounts in the Statement of profit and 
loss*: 
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Contribution to Defined contribution plan, recognized as expense for the year is as under:

(rs. in lakhs)

particulars year ended  
31 March 2023

Year ended  
31 March 2022 

(restated)^

employer’s Contribution to Superannuation 41 40

employer’s contribution to provident fund 229 223

employer’s Contribution to employees state insurance fund 4 15

total 274 278

* included in Note 39- ‘employee benefits expenses’
 
II.   Defined Benefit plan :    

Contribution to Gratuity fund (funded scheme):    

In accordance with Indian accounting Standard 19, actuarial valuation was done in respect of the aforesaid 
defined benefit plan of gratuity based on the following assumptions:-    

(rs. in lakhs)
particulars as at 

31 March 2023
as at 

31 March 2022 
(restated)^

(i)  actuarial assumptions
 Discount rate (per annum) 7.60% 6.50%
 Salary escalation rate (per annum) 8.00% 7.00%
 attrition rate
 21 years to 44 years (per annum) 15.00% 18.45%
 45 years and above (per annum) 7.00% 8.00%
 the estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial 

valuation takes into account inflation, seniority, promotion and 
other relevant factors, such as, supply and demand factors in the 
employment market.

(ii)  assets information:
 the plan assets for the funded gratuity plan is administered by Life 

Insurance Corporation of India (‘LIC’) as per the investment pattern 
stipulated for pension and Group Schemes fund by Insurance 
regulatory and Development authority (IrDa) regulations.

(iii)  Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligation
 present value of obligation at the beginning of the year 573 457
 Current service cost 69 54
 Interest on defined benefit obligation 34 26
 remeasurements during the period due to:
 actuarial loss/(gain) arising from change in financial assumptions (5) (5)
 actuarial loss/(gain) arising from change in demographic assumptions 5 (0)
 actuarial loss/(gain) arising on account of experience changes 91 84
 Benefits paid (44) (42)
 present Value of obligation at the end of the year 723 573
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(rs. in lakhs)
particulars as at 

31 March 2023
as at 

31 March 2022 
(restated)^

(iv)  Changes in the Fair value of plan assets
 Fair value of plan assets at beginning of the year 33 71
 Interest on plan assets - 3
 remeasurements during the period due to:
 actual return on plan assets less interest on plan assets - (2)
 Contributions by employer 70 3
 Benefits paid (44) (42)
 Fair Value of plan assets at the end of the year 59 33
(v)  assets and liabilities recognised in the balance sheet
 present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 723 573
 Less: Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year (59) (33)
 Net liability recognised 664 540
 recognised under provisions [refer note 26 and note 32]
 Non current provisions 615 469
 Current provisions 49 71
(vi)  expenses recognised in the Statement of profit and Loss
 Current Service Cost 69 54
 Interest on net defined benefit liability 34 23
 Net gratuity cost recognised in current year 103 77
 Included in note 39 ‘employee benefits expenses’
(vii) expenses recognised in other comprehensive income
 remeasurements during the period due to:
 actuarial (gain) / loss arising from change in financial assumptions (5) (5)
 actuarial loss/(gain) arising from change in demographic assumptions 5 (0)
 actuarial loss/(gain) arising on account of experience changes 91 84
 actuarial loss/(gain) arising on account of actual return on plan assets 

less interest on plan assets
- 2

 Net cost recognised in other comprehensive income 91 81

(viii) Sensitivity analysis:    

 Gratuity is a lump sum plan and the cost of providing these benefits is typically less sensitive to small changes 
in demographic assumptions. the key actuarial assumptions to which the benefit obligation results are 
particularly sensitive to discount rate and future salary escalation rate. the following table summarizes the 
impact in percentage terms on the reported defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period 
arising on account of an increase or decrease in the reported assumption by 50 basis points. 

particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Discount  

rate
Salary 

escalation rate
Discount  

rate
Salary 

escalation rate
Impact of increase in 50 bps 
on DBo

(3.05%) 3.19% (2.81%) 2.93%

Impact of decrease in 50 bps 
on DBo

3.22% (3.05%) 2.96% (2.81%)
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 these sensitivities have been calculated to show the movement in defined benefit obligation in isolation 
and assuming there are no other changes in market conditions at the accounting date. there have been 
no changes from the previous periods in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity 
analyses.    

(ix)  Maturity pattern:    

(rs. in lakhs)
Maturity profile 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
expected benefits for year 1 109 104
expected benefits for year 2 106 82
expected benefits for year 3 68 78
expected benefits for year 4 75 56
expected benefits for year 5 72 53
expected benefits for year 6 123 50
expected benefits for year 7 67 77
expected benefits for year 8 52 43
expected benefits for year 9 56 34
expected benefits for year 10 and above 555 318

Note:    

1. the estimate of future salary increases considered in actuarial valuation takes into account inflation, seniority, 
promotion and other relevant factors.

III.  Compensated absences    
(i)  an amount of rs. 86 lakhs (31 March 2022: rs 73 lakhs) has been recognised as an expense in the statement 

of profit and loss account and included in “Salaries, wages and bonus” under Note 39 “employee benefits 
expenses”.    

(ii)  Balance sheet reconciliation    

(rs. in lakhs)

particulars Short term current provisions
as at 

31 March 2023
as at 

31 March 2022 
(restated)^

Liability as per actuarial valuation 329 262

 the liabilities are split between different categories of plan participants as follows:   

Defined Benefit obligations and employer contributions 
 (active members)

Gratuity Compensated 
absences

as at 31 March 2023 584 584
as at 31 March 2022 531 531

 risk exposure - asset Volatility    

 the plan is of a final salary defined benefit in nature which is sponsored by the Company and hence it 
underwrites all the risks pertaining to the plan. In particular, there is a risk for the Company that any adverse 
salary growth or demographic experience or inadequate returns on underlying plan assets can result in 
an increase in cost of providing these benefits to employees in future. Since the benefits are lump sum in 
nature the plan is not subject to any longevity risks.    
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Note 51 - related party Disclosure:   

as per Ind aS 24 “related party Disclosures”, disclosure of transactions with the related parties as defined in the 
accounting Standard are given below:   

(I) List of related parties and relationship:   

relationship Name of the persons / Company

(i)  Holding Company: J. B. advani & Company private Limited

(ii)  Subsidiary Company and fellow 
subsidiaries:

ador Welding academy private Limited (Subsidiary of ador Welding 
Limited) (Merged during the current year)(refer note 64)

ador powertron Limited (Subsidiary of J. B. advani & Company private 
Limited)

ador Green energy private Limited (Subsidiary of J.B. advani & 
Company private Limited)

ador Fontech Limited (Subsidiary of J.B. advani & Company private 
Limited)

ador Multiproducts Limited (Subsidiary of J.B. advani & Company 
private Limited)

3D Future technologies private Limited (Subsidiary of ador Fontech 
Limited)

(iii)  other related party: 1908 e-Ventures private Limited (Step down subsidiary of J. B. advani 
& Company private Limited)

Mack Valves India private Limited (Common director)

executive Mantra Search Services private Limited (Common director)

(iv)  Key management personnel: Mrs. N. Malkani Nagpal - executive Chairman

Mr. a. t. Malkani - Managing Director (executive)

Dr. D. a. Lalvani - Director (Non-executive) (Whole time Director upto 
31 March 2022)

Mr. r. a. Mirchandani - Director (Non-executive)

Ms. t. H. advani - Director (Non-executive)

Mrs. Nita Dempo Mirchandani - Director (Independent & Non-
executive)

Mr. p. K. Gupta - Director (Independent & Non-executive)

Mr. r. N. Sapru - Director (Independent & Non-executive)

Mr. K. Digvijay Singh - Director (Independent & Non-executive)

Mr. G. M. Lalwani - Director (Independent & Non-executive)

Mr. N. S. Marshall - Director (Independent & Non-executive)  
(w.e.f 21 May 2022)

Mr. V. M. Bhide - Head - Corp. admin, Ia, KM, Legal & Company 
Secretary

Mr. Surya kant Sethia - Chief Financial officer
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(II)  transactions during the year:   

(rs. in lakhs)
Description of the nature of transactions year ended  

31 March 2023
Year ended  

31 March 2022 
(restated)^

Sale of Fixed assets
 -  Holding Company
  J. B. advani & Company private Limited 10 7

10 7
purchases of Fixed assets
 ador powertron Limited 1 15

1 15
Sale of goods
 -  Holding Company
   J. B. advani & Company private Limited 143 146
 -  Subsidiary Company and fellow subsidiaries
   ador powertron Limited* - 127
   Mack Valves India private Limited* - -
   ador Fontech Limited 376 281

519 554
purchase of goods and services received
 -  Holding Company
   J. B. advani & Company private Limited 2,240 1,103
 -  Subsidiary Company and fellow subsidiaries
   ador powertron Limited 26 29
   ador Fontech Limited 253 148
 -  other related party
   1908 e-Ventures private Limited 5 3

2,524 1,283
rent received
 -  Holding Company
   J. B. advani & Company private Limited 30 27
 -  Subsidiary Company and fellow subsidiaries
   ador powertron Limited* - -
   3D Future technologies pvt Ltd* - -
   ador Fontech Limited 3 3

33 30
recovery of expenses (received)
 -  Holding Company
   J. B. advani & Company private Limited 10 8
 -  Subsidiary Company and fellow subsidiaries
   ador powertron Limited* - -
   ador Fontech Limited 4 2

14 10
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(rs. in lakhs)
Description of the nature of transactions year ended  

31 March 2023
Year ended  

31 March 2022 
(restated)^

reimbursement of expenses (paid)
 -  Holding Company
   J. B. advani & Company private Limited 13 33
 -  Subsidiary Company and fellow subsidiaries
   ador Fontech Limited* - -
   ador powertron Limited* - 7

13 40
remuneration paid
Short term Benefit paid
 -  Key Management personnel
   Mrs. N. Malkani Nagpal - executive Chairman 158 105
   Mr. a. t. Malkani - Managing Director 147 106
   Dr. D. a. Lalvani - Director (Non-executive) (Whole time Director upto 

31 March 2022)
- 116

   Mr. V. M. Bhide (Corp. admin, Ia, Legal & Company Secretary) 54 41
   Mr. Surya kant Sethia - Chief Financial officer 55 41
post employment benefit
 -  Key Management personnel
   Mrs. N. Malkani Nagpal - executive Chairman 34 19
   Mr. a. t. Malkani - Managing Director 27 17
   Dr. D. a. Lalvani - Director (Non-executive) (Whole time Director upto 

31 March 2022)
- 20

   Mr. V. M. Bhide (Corp. admin, Ia, Legal & Company Secretary) 12 6
   Mr. Surya kant Sethia - Chief Financial officer 4

491 471
Sitting fees
 -  Key Management personnel
   Mrs. Nita Dempo Mirchandani - Director (Independent & Non-

executive)
1 -

   Mr. p. K. Gupta - Director (Independent & Non-executive) 2 1
   Mr. r. N. Sapru - Director (Independent & Non-executive) 2 2
   Mr. K. Digvijay Singh - Director (Independent & Non-executive) 1 1
   Mr. G. M. Lalwani - Director (Independent & Non-executive) 1 1
   Mr. N. S. Marshall - Director (Independent & Non-executive) (w.e.f 21 

May 2022)
1 -

8 5
rent Deposit received
 -  Holding Company
   J. B. advani & Company private Limited* 1 -
 -  Subsidiary Company and fellow subsidiaries
   3D Future technologies pvt Ltd* - -
   ador Fontech Limited 1 1

2 1
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(rs. in lakhs)
Description of the nature of transactions year ended  

31 March 2023
Year ended  

31 March 2022 
(restated)^

Dividend paid
 -  Holding Company
   J. B. advani & Company private Limited 850 -

850 -
Commission
 -  Key Management personnel
   Mr. r. a. Mirchandani - Director (Non-executive) 10 7
   Ms. t. H. advani - Director (Non-executive) 10 7
   Mr. p. K. Gupta - Director (Independent & Non-executive) 10 7
   Mr. r. N. Sapru - Director (Independent & Non-executive) 10 7
   Mr. K. Digvijay Singh - Director (Independent & Non-executive) 10 7
   Mr. G. M. Lalwani - Director (Independent & Non-executive) 10 7
   Mrs. Nita Dempo Mirchandani - Director (Independent & Non-

executive)
10 7

   Dr. D. a. Lalvani - Director (Non-executive) (Whole time Director upto 
31 March 2022)

10 -

   Mr. a. t. Malkani - Managing Director 10 -
   Ms. N. M. Nagpal (executive Chairman) 10 -
   Mr. N. S. Marshall - Director (Independent & Non-executive) (w.e.f 21 

May 2022)
9 -

109 49
   

(III)  amount outstanding at the year end:   
(rs. in lakhs)

Description of the nature of transactions as at  
31 March 2023

as at  
31 March 2022 

(restated)^
trade receivables
 -  Holding Company
   J. B. advani & Company private Limited 32 55
 -  Subsidiary Company and fellow subsidiaries
   ador powertron Limited* - 42
   ador Fontech Limited* - 129

32 226
rent deposit payable
 -  Holding Company
   J. B. advani & Company private Limited 15 14
 -  Subsidiary Company and fellow subsidiaries
   3D Future technologies pvt Ltd* - -
   ador Fontech Limited 1 1

16 15
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(rs. in lakhs)
Description of the nature of transactions as at  

31 March 2023
as at  

31 March 2022 
(restated)^

other receivables
 -  Subsidiary Company and fellow subsidiaries
   ador powertron Limited* - -
   ador Fontech Limited* - 2
 -  Key Management personnel
   Mr. V. M. Bhide (Corp. admin, Ia, Legal & Company Secretary)* - 1

- 3
trade payables
 -  Holding Company
   J. B. advani & Company private Limited 315 95
 -  Subsidiary Company and fellow subsidiaries
   ador Fontech Limited* - 137

315 232
other payable (Commission payable)
 Mr. r. a. Mirchandani - Director (Non-executive) 10 7
 Ms. t. H. advani - Director (Non-executive) 10 7
 Mr. p. K. Gupta - Director (Independent & Non-executive) 10 7
 Mr. r. N. Sapru - Director (Independent & Non-executive) 10 7
 Mr. K. Digvijay Singh - Director (Independent & Non-executive) 10 7
 Mr. G. M. Lalwani - Director (Independent & Non-executive) 10 7
 Mrs. Nita Dempo Mirchandani - Director (Independent & Non-executive) 10 7
 Dr. D. a. Lalvani Director (Non-executive) (Whole time Director upto 

31March 2022)
10 7

 Mr. a. t. Malkani - Managing Director 10 7
 Ms. N. M. Nagpal (executive Chairman) 10 7
 Mr. N. S. Marshall - Director (Independent & Non-executive)  

(w.e.f 21 May 2022)
9 -

109 70

* amounts below rs 0.50 lakh have been rounded off.   

Notes:   

1.  all the above transactions with related parties are net of Goods and Service tax.   

2. the transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length 
transactions. outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and interest free. the settlement for these 
balances occurs through payment. there have been no guarantees provided or received for any related 
party receivables or payables. For the year ended March 31, 2023, the Company has not recorded any 
impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties (March 31, 2022: Nil). this assessment 
is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial position of the related party and the market 
in which the related party operates   
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Note 52 - Segment reporting 

the Company’s chief operating decision maker (CoDM) examines the Company’s performance and has 
identified three reportable segments of its business instead of two segment as reported earlier:

(i) Consumables

(ii) equipment and automation

(iii) Flares & process equipment Division

the above operating segments have been identified considering:

(i) the internal financial reporting systems

(ii) the nature of the products/ process

(iii) the organisation structure as well as differential risks and returns of these segments.

types of products and services in each business segment:      

Business Segment

a)  Consumables electrodes, wires, agency items related to consumables from Silvassa, 
raipur and Chennai plant.

b)  equipment and 
automation

equipment, spares, cutting products and agency items related to 
equipment, cutting products etc. from Chinchwad plant.

c)  Flares & process 
equipment Division

Flares & process equipment Division (FpeD) Division is a multi-disciplined SBU 
that provides services like design, manufacture, erection & commissioning, 
mechanical, electrical and instrumentation of process packages, process 
equipment, flare system & components and epC contracts from Chinchwad 
plant.

revenue and expenses have been accounted on the basis of their relationship to the operating activities of 
the segment. expenses, which related to the Company as a whole and are not allocable to segments on a 
reasonable basis, have been included under “Unallocable Income” and “Unallocable expenses” respectively. 
assets and Liabilities, which related to the enterprise as a whole and are not allocable to segments on a reasonable 
basis, have been included under “Unallocable assets / Liabilities”. Inter-segment transfers are accounted for at 
competitive market prices charged to unaffiliated customers for similar goods.     
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a) Business segment      

(rs. in lakhs)

particulars year ended 31 March 2023 Year ended 31 March 2022  
(restated)^

external Inter 
Segment

total external Inter 
Segment

total

1. Segment revenue

 Consumables 61,490 (41) 61,449 53,571 (31) 53,540

 equipment and automation 11,535 (31) 11,504 9,878 (24) 9,854

 Flares & process equipment Division 4,779 (56) 4,723 2,843 (89) 2,754

 total revenue 77,804 (128) 77,676 66,292 (144) 66,148

2. Segment result

 (a) Segment result before exceptional 
items

 Consumables 8,876 6,060

 equipment and automation 772 784

 Flares & process equipment Division 486 (90)

 Unallocable (1,961) (1,575)

8,173 5,179

 (b) exceptional items (net) profit / (loss)

 Consumables (146) -

 equipment and automation - (380)

 Flares & process equipment Division - (820)

 Unallocable 66 2,098

(80) 898

 (c) Segment result after exceptional items

 Consumables 8,730 6,060

 equipment and automation 772 404

 Flares & process equipment Division 486 (910)

 Unallocable (1,895) 523

 total Segment result 8,093 6,077

 Interest and finance charges (unallocable) (182) (256)

 profit / (Loss)before tax 7,911 5,821

 tax (expenses) /credit (1,982) (1,319)

 Net profit /(loss)after tax 5,929 4,502

3. Capital expenditure

 Consumables 1,227 749

 equipment and automation 249 92

 Flares & process equipment Division 391 22

 Unallocated 116 453

 total capital expenditure 1,983 1,316



190

CREATING THE BEST WELDING EXPERIENCE

(rs. in lakhs)

particulars year ended 31 March 2023 Year ended 31 March 2022  
(restated)^

external Inter 
Segment

total external Inter 
Segment

total

4. Depreciation and amortisation

 Consumables 656 639

 equipment and automation 254 269

 Flares & process equipment Division 69 62

 Unallocated 182 113

 total depreciation and amortisation 1,161 1,083

(rs. in lakhs)

particulars as at 
31 March 2023

as at 
31 March 2022 

(restated)^

other information

Segment assets

Consumables 25,184 22,193

equipment and automation 9,925 7,595

Flares & process equipment Division 4,435 4,245

assets classified as held for sale (unallocable) 80 7

Unallocated 5,544 5,225

total assets 45,168 39,265

Segment liabilities

Consumables 5,375 6,036

equipment and automation 2,677 1,897

Flares & process equipment Division 2,016 2,456

Unallocated 2,749 684

total liabilities 12,817 11,073

Capital employed

Consumables 19,809 16,157

equipment and automation 7,248 5,698

Flares & process equipment Division 2,419 1,789

Unallocated 2,875 4,548

total capital employed 32,351 28,192
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B) Geographical segment  

revenue from external customers:  

(rs. in lakhs)

particulars year ended  
31 March 2023 

Year ended  
31 March 2022 

 (restated)^ 

Within India 70,547 63,006

outside India 7,129 3,142

total 77,676 66,148
  

Domestic Segment includes sales and services rendered to customers in India.  

overseas Segment includes sales and services rendered to customers located outside of India.  

Non-current assets:  

the following are the details of the carrying amount of non current assets, which do not include deferred tax 
assets, income tax assets, financial assets and investments, of the geographical area in which the assets are 
located:  

(rs. in lakhs)

particulars as at 
31 March 2023 

as at 
31 March 2022 

(restated)^ 

Within India 16,679 16,169

outside India 118 99

total 16,797 16,268
  

C) other disclosures 

1.  the Company is currently focused on three business segments : Consumables, equipment and automation, 
and Flares & process equipment Division. the Company’s organisational structure and governance processes 
are designed to support effective management of multiple businesses while retaining focus on each one of 
them. 

2.  the Segment revenue, results, assets and liabilities include the respective amounts identifiable to each of the 
segment and amounts allocated on a reasonable basis.

3.  the geographical information considered for disclosure are :

(i) Sales within India

(ii) Sales outside India

4.  No single external customer represents 10% or more of the Company’s revenue from operations for the year 
ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022.
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Note 53 - Fair value measurements      

Financial assets and liabilities      

the carrying value of financial instruments by categories is as follows: 

(rs. in lakhs)

particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 (restated)^

Fair value  
through 

 profit or loss

amortised 
cost

Fair value  
through 

 profit or loss

amortised 
cost

Financial assets - Non-current

Investments - 269 - -

Loans - 22 - 30

other non-current financial assets - 767 - 927

Financial assets - Current

Investments 1,759 - 1,988 -

trade receivables - 12,517 - 9,315

Cash and cash equivalents - 595 - 661

other bank balances - 94 - 102

Loans - 38 - 38

other current financial assets - 50 - 92

Financial Liabilities - Non-current

Borrowings - 73 - 60

Lease liabilities - 84 - 127

other non-current financial liabilities - 16 - 18

Financial Liabilities - Current

Borrowings - 1,513 - 8

Lease liabilities 58 26

trade payables - 7,308 - 7,751

other financial liabilities - 1,346 - 996
  
all the above amounts are net of provisions for impairments.      

I.  Fair value hierarchy      

 the fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount that would be received 
to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the 
measurement date. this section explains the judgments and estimates made in determining the fair values 
of the financial instruments that are 

 (a) recognised and measured at fair value and, 

 (b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements. 
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 to provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the group has classified 
its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard. an explanation of 
each level follows underneath the table.”      

 Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. For example, listed 
equity instruments that have quoted market price.      

 Level 2: the fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, traded 
bonds, over-the- counter derivatives) is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of 
observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required 
to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.   

 Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs are not based on observable market data, the instrument is 
included in level 3. this is the case for unlisted equity securities, contingent consideration and indemnification 
asset included in level 3.

II.  Valuation techniques used to determine fair value     

 Significant valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:

•  the fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is determined using forward exchange rates at the 
balance sheet date.

 the fair values for Security deposits, loan to employees and deposits are based on discounted cash flows 
using a discount rate determined considering the borrowing rate charged by the bank on the loan facility 
availed.

III.  Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (Fair value hierarchy- recurring fair value 
measurement):           

(rs. in lakhs)

particulars Investment in 
Mutual funds

Investment in 
Bonds

total

as at 31 March 2023

Level 1 1,729 - 1,729

Level 2 - 299 299

as at 31 March 2022

Level 1 1,958 - 1,958

Level 2 - 30 30
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IV. Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost for which fair values are 
disclosed          

(rs. in lakhs)
particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 (restated)^

Fair Value Carrying 
amount

Fair Value Carrying 
amount

Financial assets - Non-current
Investments 287 269 - -
Loans 22 22 30 30
other financial assets 767 767 927 927
Financial assets - Current
trade receivables 12,517 12,517 9,315 9,315
Cash and cash equivalents 595 595 661 661
other bank balances 94 94 102 102
Loans 38 38 38 38
other current financial assets 50 50 92 92
Financial liabilities - Non-current
Borrowings 73 73 60 60
Lease liabilities 84 84 127 127
other non-current financial liabilities 16 16 18 18
Financial Liabilities - Current
Borrowings 1,513 1,513 8 8
Lease liabilities 58 58 26 26
trade payables 7,308 7,308 7,751 7,751
other financial liabilities 1,346 1,346 996 996

 During the years mentioned above, there have been no transfers amongst the levels of hierarchy.

 the fair values computed above for assets measured at amortised cost are based on discounted cash flows 
using a current borrowing rate. they have been classified at level 2 in fair value hierarchy due to the use of 
valuation techniques which measure the use of observable market data.

Note 54- Financial risk management

the company is exposed primarily to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates, credit quality and liquidity 
management which may adversely impact the fair value of its financial assets and liabilities. the Company has a 
risk management policy which covers risk associated with the financial assets and liabilities. the risk management 
policy is approved by the Board of Directors. the focus of the management is to assess the unpredictability of the 
financial environment and to mitigate potential adverse effect on the financial performance of the company. 
the Company’s principal financial assets include loans, investments, trade and other receivables, and cash and 
cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations. the Company also holds investments in mutual funds 
and bonds.

a) Credit risk      

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss arising from counterparty failure to repay or service debt according to the 
contractual terms and obligations. Credit risk encompasses of both, the direct risk of default and the risk of 
deterioration of creditworthiness as well as concentration of risks. Credit risk is controlled by analysing credit limits 
and credit worthiness of the customer on continuous basis to whom the credit has been granted after obtaining 
necessary approvals for credit. the financial instruments that are subject to concentration of credit risk principally 
consist of trade receivables, loans, cash and bank balances and bank deposits. 
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to manage credit risk, the Company follows a policy of advance payment or credit period upto 30 days to reputed 
customers. In case of foreign receivables, majority of the sales are made either against advance payments or by 
way of letter of credit. the credit limit policy is established considering the current economic trends of the industry 
in which the company is operating.

also, the trade receivables are monitored on a periodic basis for assessing any significant risk of non-recoverability 
of dues and provision is created accordingly.

Bank balances are held with only high rated banks and majority of other security deposits are placed majorly with 
government agencies.

the table below provides details regarding past dues receivables as at each reporting date:

(rs. in lakhs)
Not due 0-12 

months
1-2 years 2-3 years More 

than 3 
years

total

as at 31 March 2023
Gross Carrying amount of - trade 
receivables (Un-disputed)

6,238 4,746 568 395 379 12,326

expected credit loss - trade 
receivables (Un-disputed)

- 176 235 209 379 999

expected credit loss - trade 
receivables (%)

0% 4% 41% 53% 100% 8%

Gross Carrying amount of - trade 
receivables (Disputed)

- - 2,722 13 140 2,875

expected credit loss - trade 
receivables

- - 1,661 13 11 1,685

expected credit loss - trade 
receivables (%)

100% 100% 61% 100% 8% 59%

Carrying amount of trade 
receivables (net of impairment)

6,238 4,570 1,394 186 129 12,517

as at 31 March 2022
Gross Carrying amount of - trade 
receivables (Un-disputed)

4,590 2,938 494 187 424 8,633

expected credit loss - trade 
receivables (Un-disputed)

- 178 14 56 260 508

expected credit loss - trade 
receivables (%)

0% 6% 3% 30% 61% 6%

Gross Carrying amount of - trade 
receivables (Disputed)

- 2,494 241 140 - 2,875

expected credit loss - trade 
receivables

- 1,433 241 11 - 1,685

expected credit loss - trade 
receivables (%)

100% 100% 100% 8% 100% 59%

Carrying amount of trade 
receivables (net of impairment)

4,590 3,821 480 260 164 9,315
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B) Liquidity risk      

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and future cash and collateral 
obligations without incurring unacceptable losses. the Company’s objective is to maintain optimum levels of 
liquidity and to ensure that funds are available for use as per requirement. the liquidity risk principally arises from 
obligations on account of following financial liabilities viz. borrowings, trade payables and other financial liabilities.

the Company’s corporate finance department is responsible for liquidity and funding as well as settlement 
management. In addition, processes and policies related to such risks are overseen by senior management. 
Management monitors the Company’s net liquidity position through rolling forecasts on the basis of expected 
cash flows.

the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payment at each 
reporting date is :      

as at 31 March 2023

(rs. in lakhs)

particulars Less than 
1 year

1 - 2 
years

2 -5 
years

More 
than 5 
years

total

Financial Liabilities - Non-current

Borrowings - 19 56 9 84

Lease liabilities - 66 24 - 90

other non-current financial liabilities - - 16 - 16

Financial Liabilities - Current

Borrowings 1,513 - - - 1,513

Lease liabilities 58 - - - 58

trade payables 7,308 - - - 7,308

other current financial liabilities 1,346 - - - 1,346

total 10,225 85 96 9 10,415

as at 31 March 2022

(rs. in lakhs)

particulars Less than 
1 year

1 - 2 
years

2 -5 
years

More 
than 5 
years

total

Financial Liabilities - Non-current

Borrowings - 13 38 22 73

Lease liabilities 32 67 69 168

other non-current financial liabilities - - 13 5 18

Financial Liabilities - Current

Borrowings 8 - - - 8

Lease liabilities 26 26

trade payables 7,751 - - - 7,751

other current financial liabilities 996 - - - 996

total 8,781 45 118 96 9,040
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C) Market risk      

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 
changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: Foreign currency risk, interest rate risk and price 
risk. the company’s exposure to market risk is primarily on account of foreign currency risk and price risk. 

(i) Foreign currency risk      

the Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk on their receivables, payables and bank balances which are 
held in USD, aeD, KWD and eUr. the fluctuation in the exchange rate of INr relative to USD, aeD, KWD and eUr may 
have a material impact on the Company’s assets and liabilities. 

In respect of the foreign currency transactions, the Company manages the exchange rate exposure by entering 
into forward contracts where the exposure is significant. Further, some of the exposures are kept open since the 
management believes the same will be offsetted by the corresponding receivables and payables which will be 
in the nature of natural hedge. 

the Company’s exposure to unhedged foreign currency risk at the end of reporting period are as 
under: 

(rs. in lakhs)

particulars as at 31 March 2023

uSD aeD KWD eur total

Financial assets

trade receivables 1,783 - 1,198 - 2,981 

Bank balances 129 14 - - 143 

total exposure to foreign currency risk 
(assets)

1,912 14 1,198 - 3,124 

Financial liabilities

trade payables 170 - 1,198 22 1,390 

Lease liabilities - 90 - - 90 

total exposure to foreign currency risk 
(liabilities)

170 90 1,198 22 1,480 

(rs. in lakhs)

particulars as at 31 March 2022 (restated)^

USD aeD KWD eUr total

Financial assets

trade receivables 605 - 1,198 - 1,803 

Bank balances 15 45 - - 60 

total exposure to foreign currency risk 
(assets)

620 45 1,198 - 1,863 

Financial liabilities

trade payables 58 - 1,198 10 1,266 

Lease liabilities - 105 - - 105 

total exposure to foreign currency risk 
(liabilities)

58 105 1,198 10 1,371
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Sensitivity analysis      

the following table demonstrates the sensitivity in USD, eUr, aeD and KWD with all other variables held constant. 
the below impact on the Company’s profit before tax is based on changes in the fair value of unhedged foreign 
currency monetary assets and liabilities at balance sheet date:      

(rs. in lakhs)

Currencies 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

effect on profit 
before tax

effect on  
pre-tax equity

effect on profit 
before tax

effect on  
pre-tax equity

5 % appreciation 82 82 25 (25)

5 % depreciation (82) (82) (25) 25
  

(ii) price risk      

the Company is exposed to price risk from its investment in mutual fund and bonds classified in the balance sheet 
at fair value through profit or loss.

to manage its price risk arising from the investment, the Company has invested in the mutual funds and bonds 
after considering the risk and return profile of the said investments i.e. the debt profile of the investments indicates 
that the debt has been given to creditworthy banks and other institutional parties and equity investment is made 
after considering the performance of the stock.      

Sensitivity analysis      

(rs. in lakhs)

particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

effect on profit 
before tax

effect on  
pre-tax equity

effect on profit 
before tax

effect on  
pre-tax equity

Impact on profit before tax for 5% 
increase in NaV/ price

88 88 99 99

Impact on profit before tax for 5% 
decrease in NaV/ price

(88) (88) (99) (99)

 

Note 55 - Capital Management

the Company’s objectives when managing capital are to

•  safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns to 
shareholders and benefits to other stakeholders, and

•  maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

 In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to 
shareholders.

 the Company monitors its capital by using gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total equity. Net debt 
includes interest bearing loans. total equity comprises of equity share capital, General reserve, Capital 
redemption reserve and retained earnings.  
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a. the capital composition is as follows:

(rs. in lakhs)

particulars as at 
31 March 2023

as at 
31 March 2022 

(restated)^

(a) Net debt [refer note (61)] 1,133 (440)

(b) equity 32,351 28,192

(c) Gearing ratio (a/b) 0.04 (0.02)

B. Dividends

(rs. in lakhs)

particulars as at 
31 March 2023

as at 
31 March 2022 

(restated)^

(a) Final dividend

Final proposed dividend - rs. 17.5 per share for each fully paid up 
share for 31 March 2023 (31 March 2022- rs. 12.5 per share for 
each fully paid share)

2,380 1,700

   

Note 56 - earnings per share

particulars year ended  
31 March 2023

Year ended  
31 March 2022 

(restated)^

Net profit after tax for the year (rs. in lakhs) 5,929 4,502

profit attributable to equity share holders (rs. in lakhs) 5,929 4,502

Weighted average Number of equity shares outstanding during the year 1,35,98,467 1,35,98,467

Basic and Diluted earnings per Share (rs.) 43.60 33.11

Face Value per Share (rs.) 10.00 10.00
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Note 57 - assets pledged as security:

the carrying amounts of assets pledged as security for current borrowings are:

(rs. in lakhs)

particulars as at 
31 March 2023

as at 
31 March 2022 

(restated)^

Current assets

Financial assets

Investments 1,759 1,988

trade receivables 12,517 9,315

Cash and cash equivalents 595 661

other bank balances 94 102

Loans 38 38

other financial assets 50 92

Non Financial assets

Inventories 11,621 8,997

other current assets 1,617 1,797

total Current assets pledged as security 28,291 22,990

Non Current assets

plant and Machinery 4,408 3,739

Land and building at Silvassa plant 1,468 1,477

Land and building at Chennai plant 353 373

other moveable fixed assets 1,285 1,262

total Non-Current assets pledged as security 7,514 6,851

total assets pledged as security 35,805 29,841

Note 58 - revenue expenditure incurred during the year on research and development amounts to rs. 441 lakhs 
(31 March 2022: rs. 332 lakhs) (including depreciation rs. 29 lakhs (31 March 2022: rs. 28 lakhs) and capital 
expenditure thereof amounts to rs. 43 lakhs (31 March 2022: rs. 2 lakhs).

Note 59   

(i)  No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or securities premium or 
any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 
(‘the intermediaries’), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the intermediary 
shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever 
by or on behalf of the Company (‘the Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on 
behalf the Ultimate Beneficiaries.   

(ii)  No funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘the 
Funding parties’), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, 
whether directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever 
by or on behalf of the Funding party (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on 
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.



Corporate proFILe StatUtorY report FINaNCIaLS

20170th Annual Report 2022-23

Note 60- revenue from contracts with customers: Ind aS 115

the Company is engaged in providing welding products technologies and Services, customized solutions for 
multi-disciplinary projects and contracts related to refineries, oil and gas, petrochemicals, fertilizers, steel plants, 
pharma, water and other chemical process industries. trade receivables are non-interest bearing and generally 
on terms of 30 to 90 days.      

the Company determines revenue recognition through the following steps:

1.  Identification of the contract, or contracts, with a customer.

2.  Identification of the performance obligations in the contract.

3.  Determination of the transaction price.

4.  allocation of the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract.

5.  recognition of revenue when, or as, we satisfy a performance obligation.

a)  Disaggregated revenue information 

the Company has three reportable segments of its business :

(i) Consumables

(ii) equipment and automation

(iii) Flares & process equipment Division 

the Company’s revenue disaggregated by pattern of revenue recognition for the year ended 31 March 2023 
and 31 March 2022 are as follows:      

(rs. in lakhs)

Sr. 
No

particulars year ended  
31 March 2023

Year ended  
31 March 2022 

(restated)^

1 Goods and services transferred at a point in time

(i) Consumables 61,451 53,540

(ii) equipment and automation 11,503 9,854

2 Goods and services transferred over time

(iii) Flares & process equipment Division 4,722 2,754

total 77,676 66,148
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b) (i) Contract balances information      

(rs. in lakhs)

particulars trade 
receivables

Contract assets  
(refer note (ii) 

below)

Contract 
Liabilities 

 (refer note (ii) 
below)

Balance as at 1 april 2021 10,533 314 507

Net Increase/(decrease) (1,218) (189) 298

Balance as at 1 april 2022 9,315 125 805

Net Increase/(decrease) 3,202 (11) (275)

Balance as at 31 March 2023 12,517 114 530
      

(ii)  Significant changes in the contract assets and the contract liabilities balances during the year are as 
follows:      

1. the significant changes in contract assets includes contracts are billed during the year for an amount of 
rs. 11 lakhs (31 March 2022: rs. 186 lakhs) and unbilled revenue written off during the previous year rs. 3 
lakhs.      

2. the significant changes in contract liabilities includes customer and distributors advance during the year 
decreased by rs. 275 lakhs (31 March 2022 increased by rs. 298 lakhs). 

(iii)  reconciling the amount of revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss with the contracted price 
as on 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 as follows:      

(rs. in lakhs)

particulars year ended  
31 March 2023

Year ended  
31 March 2022 

(restated)^

revenue as per contracted price 77,875 66,370

adjustments:

Sales return (199) (222)

revenue from contract with customers 77,676 66,148

c)   performance obligations      

 the following aggregated amounts of transaction prices relate to the performance obligations from 
existing contracts that are unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied as on 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 as 
follows: 

(rs. in lakhs)

particulars year ended  
31 March 2023

Year ended  
31 March 2022 

(restated)^

revenue expected to be recognised 12,489 2,577
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Note 61- Net debt reconciliation

(rs. in lakhs)

particulars as at 
31 March 2023

as at 
31 March 2022 

(restated)^

Cash and cash equivalents 595 661

Borrowings (1,586) (68)

Lease liability (142) (153)

Interest payable - -

Net debt (1,133) 440

(rs. in lakhs)

particulars Cash 
and cash 

equivalents

Borrowings Lease 
liability

Interest 
payable

total

Net debt as at 1 april 2021 1,704 (2,800) (119) (16) (1,231)

Cash flows (1,043) - - - (1,043)

repayment of borrowing - 2,802 - - 2,802

proceeds from borrowing - (70) - - (70)

Non cash movement : 
acquisitions/disposals/revaluation

- - (51) - (51)

Leases - - 17 - 17

Finance costs recognised - - (13) (359) (372)

Finance costs paid - - 13 375 388

Net debt as at 1 april 2022 661 (68) (153) - 440

Cash flows (66) - - - (66)

repayment of borrowing - 10 - - 10

proceeds from borrowing - (1,528) - - (1,528)

Non cash movement : 
acquisitions/disposals/revaluation

- - (39) - (39)

Leases - - 50 - 50

Finance costs recognised - - (15) (220) (235)

Finance costs paid - - 15 220 235

Net debt as at 31 March 2023 595 (1,586) (142) - (1,133)
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Note 62- exceptional items :

(rs. in lakhs)

particulars year ended  
31 March 2023

Year ended  
31 March 2022 

(restated)^

1.  Impairment in the value of the wire manufacturing facility-

 During the year, the Company had provided rs. 146 lakhs towards 
impairment in the carrying value of one of the manufacturing facility 
of wires based on order from potential buyer.

(146) -

2.  Balances with government authorities-

 the Company has written off rs. 380 lakhs towards disputed Vat 
input credit matter which was pending before CeStat, Vat tribunal 
during the current year. the Company has decided to avail benefit 
of amnesty scheme announced by Government of Maharashtra.

- (380)

3.  Flares & process equipment Division 

 During the year, the Company has sold one project, which was in 
progress (as is where as basis) to the third party and booked an 
additional cost of rs. 535 lakhs towards compensation to buyer for 
future estimated losses, expected liquidated damage and other 
incidental costs. (It includes provision of rs. 230 lakhs and rs.305 
lakhs towards write off)

- (535)

 During the year, the Company has made provision of rs. 285 lakhs 
towards cost incurred on crematorium projects of MCGM and 
expected liquidated damages, as estimated by the Management.

- (285)

4.  profit on sale of property

 During the year, the Company has sold partly property situated at 
Kochi and the profit on sale has been recognised as an exceptional 
item.

 During the previous year, the Company had sold three properties 
situated at Delhi- Narayana, Silvassa and ahmednagar and the profit 
on sale had been recognised as an exceptional item.”

66 2,098

total (80) 898
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Note 63- Corporate Social responsibility : 

the Company has formed a Corporate Social responsibility (CSr) Committee as required under Section 135 of 
the Companies act, 2013. the Company is required to spend rs. 63.43 lakhs as per Section 135(5). However, the 
Company has spent rs. 63.47 lakhs on the activities mentioned in Schedule VII to the Companies act, 2013. the 
Company had spent rs. 0.09 lakh excess in previous financial year and hence eligible for set off, against current 
financial year obligation.

Details of CSr spent during the financial year 2022-23: 

Where the company covered under section 135 of the companies act, the following shall be disclosed with 
regard to CSr activities:    

particulars year ended  
31 March 2023

Year ended  
31 March 2022 

(restated)^

(i)  amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 63 48

(ii)  amount of expenditure incurred * (refer note a below) 63 58

(iii)  Shortfall at the end of the year * - -

(iv)  total of previous years shortfall - -

(v)  reason for shortfall Na Na
 

(vi) Nature of amount spent during financial year 2022-23 is detailed below:-    

(rs. in lakhs)

CSr project 
or activity 
identified

Sector in which project 
is covered

projects or programs amount 
spent: direct 
or through 

implementing 
agency

promoting 
education

promoting education for 
poor 
& needy

additional salary to school teachers at 
advani oerlikon Higher Secondary School, 
Birgaon, raipur

6

promoting 
education

promoting education for 
poor 
& needy

Contributing to “rotary Innovation 
Centre” for Imparting employability 
/ entrepreneurship skills and Skill 
development w.r.t. robotics, aI, Iot, 3D 
printing

0

Livelihood 
enhancement 
project

Contribution to 
relief funds for socio 
economic development, 
relief and welfare of the 
socially backward class/ 
unprivileged

providing financial assistance to orphans 
& single parent children

4

education, 
Women 
empowerment,  
Skill 
Development & 
Healthcare

Contribution to 
relief funds for socio 
economic development, 
relief and welfare of the 
socially backward class/ 
unprivileged

Contribution made to the trusts / NGos 
through ador Foundation:

43
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(rs. in lakhs)

CSr project 
or activity 
identified

Sector in which project 
is covered

projects or programs amount 
spent: direct 
or through 

implementing 
agency

promoting 
education

promoting education for 
poor 
& needy

purchase of Sports equipments at advani 
oerlikon Higher Secondary School, 
Birgaon, raipur

0

promoting 
education

promoting education for 
poor 
& needy

repair, painting & flooring work at advani 
oerlikon Higher Secondary School, 
Birgaon, raipur

6

Livelihood 
enhancement 
project related 
to 
underprivileged 
children

Contribution to 
relief funds for socio 
economic development, 
relief and welfare of the 
socially backward class / 
unprivileged

purchase 100 Chairs and Washing 
Machine for 120 orphan & Needy Girls

1

animal Welfare Contribution to the 
welfare of street animals 
/ stray dogs

Contributing to “rabies Mukti Mission 
– 2025” for vaccinating stray dogs in 
Maharashtra with anti-rabies vaccination 
with the view to eradicate / prevent rabies.

0

Livelihood 
enhancement 
project

promoting Health Care 
Including preventive 
Health Care

Contributing to the treatment (radiation 
therapy) of an underprivileged girl child, 
suffering from deadly disease.

0

Setting Up 
Homes and 
Hostels For 
orphans

Contribution to 
relief funds for socio 
economic development, 
relief and 
welfare of the socially 
backward class / 
unprivileged

providing financial assistance for 
Infrastructure Development & renovation, 
procuring materials / instruments and 
improvisation of an old-age home.

1

Livelihood 
enhancement 
project

Contribution to 
relief funds for socio 
economic development, 
relief and welfare of the 
socially backward class / 
unprivileged

providing nutrition kit and health-care 
products to underprivileged adivasi 
children

1

Livelihood 
enhancement 
project

promoting Health Care 
Including preventive 
Health Care

extending financial assistance for 
providing mental health services at bare 
minimum / marginal cost to the low 
income group people

1

total 63



Corporate proFILe StatUtorY report FINaNCIaLS

20770th Annual Report 2022-23

Note :    

amount spent during the year on    

(rs. In lakhs)

particulars 2022-23 2021-22

i) Construction / acquisition of any assets - -

ii) purpose other than (i) above 63 58

total 63 58

(vii) Details of related party transactions: 

 During the current year, Company has not entered into any related party transaction with respect to CSr 
expenditure. 

(viii) During the year, the Company has not required to make any provision with respect to a liability incurred by 
entering into a contractual obligation.

Note 64- Merger of subsidiary company (ador Welding academy private Limited) :

as a part of reorganization of the Company, the Board of Directors of the Company and its wholly owned 
subsidiary, ador Welding academy private Limited (aWapL) (engaged in providing training in respect of welding 
activity) have in their respective board meetings held on 28 May 2021, unanimously approved the proposal for 
the amalgamation of aWapL with the Company, subject to all the necessary statutory / regulatory approvals.

the Scheme of amalgamation (‘the Scheme’) for merger of aWapL with the Company has been approved by the 
National Company Law tribunal (NCLt), Mumbai Bench under Section 230 to Section 232 of Chapter XV of the 
Companies act, 2013 on 03 February 2023, the Scheme has become effective from appointed date i.e., 1 april 
2021. the Scheme of amalgamation (‘the Scheme’) for merger of aWapL with the Company has been approved 
by the National Company Law tribunal (NCLt), Mumbai Bench under Section 230 to Section 232 of Chapter XV 
of the Companies act, 2013 on 03 February 2023, the Scheme has become effective from appointed date 
i.e., 1 april 2021. the merger has been accounted under the ‘pooling of interests’ method in accordance with 
appendix C of Ind aS 103 ‘Business Combinations’ and comparatives have been restated for merger from the 
beginning of the preceding year i.e. 1 april 2021 as detailed in tables 1, 2 and 3 below.

In accordance with the Scheme, the shares held by the Company in aWapL shall stand cancelled and extinguished 
in entirety. Since the Company is the 100% shareholder of aWapL, no shares shall be required to be allotted by the 
Company either to itself or to any of its nominee shareholders holding shares in aWapL.

the difference, between the book value of the assets of aWapL and the aggregate of: (a) the book value of 
liabilities of aWapL vested in the Company pursuant to the Scheme; (b) the book value of the reserves of aWapL 
vested in the Company pursuant to the Scheme; and the book value of investment held by the Company in 
aWapL, recorded as capital reserve. Upon the Scheme becoming effective and with effect from the appointed 
date, the authorized share capital of aWapL shall stand transferred to and be merged/amalgamated with the 
authorised share capital of the Company. Consequently, authorised share capital of the Company enhanced to 
rs. 3,300 lakhs (divided into 3,30,00,000 equity shares of rs. 10 each).    
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table 1 - restatements - Balance Sheet

particulars as at  
31 March 2022

reported

as at  
31 March 2022

restated

assets

 (1) Non-current assets

  (a) property, plant and equipment 10,393 10,471

  (b) right-of-use asset 481 481

  (c) Capital work-in-progress 706 706

  (d) Investment property 729 729

  (e) Intangible assets 65 66

  (f) Intangible assets under development 4 4

  (g) Financial assets

   (i) Investment 213 -

   (ii) Loans 30 30

   (iii) other financial assets 928 927

  (h) Income tax (current-tax) assets (net) 1,192 1,192

  (i) Deferred tax assets (net) 275 268

  (j) other non-current assets 1,394 1,394

 total non-current assets 16,410 16,268

 (2) Current assets

  (a) Inventories 8,997 8,997

  (b) Financial assets

   (i) Investments 1,878 1,988

   (ii) trade receivables 9,315 9,315

   (iii) Cash and cash equivalents 638 661

   (iv) other bank balances 102 102

   (v) Loans 41 38

   (vi) other financial assets 91 92

  (c) other current assets 1,794 1,797

22,856 22,990

  (d) assets classified as held for sale 7 7

 total current assets 22,863 22,997

total assets 39,273 39,265

equity and liabilities

 equity

  (a) equity share capital 1,360 1,360

  (b) other equity 26,841 26,832

 total equity 28,201 28,192
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particulars as at  
31 March 2022

reported

as at  
31 March 2022

restated

Liabilities

 (1) Non-current liabilities

  (a) Financial liabilities

   (i) Borrowings 60 60

   (ii) Lease liabilities 127 127

   (iii) other financial liabilities 18 18

  (b) provisions 469 469

  (c) Deferred tax liabilities (net) - -

 (d) other non-current liabilities 3 3

 total non-current liabilities 677 677

 (2) Current liabilities

  (a) Financial liabilities

   (i) Borrowings 8 8

   (ii) Lease liabilities 26 26

   (iii) trade payables

 total outstanding dues to micro, small and medium enterprises 192 192

 total outstanding dues to creditors other than micro, small and 
 medium enterprises

7,558 7,559

   (iv) other financial liabilities 986 996

  (b) other current liabilities 933 923

  (c) provisions 651 651

  (d) Current tax liabilities, (net) 41 41

 total current liabilities 10,395 10,396

 total equity and liabilities 39,273 39,265
 

table 2 - restatements – Statement of profit and loss    

particulars year ended  
31 March 2022

reported

Year ended  
31 March 2022

restated

I.  Income

 (a) revenue from operations 66,148 66,148

 (b) other income 541 548

total Income 66,689 66,696

II.  expenses

 (a) Cost of raw materials and components consumed 42,125 42,125

 (b) purchase of stock-in-trade 5,850 5,850
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particulars year ended  
31 March 2022

reported

Year ended  
31 March 2022

restated

 (c) Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and  
work-in-progress”

(990) (990)

 (d) employee benefits expenses 4,865 4,866

 (e) Finance costs 372 372

 (f) Depreciation and amortisation expense 1,083 1,090

 (g) other expenses 8,459 8,460

total expenses 61,764 61,773

III. profit before exceptional items and tax (I-II) 4,925 4,923

IV. exceptional items (net) income /(expenses) 898 898

V. profit /(Loss)before tax (III-IV) 5,823 5,821

VI. tax expense /(credit)

 (a) Current tax 1,473 1,473

 (b) Deferred tax (credit)/charge (169) (168)

 (c) Mat Credit entitlement - 14

total tax expense /(credit) 1,304 1,319

VII. profit / (Loss)for the year (V-VI) 4,519 4,502

VIII. other comprehensive income

 (a) Items that will not be reclassified to statement of profit and loss (81) (81)

 (b) Income tax relating to above items 20 20

total other comprehensive (loss) / income(net) (61) (61)

IX. total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year (VII+VIII) 4,458 4,441

X. earnings per equity share

 Basic and diluted earnings /(losses)per share (Face value per share rs. 
10)

33.23 33.10

 

table 3 - restatements – Statement of Cash flow    

particulars year ended  
31 March 2022

reported

Year ended  
31 March 2022

restated

Cash flows from operating activities 2,633 2,639

Cash flows from Investing activities (546) (545)

Cash flows from Financing activities (3,137) (3,137)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (1,050) (1,043)

add: Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 1,688 1,704

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 638 661
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table 4 - Capital reserve on Merger due to the excess of the net assets taken over against the cancellation 
of investments in equity shared of aWapL held by the company

particulars amount  
(rs. in lakhs)

a) assets taken over

 Non-current assets 101

 Current assets 129

total assets (a) 230

B) Liabilities taken over

 Non-current liabilities 6

 Current liabilities 2

total liabilities (B) 8

C) Net assets taken over (C = a – B) 222

D) reserves of aWapL vested in the Company:

 retained earnings (132)

total reserves (132)

e) Cancellation of Investments in equity of aWapL held by the Company 213

 Capital reserve on amalgamation (C - D – e) 141

Note 65- Disclosure of ratios :

Sr. 
No.

Nature of 
ratio

Description as at  
31 March 

2023

as at  
31 March 

2022

% 
change 

from 
previous 

year

reason for change 
more than 25%:

Nominator Denominator ratio ratio

1 Current 
ratio

Current asset Current 
Liabilities

2.36 2.21 7% N.a.

2 Debt-equity 
ratio

Borrowings Net worth 0.05 0.00 1932% as business has 
increased and 
which lead to higher 
reruirement of working 
capital (Significant 
increase in trade 
receivables and 
inventory)



212

CREATING THE BEST WELDING EXPERIENCE

Sr. 
No.

Nature of 
ratio

Description as at  
31 March 

2023

as at  
31 March 

2022

% 
change 

from 
previous 

year

reason for change 
more than 25%:

Nominator Denominator ratio ratio

3 Debt 
Service 
Coverage 
ratio

profit after tax 
(before exceptional 
Item)+Depreciation 
+Interest on 
borrowing

Interest on 
borrowings

44.19 20.45 116% as stated above, 
because of significant 
increase in business profit 
also increase significantly 
which is reflected in 
improved debt service 
coverage ratio. also 
average borrowing is 
lesser as compare to last 
year.

4 return on 
equity ratio

profit after tax 
(before exceptional 
Item)

average 
Shareholders 
fund

20% 14% 43% profit after tax has 
improved compared 
to last year, due to 
improvement in turnover.

5 Inventory 
turnover 
ratio

Cost of Goods sold average 
Inventory

5.07 6.16 -18% N.a.

6 trade 
receivables 
turnover 
ratio

revenue from 
operations

average 
trade 
receivables

7.12 6.67 7% N.a.

7 trade 
payables 
turnover 
ratio

Credit purchases average 
trade 
payables

8.17 7.09 15% N.a.

8 Net capital 
turnover 
ratio

revenue from 
operations

Working 
Capital

4.75 5.25 -9% N.a.

9 Net profit 
ratio

profit after tax 
(before exceptional 
Item)

Sales 
(revenue 
from 
operations)

8% 5% 41% profit after tax has 
improved compared 
to last year, due to 
improvement in turnover 
and efficiency.

10 return on 
Capital 
employed

earning Before 
Interest and 
tax(before 
exceptional item)

Capital 
employed 
(Net worth + 
total debt )

24% 18% 32% earning Before Interest 
and tax has improved 
compared to last year, 
due to improvement in 
turnover.

11 return on 
investment.

return on 
investment

average of 
Investment

2% 4% -43% Company has invested 
in Mutual fund in FY 22, 
overall market rates are 
low in FY 23.
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Note 66 - the Company has registered all charges or satisfaction with registrar of Companies during current year 
and previous year.

Note 67 - During the current year and previous year, the Company has not entered into any transactions with 
companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies act, 1956.

Note 68 - the Board has recommended a final dividend for the financial year 2022-23 @ rs.17.5 per share, i.e. 
175% of the face value of rs.10 each. 

Note 69 - the Company evaluated subsequent events from the balance sheet date to 30 May 2023, the date 
at which the financial statement were available to be issued and determined that there are no item to report.

Note 70 - the figures of the previous years have been regrouped / rearranged wherever necessary. the impact 
of restatements/ regroupings in the previous year fugures are not material to Financial Statements except as 
explained in note 64 (amalgamation). 

Note 71 - amounts below rs 0.50 lakh have been rounded off.

the accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements

this is a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information referred to in our 
other report of even date.       

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLp For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered accountants
Firm registration No: 001076N/N500013 

Khushroo B. panthaky Vinayak M. Bhide Surya kant Sethia aditya t. Malkani N. Malkani Nagpal
partner
Membership No. 042423

Head - Corp. admin, 
Legal and Company 
Secretary

Chief Financial officer Managing Director
DIN : 01585637

executive Chairman
DIN : 00031985

place : Mumbai place : Mumbai
Date : 30 May 2023 Date : 30 May 2023



214

CREATING THE BEST WELDING EXPERIENCE

NoteS



Corporate proFILe StatUtorY report FINaNCIaLS

21570th Annual Report 2022-23

NoteS



216

CREATING THE BEST WELDING EXPERIENCE

NoteS



Ador Welding Training Division has been instrumental in training 
welders with the right skills for over 7 decades now. In the last 
FY 2022-23, the training division successfully trained over 850 
candidates in a series of in-house & onsite training sessions, 
including trade testing of welders, who aspire to move abroad.  

Staying true to our commitment of “Creating the Best Welding 
Experience”, we helped develop a workforce for one of the 
leading global port organizations. We were invited to conduct 
an output-outcome-based welding training session for their 
welders, adding to yet another training milestone for Ador.

In FY 2022-23, we continued to support the ITIs by providing free 
training sessions to their students. The welding training sessions 
are built, keeping the industry demands in mind and help 
students find better job opportunities, while also supplying 

skilled welders to the nation. FY 2022-23 also gave us the 
opportunity to upgrade welders’ skills and engineers’ 
knowledge, specific to maintenance-related welding in the 
mining sector.

Ador’s effort towards providing the nation with skilled welders 
was recognized at the WELDFAB TECH AWARDS – 2022, 
organized by Weldfab Tech Times, where we received the 
“Best Welding Industry Training Provider” award.  

We foresee a good future for skilled welders & welding 
engineers and along with training sessions, we are also 
focusing on increasing awareness & aspiration. The youth of 
India, if trained well, can make a promising career in Welding 
and add to the “#AtmaNirbhar” initiative of the government. 

 

ADOR'S WELDING TRAINING DIVISION



www.adorwelding.com

Registered Office: Ador House, 6, K. Dubash Marg, Fort, Mumbai 400 001-16, 
Maharashtra, India.

+91 22 6623 9300 investorservices@adorians.com
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